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4,125,000 Ordinary Shares

This is the initial public offering in the United States of the ordinary shares of Atlas Financial Holdings, Inc.

An aggregate of 4,125,000 shares are being offered in this prospectus. We are offering 1,500,000 of our ordinary
shares and the selling shareholder named in this prospectus is offering 2,625,000 of our ordinary shares. We will not
receive any proceeds from the sale of the ordinary shares being offered by the selling shareholder. To date, our
ordinary shares have been exclusively listed on the TSX Venture Exchange (“TSXV”) under the symbol “AFH.” Our
ordinary shares will be listed for trading on the Nasdaq Capital Market, or NASDAQ, under the symbol “AFH” on or
promptly after the date of this prospectus.

As of February 11, 2013, the last reported sale price of our ordinary shares on the TSXV was C$8.40 (or $8.35, based
on an assumed exchange rate of C$1.01 per $1 U.S.).

We are an “emerging growth company” under the federal securities laws and are subject to reduced public company
reporting requirements. Investing in our ordinary shares involves a high degree of risk. See “Risk Factors” beginning on
page 10 of this prospectus for certain risk factors that you should consider before making a decision to invest in our
ordinary shares.

Per Share Total
Initial public offering price $ 5.8500 $ 24,131,250.00
Underwriting discounts and commissions (1) $ 0.4095 $ 1,689,187.50
Proceeds, before expenses, to Atlas Financial Holdings, Inc. $ 5.4405 $ 8,160,750.00
Proceeds, before expenses, to selling shareholder $ 5.4405 $ 14,281,312.50

1) See “”’ beginning on page 92 for disclosure regarding the underwriting discounts and certain expenses payable to the
underwriters by us.

We have granted the underwriters a 30-day option to purchase up to an additional 618,750 ordinary shares from us at

the public offering price, less the underwriting discount specified above, to cover over-allotments, if any.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of

these securities or determined whether this prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a

criminal offense.

The underwriters expect to deliver the ordinary shares to purchasers on or about February 15, 2013.

The date of this prospectus is February 11, 2013
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You should rely only on the information contained in this prospectus. Neither we nor the underwriters have authorized
any other person to provide you with different information. If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent
information, you should not rely on it. Neither we nor the underwriters are making an offer to sell these securities in
any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted. You should assume that the information appearing in this
prospectus is accurate only as of the date on the front cover of this prospectus. Our business, financial condition,
results of operation and prospects may have changed since that date.

We use market data, demographic data, industry forecasts and projections throughout this prospectus. We have
obtained certain market and industry data from publicly available industry publications. These sources generally state
that the information they provide has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable, but that the accuracy and
completeness of the information are not guaranteed. The forecasts and projections are based on historical market data,
and there is no assurance that any of the projected amounts will be achieved. We believe that the market and industry
research others have performed are reliable, but we have not independently verified this information.
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PROSPECTUS SUMMARY
Our Business

We are a financial services holding company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands. Our core business is
the underwriting of commercial automobile insurance policies, focusing on the “light” commercial automobile sector,
which is carried out through our insurance subsidiaries, American Country Insurance Company, or American Country,
and American Service Insurance Company, Inc., or American Service, together with American Country, which we

refer to as our “insurance subsidiaries”. This sector includes taxi cabs, non-emergency para-transit, limousine, livery and
business auto. Our goal is to be the preferred specialty commercial transportation insurer in any geographic areas

where our value proposition delivers benefit to all stakeholders.

We were formed as JJR VI, a Canadian capital pool company, on December 21, 2009 under the laws of Ontario,
Canada. On December 31, 2010, we completed a reverse merger wherein American Service and American Country
were transferred to us by Kingsway America Inc., or KAI, a wholly owned subsidiary of Kingsway Financial Services
Inc., or KFSI, a Canadian public company whose shares are traded on the Toronto and New York Stock Exchanges.
Prior to the transaction, each of American Service and American Country were wholly owned subsidiaries of KAL
American Country commenced operations in 1979. With roots dating back to 1925 selling insurance for taxi cabs,
American Country is one of the oldest insurers of U.S. taxi and livery business. In 1983, American Service began as a
non-standard personal and commercial auto insurer writing business in the Chicago, Illinois area.

In connection with the acquisition of American Service and American Country, we streamlined the operations of the
insurance subsidiaries to focus on the “light” commercial automobile lines of business we believe will produce favorable
underwriting results. Over the past two years, we have disposed of non-core assets and placed into run-off certain
non-core lines of business previously written by the insurance subsidiaries. Our focus going forward is the

underwriting of commercial automobile insurance in the U.S.

Substantially all of our new premiums written are in “light” commercial automobile lines of business. Our core
commercial automobile line of business accounted for 92.6% of our gross premium written in the nine month period
ended September 30, 2012, compared with 44.0% of our gross premium written in the nine month period ended
September 30, 2011. For the same period, the gross premium written from our core commercial automobile line of
business increased by 183% relative to the nine month period ended September 30, 2011.

We are committed to the “light” commercial automobile lines of business. The insurance subsidiaries distribute their
products through a network of independent retail agents, and actively wrote insurance in 31 states as of September 30,
2012. Together, American Country and American Service are licensed to write property and casualty, or P&C,
insurance in 46 states plus the District of Columbia in the United States. American Country and American Service
actively wrote commercial automobile insurance in more states during 2012 than in any prior year.

Market

Our core business is the underwriting of commercial automobile insurance policies, focusing on the “light” commercial
automobile sector. The “light” commercial automobile policies we underwrite provide coverage for lightweight
commercial vehicles typically with the minimum limits prescribed by statute, municipal or other regulatory
requirements. The majority of our policyholders are individual owners or small fleet operators.
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The “light” commercial automobile sector is a subset of the historically profitable commercial automobile insurance
industry segment. Commercial automobile insurance has outperformed the overall P&C industry in each of the past
ten years based on data compiled by A.M. Best & Company, or A.M. Best, an established credit rating organization
exclusively serving the insurance industry. A recent survey by A.M. Best estimates the total market for commercial
automobile liability insurance to be approximately $24 billion. The size of the commercial automobile insurance
market can be affected significantly by many factors, such as the underwriting capacity and underwriting criteria of
automobile insurance carriers and general economic conditions. Historically, the commercial automobile insurance
market has been characterized by periods of price competition and excess capacity followed by periods of higher
premium rates and shortages of underwriting capacity.

We believe there is a positive correlation between the economy and commercial automobile insurance in general.
Operators of “light” commercial automobiles may be less likely than other business segments within the commercial
automobile insurance market to take vehicles out of service as their businesses and business reputations rely heavily
on availability. With respect to
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certain business lines such as the taxi line, there are also other factors, such as the cost and limited supply of
medallions, which may discourage a policyholder from taking vehicles out of service in the face of reduced demand
for the use of the vehicle.

Competitive Strengths
Our value proposition is driven by our competitive strengths, which include the following:

Focus on niche commercial insurance business. We target niche markets that support adequate pricing and believe we
are able to adapt to changing market needs ahead of our competitors through our strategic focus and increasing scale.
We develop and deliver superior specialty commercial automobile insurance products priced to meet our customers’
needs and strive to generate consistent underwriting profit for our insurance subsidiaries. We have experienced a
favorable trend in loss ratios in 2012 attributable to the increased composition of commercial auto written premium as
a percentage of the total written premium. We expect the loss ratio to continue decreasing as we complete the
transition away from non-standard automobile insurance and other non-core lines of business.

Strong market presence with recognized brands and long-standing distribution relationships. American Country and
American Service have a long heritage as insurers of taxi, livery and para-transit businesses. Both of the insurance
subsidiaries have strong brand recognition and long-standing distribution relationships in our target markets. Through
regular interaction with our retail producers, we strive to thoroughly understand each of the markets we serve in order
to deliver strategically priced products to the right market at the right time.

Sophisticated underwriting and claims handling expertise. Atlas has extensive experience and expertise with respect to
underwriting and claims management in our specialty area of insurance. Our well-developed underwriting and claims
infrastructure includes an extensive data repository, proprietary technologies, deep market knowledge and established
market relationships. Analysis of the substantial data available through our operating companies drives our product
and pricing decisions. We believe that our underwriting and claims handling expertise provides enhanced risk
selection, high quality service to our customers and greater control over claims expenses. We are committed to
maintaining this underwriting and claims handling expertise as a core competency as our volume of business
increases.

Scalable operations positioned for growth. Significant progress has also been made in aligning our cost base to our
expected revenue going forward. The core functions of the insurance subsidiaries were integrated into a common
operating platform. Consequently, we believe that both insurance subsidiaries are well-positioned to begin returning to
the volume of premium they wrote in the recent past with better than industry level profitability from the efficient
operating infrastructure honed in 2011.

Experienced management team. We have a talented and experienced management team led by our President and Chief
Executive Officer, Scott Wollney, who has more than 21 years of experience in the property and casualty insurance
industry. Our senior management team has worked in the property and casualty industry for an average of 21 years
and with the insurance subsidiaries, directly or indirectly, for an average of 12 years.

Strategy
We seek to deploy our capital to maximize the return for our shareholders, either by investing in growing our

operations or by pursuing other capital initiatives, depending upon insurance and capital market conditions. We focus
on our key strengths and seek to expand our geographic footprint and products only to the extent these activities
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support our vision and mission. We will identify and prioritize market expansion opportunities based on the
comparative strength of our value proposition relative to competitors, the market opportunity and the legal and
regulatory environment.

We intend to continue to grow profitably by undertaking the following:

Re-establish legacy distribution relationships. We are focused on re-establishing relationships with independent agents
that have been our distribution partners in the past. We seek to develop and maintain strategic distribution
relationships with a relatively small number of independent agents with substantial market presence in each state in
which we currently operate. We expect to continue to increase the distribution of our core products in the states where
we are actively writing insurance and re-capture insurance premium historically written by the insurance subsidiaries.

Expand our market presence. We are committed to continuing to diversify geographically by leveraging our
experience, historical data and market research to expand our business in previously untapped geographic markets.
Utilizing our established brands and market relationships, we have made significant inroads in new states where we
had no presence in 2011. We will
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continue to expand into additional states where we are licensed, but not currently active, and states where we are not
currently licensed to the extent that our market expansion criteria is met in a given state.

Acquire complementary books of business and insurance companies. We plan to opportunistically pursue acquisitions
of complementary books of business and insurance companies provided market conditions support this activity. We
will evaluate each acquisition opportunity based on its expected economic contribution to our results and support of
our market expansion initiatives.

Our Challenges

As part of your evaluation of our business, you should take into account the challenges we face in implementing our
strategies, including the following:

Estimating Our Loss Reserves. We maintain loss reserves to cover our estimated ultimate liability for unpaid losses
and loss adjustment expenses for reported and unreported claims incurred as of the end of each accounting period.
These reserves represent management’s estimates of what the ultimate settlement and administration of claims will
cost. Pursuant to applicable insurance regulations, these reserves are reviewed by an independent actuary on an annual
basis. Setting reserves is inherently uncertain and there can be no assurance that current or future reserves will prove
adequate. If our loss reserves are inadequate, it will have an unfavorable impact on our results. A summary of the
favorable and unfavorable developments in our loss reserves in the previous 10-year period is on page 58.

Reliance on Independent Agents. We rely on independent agents and other producers to bind insurance policies and
collect premiums. We have very limited oversight over these agents and other producers, and in the event an
independent agent exceeds their authority by binding us to a risk that does not comply with our underwriting
guidelines or fails to collect or remit premiums to us, our results of operations could be adversely affected.
Maintaining Our Financial Strength Ratings. In January 2012, A.M. Best affirmed the financial strength rating of “B” to
our insurance subsidiaries, and following the disclosure of our pending acquisition of Gateway, A.M. Best placed
these ratings under review with negative implications. This review was completed in January 2013 with A.M. Best
affirming the financial strength ratings of all of Atlas' insurance subsidiaries as “B” and the outlook assigned to all
ratings as “Stable.” However, there is a risk that A.M. Best will not maintain these ratings in the future. If A.M. Best
downgrades our ratings, it is likely that we will not be able to compete as effectively and our ability to sell insurance
policies could decline. As a result, our financial results would be adversely affected.

Attracting, Developing and Retaining Experienced Personnel. To sustain our growth as a property and casualty
insurance company operating in specialty and niche markets, we must continue to attract, develop and retain
management, marketing, distribution, underwriting, customer service and claims personnel with expertise in the
products we offer. The loss of key personnel, or our inability to recruit, develop and retain additional qualified
personnel, could materially and adversely affect our business, growth and profitability.

For further discussion of these and other challenges, see “Risk Factors.”

2012 Third Quarter Financial Results

On November 12, 2012 we announced our 2012 third quarter financial results. Our third quarter financial results
reflect our strategic focus on specialty commercial automobile lines of insurance and the winding down of certain
non-core lines of business.

Gross premium written related to our core commercial automobile line of business was $22.1 million in the three
month period ended September 30, 2012, representing a 313.4% increase relative to the three month period ended
September 30, 2011. The increase in our commercial auto gross premium written was a result of the strategic focus on
these core lines of business coupled with our recent geographic expansion and positive response from new and
existing agents. The increase was also the result of a new business arrangement in New York to provide excess
coverage for taxis above the levels of risk retained by the insured that was implemented in the third quarter.
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Our combined ratio for the three month period ended September 30, 2012 improved to 97.6%, compared to 119.7%
for the three month period ended September 30, 2011 and 111.5% for the three month period ended June 30, 2012.
The improvement in the combined ratio was attributable to reductions in the loss ratio, acquisition cost ratio and other
underwriting expense ratio. These reductions were primarily due to the shift away from non-core lines of business and
several recent cost saving initiatives.
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Our basic and diluted earnings per common share in the three month period ended September 30, 2012 was $0.24.
Book value per basic and diluted common share at September 30, 2012 was $6.46, an increase of $0.30 compared to
June 30, 2012. This resulted in an annualized return on common equity of 15.0% for the three month period ended
September 30, 2012.

For further discussion of our 2012 third quarter financial results, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

Recent Developments
Reverse Stock Split

On December 7, 2012, we held a shareholder meeting where a one-for-three reverse stock split was unanimously
approved. On January 29, 2013 we implemented the reverse stock split, which decreased our authorized and
outstanding ordinary shares and restricted voting shares at a ratio of one-for-three. The primary objective of the
reverse stock split was to increase the per share price of our ordinary shares to meet certain listing requirements of the
NASDAAQ Capital Market. Unless otherwise noted, all share and per share values in this prospectus reflect the
one-for-three reverse stock split.

Acquisition of Gateway Insurance Company

On January 2, 2013 we acquired Camelot Services, Inc., or Camelot Services, a privately owned insurance holding
company, and its sole subsidiary, Gateway Insurance Company, or Gateway, from Hendricks Holding Company, Inc.,
or Hendricks, an unaffiliated third party. Gateway provides specialized commercial insurance products, including
commercial automobile insurance to niche markets such as taxi, black car and sedan service owners and operators.

Gateway is a St. Louis, Missouri-based insurance company that currently underwrites approximately $10.0 million of
annual taxi and limousine net written premium. Gateway is an admitted carrier in 46 states plus the District of
Columbia. Our acquisition of Gateway expanded our core commercial automobile lines to a total of 39 states and the
District of Columbia, including California, Hawaii, Montana, Nebraska, North Dakota, South Dakota, Washington
and West Virginia.

Under the terms of the stock purchase agreement, the purchase price equaled the tangible GAAP book value of
Camelot Services at December 31, 2012, subject to certain pre and post-closing adjustments, including, among others,
claim development between the signing of the stock purchase agreement and December 31, 2012. Additional
consideration may be paid to the seller, or returned to us by the seller, depending upon, among other things, the future
development of Gateway’s actual loss reserves for certain lines of business and the utilization of certain deferred tax
assets over time. Gateway also writes workers’ compensation insurance, which was terminated as part of the
transaction. An indemnity reinsurance agreement was entered into pursuant to which 100% of Gateway’s workers’
compensation business was ceded to a third party captive reinsurer funded by the seller as part of the transaction.

The total purchase price for all of Camelot Services’ outstanding shares was $14.9 million, consisting of a combination
of cash and Atlas preferred shares. Consideration consisted of a $6.0 million dividend paid by Gateway immediately
prior to the closing, $2.0 million of Atlas preferred shares (consisting of a total of 2 million preferred shares) and $6.9
million in cash. Under the terms of the stock purchase agreement, the closing price was reduced due to reserve
strengthening of approximately $6.4 million that Camelot Services recognized prior to closing. Approximately $4.3
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million of this reserve strengthening was related to commercial automobile reserves, a portion of which was related to
the long-haul truck program that is currently in run-off. The amount of pre-closing reserve strengthening was
consistent with the conclusions of an independent actuarial analysis of the reserves of Gateway. In addition to this
pre-closing reserve strengthening, we have contractual protections to offset up to $2.0 million of future reserve
development. We have also agreed to provide the sellers up to $2.0 million in additional consideration in the event of
favorable reserve development.

2012 Fourth Quarter Premium

We have not yet finalized our financial statement close process for the three month period ended December 31, 2012
and our independent auditors have not yet completed their year-end audit. The financial data for the three month
period ended December 31, 2012 presented below are preliminary, based upon our estimates and subject to the
completion of our financial statement close process and year-end audit. This summary is not a comprehensive
statement of our financial results for this period. Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially
from our preliminary estimates are set forth under the headings “Risk Factors” and “Cautionary Note Regarding
Forward-Looking Statements.” Our consolidated financial

10
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statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2012 will not be available until after this offering is completed,
and consequently, will not be available to you prior to investing in this offering.

Gross premium written for the three months ended December 31, 2012 is expected to be approximately $10.7 million,
representing a 17.8% increase relative to the three month period ended December 31, 2011. The expected increase in
our gross premium written as compared to the prior year is primarily attributable to an increase in our commercial
auto gross premium written as a result of the strategic focus on these core lines of business, coupled with our recent
geographic expansion and positive response from new and existing agents. Gross premium written related to our core
commercial automobile lines of business is expected to be approximately $9.5 million for the three month period
ended December 31, 2012, representing a 121.7% increase relative to the three month period ended December 31,
2011. Gross premium written for the three months ended December 31, 2012 is expected to be 54.2% less than the
prior quarter due to the seasonal nature of our business.

Net premium earned for the three months ended December 31, 2012 is expected to be approximately $11.9 million,
representing a 31.2% increase relative to the three month period ended December 31, 2011 and a 9.0% increase
relative to the prior quarter. The expected increase in net premium earned is related primarily to the increase in
commercial auto gross premium written during 2012.

For the full year, gross premium written is expected to be approximately $55.1 million, up from $42.0 million in 2011,
and net premium earned is expected to be approximately $38.7 million, up from $35.7 million in 2011. We expect our
core commercial automobile lines of business will account for 91.8% of gross premium written in 2012, compared to
44.7% of our gross premium written in 2011. In 2012, the gross premium written from our core commercial
automobile lines is expected to increase by 169.0% relative to 2011.

We expect that the ratio of losses on claims to net premium earned and acquisition costs to net premium earned for the
three month period ended December 31, 2012 will be generally consistent with our financial results in recent prior
quarterly periods. Other underwriting expenses paid with respect to our insurance subsidiaries for the three month
period ended December 31, 2012 are expected to be generally consistent in dollar terms with the amount of other
underwriting expenses incurred in prior quarterly periods. The expense ratio will be impacted by our increased
projected earned premium and the effects of deferred acquisition cost accounting. We expect to incur additional other
underwriting expenses in the three month period ended December 31, 2012 in connection with our acquisition of
Gateway.

Corporate Information

The address of our registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. Our operating headquarters are located at 150 Northwest Point Boulevard, Elk Grove Village,
[linois 60007, USA. We maintain a website at http://www.atlas-fin.com. Information on our website or any other
website does not constitute a part of this prospectus.

11
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The Offering

Ordinary shares offered by Atlas

Ordinary shares offered by selling shareholder
Total offering

Ordinary shares outstanding prior to this
offering

Ordinary shares outstanding after this offering

Over-allotment option

Use of proceeds

Dividend Policy

1,500,000 shares
2,625,000 shares

4,125,000 shares

6,144,392 shares()

7,644,392 shares

The underwriters have an option to purchase a maximum of 618,750
additional ordinary shares from us to cover over-allotments. The
underwriters can exercise this option at any time within 30 days from
the date of this prospectus.

We estimate that our net proceeds from the sale of the ordinary shares
that we are offering will be approximately $7.9 million, after
deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated
offering expenses payable by us.

We will not receive any proceeds from the sale of ordinary shares
being offered by the selling shareholder.

The principal purposes of our initial offering in the United States are to
create a public market for our ordinary shares in the United States and
thereby enable future access to the United States public equity markets
by us and our shareholders, and to obtain additional capital. We intend
to use the net proceeds to us from our offering for working capital, to
acquire complementary businesses or other assets, to repurchase
preferred shares, which accrue dividends on a cumulative basis at a
rate of $0.045 per share per year (4.5%), or for other general corporate
purposes; however we do not have any specific uses of the net
proceeds planned.

See “Use of Proceeds.”

We did not declare or pay cash dividends on our capital stock during
2010, 2011, 2012 or to date in 2013. We currently intend to retain any
future earnings for use in the operation of our business and do not
intend to declare or pay any cash dividends in the foreseeable future.
Any future determination to pay dividends on our capital stock will be
at the discretion of our board of directors, subject to applicable laws,
and will depend on our financial condition, results of operations,
capital requirements, general business conditions, and other factors
that our board of directors considers relevant.

12
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Our ordinary shares will be listed on the NASDAQ Capital Market
NASDAQ Symbol (“NASDAQ”) under the symbol “AFH” on or promptly after the date of
this prospectus.

TSX Venture Exchange Symbol “AFH”

Investing in our ordinary shares involves substantial risk. You should
carefully consider all the information in this prospectus prior to
Risk factors making a decision to invest in our ordinary shares. In particular, we
urge you to consider carefully the factors set forth in the section of this
prospectus entitled “Risk Factors” beginning on page 10.
Ordinary shares outstanding prior to this offering includes 3,887,471 restricted voting shares owned by Kingsway
(1) America Inc. or its wholly owned subsidiaries, 2,625,000 of which automatically convert into ordinary shares upon
sale pursuant hereto.

13
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Unless otherwise indicated, all information in this prospectus relating to the number of ordinary shares to be
outstanding immediately after the completion of this offering:

excludes 1,327,834 ordinary shares issuable pursuant to warrants, all of which are exercisable within sixty days of the
.date hereof, 225,617 options, 103,138 of which are exercisable within sixty days of the date hereof, and 2,540,000
ordinary shares issuable upon conversion of 20,000,000 non-voting preferred shares outstanding as of the date hereof
(based upon a conversion rate of 0.1270 as of the date hereof);

includes 1,262,471 restricted voting common shares that will remain issued and outstanding following completion of
this offering, assuming the sale of all shares offered by the selling shareholder under this prospectus, which rank
equally with the ordinary shares as to dividends;

assumes no exercise by the underwriter of its option to purchase up to 618,750 additional shares from us; and
reflects the one-for-three reverse stock split we implemented on January 29, 2013.

14
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SUMMARY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table summarizes our consolidated financial data. We have derived the unaudited quarterly results for
the years 2010 and 2011 from our audited consolidated financial statements for those years included elsewhere in this
prospectus. The consolidated statements of income data for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 have been
derived from our unaudited consolidated financial statements for that period appearing elsewhere in this prospectus.
The data for the first and second quarters of 2012 were derived from our unaudited consolidated financial statements
for those periods, which are not part of this prospectus. In our opinion, such financial statements include all
adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, that we consider necessary for a fair presentation of the
financial information set forth in those statements. Our historical results are not necessarily indicative of our results in
any future period. The summary of our consolidated financial data set forth below should be read together with our
consolidated financial statements and the related notes, as well as the section entitled “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” included elsewhere in this prospectus.
(in ‘000s, except per share data)

2012 2011 2010

Q3 Q2 Q1 Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1 Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1
Sif;;fremmm $23,353 $9,242 $11,754 $9,081 $10,928 $7,856 $14,166 $9,273 $10,163 $8,558 $18,704
Net premium
earned
Underwriting
income/(loss)
Net
income/(loss)
attributable to
Atlas
Net
income/(loss)
attributable to 1,455 (72  )(64 ) (3,228 )862 9 )(905 ) (11,430)(664  )(8,135 )(1,583 )
common
shareholders(!)

Basic

earnings/(loss) $0.24
per common

share(D)

Diluted
earnings/(loss) $0.24
per common

share(D)

10,934 7,552 8310 9,079 8,797 9,062 8,809 11,595 10,192 12,515 19,301

264 (868 )(617 ) (6,325 )(1,729 )(1,278 )(1,906 ) (4,723 )(2,393 )(12,805)(4,061 )

1,657 130 135 (3,024 )1,066 193 (705 ) (11,430)(664  )(8,135 )(1,583 )

$(0.01 )$— $(0.53)$0.14  $—  $(0.15 ) $(1.86 )$(0.11 )$(1.33 )$(0.26 )

$(0.01 )$— $(0.53)$0.14  $—  $(0.15 ) $(1.86 )$(0.11 )$(1.33 )$(0.26 )

References to “common shares” and “common shareholders” refer to both the ordinary shares and restricted voting
(1)common shares and the shareholders of each. The restricted voting common shares rank equally with the ordinary
shares as to dividends.
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Nine Months Ended September 30, Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2011 2010
Gross premium written $44.349 $32,951 $42,031 $46,698
Net premium earned 26,795 26,668 35,747 53,603
Underwriting loss (1,222 )(4,913 )(11,238 ) (23,984 )
Net income/(loss) attributable to
Atlas 1,922 555 (2,470 )(21,812 )
Net income/(loss) attributable to
common shareholders (1) 1,316 1 )(3,280 )(21.812 )
Basic earnings/(loss) per common
share (D $0.21 $(0.01 )$(0.54 )$(3.56 )
Diluted earnings/(loss) per common
share () 0.21 (0.01 )(0.54 )(3.56 )

References to “common shares” and “common shareholders” refer to both the ordinary shares and restricted voting
(1)common shares and the shareholders of each. The restricted voting common shares rank equally with the ordinary
shares as to dividends.
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RISK FACTORS

Investing in our ordinary shares involves a high degree of risk. You should consider carefully the risks and
uncertainties described below, together with all of the other information in this prospectus, including the financial
statements and the related notes included elsewhere in this prospectus, before deciding whether to invest in our
ordinary shares. The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones we face. Additional risks and
uncertainties that we are unaware of, or that we currently believe are not material, may also become important factors
that adversely affect our business. If any of the following risks actually occurs, our business, financial condition,
results of operations, and future prospects could be materially and adversely affected. In that event, the market price of
our ordinary shares could decline, and you could lose part or all of your investment.

The insurance subsidiaries’ provisions for unpaid claims may be inadequate, which would result in a reduction in our
net income and might adversely affect our financial condition.

Our success depends upon our ability to accurately assess and price the risks covered by the insurance policies that we
write. We establish reserves to cover our estimated liability for the payment of losses and expenses related to the
administration of claims incurred on the insurance policies we write. Establishing an appropriate level of reserves is
an inherently uncertain process. Our provisions for unpaid claims do not represent an exact calculation of actual
liability, but are estimates involving actuarial and statistical projections at a given point in time of what we expect to
be the cost of the ultimate settlement and administration of known and unknown claims. The process for establishing
the provision for unpaid claims reflects the uncertainties and significant judgmental factors inherent in estimating
future results of both known and unknown claims and as such, the process is inherently complex and imprecise. We
utilize a third party actuarial firm to assist us in estimating the provision for unpaid claims. These estimates are based
upon various factors, including:

actuarial and statistical projections of the cost of settlement and administration of claims reflecting facts and
circumstances then known;

fistorical claims information;

assessments of currently available data;

estimates of future trends in claims severity and frequency;

judicial theories of liability;

economic factors such as inflation;

estimates and assumptions regarding judicial and legislative trends, and actions such as class action lawsuits and
judicial interpretation of coverages or policy exclusions; and

the level of insurance fraud.

Most or all of these factors are not directly quantifiable, particularly on a prospective basis, and the effects of these
and unforeseen factors could negatively impact our ability to accurately assess the risks of the policies that we write.
In addition, there may be significant reporting lags between the occurrence of the insured event and the time it is
actually reported to the insurer and additional lags between the time of reporting and final settlement of claims.
Unfavorable development in any of these factors could cause the level of reserves to be inadequate. The following
factors may have a substantial impact on future claims incurred:

the amounts of claims payments;

the expenses that the insurance subsidiaries incur in resolving claims;
{egislative and judicial developments; and

changes in economic conditions, including inflation.
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As time passes and more information about the claims becomes known, the estimates are adjusted upward or
downward to reflect this additional information. Because of the elements of uncertainty encompassed in this
estimation process, and the extended time it can take to settle many of the more substantial claims, several years of
experience may be required before a meaningful comparison can be made between actual losses and the original
provision for unpaid claims. The development of the provision for unpaid claims is shown by the difference between
estimates of claims as of the initial year end and the re-estimated liability at each subsequent year end. Favorable
development (reserve redundancy) means that the original claims estimates were higher than subsequently determined
or re-estimated. Unfavorable development (reserve deficiency) means that the original claims estimates were lower
than subsequently determined or re-estimated.

For example, at the end of 2010, a detailed review of claim payment and reserving practices was performed, which led
to significant changes in both practices, increasing ultimate loss estimates and accelerating claim payments. We

recorded a total of

10
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$5.3 million in unfavorable reserve development in 2010 related to claims incurred during prior periods. Our review
continued into 2011 and Atlas recorded a $1.8 million adjustment to further strengthen its reserves for claims related

to policies issued while the insurance subsidiaries were under previous ownership in years preceding 2010. We cannot
guarantee that we will not have additional unfavorable reserve developments in the future. In addition, we may in the
future acquire other insurance companies. We cannot guarantee that the provisions for unpaid claims of the companies
that we acquire are or will be adequate. Government regulators could require that we increase reserves if they
determine that provisions for unpaid claims are understated. Increases to the provision for unpaid claims causes a
reduction in our insurance subsidiaries’ surplus which could cause a downgrading of our insurance subsidiaries’ ratings.
Any such downgrade could, in turn, adversely affect their ability to sell insurance policies.

In recent periods, Gateway has recorded material reserve deficiencies, and its reserves may be inadequate to pay
claims, which could result in a reduction of our net income and might adversely affect our financial position.

We became responsible for the historical loss reserves established by Gateway’s management upon completion of the
Gateway acquisition. While the stock purchase agreement provides for certain protections in this regard, there can be
no assurances they will be sufficient to offset any further adverse development to Gateway’s historical loss reserves.
Gateway recognized approximately $6.4 million in reserve strengthening in the third and fourth quarters of 2012.
During the years ended 2011 and 2010, their provision for losses and loss adjustment expenses net of reinsurance
recoveries increased by approximately $1.7 million and $2.4 million, respectively, as a result of changes in estimated
losses incurred with respect to insured events in prior years. Any such further unfavorable development in Gateway’s
reserves would reduce our net income and have an adverse effect on our financial position.

Our success depends on our ability to accurately price the risks we underwrite.

Our results of operations and financial condition depend on our ability to underwrite and set premium rates accurately
for a wide variety of risks. Adequate rates are necessary to generate premiums sufficient to pay losses, loss settlement
expenses and underwriting expenses and to earn a profit. To price our products accurately, we must collect and
properly analyze a substantial amount of data; develop, test and apply appropriate pricing techniques; closely monitor
and timely recognize changes in trends; and project both severity and frequency of losses with reasonable accuracy.
Our ability to undertake these efforts successfully, and as a result price our products accurately, is subject to a number
of risks and uncertainties, some of which are outside our control, including:

the availability of sufficient reliable data and our ability to properly analyze available data;

the uncertainties that inherently characterize estimates and assumptions;

our selection and application of appropriate pricing techniques; and

changes in applicable legal liability standards and in the civil litigation system generally.

Consequently, we could underprice risks, which would adversely affect our profit margins, or we could overprice
risks, which could reduce our sales volume and competitiveness. In either case, our profitability could be materially
and adversely affected.

Our insurance subsidiaries rely on independent agents and other producers to bind insurance policies on and to collect
premiums from our policyholders, which exposes us to risks that our producers fail meet their obligations to us.

Our insurance subsidiaries market and distribute automobile insurance products through a network of independent
agents and other producers in the United States. Gateway also relies on independent agents to distribute its insurance
products and we do not have existing relationships with many of Gateway’s independent agents. We rely, and will
continue to rely, heavily on these producers to attract new business. Independent producers generally have the ability
to bind insurance policies and collect premiums on our behalf, actions over which we have a limited ability to exercise
preventative control. In the event that an independent agent exceeds their authority by binding us on a risk that does
not comply with our underwriting guidelines, we may be at risk for that policy until we effect a cancellation. Any
improper use of such authority may result in losses that could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of

20



Edgar Filing: Atlas Financial Holdings, Inc. - Form 424B4

operations and financial condition. In addition, in accordance with industry practice, policyholders often pay the
premiums for their policies to producers for payment to us. These premiums may be considered paid when received by
the producer and thereafter the customer is no longer liable to us for those amounts, whether or not we have actually
received these premium payments from the producer. Consequently, we assume a degree of risk associated with our
reliance on independent agents in connection with the settlement of insurance premium balances.

Our insurance subsidiaries may be unable to mitigate their risk or increase their underwriting capacity through
reinsurance arrangements, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. If

reinsurance rates

11
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rise significantly or reinsurance becomes unavailable or reinsurers are unable to pay our claims, we may be adversely
affected.

In order to reduce underwriting risk and increase underwriting capacity, our insurance subsidiaries transfer portions of
our insurance risk to other insurers through reinsurance contracts. We generally purchase reinsurance from third
parties in order to reduce our liability on individual risks. Reinsurance does not relieve us of our primary liability to
our insurance subsidiaries’ insureds. Through the nine month period ended September 30, 2012, we had ceded
premium written of $4.9 million to our reinsurers. The availability, cost and structure of reinsurance protection are
subject to prevailing market conditions that are outside of our control and which may affect our level of business and
profitability. Our ability to provide insurance at competitive premium rates and coverage limits on a continuing basis
depends in part upon the extent to which we can obtain adequate reinsurance in amounts and at rates that will not
adversely affect our competitive position. There are no assurances that we will be able to maintain our current
reinsurance facilities, which generally are subject to annual renewal. If we are unable to renew any of these facilities
upon their expiration or to obtain other reinsurance facilities in adequate amounts and at favorable rates, we may need
to modify our underwriting practices or reduce our underwriting commitments, which could adversely affect our
results of operations.

Our insurance subsidiaries are subject to credit risk with respect to the obligations of reinsurers and certain of our
insureds. The inability of our risk sharing partners to meet their obligations could adversely affect our profitability.

Although the reinsurers are liable to us to the extent of risk ceded to them, we remain ultimately liable to
policyholders on all risks, even those reinsured. As a result, ceded reinsurance arrangements do not limit our ultimate
obligations to policyholders to pay claims. We are subject to credit risks with respect to the financial strength of our
reinsurers. We are also subject to the risk that their reinsurers may dispute their obligations to pay our claims. As a
result, we may not recover sufficient amounts for claims that we submit to reinsurers, if at all. As of September 30,
2012, we had an aggregate of $7.0 million of unsecured reinsurance recoverables. In addition, our reinsurance
agreements are subject to specified limits and we would not have reinsurance coverage to the extent that it exceeds
those limits.

Effective immediately after the close of the Gateway transaction, we entered into a reinsurance agreement with a third
party reinsurer, which covers all in-force premium and loss reserves for Gateway’s workers’ compensation program.
Along with the reserves, any go-forward premium written for the workers’ compensation program will be ceded in its
entirety to this third party reinsurer under the terms of this reinsurance agreement. While Gateway will remain liable
to its insureds, we expect to have no net exposure to any losses related to this workers’ compensation business
subsequent to the effective date of the acquisition, provided the reinsurer continues to make payments to us and
otherwise complies with the terms of this reinsurance agreement, although no assurances thereof can be given.

With respect to insurance programs, the insurance subsidiaries are subject to credit risk with respect to the payment of
claims and on the portion of risk exposure either ceded to captives established by their clients or deductibles retained
by their clients. No assurance can be given regarding the future ability of these entities to meet their obligations. The
inability of our risk sharing partners to meet their obligations could adversely affect our profitability.

The exclusions and limitations in our policies may not be enforceable.

Many of the policies we issue include exclusions or other conditions that define and limit coverage, which exclusions
and conditions are designed to manage our exposure to certain types of risks and expanding theories of legal liability.
In addition, many of our policies limit the period during which a policyholder may bring a claim under the policy,

which period in many cases is shorter than the statutory period under which these claims can be brought by our
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policyholders. While these exclusions and limitations help us assess and control our loss exposure, it is possible that a
court or regulatory authority could nullify or void an exclusion or limitation, or legislation could be enacted modifying
or barring the use of these exclusions and limitations. This could result in higher than anticipated losses and claims
handling expenses by extending coverage beyond our underwriting intent or increasing the number or size of claims,
which could have a material adverse effect on our operating results. In some instances, these changes may not become
apparent until some time after we have issued the insurance policies that are affected by the changes. As a result, the
full extent of liability under our insurance contracts may not be known for many years after a policy is issued.

The occurrence of severe catastrophic events may have a material adverse effect on our financial results and financial
condition.

Although our business strategy generally precludes us from writing significant amounts of catastrophe exposed
business, most property and casualty insurance contains some exposure to catastrophic loss. We have only limited
exposure to natural and

12
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man-made disasters, such as hurricane, typhoon, windstorm, flood, earthquake, acts of war, acts of terrorism and
political instability. While we carefully manage our aggregate exposure to catastrophes, modeling errors and the
incidence and severity of catastrophes, such as hurricanes, windstorms and large-scale terrorist attacks are inherently
unpredictable, and our losses from catastrophes could be substantial. In addition, it is possible we may experience an
unusual frequency of smaller losses in a particular period. In either case, the consequences could be substantial
volatility in our financial condition or results of operations for any fiscal quarter or year, which could have a material
adverse effect on our ability to write new business. These losses could deplete our shareholders’ equity. Increases in
the values and geographic concentrations of insured property and the effects of inflation have resulted in increased
severity of industry losses from catastrophic events in recent years and we expect that those factors will increase the
severity of catastrophe losses in the future. Though we built an expanded presence in New York during the third
quarter of 2012, we do not believe our exposure in that state to Hurricane Sandy to be material.

The risk models we use to quantify catastrophe exposures and risk accumulations may prove inadequate in predicting
all outcomes from potential catastrophe events.

We use widely accepted and industry-recognized catastrophe risk modeling programs to help us quantify our
aggregate exposure to any one event. As with any model of physical systems, particularly those with low frequencies
of occurrence and potentially high severity of outcomes, the accuracy of the model’s predictions is largely dependent
on the accuracy and quality of the data provided in the underwriting process and the judgments of our employees and
other industry professionals. These models do not anticipate all potential perils or events that could result in a
catastrophic loss to us. Furthermore, it is often difficult for models to anticipate and incorporate events that have not
been experienced during or as a result of prior catastrophes. Accordingly, it is possible for us to be subject to events or
contingencies that have not been anticipated by our catastrophe risk models and which could have a material adverse
effect on our reserves and results of operations.

Financial Risks

We are a holding company dependent on the results of operations of our subsidiaries and their ability to pay dividends
and other distributions to us.

Atlas is a holding company with no significant operations of its own and a legal entity separate and distinct from our
insurance subsidiaries. As a result, our only sources of income are dividends and other distributions from our
insurance subsidiaries. We will be limited by the earnings of those subsidiaries, and the distribution or other payment
of such earnings to it in the form of dividends, loans, advances or the reimbursement of expenses. The payment of
dividends, the making of loans and advances or the reimbursement of expenses by our insurance subsidiaries is
contingent upon the earnings of those subsidiaries and is subject to various business considerations and various
statutory and regulatory restrictions imposed by the insurance laws of the domiciliary jurisdiction of such subsidiaries.
In Illinois and Missouri, the states of domicile of American Service, American Country and Gateway, dividends may
only be paid out of earned surplus and cannot be paid when the surplus of the company fails to meet minimum
requirements or when payment of the dividend or distribution would reduce its surplus to less than the minimum
amount. The state insurance regulator must be notified in advance of the payment of an extraordinary dividend and be
given the opportunity to disapprove any such dividend. Our insurance subsidiaries cannot currently pay any dividends
to Atlas without regulatory approval. In addition, prior to entering into any loan or certain other agreements between
one or more of our insurance companies and Atlas or our other affiliates, advance notice must be provided to the state
insurance regulator and the insurance regulator has the opportunity to disapprove such loan or agreement.
Additionally, insurance regulators have broad powers to prevent reduction of statutory capital and surplus to
inadequate levels and could refuse to permit the payment of dividends calculated under any applicable formula. As a
result, we may not be able to receive dividends or other distributions from our insurance subsidiaries at times and in
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amounts necessary to meet our operating needs, to pay dividends to shareholders or to pay corporate expenses. The
inability of our insurance subsidiaries to pay dividends or make other distributions could have a material adverse
effect on our business and financial condition.

Our insurance subsidiaries are subject to minimum capital and surplus requirements. Failure to meet these
requirements may subject us to regulatory action.

Our insurance subsidiaries are subject to minimum capital and surplus requirements imposed under the laws of Illinois
and each state in which they issue policies. Any failure by one of our insurance subsidiaries to meet minimum capital
and surplus requirements imposed by applicable state law may subject it to corrective action, which may include
requiring adoption of a comprehensive financial plan, revocation of its license to sell insurance products or placing the
subsidiary under state regulatory control. Any new minimum capital and surplus requirements adopted in the future
may require us to increase the capital and surplus of our insurance company subsidiaries, which we may not be able to
do. Upon the completion of the Gateway acquisition, we became subject to minimum capital and surplus requirements
imposed under the laws of Missouri with regard to Gateway and the additional states where Gateway issues policies.

13
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The pro forma financial statements included in this prospectus are presented for illustrative purposes only and may not
be an indication of the combined company’s future financial condition or results of operations.

The pro forma financial statements contained in this prospectus, relating to the Gateway acquisition, are presented for
illustrative purposes only and may not be an indication of the combined company’s future financial condition or results
of operations for several reasons. For example, the pro forma financial statements have been derived from the
historical financial statements of Atlas and Gateway and certain adjustments, estimates and assumptions have been
made regarding the combined company after giving effect to the acquisition. The information upon which these
adjustments and assumptions have been made is preliminary, and these kinds of adjustments and assumptions are
difficult to make with accuracy. Moreover, the pro forma financial statements do not reflect all costs that are expected
to be incurred by the combined company in connection with the acquisition. For example, the impact of any
incremental costs incurred in integrating the businesses of the two companies is not reflected in the pro forma
financial statements. As a result, the actual financial condition and results of operations of the combined company
may not be consistent with, or evident from, these pro forma financial statements.

In addition, the assumptions used in preparing the pro forma financial data, as well as the 2012 Fourth Quarter
Premium data, may not prove to be accurate, and other factors may affect the combined company’s financial condition
or results of operations. Any potential decline in the combined company’s financial condition or results of operations
may cause significant variations in the stock price of the combined company. See “Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated
Financial Data.”

We are subject to assessments and other surcharges from state guaranty funds, and mandatory state insurance
facilities, which may reduce our profitability.

Virtually all states require insurers licensed to do business therein to bear a portion of contingent and incurred claim
handling expenses and the unfunded amount of “covered” claim and unearned premium obligations of impaired or
insolvent insurance companies, either up to the policy's limit, the applicable guaranty fund covered claim obligation
cap, or 100% of statutorily defined workers' compensation benefits, subject to applicable deductibles. These
obligations are funded by assessments, made on a retrospective, prospective or prefunded basis, which are levied by
guaranty associations within the state, up to prescribed limits (typically 2% of “net direct written premium”), on all
member insurers in the state on the basis of the proportionate share of the premiums written by member insurers in
certain covered lines of business in which the impaired, insolvent or failed insurer was engaged. Accordingly, the total
amount of assessments levied on us by the states in which we are licensed to write insurance may increase as we
increase our premiums written. In addition, as a condition to the ability to conduct business in certain states (and
within the jurisdiction of some local governments), insurance companies are subject to or required to participate in
various premium or loss based insurance-related assessments, including mandatory (a/k/a “involuntary’) insurance
pools, underwriting associations, workers' compensation second-injury funds, reinsurance funds and other state
insurance facilities. Although we may be entitled to take premium tax credit (or offsets), recover policy surcharges or
include assessments in future premium rate structures for payments we make under these facilities, the effect of these
assessments and insurance-related arrangements, or changes in them, could reduce our profitability in any given
period or limit our ability to grow our business.

Market fluctuations, changes in interest rates or a need to generate liquidity could have significant and negative effects
on our investment portfolio. We may not be able to realize our investment objectives, which could significantly reduce
our net income.

We depend on income from our securities portfolio for a substantial portion of our earnings. Investment returns are an
important part of our overall profitability. A significant decline in investment yields in the securities portfolio or an
impairment of securities owned could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and
financial condition. We currently maintain and intend to continue to maintain a securities portfolio comprised
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primarily of fixed income securities. As of September 30, 2012, our investment portfolio was invested in fixed income
securities. We cannot predict which industry sectors in which we maintain investments may suffer losses as a result of
potential declines in commercial and economic activity, or how any such decline might impact the ability of
companies within the affected industry sectors to pay interest or principal on their securities and cannot predict how or
to what extent the value of any underlying collateral might be affected. Accordingly, adverse fluctuations in the fixed
income or equity markets could adversely impact profitability, financial condition or cash flows. Historically, we have
not had the need to sell our investments to generate liquidity. If we are forced to sell portfolio securities that have
unrealized losses for liquidity purposes rather than holding them to maturity or recovery, we would recognize
investment losses on those securities when that determination was made.

Our ability to achieve our investment objectives is affected by general economic conditions that are beyond our
control. General economic conditions can adversely affect the markets for interest rate sensitive securities, including

the extent and
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timing of investor participation in such markets, the level and volatility of interest rates and, consequently, the value
of fixed maturity securities. U.S. and global markets have been experiencing volatility since mid-2007. Initiatives
taken by the U.S. and foreign governments have helped to stabilize the financial markets and restore liquidity to the
banking system and credit markets. In addition, markets in the United States and around the world experienced
volatility in 2011 due, in part, to sovereign debt downgrades. Although economic conditions and financial markets
have somewhat stabilized, if market conditions were to deteriorate, our investment portfolio could be adversely
affected.

Difficult conditions in the economy generally may materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations
and statement of financial position and these conditions may not improve in the near future.

Current market conditions and the instability in the global financial markets present additional risks and uncertainties
for our business. In particular, deterioration in the public debt markets could lead to additional investment losses and
an erosion of capital as a result of a reduction in the fair value of investment securities. The severe downturn in the
public debt and equity markets, reflecting uncertainties associated with the mortgage crisis, worsening economic
conditions, widening of credit spreads, bankruptcies and government intervention in large financial institutions,
created significant unrealized losses in our securities portfolio at certain stages in 2009.

Economic uncertainty has recently been exacerbated by the increased potential for default by one or more European
sovereign debt issuers, the potential partial or complete dissolution of the Eurozone and its common currency and the
negative impact of such events on global financial institutions and capital markets generally. Actions or inactions of
European governments may impact these actual or perceived risks. In the U.S. during 2011, one rating agency
downgraded the U.S.’s long-term debt credit rating from AAA. Future actions or inactions of the United States
government, including a shutdown of the federal government, could increase the actual or perceived risk that the U.S.
may not ultimately pay its obligations when due and may disrupt financial markets.

Atlas’ portfolio is managed by Asset Allocation Management (“AAM”), an SEC registered investment advisor
specializing in the management of insurance company portfolios. We and our investment manager consider these
issues in connection with current asset allocation decisions with the object of avoiding them going forward. However,
depending on market conditions going forward, we could again incur substantial realized and additional unrealized
losses in future periods, which could have an adverse impact on the results of operations and financial condition.
There can be no assurance that the current market conditions will improve in the near future. We could also
experience a reduction in capital in the insurance subsidiaries below levels required by the regulators in the
jurisdictions in which we operate. Certain trust accounts for the benefit of related companies and third parties have
been established with collateral on deposit under the terms and conditions of the relevant trust agreements. The value
of collateral could fall below the levels required under these agreements, putting the subsidiary or subsidiaries in
breach of the agreement.

We may not have access to capital in the future.

We may need new or additional financing in the future to conduct our operations or expand our business. However,
we may be unable to raise capital on favorable terms, or at all, including as a result of disruptions, uncertainty and
volatility in the global credit markets, or due to any sustained weakness in the general economic conditions and/or
financial markets in Canada, the United States or globally. From time to time, we may rely on access to financial
markets as a source of liquidity for operations, acquisitions and general corporate purposes.

The limited public float and trading volume for our shares may have an adverse impact on the share price or make it
difficult to liquidate.
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Our securities are held by a relatively small number of shareholders. Future sales of substantial amounts of our shares
in the public market, or the perception that these sales could occur, may adversely impact the market price of our
shares and our shares could be difficult to liquidate.

Our ordinary shares are to be listed on both the TSXV and NASDAQ upon completion of the offering which may
increase the volatility of our ordinary share price on both exchanges.

Upon completion of the offering, our ordinary shares will be dual listed on NASDAQ and the TSX Venture Exchange.
However, once our ordinary shares are dual listed, the trading volume of our ordinary shares on each particular
exchange may decrease. As a result of this diminished trading volume, the stock price of our ordinary shares may be
more volatile.
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Our business depends upon key employees, and if we are unable to retain the services of these key employees or to
attract and retain additional qualified personnel, our business may suffer.

Our operations depend, to a great extent, upon the ability of executive management and other key employees to
implement our business strategy and our ability to attract and retain additional qualified personnel in the future. The
loss of the services of any of our key employees, or the inability to identify, hire and retain other highly qualified
personnel in the future could adversely affect the quality and profitability of our business operations. In addition, we
must forecast volume and other factors in changing business environments with reasonable accuracy and adjust our
hiring and employment levels accordingly. Our failure to recognize the need for such adjustments, or our failure or
inability to react appropriately on a timely basis, could lead to over-staffing (which could adversely affect our cost
structure) or under-staffing (which could impair our ability to service current product lines and new lines of business).
In either event, our financial results and customer relationships could be adversely affected.

Compliance Risks
We are subject to comprehensive regulation, and our results may be unfavorably impacted by these regulations.

As a holding company which owns insurance companies domiciled in the United States, we and our insurance
subsidiaries are subject to comprehensive laws, regulations and rules. These laws, regulations and rules generally
delegate regulatory, supervisory and administrative powers to state insurance regulators. Insurance regulations are
generally designed to protect policyholders rather than shareholders, and are related to matters including:

rate setting;

Risk Based Capital (RBC) ratio and solvency requirements;

restrictions on the amount, type, nature, quality and quantity of securities and other investments in which insurers may
invest;

the maintenance of adequate reserves for unearned premiums and unpaid, and incurred but not reported, claims;
restrictions on the types of terms that can be included in insurance policies;

standards for accounting;

marketing practices;

claims settlement practices;

the examination of insurance companies by regulatory authorities, including periodic financial and market conduct
examinations;

requirements to comply with medical privacy laws as a result of our administration of Gateway's run-off workers'
compensation business;

the licensing of insurers and their agents;

dimitations on dividends and transactions with affiliates;

approval of certain reinsurance transactions;

tnsolvency proceedings;

ability to enter and exit certain insurance markets, cancel policies or non-renew policies; and

data privacy.

Such laws, regulations and rules increase our legal and financial compliance costs and make some activities more
time-consuming and costly. Any failure to monitor and address any internal control issues could adversely impact
operating results. In addition, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires, among other things, that we maintain effective
disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting. In connection with the audit of our
insurance subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2010, during which our insurance subsidiaries were owned by
KALI, the auditors reported to those charged with governance significant deficiencies in the internal controls of the
insurance subsidiaries related to technical account reconciliations and reinsurance recoverable reconciliations and
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billings. A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is
a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected on a timely basis. None of the significant deficiencies described above were reported as a
material weakness. Following the reverse merger on December 31, 2010 wherein the insurance subsidiaries were
transferred to us by KAI, we committed resources to addressing these identified deficiencies in internal controls and
we believe they have all
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been addressed. No significant deficiencies or material weaknesses were identified by our auditors in connection with
the audit of our 2011 financial statements.

State insurance departments conduct periodic examinations of the affairs of insurance companies and require filing of
annual and other reports relating to the financial condition of insurance companies, holding company issues and other
matters. Our business depends on compliance with applicable laws, regulations and rules and our ability to maintain
valid licenses and approvals for our operations. Regulatory authorities may deny or revoke licenses for various
reasons, including violations of laws, regulations and rules. Changes in the level of regulation of the insurance
industry or changes in laws, regulations and rules themselves or interpretations thereof by regulatory authorities could
have a material adverse effect on our operations. Because we are subject to insurance laws, regulations and rules of
many jurisdictions that are administered by different regulatory and governmental authorities, there is also a risk that
one authority's interpretation of a legal or regulatory issue may conflict with another authority's interpretation of the
same issue. Insurance companies are also subject to “desk drawer rules” of state insurance regulators, which are
regulatory rules that have not been codified or formally adopted through regulatory proceedings. In addition, we could
face individual, group and class-action lawsuits by our policyholders and others for alleged violations of certain state
laws, regulations and rules. Each of these regulatory risks could have an adverse effect on our profitability.

As a result of our administration of Gateway's run-off workers' compensation business, we are required to comply
with state and federal laws governing the collection, transmission, security and privacy of health information that
require significant compliance costs, and any failure to comply with these laws could result in material criminal and
civil penalties. These laws and rules are subject to administrative interpretation and many are derived from the privacy
provisions in the Federal Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 2002. The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, which, among other
things, protects consumers from the unauthorized dissemination of certain personal information, and various state
laws and regulations addressing privacy issues, require us to maintain appropriate procedures for managing and
protecting certain personal information of our customers and to fully disclose our privacy practices to our customers.
Given the complexity of these privacy regulations, the possibility that the regulations may change, and the fact that the
regulations are subject to changing and potentially conflicting interpretation, our ability to maintain compliance with
the privacy requirements of state and federal law is uncertain and the costs of compliance are significant.

In addition, Gateway is exiting the workers' compensation line of business across the country and we plan to exit the
Florida market completely. Most states have adopted either statutes or regulations or have issued bulletins or informal
rules that regulate the anticipated withdrawal of a product, line or subline of insurance business from the insurance
marketplace in their state. While what constitutes a “withdrawal” or its equivalent under each state's statutory or
regulatory scheme varies, Gateway will be subject to regulatory requirements in connection with its withdrawal,
including, but not limited to, making notice and/or plan filings with the applicable insurance regulator in certain states
and possibly requiring the prior approval of the applicable state regulator. A failure by Gateway to comply with and
satisfy these regulatory requirements in connection with its planned withdrawals could lead to regulatory fines, cause
a distraction for management requiring us to continue to administer Gateway's workers' compensation business for
longer than anticipated and could result in Gateway continuing to write undesirable commercial automobile business
in Florida, which could have an adverse impact on our reserves, results of operations and financial condition.

It is not possible to predict the future impact of changing federal and state regulation on our operations, and there can
be no assurance that laws enacted in the future will not be more restrictive than existing laws, regulations and rules.
New or more restrictive laws, regulations and rules, including changes in current tax or other regulatory
interpretations could make it more expensive for us to conduct our businesses, restrict or reduce the premiums our
insurance subsidiaries are able to charge or otherwise change the way we do business. In addition, economic and
financial market turmoil or other conditions, circumstances or events may result in U.S. federal oversight of the
insurance industry in general.
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Our business is subject to risks related to litigation and regulatory actions.

We may, from time to time, be subject to a variety of legal and regulatory actions relating to our current and past
business operations, including, but not limited to:

disputes over coverage or claims adjudication, including claims alleging that we or our insurance subsidiaries have
acted in bad faith in the administration of claims by our policyholders;

disputes regarding sales practices, disclosure, policy issuance and cancellation, premium refunds, licensing, regulatory
compliance and compensation arrangements;

dimitations on the conduct of our business;
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disputes with our agents, producers or network providers over compensation or the termination of our contracts with
such agents, producers or network providers, including any alleged claim that they may make against us in connection
with a dispute whether in the scope of their agreements or otherwise;
disputes with taxing authorities regarding tax liabilities; and

disputes relating to certain businesses acquired or disposed of by

us.

As insurance industry practices and regulatory, judicial and industry conditions change, unexpected and unintended
issues related to pricing, claims, coverage and business practices may emerge. Plaintiffs often target P&C insurers in
purported class action litigation relating to claims handling and insurance sales practices. The resolution and
implications of new underwriting, claims and coverage issues could have a negative effect on our business by
extending coverage beyond our underwriting intent, increasing the size of claims or otherwise requiring us to change
our practices. The effects of unforeseen emerging claim and coverage issues could negatively impact revenues, results
of operations and reputation. Current and future court decisions and legislative activity may increase our exposure to
these or other types of claims. Multi-party or class action claims may present additional exposure to substantial
economic, non-economic or punitive damage awards. An unfavorable result with respect to even one of these claims,
if it resulted in a significant damage award or a judicial ruling that was otherwise detrimental, could create a precedent
that could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition. This risk of potential
liability may make reasonable settlements of claims more difficult to obtain. We cannot determine with any certainty
what new theories of recovery may evolve or what their impact may be on our business.

We have been and may be subject to governmental or administrative investigations and proceedings. Our insurance
subsidiaries have been subject to numerous inquiries related to the substantial ownership interest in us held by KAIL
We are currently subject to regulatory action, restrictions or heightened compliance or reporting requirements in a
number of states, including Connecticut, Michigan, Ohio and Texas. Together, Michigan, Ohio and Texas account for
a significant percentage of our total premiums (17.7% of our net premiums earned in 2011). Prior to Atlas' acquisition
of American Country, the Connecticut insurance commissioner issued an order prohibiting American Country from
writing new policies, limiting it to only renewing existing policies in that state. Currently, the insurance subsidiaries
do not write any business in Connecticut, but we have requested removal of this restriction. In Michigan, we failed to
meet certain rating requirements following our acquisition of the insurance subsidiaries which could have resulted in
the loss of our certificates of authority in Michigan in 2011. However, following discussions with the applicable
insurance regulator, the insurance subsidiaries were permitted to continue writing insurance business in Michigan
subject to certain maximum premium levels. These restrictions have since been lifted and there are no regulatory
orders in place in Michigan limiting the insurance subsidiaries' ability to write business in that state. In Ohio,
American Service’s certificate of authority was revoked due to non-compliance with certain financial requirements
related to reserves. Following the reverse merger on December 31, 2010 wherein the insurance subsidiaries were
transferred to us by KAI, American Service’s certificate of authority was reinstated subject to the company providing
regular financial disclosure to the Ohio state insurance regulator for two years. Based on discussions with the
applicable insurance regulator, we believe we may continue to be subject to these heightened reporting requirements
as a result of our acquisition of Gateway. In 2009, the Texas Department of Insurance indicated to the insurance
subsidiaries that it was considering revoking their certificates of authority to write insurance business in Texas.
Following discussions with management of KFSI, the insurance subsidiaries were allowed to retain their licenses, in
part, in anticipation of a planned spin-off of the insurance subsidiaries outside of KFSI and subject to their
maintenance of a statutory deposit in Texas. If we are not able to successfully comply with or lift the heightened
compliance or disclosure requirements applicable in one or more of these states or any new requirements that a state
may impose in the future, we may not be able to expand our operations in such state in accordance with our growth
strategy or we could be subject to additional regulatory requirements that could impose a material burden on our
expansion strategy or limit or prohibit our ability to write new and renewal insurance policies in such state. Any such
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limitation or prohibition could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial conditions and
on our ability to execute our strategy in the future. The result of these inquiries could lead to additional requirements,
restrictions or limitations being placed on us or our insurance subsidiaries, any of which could increase our costs of
regulatory compliance and could have an adverse effect on our ability to operate our business. As a general matter, we
cannot predict the outcome of regulatory investigations, proceedings and reviews, and cannot guarantee that such
investigations, proceedings or reviews or related litigation or changes in operating policies and practices would not
materially and adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition. In addition, we have experienced
difficulties with our relationships with regulatory bodies in various jurisdictions, and if such difficulties arise in the
future, they could have a material adverse effect on our ability to do business in that jurisdiction.

Our business could be adversely affected as a result of changing political, regulatory, economic or other influences.

The insurance industry is subject to changing political, economic and regulatory influences. These influences affect
the practices and operation of insurance and reinsurance organizations. Legislatures in the United States and other
jurisdictions have periodically considered programs to reform or amend their respective insurance and reinsurance
regulatory systems. Recently, the insurance and reinsurance regulatory framework has been subject to increased
scrutiny in many jurisdictions.
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Changes in current insurance laws, regulations and rules may result in increased governmental involvement in or
supervision of the insurance industry or may otherwise change the business and economic environment in which
insurance industry participants operate. Historically, the automobile insurance industry has been under pressure from
time to time from regulators, legislators or special interest groups to reduce, freeze or set rates at levels that are not
necessarily related to underlying costs or risks, including initiatives to reduce automobile and other commercial line
insurance rates. These changes may limit the ability of our insurance subsidiaries to price automobile insurance
adequately and could require us to discontinue unprofitable product lines, make unplanned modifications of our
products and services, or result in delays or cancellations of sales of our products and services.

Strategic Risks

Our geographic concentration ties our performance to the business, economic, regulatory and other conditions of
certain states.

Some jurisdictions (including, most notably New York, Illinois, Michigan and Louisiana) generate a more significant
percentage of our total premiums than others. Our revenues and profitability are subject to the prevailing regulatory,
legal, economic, political, demographic, competitive, weather and other conditions in the principal states in which we
do business. Changes in any of these conditions could make it less attractive for us to do business in such states and
would have a more pronounced effect on us compared to companies that are more geographically diversified. In
addition, our exposure to severe losses from localized perils, such as earthquakes, hurricanes, tropical storms,
tornadoes, wind, ice storms, hail, fires, terrorism, riots and explosions, is increased in those areas where we have
written significant numbers of P&C insurance policies. Given our geographic concentration, negative publicity
regarding our products and services could have a material adverse effect on our business and operations, as could
other regional factors impacting the local economies in that market.

In order to operate in a profitable manner, we need to maintain our current level of premiums written. We may
experience difficulty in managing historic and future growth, which could adversely affect our results of operations
and financial condition.

We believe that, given our fixed costs associated with underwriting and administering our insurance operations, our
insurance subsidiaries must maintain annual net written premiums in excess of approximately $50 million in order to
achieve our targeted levels of profitability. In order to maintain and increase this level of premiums written, we intend
to expand geographically and increase our market share via our expanded distribution network. Continued growth
could impose significant demands on management, including the need to identify, recruit, maintain and integrate
additional employees. Growth may also place a strain on management systems and operational and financial
resources, and such systems, procedures and internal controls may not be adequate to support operations as they
expand.

The integration and management of acquired books of business, acquired businesses and other growth initiatives
involve numerous risks that could adversely affect our profitability, and are contingent on many factors, including:

expanding our financial, operational and management information systems;
managing our relationships with independent agents, brokers, and legacy program managers, including maintaining
adequate controls;
expanding our executive management and the infrastructure required to effectively control our growth;
maintaining ratings for certain of our insurance subsidiaries;
increasing the statutory capital of our insurance subsidiaries to support growth in written
premiums;
accurately setting claims provisions for new business where historical underwriting experience may not be available;
obtaining regulatory approval for appropriate premium rates where applicable; and
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obtaining the required regulatory approvals to offer additional insurance products or to expand into additional states or
other jurisdictions.

Our failure to grow our premiums written or to manage our growth effectively could have a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition or results of operations.

A significant portion of our products in the New York City market are distributed by a single agent, and any decrease
in the amount of our products distributed by this agent, or underperformance of the book of business controlled by this

agent, could adversely impact our business.
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In the third quarter of 2012, we implemented our New York “excess taxi program” with a single agent writing business
in the New York City market, which is a new business arrangement to provide excess coverage above the levels of
risk retained by the insured. This agent has since become our most significant agent responsible for approximately
28% and 53% of our gross premium written for the nine month period ended September 30, 2012 and the three month
period ended September 30, 2012, respectively. This agent was not responsible for any written premium in the fourth
quarter 2012. We do not have an exclusive relationship with this agent, and there can be no assurance that this
relationship will continue in the future. If this agent reduces its marketing of our products or moves some or all of its
business to another carrier, then our business, financial condition and results of operations would be adversely
affected. In addition, due in part to our limited experience with this program, and with the New York City market in
general, it is uncertain whether policies issued pursuant to this program will be profitable. For example, if risks
associated with these clients differ from those reflected in our underwriting policies, then our business, financial
condition and results of operations would be adversely affected.

Engaging in acquisitions involves risks, and if we are unable to effectively manage these risks, our business may be
materially harmed.

Acquisitions of similar insurance providers, such as Gateway, are expected to be a material component of our growth
strategy, subject to availability of suitable opportunities and market conditions. From time to time, we may engage in
discussions concerning acquisition opportunities and, as a result of such discussions, may enter into acquisition
transactions. Upon the announcement of an acquisition, our share price may fall depending on numerous factors,
including but not limited to, the intended target, the size of the acquisition, the purchase price and the potential
dilution to existing shareholders. It is also possible that an acquisition could dilute earnings per share. Acquisitions
entail numerous risks, including the following:

difficulties in the integration of the acquired business;

assumption of unknown material liabilities, including deficient provisions for unpaid claims;
diversion of management’s attention from other business concerns;

failure to achieve financial or operating objectives; and

potential loss of policyholders or key employees of acquired companies.

We may be unable to integrate or profitably operate any business, operations, personnel, services or products we may
acquire in the future, which may result in our inability to realize expected revenue increases, cost savings, increases in
geographic or product presence, and other projected benefits from the acquisition. Integration may result in the loss of
key employees, disruption to our existing businesses or the business of the acquired company, or otherwise harm our
ability to retain customers and employees or achieve the anticipated benefits of the acquisition. Time and resources
spent on integration may also impair our ability to grow our existing businesses. Also, the negative effect of any
financial commitments required by regulatory authorities or rating agencies in acquisitions or business combinations
may be greater than expected.

Provisions in our organizational documents, corporate laws and the insurance laws of Illinois and other states could
impede an attempt to replace or remove management or directors or prevent or delay a merger or sale, which could
diminish the value of our shares.

Our Memorandum of Association, Articles of Association and Code of Regulations and the corporate laws and the
insurance laws of various states contain provisions that could impede an attempt to replace or remove management or
directors or prevent the sale of the insurance subsidiaries that shareholders might consider to be in their best interests.
These provisions include, among others:

requiring a vote of holders of 5% of the ordinary shares to call a special meeting of shareholders;

requiring a two-thirds vote to amend the Articles of Association;
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requiring the affirmative vote of a majority of the voting power of shares represented at a special meeting of

shareholders; and
statutory requirements prohibiting a merger, consolidation, combination or majority share acquisition between

tnsurance subsidiaries and an interested shareholder or an affiliate of an interested shareholder without regulatory
approval.

These provisions may prevent shareholders from receiving the benefit of any premium over the market price of our
shares offered by a bidder in a potential takeover, and may adversely affect the prevailing market price of our shares if

they are viewed as discouraging takeover attempts.
In addition, insurance regulatory provisions may delay, defer or prevent a takeover attempt that shareholders may
consider in their best interest. For example, under applicable state statutes, subject to limited exceptions, no person or

entity may, directly
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or indirectly, acquire control of a domestic insurer without the prior approval of the state insurance regulator. Under
the insurance laws, “control” (including the terms “controlling,” “controlled by” and “under common control with”) is
generally defined to include acquisition of a certain percentage or more of an insurer’s voting securities (such as 10%
or more under Illinois and Missouri law). These requirements would require a potential bidder to obtain prior approval
from the insurance departments of the states in which the insurance subsidiaries are domiciled and commercially
domiciled and may require pre-acquisition notification in other states. Obtaining these approvals could result in
material delays or deter any such transaction. Regulatory requirements could make a potential acquisition of our
company more difficult and may prevent shareholders from receiving the benefit from any premium over the market
price of our shares offered by a bidder in a takeover context. Even in the absence of a takeover attempt, the existence
of these provisions may adversely affect the prevailing market price of our shares if they are viewed as discouraging
takeover attempts in the future.

Market and Competition Risks

Because the insurance subsidiaries are commercial automobile insurers, conditions in that industry could adversely
affect their business.

The majority of the gross premiums written by our insurance subsidiaries are generated from commercial automobile
insurance policies. Adverse developments in the market for commercial automobile insurance, including those which
could result from potential declines in commercial and economic activity, could cause our results of operations to
suffer. The commercial automobile insurance industry is cyclical. Historically, the industry has been characterized by
periods of price competition and excess capacity followed by periods of higher premium rates and shortages of
underwriting capacity. These fluctuations in the business cycle have negatively impacted and could continue to
negatively impact the revenues of our company. The results of the insurance subsidiaries, and in turn, us, may also be
affected by risks, to the extent they are covered by the insurance policies we issue, that impact the commercial
automobile industry related to severe weather conditions, floods, hurricanes, tornadoes, earthquakes and tsunamis, as
well as explosions, terrorist attacks and riots. The insurance subsidiaries’ commercial automobile insurance business
may also be affected by cost trends that negatively impact profitability, such as a continuing economic downturn,
inflation in vehicle repair costs, vehicle replacement parts costs, used vehicle prices, fuel costs and medical care costs.
Increased costs related to the handling and litigation of claims may also negatively impact profitability. Legacy
business previously written by us also includes private passenger auto, surety and other P&C insurance business.
Adverse developments relative to previously written business could have a negative impact on our results.

The insurance and related businesses in which we operate may be subject to periodic negative publicity which may
negatively impact our financial results.

The products and services of the insurance subsidiaries are ultimately distributed to individual and business
customers. From time to time, consumer advocacy groups or the media may focus attention on insurance products and
services, thereby subjecting the industry to periodic negative publicity. We also may be negatively impacted if
participants in one or more of our markets engage in practices resulting in increased public attention to our business.
Negative publicity may also result in increased regulation and legislative scrutiny of practices in the P&C insurance
industry as well as increased litigation. These factors may further increase our costs of doing business and adversely
affect our profitability by impeding our ability to market our products and services, requiring us to change our
products or services or by increasing the regulatory burdens under which we operate.

The highly competitive environment in which we operate could have an adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial condition.
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The commercial automobile insurance business is highly competitive and, except for regulatory considerations, there
are relatively few barriers to entry. Many of our competitors are substantially larger and may enjoy better name
recognition, substantially greater financial resources, higher ratings by rating agencies, broader and more diversified
product lines and more widespread agency relationships than us. Our underwriting profits could be adversely
impacted if new entrants or existing competitors try to compete with our products, services and programs or offer
similar or better products at or below our prices. Insurers in our markets generally compete on the basis of price,
consumer recognition, coverages offered, claims handling, financial stability, customer service and geographic
coverage. Although pricing is influenced to some degree by that of our competitors, it is not in our best interest to
compete solely on price, and we may from time to time experience a loss of market share during periods of intense
price competition. Our business could be adversely impacted by the loss of business to competitors offering
competitive insurance products at lower prices. This competition could affect our ability to attract and retain profitable
business. Pricing sophistication and related underwriting and marketing programs use a number of risk evaluation
factors. For auto insurance, these factors can include but are not limited to vehicle make, model and year; driver age;
territory; years licensed; loss history; years insured with prior carrier; prior liability limits; prior lapse in coverage; and
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insurance scoring based on credit report information. We believe our pricing model will generate future underwriting
profits, however past performance is not a perfect indicator of future driver performance.

If we are not able to attract and retain independent agents and brokers, our revenues could be negatively affected.

We market and distribute our insurance programs exclusively through independent insurance agents and specialty
insurance brokers. As a result, our business depends in large part on the marketing efforts of these agents and brokers
and on our ability to offer insurance products and services that meet the requirements of the agents, the brokers and
their customers. However, these agents and brokers are not obligated to sell or promote our products and many sell or
promote competitors’ insurance products in addition to our products. Some of our competitors have higher financial
strength ratings, offer a larger variety of products, set lower prices for insurance coverage and/or offer higher
commissions than we do. Therefore, we may not be able to continue to attract and retain independent agents and
brokers to sell our insurance products. The failure or inability of independent agents and brokers to market our
insurance products successfully could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results
of operations.

If we are unable to maintain our claims-paying ratings, our ability to write insurance and to compete with other
insurance companies may be adversely impacted. A decline in rating could adversely affect our position in the
insurance market, make it more difficult to market our insurance products and cause our premiums and earnings to
decrease.

Financial ratings are an important factor influencing the competitive position of insurance companies. Third party

rating agencies assess and rate the claims-paying ability of insurers and reinsurers based upon criteria that they have
established. Periodically these rating agencies evaluate the business to confirm that it continues to meet the criteria of

the ratings previously assigned. Financial strength ratings are an important factor in establishing the competitive

position of insurance companies and may be expected to have an effect on an insurance company’s premiums. The
insurance subsidiaries are rated by A.M. Best, which issues independent opinions of an insurer’s financial strength and

its ability to meet policyholder obligations. A.M. Best ratings range from “A++" (Superior) to “F” (In Liquidation), with a
total of 16 separate rating categories. The objective of A.M. Best’s rating system is to provide potential policyholders

and other interested parties an opinion of an insurer’s financial strength and ability to meet ongoing obligations,

including paying claims.

On January 30, 2012, A.M. Best affirmed the financial strength rating of American Country and American Service as
“B” and the outlook assigned to all ratings is “Stable.” Following the disclosure of our pending acquisition of Gateway, in
the fourth quarter 2012, A.M. Best placed Atlas and its subsidiaries under review with negative implications. The

review reflects the inherent risk associated with integrating Gateway’s ongoing business into the Company’s existing
infrastructure, while overseeing the run-off of Gateway’s non-core lines, and the increase in financial leverage of Atlas

as a result of funding the transaction, in part, with the issuance of preferred stock. This review was completed in

January 2013 with A.M. Best affirming the financial strength ratings of all of Atlas’ insurance subsidiaries as “B” and the
outlook assigned to all ratings as “Stable.” However, there is a risk that A.M. Best will not maintain these ratings in the
future. If the insurance subsidiaries’ ratings are reduced by A.M. Best, their competitive position in the insurance
industry could suffer and it could be more difficult to market their insurance products. A downgrade could result in a
significant reduction in the number of insurance contracts written by the subsidiaries and in a substantial loss of

business to other competitors with higher ratings, causing premiums and earnings to decrease. Rating agencies

evaluate insurance companies based on financial strength and the ability to pay claims, factors that may be more

relevant to policyholders than to investors. Financial strength ratings by rating agencies are not ratings of securities or
recommendations to buy, hold or sell any security and should not be relied upon as such.
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Our ability to generate written premiums is impacted by seasonality which may cause fluctuations in our operating
results and to our stock price.

The P&C insurance business is seasonal in nature. While our net premiums earned are generally stable from quarter to
quarter, our gross premiums written follow the common renewal dates for the “light” commercial risks that represent our
core lines of business. For example, January 15t and March 15t are common taxi cab renewal dates in Illinois and New
York, respectively. Additionally, we implemented our New York “excess taxi program” in the third quarter of 2012,
which has a renewal date in the third quarter 2013. Net underwriting income is driven mainly by the timing and nature
of claims, which can vary widely. Our ability to generate written premiums is also impacted by the timing of policy
periods in the states in which we operate. As a result of this seasonality, investors may not be able to predict our

annual operating results based on a quarter-to-quarter comparison of our operating results. Additionally, this

seasonality may cause fluctuations in our stock price. We believe seasonality will have an ongoing impact on our
business.
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U.S. Tax Risks

If our company were not to be treated as a U.S. corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, certain tax
inefficiencies would result and certain adverse tax rules would apply.

Pursuant to certain “expatriation” provisions of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, the reverse merger
agreement relating to the reverse merger transaction described below provides that the parties intend to treat our
company as a U.S. corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes. The expatriation provisions are complex, are
largely unsettled and subject to differing interpretations, and are subject to change, perhaps retroactively. If our
company were not to be treated as a U.S. corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, certain tax inefficiencies
and adverse tax consequences and reporting requirements would result for both our company and the recipients and
holders of stock in our company, including that dividend distributions from our insurance subsidiaries to us would be
subject to 30% U.S. withholding tax, with no available reduction and that members of the consolidated group may not
be permitted to file a consolidated U.S. tax return resulting in the acceleration of cash tax outflow and potential
permanent loss of tax benefits associated with net operating loss carry-forwards that could have otherwise been
utilized.

Our use of losses may be subject to limitations and the tax liability of our company may be increased.

Our ability to utilize the NOLs is subject to the rules of Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. Section 382
generally restricts the use of NOLs after an “ownership change.” An ownership change occurs if, among other things,
the stockholders (or specified groups of stockholders) who own or have owned, directly or indirectly, five percent
(5%) or more of our common stock or are otherwise treated as five percent (5%) stockholders under Section 382 and
the regulations promulgated thereunder increase their aggregate percentage ownership of our stock by more than 50
percentage points over the lowest percentage of the stock owned by these stockholders over a three-year rolling
period. In the event of an ownership change, Section 382 imposes an annual limitation on the amount of taxable
income a corporation may offset with NOL carryforwards. This annual limitation is generally equal to the product of
the value of our stock on the date of the ownership change, multiplied by the long-term tax-exempt rate published
monthly by the Internal Revenue Service. Any unused annual limitation may be carried over to later years until the
applicable expiration date for the respective NOL carryforwards.

The rules of Section 382 are complex and subject to varying interpretations. Because of our numerous equity
issuances, which have included the issuance of various classes of convertible securities and warrants, uncertainty
exists as to whether we may have undergone an ownership change in the past or will undergo one as a result of this
offering. Even if this offering does not cause an ownership change, it may increase the likelihood that we may
undergo an ownership change in the future. Based on our recent stock prices, we believe any ownership change would
limit our ability to utilize the portion of our NOLSs that are currently not subject to limitation. Accordingly, no
assurance can be given that our NOLs will be fully available. As a result, we could pay taxes earlier and in larger
amounts than would be the case if the NOLs were available to reduce the federal income taxes without restriction.
Future sales of stock by KAI, including sales in this offering, could conceivably trigger another ownership change
according to Section 382.

Atlas has the following total net operating loss carry-forwards as of the period ended September 30, 2012.

Net Operating Loss Carry-Forward by Expiry (in ‘000s)

Year of Occurrence Year of Expiration Amount
2001 2021 $14,750
2002 2022 4,317
2006 2026 7,825
2007 2027 5,131
2008 2028 1,949
2009 2029 1,949
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2030
2031
2032

1,949
7,762
1,074
$46,706

Further limitations on the utilization of losses may apply because of the “dual consolidated loss” rules, which will also
require our company to recapture into income the amount of any such utilized losses in certain circumstances. As a
result of the application of these rules, the future tax liability of our company and our insurance subsidiaries could be
significantly increased. In addition, taxable income may also be recognized by our company or our insurance
subsidiaries in connection with the 2010 reverse merger transaction.
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Risks Related to this Offering

There has been no public market the United States for our ordinary shares prior to this offering and an active trading
market for our ordinary shares may not develop, continue or be liquid following this offering.

Prior to this offering, our ordinary shares have been exclusively listed on the TSXV under the symbol “AFH,” and there
has been no public market for them in the United States. There is a risk that no active trading market will develop,
continue or be liquid in the United States and that our ordinary shares will not be resold at or above our public
offering price. Our ordinary shares will be listed on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol “AFH” on or
promptly following the date of this prospectus. The public offering price of our ordinary shares has been determined
by agreement among us and the underwriters, but there is a risk that our ordinary shares will trade below the public
offering price following the completion of this offering. See “Underwriting.” The market value of our ordinary shares
could be substantially affected by general market conditions, including the extent to which a secondary market
develops for our ordinary shares following the completion of this offering, the extent of institutional investor interest
in us, our financial and operating performance and general stock and bond market conditions. In addition, we may not
have coverage by security analysts, which could serve to limit the distribution of news and limit investor interest in
our shares.

Assuming an active market for our ordinary shares develops, the market price and trading volume of our ordinary
shares may be volatile following this offering.

Even if an active trading market develops for our ordinary shares, their per share trading price may be volatile due in
part to the limited public float and trading volume for our shares and the fact that our ordinary shares will be dual
listed on NASDAQ and the TSX Venture Exchange. In addition, the trading volume in our ordinary shares may
fluctuate and cause significant price variations to occur. If the per share trading price of our ordinary shares declines
significantly, you may be unable to resell your shares at or above the public offering price. There is a risk that the per
share trading price of our ordinary shares will fluctuate or decline significantly in the future.

Some of the factors that could negatively affect our share price or result in fluctuations in the price or trading volume
of our ordinary shares include:

actual or anticipated variations in our quarterly operating results;

changes in our cash flows from operations or earnings estimates;

publication of research reports about us or the insurance industry;

changes in market valuations of similar companies;

adverse market reaction to any additional debt we incur or equity we may issue in the future;

additions or departures of key management personnel;

actions by institutional shareholders;

speculation in the press or investment community;

our underlying asset value;

the extent of investor interest in our securities;

tnvestor confidence in the stock and bond markets, generally;

changes in tax laws;

failure to meet earnings estimates;

changes in our claims-paying ratings;

eeneral market and economic conditions; and

future sales of substantial amounts of our shares in the public market, or the perception that these sales could occur.

In the past, securities class action litigation has often been instituted against companies following periods of volatility
in the price of their shares. This type of litigation could result in substantial costs and divert our management’s
attention and resources, which could have an adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations, cash flow
and per share trading price of our ordinary shares.

We do not anticipate paying any cash dividends for the foreseeable future.
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We currently intend to retain our future earnings, if any, for the foreseeable future, for working capital and other
general corporate purposes. We do not intend to pay any dividends to holders of our ordinary shares. As a result,

capital appreciation in the price of our ordinary shares, if any, will be your only source of gain on an investment in our
ordinary shares. We did not
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declare or pay cash dividends on our capital stock during 2010, 2011, 2012 or to date in 2013. Any future
determination to pay dividends on our capital stock will be at the discretion of our board of directors, subject to
applicable laws, and will depend on our financial condition, results of operations, capital requirements, general
business conditions, and other factors that our board of directors considers relevant. Holders of our preferred shares
are entitled to dividends on a cumulative basis whether or not declared by our board of directors, at a rate of $0.045
per preferred share per year, which must be paid or declared and set apart before any dividend may be paid on our
ordinary shares. In addition, the insurance laws and regulations governing our insurance company subsidiaries contain
restrictions on the ability to pay dividends, or to make other distributions to us, which may limit our ability to pay
dividends to our shareholders.

Purchasers in this offering can expect future dilution in the book value of their investment.

The exercise of outstanding warrants and options and the conversion of preferred shares will result in dilution of your
investment at the time of such exercise or conversion. In addition, if we raise funds by issuing additional ordinary
shares, such newly issued shares would dilute your ownership interest. Accordingly, investors in this offering can
expect to own a smaller percentage of the company as we continue with our business and expand the scope of our
operations.

The requirements of being a United States public company may strain our resources and divert management’s
attention.

As a United States public company, we will be subject to the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (which we refer to herein as the Exchange Act), the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, the Dodd-Frank Act, the
listing requirements of the NASDAQ Stock Market and other applicable securities rules and regulations. Compliance
with these rules and regulations will increase our legal and financial compliance costs, make some activities more
difficult, time-consuming or costly and increase demand on our systems and resources, particularly after we are no
longer an “emerging growth company.” The Exchange Act requires, among other things, that we file annual, quarterly
and current reports with respect to our business and operating results. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires, among other
things, that we maintain effective disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting. In
order to maintain and, if required, improve our disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial
reporting to meet this standard, significant resources and management oversight may be required. As a result,
management’s attention may be diverted from other business concerns, which could adversely affect our business and
operating results. We may need to hire more employees in the future or engage outside consultants to comply with
these requirements, which will increase our costs and expenses.

In addition, changing laws, regulations and standards in the United States relating to corporate governance and public
disclosure are creating uncertainty for public companies, increasing legal and financial compliance costs and making
some activities more time consuming. These laws, regulations and standards are subject to varying interpretations, in
many cases due to their lack of specificity, and, as a result, their application in practice may evolve over time as new
guidance is provided by regulatory and governing bodies. This could result in continuing uncertainty regarding
compliance matters and higher costs necessitated by ongoing revisions to disclosure and governance practices. We
intend to invest resources to comply with evolving laws, regulations and standards, and this investment may result in
increased general and administrative expenses and a diversion of management’s time and attention from
revenue-generating activities to compliance activities. If our efforts to comply with new laws, regulations and
standards differ from the activities intended by regulatory or governing bodies due to ambiguities related to their
application and practice, regulatory authorities may initiate legal proceedings against us and our business and
operating results may be adversely affected.

For as long as we remain an “emerging growth company” as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012
(which we refer to herein as the JOBS Act), we may take advantage of certain exemptions from various reporting
requirements that are applicable to other public companies that are not “emerging growth companies,” including, but not
limited to, not being required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act, reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in our periodic reports and
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proxy statements, and exemptions from the requirements of holding a non-binding advisory vote on executive
compensation and shareholder approval of any golden parachute payments not previously approved. We may take
advantage of these reporting exemptions until we are no longer an “emerging growth company.”

We will remain an “emerging growth company” for up to five years, although if the market value of our ordinary shares
that is held by non-affiliates exceeds $700 million as of any June 30t before that time, we would cease to be an
“emerging growth company” as of the following December 3!1

As a result of disclosure of information in this prospectus and in filings required of a public company in the United
States, our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition will become more visible, which may
result in threatened or actual litigation, including by competitors and other third parties. If such claims are successful,
our business and operating
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results could be adversely affected, and even if the claims do not result in litigation or are resolved in our favor, these
claims, and the time and resources necessary to resolve them, could divert the resources of our management and
adversely affect our business and operating results.

We are an “emerging growth company” and we cannot be certain if the reduced disclosure requirements applicable to
emerging growth companies will make our ordinary shares less attractive to investors.

We are an “emerging growth company,” as defined in the JOBS Act, and we may take advantage of certain exemptions
from various reporting requirements that are applicable to other public companies that are not “emerging growth
companies” including, but not limited to, not being required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of
section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in our
periodic reports and proxy statements, and exemptions from the requirements of holding a non-binding advisory vote
on executive compensation and shareholder approval of any golden parachute payments not previously approved. We
cannot predict if investors will find our ordinary shares less attractive because we may rely on these exemptions. If
some investors find our ordinary shares less attractive as a result, there may be a less active trading market for these
shares and our stock price may be more volatile.

Section 107 of the JOBS Act provides that an “emerging growth company” can take advantage of an extended
transaction period for complying with new or revised accounting standards. However, we are choosing to “opt out” of
such extended transition period, and as a result, we will comply with new or revised accounting standards on the
relevant dates on which adoption of such standards is required for non-emerging growth companies. Our decision to
opt out of the extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting standards is irrevocable.
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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus contains forward-looking statements. All statements contained in this prospectus other than
statements of historical fact, including statements regarding our future results of operations and financial position, our
business strategy and plans, and our objectives for future operations, are forward-looking statements. The words
“believe,” “may,” “will,” “estimate,” “‘continue,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “expect,” and similar expressions are intended to ident
forward-looking statements. We have based these forward-looking statements largely on our current expectations and
projections about future events and trends that we believe may affect our financial condition, results of operations,
business strategy, short-term and long-term business operations and objectives, and financial needs. These
forward-looking statements are subject to a number of risks, uncertainties and assumptions, including those described
in the “Risk Factors” section. Moreover, we operate in a very competitive and rapidly changing environment. New risks
emerge from time to time. It is not possible for our management to predict all risks, nor can we assess the impact of all
factors on our business or the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual results to differ
materially from those contained in any forward-looking statements we may make. In light of these risks, uncertainties
and assumptions, the future events and trends discussed in this prospectus may not occur and actual results could
differ materially and adversely from those anticipated or implied in the forward-looking statements.

You should not rely upon forward-looking statements as predictions of future events. The events and circumstances
reflected in the forward-looking statements may not be achieved or occur. Although we believe that the expectations
reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee future results, levels of activity,
performance, or achievements. We are under no duty to update any of these forward-looking statements after the date
of this prospectus or to conform these statements to actual results or revised expectations.

Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements
include the matters described under “Risk Factors,” changes in local, regional, national or global political, economic,
business, competitive, market (supply and demand) and regulatory conditions and the following:

9 ¢ 99 ¢

expectations regarding our potential growth;

our inability to maintain our listing on the NASDAQ Capital Market or another national securities exchange;
our financial performance;

our competitive position;

the introduction and proliferation of competitive products;

an inability to achieve sustained profitability;

failure to implement our short- or long-term growth strategies;

operating and capital expenditures by us and the insurance and reinsurance industry;

the cost of retaining and recruiting our key personnel or the loss of such key personnel;
risks associated with the expansion of our business in size and geography;

risks associated with our new “excess taxi” program written by a single agent in New York;
operational risk;

risks associated with our integration of Gateway;

eeopolitical events and regulatory changes;

changing interpretations of generally accepted accounting principles;

eeneral economic conditions;

our ability to obtain additional financing, if necessary;

the adverse effect our the ordinary shares issued pursuant to this offering may have on the market price of our
ordinary shares;

our business strategies;

compliance with applicable laws; and

our liquidity.
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Any forward-looking statement made by us in this prospectus speaks only as of the date on which we make it, and is
expressly qualified in its entirety by the foregoing cautionary statements. Factors or events that could cause our actual
results to differ may emerge from time to time, and it is not possible for us to predict all of them. We undertake no
obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future
developments or otherwise.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

Our net proceeds from the sale of the ordinary shares that we are offering will be approximately $7.9 million, after
deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated offering expenses payable by us. If the underwriters
exercise their over-allotment option in full, our net proceeds will be approximately $11.2 million.

We will not receive any of the proceeds from the sale of the ordinary shares being offered by the selling shareholder.
The principal purposes of our initial offering in the United States are to create a public market for our ordinary shares
and thereby enable future access to the public equity markets by us and our shareholders, and to obtain additional
capital. We intend to use the net proceeds to us from our offering for working capital, to acquire complementary
businesses or other assets, to repurchase preferred shares, which accrue dividends on a cumulative basis at a rate of
$0.045 per share per year (4.5%), or for other general corporate purposes; however we do not have any specific uses
of the net proceeds planned.

Pending other uses, we intend to invest the proceeds to us in investment-grade, interest-bearing securities such as
money market funds, certificates of deposit, or direct or guaranteed obligations of the U.S. government, or hold as
cash. We cannot predict whether the proceeds invested will yield a favorable return. Our management will have broad
discretion in the application of the net proceeds we receive from our offering, and investors will be relying on the
judgment of our management regarding the application of the net proceeds.

DIVIDEND POLICY

We did not declare or pay cash dividends on our capital stock during 2010, 2011, 2012 or to date in 2013. We
currently intend to retain any future earnings for use in the operation of our business and do not intend to declare or
pay any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Any future determination to pay dividends on our capital stock will
be at the discretion of our board of directors, subject to applicable laws, and will depend on our financial condition,
results of operations, capital requirements, general business conditions, and other factors that our board of directors
considers relevant. Holders of our preferred shares are entitled to dividends on a cumulative basis whether or not
declared by our board of directors, at a rate of $0.045 per preferred share per year, which must be paid or declared and
set apart before any dividend may be paid on our ordinary shares. In addition, the insurance laws and regulations
governing our insurance company subsidiaries contain restrictions on the ability to pay dividends, or to make other
distributions to us, which may limit our ability to pay dividends to our shareholders.
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SELLING SHAREHOLDER

The following table sets forth information as of the date of this prospectus, to our knowledge, about the beneficial
ownership of our ordinary shares by the selling shareholder, KAI, both before and immediately after the offering.

We believe that the selling shareholder has sole voting and investment power with respect to all of the ordinary shares
beneficially owned by it.

The percent of beneficial ownership for the selling shareholder is based on 3,887,471 restricted voting shares
outstanding as of the date of this prospectus. Pursuant to Rules 13d-3 and 13d-5 of the Exchange Act, securities held
by the selling shareholder that are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of the date of this prospectus for
ordinary shares are considered outstanding and beneficially owned by the selling shareholder for the purpose of
computing its percentage ownership but are not treated as outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage
ownership of any other shareholder.

Information about the selling shareholder may change over time. Any changed information will be set forth in an
amendment to the registration statement or supplement to this prospectus, to the extent required by law.

Restricted Voting Shares Restricted Voting Shares
Beneficially Owned Prior Beneficially Owned After the
to the Offering Offering
Ordinary Shares
Name of Selling Shareholder Number() Percent)  Offered by this Number Percent
Prospectus®

Kingsway America Inc. 150 Pierce Road,
Suite 600 Itasca, Illinois 60143 3,887,471 100.0% 2,625,000 1,262,471 100%
Includes 525,981 restricted voting shares owned by Mendota Insurance Company, and 627,122 restricted voting
shares owned by Universal Casualty Company, both of which are wholly owned subsidiaries of KAI.

Restricted voting shares offered by the selling shareholder are automatically converted into ordinary shares
pursuant to this offering.

ey
2
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MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS

As of the date of this prospectus, there were 78 shareholders of record of our ordinary shares, of which 2,256,921 were
issued and outstanding. Additionally, there were 3,887,471 restricted voting shares outstanding, all of which convert
to ordinary shares upon the sale of such shares by KAI or their subsidiaries. Our ordinary shares have been exclusively
listed on the TSXV under the symbol “AFH” since January 6, 2011. There is currently no established public trading
market for our ordinary shares in the United States.

Set forth below are the high and low listing prices of the ordinary shares during 2011, 2012 and the first quarter of
2013, through February 11, 2013 per the TSXV, assuming retroactive application of the one-for-three reverse stock
split (in Canadian dollars):

Summary of Share Prices

High Low

2013

First Quarter (through February 11, 2013) C$8.40 (C$6.30
2012

Fourth Quarter C$6.75 (C$5.55
Third Quarter C$5.97 C$3.60
Second Quarter C$5.55 (C$2.46
First Quarter C$6.00 C$3.75
2011

Fourth Quarter C$6.00 C$4.80
Third Quarter C$6.00 C$4.44
Second Quarter C$5.58 (C$3.75
First Quarter C$5.97 (C$3.30

During 2011, 2012 or to date in 2013, we did not repurchase any of our equity securities. We also did not pay any
dividends during 2011, 2012 or to date in 2013 and have no current plans to pay dividends to our ordinary
shareholders. The cumulative amount of dividends to which the preferred shareholders are entitled upon liquidation
(or sooner, if we declare dividends) is $1.42 million as of September 30, 2012.

For more information regarding dividends, refer to “Dividend Policy” section of this prospectus.
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CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth a summary of our capitalization on an historical basis as of September 30, 2012, and
should be read in conjunction with our interim consolidated financial statements and notes included in this prospectus.
The table also summarizes our capitalization on an as adjusted basis for: (1) the effectiveness of the one-for-three
reverse stock split implemented on January 29, 2013; (2) the completion of this initial public offering at $5.85 per
ordinary share; (3) net proceeds to us from this initial public offering of $7.9 million after payment of estimated
underwriting discounts, commissions and related expenses; and (4) the intended application of the net proceeds of this

offering.
(in ‘000s, except share and per share data) September 30, 2012
Shareholders’ Equity Actual Adjusted

Preferred shares, par value per share $0.001, 100,000,000 shares authorized, 18,000,000
shares issued and outstanding actual and as adjusted. Liquidation value $1.00 per share.
Ordinary shares, par value per share $0.003, 266,666,667 shares authorized, 1,542,764

$ 18,000 $ 18,000

shares issued and outstanding actual, and 5,667,764 issued and outstanding as adjusted 17

Restricted voting common shares, par value per share $0.003, 33,333,334 shares

authorized, 4,601,621 shares issued and outstanding actual, and 1,976,621 issued and 14 6

outstanding as adjusted

Additional paid-in capital 152,739 160,587
Retained deficit (113,919 )(113,919 )
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax 2,265 2,265

Total Shareholders’ Equity $59,103 $66,956
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UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The following unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements are based on the historical financial statements
of Atlas Financial Holdings, Inc. and Camelot Services, Inc., after giving effect to the acquisition of Camelot Services,
which was consummated on January 2, 2013. These estimates and assumptions are subject to change upon the
finalization of valuations, which are contingent upon final appraisals, identifiable intangible assets and any other
adjustments. Revisions to the preliminary purchase price allocation could result in significant deviation from the
accompanying pro forma information. Atlas’ management believes that its assumptions provide a reasonable basis for
presenting all of the significant effects of the transactions contemplated and that the pro forma adjustments give
appropriate effect to those assumptions and are properly applied in the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial
information.

The following unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements and explanatory notes present how the financial
statements of Atlas may have appeared had the acquisition occurred on January 1, 2011 (with respect to the results of
statements of comprehensive income) or as of September 30, 2012 (with respect to statement of financial position
information). Certain amounts from Camelot Services’ historical financial statements have been reclassified to
conform to Atlas’ presentation.

These unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements have been derived from and should be read together with
the historical financial statements and related notes of Atlas included in its annual report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2011 and its quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the nine month period ended September 30, 2012,
both of which have been filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information has been prepared by management, are presented for
illustrative purposes only, and do not purport to represent what the results of operations or financial position of Atlas
would have been had the acquisition actually occurred as of the dates indicated, nor is it indicative of future financial
position or results of operations for any period.
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UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

September 30, 2012

(in ‘000s) Historical Pro Forma

Atlas Camelot Adjustments Notes Combined
Assets
Investments, available for sale
Fixed income securities, at fair value $109,555 $35,608 $(12,573 )4.a. $132,590
Equity securities, at fair value — 3,076 — 3,076
Cash and cash equivalents 12,151 8,931 (12,895 )3.a. 8,187
Accrued investment income 807 228 — 1,035
Accounts receivable and other assets 24,811 10,589 — 35,400
Reinsurance recoverables, net 6,983 5,741 13,484 4.a. 26,208
Prepaid reinsurance premiums 2,219 — — 2,219
Deferred policy acquisition costs 4,501 1,676 (1,676 )2.b.,4.a 4,501
Deferred tax asset, net 6,343 — 208 7.b. 6,551
Software and office equipment, net 1,157 979 (784 )2.c. 1,352
Assets held for sale 166 — — 166
Investment in investees 1,250 — — 1,250
Total Assets $169,943 $66,828 $(14,236 ) $222,535
Liabilities
Claims liabilities $73,574 $30,871 $— $104,445
Unearned premiums 28,325 11,946 — 40,271
Due to reinsurers and other insurers 4,658 — — 4,658
Other liabilities and accrued expenses 4,283 3,557 — 7,840
Notes payable — 1,051 (1,051 )2.a. —
Total Liabilities $110,840 $47,425 $(1,051 ) $157,214
Shareholders’ Equity
Preferred shares, par value per share $0.001, 100,000,000
shares authorized, 18,000,000 shares issued and $18,000 $— $2,000 3.b. $20,000

outstanding at September 30, 2012

Ordinary voting common shares, par value per share

$0.003, 266,666,667 shares authorized, 1,542,764 shares 4 1 — 5
issued and outstanding at September 30, 2012

Restricted voting common shares, par value per share

$0.003, 33,333,334 shares authorized, 4,601,621 shares 14 — — 14

issued and outstanding at September 30, 2012

Additional paid-in capital 152,739 30,928 (14,895 )3.a, 3.b. 168,772
Retained deficit (113,919 )(13,491 )349 3';"2'13"2'&’(127,061 )
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax 2,265 1,965 (639 )4.b., 4.c. 3,591

Total Shareholders’ Equity $59,103 $19,403 $(13,185 ) $65,321
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $169,943 $66,828 $(14,236 ) $222.535

See accompanying notes to unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements.
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UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2012

(in ‘000s, except per share data)

Net premiums earned

Net investment income

Net investment gains (losses)

Other income

Total revenue

Net claims incurred

Other underwriting expenses

Total expenses

Income from operations before income tax
(benefit)/expense

Income tax expense

Net income attributable to parent

Less: Preferred share dividends

Net income/(loss) attributable to common
shareholders

Other comprehensive income/(loss) related to

Available for Sale Securities:

Changes in net unrealized gains
Reclassification to income of net gains
Effect of income tax

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the
period

Total comprehensive income/(loss)

Basic weighted average common shares
outstanding

Earnings/(loss) per common share, basic
Diluted weighted average common shares
outstanding

Earnings/(loss) per common share, diluted

See accompanying notes to unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements.
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Historical
Atlas
$26,795
1,878
1,098

169
29,940
18,477
9,541
28,018

1,922

1,922
606

$1,316

$1,899
(632
(427

840
$2,762

6,146,179
$0.21
6,147,648
$0.21

Pro Forma

Camelot Adjustments Notes
$19,148 $(11,260 )4.d., 5
930 (949 )4.b.,4.d., 5.
(90 )1,021 4.c.,44d.,5.
(200 )274 2.a.,44d.,5.
19,788 (10,914 )
19,109 (15,879 )4.d., 5, 6.a.
7,496 (4,632 )4.d., 5
26,605 (20,511 )
(6,817 )9,597
2,641 (2,641 )7.a.,7.b.
(9,458 )12,238
— 68 8
$(9,458 )$12,170
$1,099 $—

)90 (969 )

) (404 )313
785 (639 )
$(8,673 )$11,599

Combined
$34,683
1,859
2,029

243
38,814
21,707
12,405
34,112

4,702

4,702
674

$4,028

$2,998
(1,511
(518

986
$5,688

6,146,179
$0.66
6,147,648
$0.66
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UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(in ‘000s, except per share data)

Net premiums earned

Net investment income

Net investment gains

Other income

Total revenue

Net claims incurred

Other underwriting expenses

Total expenses

Income from operations before income tax
(benefit)/expense

Income tax expense

Net income attributable to parent

Less: Preferred share dividends

Net loss attributable to common shareholders

Other comprehensive income/(loss) related to:

Changes in net unrealized gains
Reclassification to income of net gains
Settlement of pension plan

Effect of income tax

Year Ended December 31, 2011

Historical
Atlas
$35,747
3,280
4,201

124
43,352
28,994
17,991
46,985

(3,633

(1,163
(2,470
810
$(3,280

$154
(3,469
2,473
(789

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the period(1,631

Total comprehensive income/(loss)

Basic weighted average common shares
outstanding

Earnings/(loss) per common share, basic
Diluted weighted average common shares
outstanding

Earnings/(loss) per common share, diluted

$(4,101

6,124,542
$(0.54
6,124,542
$(0.54

Pro Forma
Camelot Adjustments Notes Combined
$23,989 $(11,796 )4.d.,5 $47,940

1,231 (1,167 )4.b.,4.d.,5.3,344
227 384 4.c.,4.d.,5.4812
(188 )329 2.a.,44d.,5.265
25,259 (12,250 ) 56,361
20,440 (9,814 )4.d., 5, 6.b. 39,620
9,520 (5,215 )4.d., 5 22,296
29,960 (15,029 ) 61,916
)(4,701  )2,779 (5,555
)(1,570 ) 1,570 7.a.,7b. (1,163
)(3,131 ) 1,209 (4,392
90 8 900
)$(3,131 H$ 1,119 $(5,292
$1,667 $— $1,821
) (344 )(513 ) (4,326
— — 2,473
) (450 )188 (1,051
)873 (325 ) (1,083
)$(2,258 )$884 $(5,475
6,124,542
) $(0.86
6,124,542
) $(0.86

See accompanying notes to unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Financial Statements

Basis of Presentation

The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information gives effect to the acquisition of Camelot Services as if it
had occurred (i) on September 30, 2012 for the purposes of the unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of
financial position and (ii) on January 1, 2011 for the purposes of the unaudited pro forma consolidated statements of
comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2011 and for the nine months ended September 30, 2012.
The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information has been prepared by Atlas’ management. Certain amounts
from Camelot Services’ historical consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to Atlas’
presentation.

General

This unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information has been prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States (“GAAP”). The unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of financial
position as of September 30, 2012 and the unaudited pro forma consolidated statements of comprehensive income for
the year ended December 31, 2011 and the nine months ended September 30, 2012 have been prepared using the
following information:

.Unaudited historical consolidated financial statements of Atlas as of September 30, 2012 and for the nine months
ended September 30, 2012;

.Unaudited historical consolidated financial statements of Camelot Services as of September 30, 2012 and for the nine
months ended September 30, 2012;

Audited historical consolidated financial statements of Atlas for the year ended December 31, 2011;

Audited historical consolidated financial statements of Camelot Services for the year ended December 31, 2011; and
Such other supplementary information as considered necessary to reflect the proposed acquisition in the unaudited pro
forma condensed consolidated financial information.

Purchase Price and Related Considerations

On October 25, 2012, Atlas announced it had entered into a stock purchase agreement for the acquisition of Camelot
Services from Hendricks. Such agreement was entered into on October 24, 2012, by and among Atlas and Hendricks.
The transaction closed on January 2, 2013.

The total purchase price for all of Camelot Services’ outstanding shares was $14.9 million, purchased with a
combination of cash and Atlas preferred shares. Consideration consisted of a $6.0 million dividend paid by Gateway
immediately prior to the closing, $2.0 million of Atlas preferred shares (consisting of a total of 2 million preferred
shares) and $6.9 million in cash. Under the terms of the stock purchase agreement, the closing price was reduced due
to reserve strengthening of approximately $6.4 million that Camelot Services recognized prior to closing.
Approximately $4.3 million of this reserve strengthening was related to commercial automobile reserves, a portion of
which was related to the long-haul truck program that is currently in run-off. The amount of pre-closing reserve
strengthening was consistent with the conclusions of an independent actuarial analysis of the reserves of Gateway. In
addition to this pre-closing reserve strengthening, we have contractual protections to offset up to $2.0 million of future
reserve development. We have also agreed to provide the sellers up to $2.0 million in additional consideration in the
event of favorable reserve development.

Gateway has historically underwritten other commercial insurance products that will not be underwritten by Atlas.
Gateway previously wrote workers’ compensation insurance, which we did not acquire as part of the transaction. An
indemnity reinsurance agreement was entered into pursuant to which 100% of Gateway’s workers’ compensation
business was ceded to an affiliate of the seller as part of the transaction. Under the terms of the stock purchase
agreement, certain other underwriting expenses associated with the workers’ compensation business were assumed by
the seller. In May 2012, Gateway ceased underwriting commercial automobile liability insurance for long-haul truck
operators. We expect that Gateway's gross premium written and net premium earned for the three months ended
December 31, 2012 will be consistent with prior periods.
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Atlas began consolidating Camelot Services effective January 1, 2013. The purchase consideration is allocated to the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed, including separately identified intangible assets, based on their fair values as
of the close of the acquisition. Direct costs of the acquisition are accounted for separately from the business
combination and are expensed as incurred. As the values of certain assets and liabilities are preliminary in nature, they
are subject to adjustment as additional information is obtained, including, but not limited to, valuation of separately
identifiable intangibles, fixed assets, deferred taxes and loss reserves. The valuations will be finalized within six
months of the close of the acquisition. When the
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valuations are finalized, any changes to the preliminary valuation of assets acquired or liabilities assumed may result
in adjustments to separately identifiable intangible assets and goodwill.

For purposes of presentation in the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information, the allocation of the
“actual purchase consideration is as follows:

Estimated Purchase Consideration (in ‘000s)

Cash $12,895
Preferred Stock 2,000
Total $14,895

Pro Forma Preliminary Allocation of Purchase Price (in ‘000s)

Cash and investments $46,700
Other current assets 16,886
Property and equipment 195
Deferred policy acquisition costs 674
Total Assets $64,455
Claims liabilities $36,879
Unearned premiums 9,357
Accounts payable and other liabilities 3,324
Total Liabilities $49,560

The amounts outlined above are subject to change in accordance with the stock purchase agreement dated October 25,
2012, such that the final purchase price will be determined based upon the audited financial statements of Camelot
Services as of December 31, 2012.

2. Adjustments to September 30, 2012 book value of the acquired assets and liabilities are as follows:

Effective prior to the closing balance sheet, Hendricks forgave Camelot Services’ note related to a software purchase
for its worker’s compensation business in the amount of $1.0 million. The related interest expense of $74,000 and
$120 000 has been eliminated from the pro forma statements of comprehensive income for September 30, 2012 and
December 31, 2011, respectively.

Deferred acquisition costs of $765,000 related to the taxi and truck lines of business will be eliminated from
"Camelot Services’ book value according to the purchase price calculations of the stock purchase agreement.

. Software related to the workers” compensation line of business of $784,000 will be eliminated from Camelot
"Services’ book value and is not being acquired under the terms of the stock purchase agreement.

Gateway management incentives related to 2012 activities, including the successful sale of Gateway, are the sole
‘responsibility of the seller, Hendricks, and have not been accounted for in these results.

The total purchase consideration of $14.9 million consisted of cash, in the amount of $12.9 million, and Atlas

‘preferred shares, in the estimated amount of $2.0 million. The details of this consideration are as follows:

Cash of $6.9 million was derived from an extraordinary dividend from Atlas’ insurance subsidiaries and cash of $6.0
a.million was derived from an extraordinary dividend from Gateway. These extraordinary dividends have received

regulatory approval and have been paid.
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$2.0 million of Atlas preferred shares, consisting of a total of 2 million preferred shares, were issued to Hendricks
according to the terms of the stock purchase agreement. The preferred shares accrue dividends on a cumulative basis
whether or not declared by the Board of Directors at the rate of $0.045 per share per year (4.5%) and may be paid in
cash or in additional preferred shares at the option of Atlas. Upon liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of Atlas,
"holders of preferred shares receive the greater of $1.00 per share plus all declared and unpaid dividends or the
amount they would receive in liquidation if the preferred shares had been converted to ordinary voting common
shares immediately prior to liquidation. Preferred shares are convertible into ordinary voting common shares at the
option of the holder at any date that is after the five year anniversary date of issuance at the rate of 0.1270 ordinary
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voting common shares for each preferred share. The conversion rate is subject to change if the number of ordinary
voting common shares or restricted voting common shares changes. The preferred shares are redeemable at the option
of Atlas at a price of $1.00 per share plus accrued and unpaid dividends commencing at two years from the issuance
date.

Effective immediately after the close of the transaction, Gateway entered into a reinsurance agreement with a third
party reinsurer. The reinsurance agreement covers all in-force premium and loss reserves for Gateway's workers'
compensation program. Along with the reserves, any go-forward premium written for the workers' compensation
“program will be ceded in its entirety to this third party reinsurer under the terms of this reinsurance agreement.
While Gateway remains liable to its insureds, Atlas does not expect to have any net exposure to losses related to this
workers' compensation business.
The effects of the reinsurance agreement on the statement of financial position and statements of comprehensive
income are as follows:
These balances were adjusted to reflect assets that will be ceded to the third party reinsurer as collateral for the net
liabilities associated with the workers’ compensation premium, including loss reserves in the amount of $7.3 million,
a.plus unearned premium reserves of $6.2 million, and less deferred policy acquisition costs of $910,000. The amount
due from reinsurers and other insurers was increased by an equal amount to reflect the reinsurance recoverable from
this third party reinsurer.
There will be a reduction in net investment income of $404,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and
$470,000 for the year ended December 31, 2011 to reflect the pro forma decrease in cash and cash equivalents by
"$12.9 million as a result of dividends paid from both Atlas and Camelot Services and the pro forma net reduction of
Camelot Services’ invested assets by $12.6 million as a result of the workers” compensation reinsurance agreement.
Realization of gains of $969,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and $513,000 for the year ended
c.December 31, 2011 to reflect the net reduction of Camelot Services’ invested assets by $12.6 million in connection
with the workers’ compensation reinsurance agreement.
The following table identifies the adjustments to the statement of comprehensive income as a result of removing the
d.impacts of the workers’ compensation lines of business as if the reinsurance transaction were in place as of January
1,2011.
For the Nine Months Ended  For the Year Ended

(in ‘000s) September 30, 2012 December 31, 2011

Net premiums earned $(7,173 )$(7,133 )
Investment income 457 ) (414 )
Realized (gains) losses 44 (77 )
Other (income) expense 151 175

Net claims incurred (5,102 )(6,318 )
Other underwriting expenses (2,989 (2,772 )
Total expenses (8,091 ) (9,090 )
Incom.e from operations before income tax $656 $1.957

(benefit)/expense

During 2012, Gateway exited its truck line of business and placed into run-off claims related to this line of business.
5.The following table identifies the adjustments to the statement of comprehensive income as a result of removing the
impacts of the truck line of business as if this line were in run-off as of January 1, 2011.
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For the Nine Months Ended For the Year Ended

(in ‘000s) September 30, 2012 December 31, 2011

Net premiums earned $(4,087 )$(4,663 )
Investment Income (88 ) (283 )
Realized (gains) losses 8 (52 )
Other (income) expense 49 34

Net claims incurred (5,819 ) (5,357 )
Other underwriting expenses (1,643 ) (2,443 )
Total expenses (7,462 ) (7,800 )
Incom.e from operations before income tax $3.344 $2.836

(benefit)/expense

Camelot Services recorded loss and loss adjustment expense development of $5.0 million in its September 30, 2012
6.financial statement that related to periods prior to 2012. The table below indicates the amount of loss and loss
adjustment expense development by line of business:

(in ‘000s) 2011 2010 & Prior Total

Taxi $1,861 $420 $2,281

Truck 1,483 112 1,595

Contractors 1,029 57 1,086

All Other 3 (7 ) (4 )
Total $4,376 $582 $4,958

A reduction to net claims incurred equal to $5.0 million was recorded in the September 30, 2012 pro forma
a.statement of comprehensive income to remove the loss and loss adjustment expense development related to periods
of 2011 and prior from the 2012 results.
An adjustment equal to $1.9 million was made to increase the net claims incurred relating to the impact of 2011 taxi
loss and loss adjustment expense development for year 2011. Since the workers’ compensation and the truck lines of
"business were eliminated in items 4 and 5 above, no further proforma adjustments to the 2011 net claims incurred
were necessary.
7.Adjustments to income tax expense are as follows:
Camelot Services recorded tax expense of $2.6 million in its September 30, 2012 statement of comprehensive
income. This adjustment was made to establish an allowance against its deferred tax assets as it relates to the
balance as of December 31, 2011. A reversal adjustment was made to the income tax line of the pro forma statement
a.of comprehensive income for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 in the amount of $2.6 million to eliminate
the impact of this adjustment. Also, an adjustment of $1.6 million was made to eliminate the income taxes in the
December 31, 2011 statement of comprehensive income relating to the establishment of the deferred tax allowance
as if it had occurred on January 1, 2011.
Income tax adjustments related to the impact of adjustment 4.c. above of $28,000 and $180,000 for the nine months
b.ended September 30, 2012 and the year ended December 31, 2012 were offset by decreases in the deferred tax
allowance.
Accrued dividends were adjusted by $67,500 for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and by $90,000 for the
“year ended December 31, 2011 to reflect the issuance of $2.0 million of Atlas preferred shares to Hendricks.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in
conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and related notes that appear elsewhere in this prospectus. In
addition to historical consolidated financial information, the following discussion contains forward-looking statements
that may include, but are not limited to, statements with respect to estimates of future expenses, revenue and
profitability; trends affecting financial condition, cash flows and results of operations; the availability and terms of
additional capital; dependence on key suppliers and other strategic partners; industry trends and the competitive and
regulatory environment; the successful integration of Gateway; the impact of losing one or more senior executives or
failing to attract additional key personnel; and other factors referenced in this prospectus. Our actual results could
differ materially from those discussed in the forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements contained
herein are made as of the date of this prospectus and we disclaim any obligation to update any forward-looking
statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or results, or otherwise. Factors that could cause or
contribute to these differences include those discussed below and elsewhere in this prospectus, particularly in “Risk
Factors.”

In this discussion and analysis, the term “common share” refers to the summation of restricted voting shares and
ordinary shares when used to describe loss or book value per common share.

Forward-looking statements

This report contains “forward-looking statements,” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act
of 1995, which may include, but are not limited to, statements with respect to estimates of future expenses, revenue
and profitability; trends affecting financial condition and results of operations; the availability and terms of additional
capital; dependence on key suppliers, and other strategic partners; industry trends and the competitive and regulatory
environment; the impact of losing one or more senior executives or failing to attract additional key personnel; and
other factors referenced in this report.

Often, but not always, forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of words such as “plans”, “expects”, “is
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expected”, “budget”, “scheduled”, “estimates”, “forecasts”, “intends”, “anticipates”, or “believes” or variations (including neg:
variations) of such words and phrases, or state that certain actions, events or results “may”, “could”, “would”, “might” or “will
be taken, occur or be achieved. Forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and

other factors which may cause the actual results, performance or achievements of Atlas to be materially different from
any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements. Such factors
include, among others, general business, economic, competitive, political, regulatory and social uncertainties.

Although Atlas has attempted to identify important factors that could cause actual actions, events or results to differ
materially from those described in forward-looking statements, there may be other factors that cause actions, events or
results to differ from those anticipated, estimated or intended. Forward-looking statements contained herein are made

as of the date of this report and Atlas disclaims any obligation to update any forward-looking statements, whether as a
result of new information, future events or results, or otherwise. There can be no assurance that forward-looking
statements will prove to be accurate, as actual results and future events could differ materially from those anticipated

in such statements. Accordingly, readers should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements due to the
inherent uncertainty in them.

Overview

We are a financial services holding company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands. Our core business is
the underwriting of commercial automobile insurance policies, focusing on the “light” commercial automobile sector,
which is carried out through our insurance subsidiaries, American Country Insurance Company, or American Country,
and American Service Insurance Company, Inc., or American Service, together with American Country, which we

refer to as our “insurance subsidiaries”. This sector includes taxi cabs, non-emergency para-transit, limousine, livery and
business auto. Our goal is to always be the preferred specialty commercial transportation insurer in any geographic

areas where our value proposition delivers benefit to all stakeholders. We are licensed to write property and casualty,

or P&C, insurance in 46 states plus the District of Columbia in the United States. The insurance subsidiaries distribute
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their products through a network of independent retail agents, and actively wrote insurance in 31 states as of
September 30, 2012. Our acquisition of Gateway expanded the number of states in which we are actively writing our
core commercial auto lines to 39 states and the District of Columbia.

Our core business is the underwriting of commercial automobile insurance policies, focusing on the “light” commercial
automobile sector. Over the past two years, we have disposed of non-core assets and placed into run-off certain
non-core lines of business previously written by the insurance subsidiaries. Our focus going forward is the
underwriting of commercial automobile insurance in the U.S. Substantially all of our new premiums written are in
“light” commercial automobile lines of business.
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Commercial Automobile

Our primary target market is made up of taxi, limousine and non-emergency para-transit operators with one to ten
units. The “light” commercial automobile policies we underwrite provide coverage for lightweight commercial vehicles
typically with the minimum limits prescribed by statute, municipal or other regulatory requirements. The majority of
our policyholders are individual owners or small fleet operators. In certain jurisdictions like Illinois and New York,
we have also been successful working with larger operators who retain a meaningful amount of their own risk of loss
through self-insurance or self-funded captive insurance entity arrangements. In these cases, we provide support in the
areas of day to day policy administration and claims handling consistent with the value proposition we offer to all of
our insureds, generally on a fee for service basis. We may also provide excess coverage above the levels of risk
retained by the insureds where a better than average loss ratio is expected. Through these arrangements, we are able
to effectively utilize the significant specialized operating infrastructure we maintain to generate revenue from business
segments that may otherwise be more price sensitive in the current market environment.

The “light” commercial automobile sector is a subset of the historically profitable commercial automobile insurance
industry segment. Commercial automobile insurance has outperformed the overall P&C industry in each of the past
ten years based on data compiled by A.M. Best. A recent survey by A.M. Best estimates the total U.S. market for
commercial automobile liability insurance to be approximately $24 billion. The size of the commercial automobile
insurance market can be affected significantly by many factors, such as the underwriting capacity and underwriting
criteria of automobile insurance carriers and general economic conditions. Historically, the commercial automobile
insurance market has been characterized by periods of price competition and excess capacity followed by periods of
higher premium rates and shortages of underwriting capacity.

We believe that there is a positive correlation between the economy and commercial automobile insurance in general.
Operators of “light” commercial automobiles may be less likely than other business segments within the commercial
automobile insurance market to take vehicles out of service as their businesses and business reputations rely heavily
on availability. With respect to certain business lines such as the taxi line, there are also other factors such as the cost
and limited supply of medallions which may discourage a policyholder from taking vehicles out of service in the face
of reduced demand for the use of the vehicle.

Non-Standard Automobile

Non-standard automobile insurance is principally provided to individuals who do not qualify for standard automobile
insurance coverage because of their payment history, driving record, place of residence, age, vehicle type or other
factors. Such drivers typically represent higher than normal risks and pay higher insurance rates for comparable
coverage.

Consistent with Atlas’ focus on commercial automobile insurance, Atlas has transitioned away from the non-standard
auto line in 2012. Atlas ceased renewals of policies of this type in 2011, allowing surplus and resources to be devoted
to the expected growth of the commercial automobile business. The negative written premium within the non-standard
auto line reflects policies canceled mid-term.

Other

This line of business is primarily comprised of Atlas’ surety business. Our surety program primarily consists of U.S.
Customs bonds. We engage a former affiliate, Avalon Risk Management, to help coordinate marketing, customer
service and claim handling for the surety bonds written. This program is 100% reinsured to an unrelated third party.
Revenues

We derive our revenues primarily from premiums from our insurance policies and income from our investment
portfolio. Our underwriting approach is to price our products to generate consistent underwriting profit for the
insurance companies we own. As with all P&C insurance companies, the impact of price changes is reflected in our
financial results over time. Price changes on our in-force policies occur as they are renewed, which generally takes
twelve months for our entire book of business and up to an additional twelve months to earn a full year of premium at
the renewal rate.

We approach investment and capital management with the intention of supporting insurance operations by providing a
stable source of income to supplement underwriting income. The goals of our investment policy are to protect capital
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while optimizing investment income and capital appreciation and maintaining appropriate liquidity. We follow a
formal investment policy and the Board reviews the portfolio performance at least quarterly for compliance with the
established guidelines.

Expenses

Net claims incurred expenses are a function of the amount and type of insurance contracts we write and of the loss
experience of the underlying risks. We record net claims incurred based on an actuarial analysis of the estimated
losses we expect to be reported on contracts written. We seek to establish case reserves at the maximum probable
exposure based on our historical claims experience. Our ability to estimate net claims incurred accurately at the time
of pricing our contracts is a critical factor
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in determining our profitability. The amount reported under net claims incurred in any period includes payments in the
period net of the change in the value of the reserves for net claims incurred between the beginning and the end of the
period.

Commissions and other underwriting expenses consist principally of brokerage and agent commissions and to a lesser
extent premium taxes. The brokerage and agent commissions are reduced by ceding commissions received from
assuming reinsurers that represent a percentage of the premiums on insurance policies and reinsurance contracts
written and vary depending upon the amount and types of contracts written.

Other operating and general expenses consist primarily of personnel expenses (including salaries, benefits and certain
costs associated with awards under our equity compensation plans, such as stock compensation expense) and other
general operating expenses. Our personnel expenses are primarily fixed in nature and do not vary with the amount of
premiums written.

In this discussion and analysis, the term “common share” refers to the summation of restricted voting shares and
ordinary shares when used to describe loss or book value per common share.
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Consolidated Performance
Third Quarter 2012 Highlights (comparisons are to third quarter 2011 unless otherwise noted):
.Gross premium written increased by 113.7%, which included an increase of 313.4% in our core commercial auto
business, with a significant portion from our excess taxi program without which growth would have been 80.9%.
We actively distributed our core products in 31 states during the three month period ended September 30, 2012.
The combined ratio improved by 22.1% to 97.6%, which represents the first quarter under 100% since our inception.
Underwriting results improved by $2.0 million and we returned to underwriting profitability.
Net income for the three month period ended September 30, 2012 was $1.7 million.
Basic and diluted earnings per ordinary common share was $0.24, net of accounting treatment for preferred shares.
Book value per diluted common share on September 30, 2012 was $6.46, compared to $6.16 at June 30, 2012.
The following financial data is derived from Atlas’ unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for the three
and nine month periods ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011.
Selected Financial Information (in ‘000s)
Three Month Periods Ended Nine Month Periods Ended
September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,

2012 2011 2012 2011
Gross premium written $23,353 $10,928 $44.349 $32.951
Net premium earned 10,934 8,797 26,795 26,668
Losses on claims 7,165 6,984 18,477 20,596
Acquisition costs 1,813 1,720 4,582 5,343
Other underwriting expenses 1,692 1,822 4,959 5,642
Net underwriting income/(loss) 264 (1,729 ) (1,222 ) (4,913 )
Net investment and other income 1,393 2,795 3,144 5,468
Net income before tax 1,657 1,066 1,922 555
Income tax expense — — — —
Net income $1,657 $1,066 $1,922 $555
Net income/(loss) attributable to common 1.455 364 1316 (51 )
shareholders
Key Financial Ratios:
Loss ratio 65.5 %79.4 % 69.0 %77.2 %
Acquisition cost ratio 16.6 % 19.6 % 17.1 %20.0 %
Other underwriting expense ratio 15.5 %20.7 % 18.5 %21.2 %
Combined ratio 97.6 %119.7 % 104.6 %118.4 %
Return on equity (annualized) 11.4 %7.2 % 4.4 %1.2 %
Return on common equity (annualized) 15.0 % 8.6 % 4.5 9% (0.2 )%
E.arnings/(loss) per common share, basic and $0.24 $0.14 $021 $(0.01 )
diluted
Book value per common share, basic and diluted  $6.46 $6.56 $6.46 $6.56
Third Quarter 2012

Atlas’ combined ratio for the three month period ended September 30, 2012 was 97.6%, compared to 119.7% for the
three month period ended September 30, 2011 and 111.5% for the three month period ended June 30, 2012.

As planned, core commercial automobile lines continue to be the most significant component of Atlas’ gross premium
written as a result of the strategic focus on these core lines of business coupled with positive response from new and
existing agents. Gross premium written related to these core commercial lines increased by 313.4% for the three
month period ended September 30, 2012 as compared to the three month period ended September 30, 2011. As a
result, the overall loss ratio for the three month period ended September 30, 2012 improved to 65.5% compared to
79.4% in the three month period ended September 30, 2011 and 71.6% for the three month period ended June 30,
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2012.

Net investment and other income generated $1.4 million of income for the three month period ended September 30,
2012, of which $779,000 are realized gains. This resulted in a 4.6% annualized yield for the three month period ended
September 30, 2012, compared to $2.0 million of realized gains and a 7.4% annualized yield for the three month
period ended September 30, 2011.

Overall, Atlas generated net income of $1.7 million for the three month period ended September 30, 2012. After
taking the impact of the liquidation preference of the preferred shares into consideration, basic and diluted earnings
per common share in the three month period ended September 30, 2012 was $0.24. This compares to net income of
$1.1 million or earnings of $0.14
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per diluted common share in the three month period ended September 30, 2011 and income of $130,000 or a loss per
share of $0.01 per diluted common share in the three month period ended June 30, 2012.

Year to Date September 30, 2012

Atlas’ combined ratio for the nine month period ended September 30, 2012 was 104.6%, compared to 118.4% for the
nine month period ended September 30, 2011. This improvement in the combined ratio was mostly attributable to the
loss ratio reduction, from 77.2% to 69.0%, as a result of the exiting of the non-standard automobile lines. Our
commercial automobile lines of business grew 183.0% during the nine month period ended September 30, 2012
versus the nine month period ended September 30, 2011.

Investment performance and other income generated $3.1 million of income for the nine month period ended
September 30, 2012, of which $1.1 million are realized gains. This resulted in a 3.2% annualized yield for the nine
month period ended September 30, 2012, compared to 4.7% in the nine month period ended September 30, 2011 when
we realized $2.8 million in gains. Cash and invested assets were $121.7 million as of the period ended September 30,
2012 and were $6.2 million lower than December 31, 2011, resulting primarily from the payment of claim settlements.
This reduction in cash and invested assets is in line with expectations.

Overall, Atlas generated net income of $1.9 million for the nine month period ended September 30, 2012. After taking
the impact of the liquidation preference of the preferred shares into consideration, basic and diluted earnings per
common share in the nine month period ended September 30, 2012 was $0.21. This compares to net income of
$555,000 or a loss of $0.01 per diluted common share in the nine month period ended September 30, 2011.

Book value per diluted common share as of the period ended September 30, 2012 was $6.46, compared to $6.56 as of
the period ended September 30, 2011 and $6.16 as at the three month period ended June 30, 2012.

Application of Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to adopt accounting
policies and make estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements.
The most critical estimates include those used in determining:

Fair value and impairment of financial assets;

Deferred policy acquisition costs recoverability;

Reserve for property-liability insurance claims and claims expense estimation; and

Deferred tax asset valuation.

In making these determinations, management makes subjective and complex judgments that frequently require
estimates about matters that are inherently uncertain. Many of these policies, estimates and related judgments are
common in the insurance and financial services industries; others are specific to our businesses and operations. It is
reasonably likely that changes in these items could occur from period to period and result in a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements.

A brief summary of each of these critical accounting estimates follows. For a more detailed discussion of the effect of
these estimates on our consolidated financial statements, and the judgments and assumptions related to these
estimates, see the referenced sections of this document. For a complete summary of our significant accounting
policies, see the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Fair values of financial instruments - Atlas has used the following methods and assumptions in estimating its fair
value disclosures:

Fair values for bonds and equity securities are based on quoted market prices, when available. If quoted market prices
are not available, fair values are based on quoted market prices of comparable instruments or values obtained from
independent pricing services through a bank trustee.

Atlas’ fixed income portfolio is managed by Asset Allocation Management, an SEC registered investment advisor
specializing in the management of insurance company portfolios. Management works directly with AAM to ensure
that Atlas benefits from their expertise and also evaluates investments as well as specific positions independently
using internal resources. AAM has a team of credit analysts for all investment grade fixed income sectors. The
investment process begins with an independent analyst review of each security’s credit worthiness using both
quantitative tools and qualitative review. At the issuer level, this includes reviews of past financial data, trends in
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financial stability, projections for the future, reliability of the management team in place and market data (credit
spread, equity prices, trends in this data for the issuer and the issuer’s industry). Reviews also consider industry trends
and the macro-economic environment. This analysis is continuous, integrating new information as it becomes
available. In short, Atlas does not rely on rating agency ratings to make investment decisions, but instead with the
support of its independent investment advisors, does independent fundamental credit analysis to find the best
securities possible. AAM has found that over time this process creates an ability to sell securities prior to rating
agency downgrades or to
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buy securities before upgrades. As of the period ended September 30, 2012, this process did not generate any
significant difference in the rating assessment between Atlas’ review and the rating agencies.

Atlas employs specific control processes to determine the reasonableness of the fair value of its financial assets. These
processes are designed to supplement those performed by AAM to ensure that the values received from them are
accurately recorded and that the data inputs and the valuation techniques utilized are appropriate, consistently applied,
and that the assumptions are reasonable and consistent with the objective of determining fair value. For example, on a
continuing basis, Atlas assesses the reasonableness of individual security values which have stale prices or whose
changes exceed certain thresholds as compared to previous values received from AAM or to expected prices. The
portfolio is reviewed routinely for transaction volumes, new issuances and any changes in spreads, as well as the
overall movement of interest rates along the yield curve to determine if sufficient activity and liquidity exists to
provide a credible source for market valuations. When fair value determinations are expected to be more variable, they
are validated through reviews by members of management or the Board of Directors who have relevant expertise and
who are independent of those charged with executing investment transactions.

Impairment of financial assets - Atlas assesses, on a quarterly basis, whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. An investment is considered impaired when the fair value of
the investment is less than its cost or amortized cost. When an investment is impaired, the company must make a
determination as to whether the impairment is other-than-temporary.

Under U.S. GAAP, with respect to an investment in an impaired debt security, other-than-temporary impairment
(OTTI) occurs if (a) there is intent to sell the debt security, (b) it is more likely than not that the company will be
required to sell the debt security before its anticipated recovery, or (c) it is probable that all amounts due will be
unable to be collected such that the entire cost basis of the security will not be recovered. If Atlas intends to sell the
debt security, or will more likely than not be required to sell the debt security before the anticipated recovery, a loss in
the entire amount of the impairment is reflected in net realized gains (losses) on investments in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income. If Atlas determines that it is probable it will be unable to collect all amounts and
Atlas has no intent to sell the debt security, a credit loss is recognized in net realized gains (losses) on investments in
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income to the extent that the present value of expected cash flows is
less than the amortized cost basis; any difference between fair value and the new amortized cost basis (net of the credit
loss) is reflected in other comprehensive income (losses), net of applicable income taxes.

Deferred policy acquisition costs - Atlas defers brokers’ commissions, premium taxes and other underwriting and
marketing costs directly relating to the successful acquisition of premiums written to the extent they are considered
recoverable. These costs are then expensed as the related premiums are earned. The method followed in determining
the deferred policy acquisition costs limits the deferral to its realizable value by giving consideration to estimated
future claims and expenses to be incurred as premiums are earned. Changes in estimates, if any, are recorded in the
accounting period in which they are determined. Anticipated investment income is included in determining the
realizable value of the deferred policy acquisition costs. Atlas’ deferred policy acquisition costs are reported net of
deferred ceding commissions.

Valuation of deferred tax assets - Deferred taxes are recognized using the asset and liability method of accounting.
Under this method, the future tax consequences attributable to temporary differences in the tax basis of assets,
liabilities and items recognized directly in equity and the financial reporting basis of such items are recognized in the
financial statements by recording deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax assets.

Deferred tax assets related to the carry-forward of unused tax losses and credits and those arising from temporary
differences are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against
which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to
taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on
future tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the date of
enactment or substantive enactment.

In assessing the need for a valuation allowance, Atlas considers both positive and negative evidence related to the
likelihood of realization of the deferred tax assets. If, based on the weight of available evidence, it is more likely than
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not the deferred tax assets will not be realized or if it is deemed premature to conclude that these assets will be
realized in the near future, a valuation allowance is recorded.

Claims liabilities - The provision for unpaid claims represents the estimated liabilities for reported claims, plus those
incurred but not yet reported and the related estimated loss adjustment expenses. Unpaid claims expenses are
determined using case-basis evaluations and statistical analyses, including insurance industry loss data, and represent
estimates of the ultimate cost of all claims incurred. Although considerable variability is inherent in such estimates,
management believes that the liability for unpaid claims is adequate. The estimates are continually reviewed and
adjusted as necessary; such adjustments are included in current operations and are accounted for as changes in
estimates.
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Operating Results

Gross Premium Written

The following table summarizes gross premium written by line of business.
Gross Premium Written by Line of Business (in ‘000s)

Three Month Periods Ended Nine Month Periods Ended

September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,

2012 2011 % Change 15 2011 % Change
Commercial $22,119 $5,350 313.4 % $41,045 $14,504 183.0 %
automobile
Non-standard
automobile (31 )4,342 (100.7 )% (540 )14,012 (103.9 )%
Other 1,265 1,236 2.3 % 3,843 4,435 (13.3 )%
Total $23,353 $10,928 113.7 % $44,348 $32.951 34.6 %
Third Quarter 2012

For the three month period ended September 30, 2012, gross premium written was $23.4 million compared to $10.9
million in the three month period ended September 30, 2011, and $9.2 million in the three month period ended June
30, 2012, representing a 113.7% increase and 152.7% increase, respectively. The increase relative to the three month
period ended September 30, 2011 is due primarily to the substantial growth of the core commercial auto business,
which offset the exit of the non-standard auto line of business. In the three month period ended September 30, 2012,
we implemented a new business arrangement in New York to provide excess coverage above the levels of risk
retained by the insured. Total premium related to this program was $12.4 million in the three month period ended
September 30, 2012 and is included in the commercial automobile line of business. Below we will refer to the
arrangement as the “excess taxi program” where it is relevant to explain certain variances. The increase relative to the
three month period ended June 30, 2012 is primarily the result of the excess taxi program.

In the three month period ended September 30, 2012, gross premium written from commercial automobile was $22.1
million, representing a 313.4% increase relative to the three month period ended September 30, 2011 and a 169.5%
increase compared to the three month period ended June 30, 2012. This substantial increase is primarily the result of
the excess taxi program but also the planned expansion of the commercial auto business. Removing the impact of the
excess taxi program, our traditional commercial automobile premium written was $9.7 million, an increase of 80.9%
versus the three month period ended September 30, 2011 and 17.9% relative to the three month period ended June 30,
2012. The cessation of non-standard auto written premium allowed Atlas to focus its resources on its core line of
business. As a percentage of the insurance subsidiaries’ overall book of business, commercial auto gross premium
written represented 94.7% of gross premium written in the three month period ended September 30, 2012 compared to
49.0% during the three month period ended September 30, 2011 and 88.8% in the three month period ended June 30,
2012.

Commercial automobile insurance has outperformed the overall P&C industry in each of the past ten years based on
data compiled by A.M. Best. Each of the specialty business lines on which Atlas’ strategy is focused is a subset of this
industry segment.

Year to Date September 30, 2012

For the nine month period ended September 30, 2012, gross premium written was $44.3 million compared to $33.0
million in the nine month period ended September 30, 2011, representing a 34.6% increase. This increase was
attributable to significant gains in commercial automobile premium. Our exit from the non-standard auto line of
business is having a lesser impact on total premium written as the year goes forward.

In the nine month period ended September 30, 2012, gross premium written from commercial automobile was $41.0
million, representing a 183.0% increase relative to the nine month period ended September 30, 2011. As a percentage
of the insurance subsidiaries’ overall book of business, commercial auto gross premium written represented 92.6% of
gross premium written in the nine month period ended September 30, 2012 compared to 44.0% during the nine month
period ended September 30, 2011.
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Geographic Concentration
Gross Premium Written by State (in ‘000s)

Three Month Periods Ended Nine Month Periods Ended

September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,

2012 2011 2012 2011
New York $12,991 55,6 % $323 3.0 % $15324 346 % $1,487 4.5 %
Louisiana 2,436 104 % 1,388 127 % 2,739 6.2 % 1,391 4.2 %
Michigan 1,561 6.7 % 930 8.5 % 5,285 11.9 % 2,648 8.0 %
Illinois 1,538 6.6 % 5,303 485 % 8,551 193 % 20,618 626 %
Minnesota 566 2.4 % 663 6.1 % 2,160 4.9 % 1,745 53 %
Virginia 482 2.1 % 23 0.2 % 1,143 2.6 % 7 — %
Texas 308 1.3 % 95 0.9 % 1,164 2.6 % 435 1.3 %
Indiana 253 1.1 % 710 6.5 % 368 0.8 % 2,330 7.1 %
Georgia 208 0.9 % — — % 811 1.8 % — — %
Other 3,010 129 % 1,493 13.6 % 6,803 153 % 2,290 7.0 %
Total $23,353 100.0 % $10,928 100.0 % $44,348 100.0 % $32,951 100.0 %

Third Quarter 2012

As illustrated by the data in Table 3 above, 55.6% of Atlas’ gross premium written for the three month period ended
September 30, 2012 came from New York and 72.7% came from the three states currently producing the most
premium volume (New York, Louisiana and Michigan), as compared to 69.7% in the three month period ended
September 30, 2011 (Illinois, Michigan and Louisiana) and 47.8% in the three month period ended June 30, 2012
(Illinois, Minnesota and Michigan). This is the first quarter where Atlas’ largest top three states by premium volume
did not include Illinois, further highlighting the results of its commitment to diversifying geographically by expanding
in new areas of the country, and leveraging experience, historical data and research. Our increase in New York is
primarily due to the excess taxi program. The decline in Illinois is primarily attributable to Atlas’ exit from
non-standard insurance lines as well as re-allocation of resources to pursuits in new markets.

Though we built an expanded presence in New York, we do not believe there was material exposure to our business
due to Hurricane Sandy.

Year to Date September 30, 2012

Atlas saw similar geographic diversification in the nine month period ended September 30, 2012 compared to the nine
month period ended September 30, 2011. 65.8% of our premium volume came from the top three states (Michigan,
[linois and New York) in 2012, compared to 77.7% in 2011 (Illinois, Michigan and Indiana).

The decline of written premiums for the nine month period ended September 30, 2012 versus the nine month period
ended September 30, 2011 in Illinois and Indiana is primarily attributable to Atlas’ exiting the non-standard automobile
insurance lines as well as re-allocating resources to pursuits in new markets. The majority of the 2011 non-standard
automobile written premiums came from those two states. This was mostly offset by gains in commercial auto
premiums in other states, both in established markets such as Michigan and New York and new states.

Ceded Premium Written

Ceded premium written is equal to premium ceded under the terms of Atlas’ in-force reinsurance treaties. Ceded
premium written increased 38.6% to $2.0 million for the three month period ended September 30, 2012 compared
with $1.4 million for the three month period ended September 30, 2011, and increased 37.7% from $1.4 million for
the three month period ended June 30, 2012. This change is the result of the business mix within our total premium
base.

In the nine month period ended September 30, 2012, ceded premium written increased 6.5% to $4.9 million from $4.6
million for the nine month period ended September 30, 2011.

Net Premium Written

Net premium written is equal to gross premium written less the ceded premium written under the terms of Atlas’
in-force reinsurance treaties. Net premium written increased 124.9% to $21.4 million for the three month period ended
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September 30, 2012 compared with $9.5 million for the three month period ended September 30, 2011 and increased
173.7% versus the three month period ended June 30, 2012. These changes are attributed to the combined effects of
the issues cited in the “Gross Premium Written” and “Ceded Premium Written” sections above.

The success of our focus on commercial auto insurance in 2012 is more pronounced when viewed in terms of net
premium written. As a percentage of the total net premium written, commercial auto represented 100.1% for the three
month period ended September 30, 2012 and 101.5% for the three month period ended June 30, 2012, versus only
53.3% in the three month
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period ended September 30, 2011. Premium credits in the non-standard personal lines caused the percentage of core
commercial auto premium to exceed 100% of the total net written premium for each of the last two three month
periods.

Similarly, in the nine month period ended September 30, 2012, commercial auto insurance comprised 101.0% of the
total net premium written versus just 49.5% in the nine month period ended September 30, 2011. As indicated above,
premium credits in the non-standard personal lines caused the percentage of core commercial auto premium to exceed
100% of the total net written premium for the nine month period ended September 30, 2012.

Net Premium Earned

Premiums are earned ratably over the term of the underlying policy. Net premium earned was $10.9 million in the
three month period ended September 30, 2012, a 24.3% increase compared with $8.8 million in the three month
period ended September 30, 2011 and a 44.8% increase versus the three month period ended June 30, 2012.

In the nine month period ended September 30, 2012, net premium earned was $26.8 million, a 0.5% increase
compared to $26.7 million for the nine month period ended September 30, 2011.

The increase in net premiums earned is attributable to the excess taxi program and strong growth in commercial auto
lines. Net earned premiums on our core lines were $10.5 million in the three month period ended September 30, 2012,
a 161.8% increase compared with $4,013 in the three month period ended September 30, 2011 and a 68.8% increase
versus the three month period ended June 30, 2012. Similarly, net earned premiums on our core lines for the nine
month period ended September 30, 2012 were $21.9 million, a 91.7% increase compared to the nine month period
ended September 30, 2011.

Claims Incurred

The loss ratio relating to the claims incurred in the three month period ended September 30, 2012 was 65.5%
compared to 79.4% in the three month period ended September 30, 2011 and 71.6% for the three month period ended
June 30, 2012.

For the nine month period ended September 30, 2012, the loss ratio was 69.0%, compared to 77.2% for the nine
month period ended September 30, 2011.

Loss ratios improved in the three month period ended September 30, 2012 relative to prior periods. This is primarily
attributable to the increased composition of commercial auto as a percentage of the total written premium, which has
historically had a better overall underwriting result. Further, the excess taxi program also contributed significantly to
favorable loss results in the three month period ended September 30, 2012. We believe that our extensive experience
and expertise with respect to underwriting and claims management in all our commercial lines will allow us to
continue this decreasing trend since we expect 100% of net earned premium to be related to core lines of business in
2013. The company is committed to retain this claim handling expertise as a core competency as the volume of
business increases.

Acquisition Costs

Acquisition costs represent commissions and taxes incurred on net premium earned. Acquisition costs were $1.8
million in the three month period ended September 30, 2012 or 16.6% of net premium earned, as compared to 19.6%
in the three month period ended September 30, 2011 and 18.5% in the three month period ended June 30, 2012.

For the nine month period ended September 30, 2012, the ratio was 17.1% as compared to 20.0% in the nine month
period ended September 30, 2011.

The favorable trend in acquisition costs is primarily due to the shift away from non-standard automobile insurance,
which carries higher commission rates.

Other Underwriting Expenses

The other underwriting expense ratio was 15.5% in the three month period ended September 30, 2012 compared to
20.7% in the three month period ended September 30, 2011 and 21.4% in the three month period ended June 30, 2012.
This decline is attributable to a significant increase in premium earned in the three month period ended September 30,
2012 as well as a reduction in employee head count since 2011.

For the nine month period ended September 30, 2012, this ratio was 18.5%, as compared to 21.2% for the nine month
period ended September 30, 2011. However, 2011 includes $627,000 in non-recurring expenses (detailed below)
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which unfavorably impacted the year-to-date ratio by 2.4%. After adjustment for these non-recurring expenses, other
underwriting expenses remained static year over year.
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First Quarter 2011 Non-recurring Expenses (in ‘000s)

. Non-recurrin
Expense Item Description &

Expense
Licenses, taxes and assessments Amounts paid in Q1 2011 $198
Professional fees Legal and Accounting fees 121
Salary and benefits QI staff reduction impacts 174
EDP expense Degommissioning software expenses previously 34
capitalized
Occupancy/Miscellaneous expense Straight-line lease adjustment 50
Total non-recurring expenses $627
Net Investment Income
Investment Results (in ‘000s)
Three Month Periods Ended Nine Month Periods Ended
September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Average securities at cost(D $120,734 $144,028 $123,245 $153,753
Interest income after expenses 613 719 1,878 2,651
Percent.earned on average investments 0 % 2.0 % 2.0 % 23 %
(annualized)
Net realized gains $779 $1,962 $1,098 $2,813
Total investment income 1,392 2,681 2,976 5,464
Total realized yield (annualized) 4.6 % 7.4 % 3.2 % 4.7 %

(1) Includes cash as well as the investment in Oak Street (see note 5 to condensed consolidated financial statements).
Investment income (excluding net realized gains) decreased by 14.7% to $613,000 in the three month period ended
September 30, 2012, compared to $719,000 in the three month period ended September 30, 2011, and decreased by
6.8% from $657,000 for the three month period ended June 30, 2012. These amounts are primarily comprised of
interest income. This is attributable to the timing of asset disposals and the mix of securities on hand. The annualized
realized yield on invested assets (including net realized gains of $779,000) in the three month period ended September
30, 2012 decreased to 4.6% as compared with 7.4% in the three month period ended September 30, 2011 and
increased compared to 3.2% for the three month period ended June 30, 2012. This is primarily due to the relative
absence of realized gains during the three month period ended June 30, 2012 versus those periods.

On a year-to-date basis, interest income decreased by 29.2% to $1.9 million from $2.7 million for the nine month
period ended September 30, 2011. This decrease correlates with a similar decline in the average securities held, which
is consistent with our expectations for claim payout patterns. The annualized realized yield on invested assets
(including realized gains) decreased to 3.2% from 4.7%, due primarily to a reduction in realized gains year over year.
Net Realized Investment Gains (Losses)

Net realized investment gains in the three month period ended September 30, 2012 were $779,000 compared to $2.0
million in the three month period ended September 30, 2011 and $291,000 during the three month period ended June
30, 2012. On a year-to-date basis, realized gains were $1.1 million in the nine month period ended September 30,
2011 compared to $2.8 million for the nine month period ended September 30, 2012. The difference is the result of
management’s decision to sell certain securities consistent with the company’s liquidity needs and expected duration of
claim payment triangles during favorable market conditions.

Miscellaneous Income (Loss)

Atlas recorded miscellaneous income in the three month period ended September 30, 2012 of $1,000 compared to
$113,000 for the three month period ended September 30, 2011 and $51,000 in the three month period ended June 30,
2012. Miscellaneous income prior to June 30, 2012 was primarily comprised of rental income from our corporate
headquarters in Elk Grove Village, Illinois, which has subsequently been sold.

Combined Ratio
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Underwriting profitability, as opposed to overall profitability or net earnings, is measured by the combined ratio. The
combined ratio is the sum of the loss and loss adjustment expense, or LAE, ratio, the acquisition cost ratio and the
underwriting expense ratio. Atlas’ combined ratio for the three month periods ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 are
summarized in the table below. The underwriting loss is attributable to the factors described in the “Claims Incurred”,
”Acquisition Costs”, and “Other Underwriting Expenses” sections above. This is the first quarter that we have achieved a
combined ratio below 100% since our inception in December 2010.
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Combined Ratios (in ‘000s)

Three Month Periods Ended September 30, 2012 September 30, 2011 June 30, 2012

Net premium earned $10,934 $8,797 $7,552

Underwriting expenses(!) 10,670 10,526 8,420

Combined ratio 97.6 % 119.7 % 111.5 %
Nine Month Periods Ended September 30, 2012 September 30, 2011

Net premium earned $26,795 $26,669

Underwriting expenses(!) 28,018 31,582

Combined ratio 104.6 % 118.4 %

(1) Underwriting expenses are the combination of claims incurred, acquisition costs, and other underwriting expenses.
Income/(Loss) before Income Taxes

Atlas generated pre-tax income of $1.7 million in the three month period ended September 30, 2012, compared to
pre-tax income of $1.1 million in the three month period ended September 30, 2011 and pre-tax income of $130,000
in the three month period ended June 30, 2012.

In the nine month period ended September 30, 2012, Atlas generated pre-tax income of $1.9 million compared to
income of $555,000 in the nine month period ended September 30, 2011.

Income Tax Benefit

Atlas recognized no tax expense in the three month period ended September 30, 2012, nor during the three month
period ended September 30, 2011 or the three month period ended June 30, 2012. The following table reconciles the
tax benefit from applying the statutory U.S. Federal tax rate of 34.0% to the actual percentage of pre-tax income
provided for the three month periods ended September 30, 2012 and 2011.

Tax Rate Reconciliation (in ‘000s)

Three Month Periods Ended Nine Month Periods Ended

September 30, 2012 September 30, 2011

September 30, 2012

September 30, 2011

Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount %
Expectedincome tax —¢503 340 g §360 340 % $653 340 % $(174 ) 340 %
benefit at statutory rate
Valuation allowance (566 ) (342 )% (384 ) (56.0 )% (658 ) (342 )% 131 (256 )%
Nondeductible expenses 5 0.3 % 22 220 % 10 0.5 % 43 (8.4 )%
Other 2 ) (0.1 )% — % (5 ) (0.3 )% — %
Total $— — % $— — % $— — % $— — %

Upon the transaction forming Atlas on December 31, 2010, a yearly limitation as required by U.S. tax law Section 382
that applies to changes in ownership on the future utilization of Atlas’ net operating loss carry-forwards was calculated.
The insurance subsidiaries’ prior parent retained those tax assets previously attributed to the insurance subsidiaries
which could not be utilized by Atlas as a result of this limitation. As a result, Atlas’ ability to recognize future tax
benefits associated with a portion of its deferred tax assets generated during prior years and the current year have been
permanently limited to the amount determined under U.S. tax law Section 382. The result is a maximum expected net
deferred tax asset, which Atlas has available after the merger and believed more-likely-than-not to be utilized in the
future, after consideration of valuation allowance.

Net Income/(Loss) and Earnings/(Loss) per Common Share

Atlas earned $1.7 million during the three month period ended September 30, 2012 versus income of $1.1 million
during the three month period ended September 30, 2011 and income of $130,000 for the three month period ended
June 30, 2012. After taking the impact of the liquidation preference of the preferred shares into consideration, the
basic and diluted earnings per common share in the three month period ended September 30, 2012 was $0.24 versus
earnings per common share of $0.14 in the three month period ended September 30, 2011 and a loss per common
share of $0.01 in the three month period ended June 30, 2012.

For the three month period ended September 30, 2012, there were 6,144,384 weighted average common shares
outstanding used to compute basic earnings per share and 6,149,301 used for diluted earnings per share. For the three
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month period ended September 30, 2011, there were 6,124,990 weighted average common shares outstanding used to
compute basic earnings per share and 6,138,496 shares for diluted earnings per common share. Finally, there were
6,144,385 common shares used to compute basic and diluted loss per common share for the three month period ended
June 30, 2012.
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Atlas earned $1.9 million during the nine month period ended September 30, 2012 compared to income of $555,000
during the nine month period ended September 30, 2011. The basic and diluted earnings per common share in the nine
month period ended September 30, 2012 was $0.21 compared to a loss of $0.01 in the nine month period ended
September 30, 2011.

Book Value per Common Share

Book value per common share was as follows.

(in ‘000s, except for shares and per share data) September 30, 2012 June 30, 2012 September 30, 2011
Shareholders' Equity $59,103 $57,031 $58,781

Preferred stock in equity 18,000 18,000 18,000
Accumulated dividends on preferred stock 1,416 1,212 606

Common equity 39,687 37,819 40,175

Common shares outstanding 6,144,385 6,144,385 6,125,629

Book value per common share outstanding ~ $6.46 $6.16 $6.56
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Financial Condition
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition

(in ‘000s, except for shares and per share data)

September 30,
2012
(unaudited)
Assets
Investments, available for sale
Fixed income securities, at fair value (Amortized cost $106,122 and $101,473) $109,555
Equity securities, at fair value (cost $0 and $994) —

Total Investments 109,555
Cash and cash equivalents 12,151
Accrued investment income 807
Accounts receivable and other assets (Net of allowance of $385 and $4,254) 24,811
Reinsurance recoverables, net 6,983
Prepaid reinsurance premiums 2,219
Deferred policy acquisition costs 4,501
Deferred tax asset, net 6,343
Software and office equipment, net 1,157
Assets held for sale 166
Investment in investees 1,250
Total Assets $169,943
Liabilities

Claims liabilities $73,574
Unearned premiums 28,325
Due to reinsurers and other insurers 4,658
Other liabilities and accrued expenses 4,283
Total Liabilities $110,840

Shareholders’ Equity

Preferred shares, par value per share $0.001, 100,000,000 shares authorized,

18,000,000 shares issued and outstanding at September 30, 2012 and December 31, $ 18,000
2011. Liquidation value $1.00 per share

Ordinary voting common shares, par value per share $0.003, 266,666,667 shares
authorized, 1,542,764 shares issued and outstanding at September 30, 2012 and 4
1,541,842 at December 31, 2011

Restricted voting common shares, par value per share $0.003, 33,333,334 shares

authorized, 4,601,621 shares issued and outstanding at September 30, 2012 and 14
December 31, 2011

Additional paid-in capital 152,739
Retained deficit (113,919
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax 2,265
Total Shareholders’ Equity 59,103
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $169,943

December 31,
2011

$103,491
1,141
104,632
23,249
586
9,579
8,044
2,214
3,020
6,775
440
13,634

$172,173

$91,643
15,691
5,701
2,884
$115919

$18,000

14

152,652
(115,841 )
1,425

56,254
$172,173
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Investments

Investments Overview and Strategy

Atlas aligns its securities portfolio to support the liabilities and operating cash needs of the insurance subsidiaries, to
preserve capital and to generate investment returns. Atlas invests predominantly in corporate and government bonds
with relatively short durations that correlate with the payout patterns of Atlas’ claims liabilities. A third party
investment management firm manages Atlas’ investment portfolio pursuant to the Company’s investment policies and
guidelines as approved by its Board of Directors. Atlas monitors the third party investment manager’s performance and
its compliance with both its mandate and Atlas’ investment policies and guidelines.
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Atlas’ investment guidelines stress the preservation of capital, market liquidity to support payment of liabilities and the
diversification of risk. With respect to fixed income securities, Atlas generally purchases securities with the
expectation of holding them to their maturities; however, the securities are available for sale if liquidity needs arise.
Portfolio Composition

Atlas held securities with a fair value of $109.6 million as of the period ended September 30, 2012, which was
comprised of fixed income securities. The securities held by the insurance subsidiaries must comply with applicable
regulations that prescribe the type, quality and concentration of securities. These regulations in the various
jurisdictions in which the insurance subsidiaries are domiciled permit investments in government, state, municipal and
corporate bonds, preferred and common equities, and other high quality investments, within specified limits and
subject to certain qualifications.

The following table summarizes the fair value of the securities portfolio, including cash and cash equivalents, as of the
dates indicated.

Fair Value of Securities Portfolio (in ‘000s)

Amortized Gross Gross
September 30, 2012 Unrealized Unrealized Fair Value
Cost .
Gains Losses
Fixed Income:
U.S. - Government $37,356 $1,099 $— $38,456
- Corporate 44,100 1,709 — 45,809
- Commercial mortgage backed 20,372 490 — 20,862
- Other asset backed 4,293 135 — 4,428
Total Fixed Income $106,121 $3,433 $— $109,555
Amortized Gross Gross
December 31, 2011 Unrealized Unrealized Fair Value
Cost .
Gains Losses
Fixed Income:
U.S. - Government $44.835 $911 $— $45,746
- Corporate 35,572 825 24 36,373
- Commercial mortgage backed 17,493 208 — 17,701
- Other asset backed 3,573 99 1 3,671
Total Fixed Income $101,473 $2,043 $25 $103,491
Equities 994 147 — 1,141
Total $102,467 $2,190 $25 $104,632

Liquidity and Cash Flow Risk

The following table summarizes the fair value by contractual maturities of the fixed income securities portfolio,
excluding cash and cash equivalents as of the dates indicated.

Fair Value of Fixed Income Securities by Contractual Maturity Date (in ‘000s)

As at: September 30, 2012 December 31, 2011
Amount % Amount %

Due in less than one year $18,085 16.5 % $29.407 284 %

Due in one through five years 21,803 19.9 % 217,317 26.4 %

Due after five through ten years 21,806 19.9 % 10,242 9.9 %

Due after ten years 47,861 43.7 % 36,525 35.3 %

Total $109,555 100.0 % $103,491 100.0 %

As of the period ended September 30, 2012, 36.4% of the fixed income securities, including treasury bills, bankers’
acceptances, government bonds and corporate bonds had contractual maturities of five years or less. Actual maturities
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may differ from contractual maturities because certain issuers have the right to call or prepay obligations with or
without call or prepayment penalties. Atlas holds cash and high grade short-term assets which, along with fixed
income security maturities, management believes are sufficient for the payment of claims on a timely basis. In the
event that additional cash is required to meet obligations to policyholders, Atlas believes that high quality securities
portfolio provides us with sufficient liquidity. With a weighted average duration of 3.5 years, changes in interest rates
will have a modest market value impact on the Atlas

53

93



Edgar Filing: Atlas Financial Holdings, Inc. - Form 424B4

portfolio relative to longer duration portfolios. Atlas can and typically does hold bonds to maturity by matching
duration with the anticipated liquidity needs.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that Atlas will incur losses due to adverse changes in interest rates, currency exchange rates or
equity prices. Having disposed of a majority of its asset-backed securities, its primary market risk exposure in the
fixed income securities portfolio is to changes in interest rates. Because Atlas’ securities portfolio is comprised of
primarily fixed income securities that are usually held to maturity, periodic changes in interest rate levels generally
impact its financial results to the extent that the securities in its available-for-sale portfolio are recorded at market
value. During periods of rising interest rates, the market value of the existing fixed income securities will generally
decrease and realized gains on fixed income securities will likely be reduced. The reverse is true during periods of
declining interest rates.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is defined as the risk of financial loss due to failure of the other party to a financial instrument to discharge
an obligation. Atlas is exposed to credit risk principally through its investments and balances receivable from
policyholders and reinsurers. It monitors concentration and credit quality risk through policies designed to limit and
monitor its exposure to individual issuers or related groups (with the exception of U.S. government bonds) as well as
through ongoing review of the credit ratings of issuers in the securities portfolio. Credit exposure to any one
individual policyholder is not material. The company’s policies, however, are distributed by agents who may manage
cash collection on its behalf pursuant to the terms of their agency agreement. Atlas has policies to evaluate the
financial condition of its reinsurers and monitors concentrations of credit risk arising from similar geographic regions,
activities, or economic characteristics of the reinsurers to minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurers’
insolvency.

The following table summarizes the composition of the fair value of the fixed income securities portfolio, excluding
cash and cash equivalents, as of the dates indicated, by ratings assigned by Fitch, S&P or Moody’s Investors Service.
The fixed income securities portfolio consists of predominantly very high quality securities in corporate and
government bonds, with 91.3% rated ‘A’ or better as of the period ended September 30, 2012 compared to 95.3% as of
the year ended December 31, 2011.

Credit Ratings of Fixed Income Securities Portfolio (in ‘000s)

As at: September 30, 2012 December 31, 2011
Amount % of Total Amount % of Total
AAA/Aaa $58,613 53.6 % $54,717 529 %
AA/Aa 14,775 13.5 % 21,567 20.8 %
A/A 26,477 24.2 % 22,380 21.6 %
BBB/Baa 9,690 8.8 % 4,827 4.7 %
Total Securities $109,555 100.0 % $103,491 100.0 %

Other-than-temporary Impairment

Atlas recognizes losses on securities for which a decline in market value was deemed to be other-than-temporary.
Management performs a quarterly analysis of the securities holdings to determine if declines in market value are
other-than-temporary. Atlas did not recognize charges for securities impairments that were considered
other-than-temporary for the three month period ended September 30, 2012, the three month period ended September
30, 2011 or the three month period ended June 30, 2012.

The length of time securities may be held in an unrealized loss position may vary based on the opinion of the
appointed investment manager and their respective analyses related to valuation and to the various credit risks that
may prevent us from recapturing the principal investment. In cases of securities with a maturity date where the
appointed investment manager determines that there is little or no risk of default prior to the maturity of a holding,
Atlas would elect to hold the security in an unrealized loss position until the price recovers or the security matures. In
situations where facts emerge that might increase the risk associated with recapture of principal, Atlas may elect to
sell securities at a loss. Atlas had no material gross unrealized losses in its portfolio as of the period ended September
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30, 2012, as of the period ended September 30, 2011, or as of the year ended December 31, 2011.

Estimated Impact of Changes in Interest Rates and Securities Prices

For Atlas’ available-for-sale fixed income securities held as of the period ended September 30, 2012, a 100 basis point
increase in interest rates on such held fixed income securities would have increased net investment income and
income before taxes by approximately $127,000. Conversely, a 100 basis point decrease in interest rates on such held
fixed income securities would decrease net investment income and income before taxes by $127,000.

A 100 basis point increase would have also decreased other comprehensive income by approximately $4,106 due to
“mark-to-market” requirements; however, holding investments to maturity would mitigate this impact. Conversely, a
100 basis point
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decrease would increase other comprehensive income by the same amount. The impacts described here are
approximately linear to the change in interest rates.

Due from Reinsurers and Other Insurers

Atlas purchases reinsurance from third parties in order to reduce its liability on individual risks and its exposure to
large losses. Reinsurance is coverage purchased by one insurance company from another for part of the risk originally
underwritten by the purchasing (ceding) insurance company. The practice of ceding insurance to reinsurers allows an
insurance company to reduce its exposure to loss by size, geographic area, and type of risk or on a particular policy.
An effect of ceding insurance is to permit an insurance company to write additional insurance for risks in greater
number or in larger amounts than it would otherwise insure independently, based on its statutory capital, risk tolerance
and other factors.

Atlas generally purchases reinsurance to limit net exposure to a maximum amount on any one loss of $500,000 with
respect to commercial automobile liability claims. Atlas also purchases reinsurance to protect against awards in excess
of its policy limits. Atlas continually evaluates and adjusts its reinsurance needs based on business volume, mix, and
supply levels.

Reinsurance ceded does not relieve Atlas of its ultimate liability to its insured in the event that any reinsurer is unable
to meet its obligations under its reinsurance contracts. Therefore, Atlas enters into reinsurance contracts with only
those reinsurers deemed to have sufficient financial resources to provide the requested coverage. Reinsurance treaties
are generally subject to cancellation by the reinsurers or Atlas on the anniversary date and are subject to renegotiation
annually. Atlas regularly evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers and monitors the concentrations of credit
risk to minimize its exposure to significant losses as a result of the insolvency of a reinsurer. Atlas believes that the
amounts it has recorded as reinsurance recoverables are appropriately established. Estimating amounts of reinsurance
recoverables, however, is subject to various uncertainties and the amounts ultimately recoverable may vary from
amounts currently recorded. Atlas had $7.0 million recoverable from third party reinsurers (exclusive of amounts
prepaid) and other insurers as of the period ended September 30, 2012 as compared to $8.0 million as of the year
ended December 31, 2011.

Estimating amounts of reinsurance recoverables is also impacted by the uncertainties involved in the establishment of
provisions for unpaid claims. As underlying reserves potentially develop, the amounts ultimately recoverable may
vary from amounts currently recorded. Atlas’ reinsurance recoverables are generally unsecured. Atlas regularly
evaluates its reinsurers, and the respective amounts recoverable, and an allowance for uncollectible reinsurance is
provided for, if needed.

Atlas’ largest reinsurance partners are Great American Insurance Company (“Great American”), a subsidiary of
American Financial Group, Inc. and Gen Re, a subsidiary of Berkshire Hathaway, Inc. Great American has a financial
strength rating of “A+” from Standard & Poor’s, while Gen Re has a financial strength rating of “Aal” from Moody’s.
Gateway’s largest reinsurance partner is Maiden Re, which has an “A-" rating from A.M. Best.

Deferred Tax Asset

Components of Deferred Tax (in ‘000s)

September 30, December 31,

As of: 2012 2011

Deferred tax assets:

Unpaid claims and unearned premiums $3,471 $3,004

Loss carry-forwards 15,880 15,558

Bad debts 131 1,297

Other 1,456 1,338
Valuation allowance (11,703 )(12,361 )
Total gross deferred tax assets $9,235 $8,836
Deferred tax liabilities:

Investment securities $1,167 $740
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Deferred policy acquisition costs 1,530 1,027
Other 195 294
Total gross deferred tax liabilities 2,892 2,061
Net deferred tax assets $6,343 $6,775

Atlas established a valuation allowance of approximately $11.7 million and $12.4 million for its gross future deferred
tax assets as of the period ended September 30, 2012 and as of the year ended December 31, 2011, respectively.
Based on Atlas’ expectations of future taxable income, as well as the reversal of gross future deferred tax liabilities,
management believes it is more likely than not that Atlas will fully realize the net future tax assets, with the exception
of the aforementioned valuation allowance. Atlas has therefore established the valuation allowance as a result of the
potential inability
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to utilize a portion of its net operating losses in the U.S., which are subject to a yearly limitation. The uncertainty over
the company’s ability to utilize a portion of these losses over the short term has led to the recording of a valuation
allowance.

Our ability to utilize the NOLs is subject to the rules of Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. For more
information, see “Risk Factors - U.S. Tax Risks - Our use of losses may be subject to limitations and the tax liability of
our company may be increased.”

Atlas has the following total net operating loss carry-forwards as of the period ended September 30, 2012.

Net Operating Loss Carry-Forward by Expiry (in ‘000s)

Year of Occurrence Year of Expiration Amount
2001 2021 $14,750
2002 2022 4,317
2006 2026 7,825
2007 2027 5,131
2008 2028 1,949
2009 2029 1,949
2010 2030 1,949
2011 2031 7,762
2012 2032 1,074
Total $46,706
Assets Held for Sale

On May 22, 2012, Atlas closed the sale of the headquarters building to 150 Northwest Point, LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company. As of the year ended December 31, 2011, the property was recorded as a component of assets held
for sale on Atlas’ statement of financial position.

The total sales price of the property, which was paid in cash, amounted to $14.0 million, less closing costs and related
expenses of approximately $633,000. In connection with the sale, the Company also wrote down an accrual of
approximately $792,000 held for real estate taxes. Approximately $830,000 of the sales price was held in escrow for
real estate taxes. Atlas recognized a gain on the sale of this property of $213,000, which will be deferred and
recognized over the 5 year lease term. In the three month period ended September 30, 2012, Atlas recognized $5,000
as income.

There are two properties located in Alabama which are still for sale. These properties are listed for sale for amounts
greater than carried values. Both were assets of Southern United Fire Insurance Company, which was merged into
American Service in February 2010.

Claims Liabilities

The table below shows the amounts of total case reserves and incurred but not reported (“IBNR”) claims provision as of
the period ended September 30, 2012 and as of the year ended December 31, 2011. The provision for unpaid claims
decreased by 19.7% to $73.6 million as of the period ended September 30, 2012 compared to $91.6 million as of the
year ended December 31, 2011. During the three month period ended September 30, 2012, case reserves decreased by
11.2% compared to December 31, 2011, while IBNR reserves decreased by 39.6% generally due to the reporting of
claims related to prior accident years and case reserve changes, which are consistent with management’s expectations.
Provision for Unpaid Claims by Type - Gross (in ‘000s)

September 30, December 31, YTD%

Asat 2012 2011 Change

Case reserves $57,050 $64,276 112 )%
IBNR 16,524 27,367 (39.6 )%
Total $73,574 $91,643 (19.7 )%

Provision for Unpaid Claims by Line of Business - Gross (in ‘000s)
As at: September 30, December 31, YTD%
’ 2012 2011 Change
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$12,472
55,025
6,077
$73,574

$23,863
58,700
9,080
$91,643

47.7
(6.3

(33.1
(19.7

)%
)%
)%
)%
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Provision for Unpaid Claims by Line of Business - Net of Reinsurance Recoverables (in ‘000s)

September 30, December 31, YTD%
As at:

2012 2011 Change
Non-standard automobile $10,091 $21,157 (52.3 )%
Commercial automobile 52,752 56,328 (6.3 )%
Other 4,134 6,332 (34.7 )%
Total $66,977 $83,817 (20.1 )%

The changes in the provision for unpaid claims, net of amounts recoverable from reinsurers, for the three and nine
month periods ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011 were as follows.
Claims Liabilities (in ‘000s)
Three Month Periods Ended Nine Month Periods Ended
September 30,  September 30, September 30,  September 30,

2012 2011 2012 2011
Unpaid claims, beginning of period $77,350 $112,011 $91,643 $132,579
Less: reinsurance recoverable 8,153 1,968 7,825 6,477
Net beginning unpaid claims reserves 69,197 104,043 83,818 126,102
Incurred related to:
Current year 6,976 6,962 18,141 20,600
Prior years 190 17 337 4 )

7,166 6,979 18,478 20,596
Paid related to:
Current year 2,302 4,279 6,224 8,455
Prior years 7,082 14,660 29,093 46,160

9,384 18,939 35,317 54,615
Net unpaid claims, end of period $66,979 $92.083 $66,979 $92,083
Add: reinsurance recoverable 6,595 9,374 6,595 9,374
Unpaid claims, end of period $73,574 $101,457 $73,574 $101,457

The process of establishing the estimated provision for unpaid claims is complex and imprecise as it relies on the
judgment and opinions of a large number of individuals, on historical precedent and trends, on prevailing legal,
economic, social and regulatory trends and on expectations as to future developments. The process of determining the
provision necessarily involves risks that the actual results will deviate, perhaps substantially, from the best estimates
made.

The reduction of the provision for unpaid claims is consistent with the change in written premium in prior years.
However, because the establishment of reserves is an inherently uncertain process involving estimates, current
provisions may not be sufficient. Adjustments to reserves, both positive and negative, are reflected quarterly in the
statement of income as estimates are updated.

The financial statements are presented on a calendar year basis for all data. Claims payments and changes in reserves,
however, may be made on accidents that occurred in prior years, not on business that is currently insured. Calendar
year losses consist of payments and reserve changes that have been recorded in the financial statements during the
applicable reporting period, without regard to the period in which the accident occurred. Calendar year results do not
change after the end of the applicable reporting period, even as new claim information develops. Accident year losses
consist of payments and reserve changes that are assigned to the period in which the accident occurred. Accident year
results will change over time as the estimates of losses change due to payments and reserve changes for all accidents
that occurred during that period.
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The table below summarizes the changes over time in the provision for unpaid loss and loss adjustment expenses. The
first section of the table shows the provision for unpaid loss and loss adjustment expenses recorded at the balance
sheet date for each of the indicated years. The original provision for each year is presented on a gross basis as well as
net of estimated reinsurance recoverable on unpaid loss and loss adjustment expenses. The second section displays the
cumulative amount of payments made through the end of each subsequent year with respect to each original provision.
The third section presents the re-estimation over subsequent years of each year’s original net liability for unpaid loss
and loss adjustment expenses as more information becomes known and trends become more apparent. The final
section compares the latest re-estimation to the original estimate for each year presented in the table on both a gross
and net basis.
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The development of the provision for unpaid loss and loss adjustment expenses is shown by the difference between
the original estimates and the re-estimated liabilities at each subsequent year-end. The re-estimated liabilities at each
year-end are based on actual payments in full or partial settlement of claims plus re-estimates of the payments
required for claims still open or IBNR claims. Favorable development (redundancy) means that the original estimated
provision was higher than subsequently re-estimated. Unfavorable development (deficiency) means that the original
estimated provision was lower than subsequently re-estimated. The cumulative development represents the aggregate

change in the estimates over all prior years.

The data in this table is shown as of December 31, 2011, the last date on which it was fully compiled. It does not
reflect any changes to claims, reserves or assumptions which may have occurred since that date.
Provision for Unpaid Claims, Net of Recoveries from Reinsurers as of December 31, 2011 (in ‘000s)

2011 2010 2009 2008

2007

Gross reserves for unpaid claims and claims expenses

$91,643$132,579 $179,054 $173,652 $183,649 $191,171

Less: Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid claims and

claims expenses
7,825 6,477 5,196 103,612

107,837

Reserve for unpaid claims and claims expenses, net

83,818 126,102 173,858 70,040

Cumulative paid on originally established reserve as of:

75,812

2,812

8 ?ef’ryear$58,562 $76,835  $(38,449) $29.811
Two years later 125,455 13,573
Three years later 43,671

Four years later
Five years later
Six years later
Seven years later
Eight years later
Nine years later
Ten years later

Unpaid claims as of:

One yearg (0 230 $102,173  $114,284
later
Two years later 56,268 65,101
Three years later 35,500
Four years later

Five years later

Six years later

Seven years later

Eight years later

Nine years later

Ten years later

Re-estimated liability as of:

Oneyearg 57797 $179.008 $75.835
later

38,650
59,370

$46,338

75,258
43,336
21,859

$76,149

2006

111,911

79,260

$29,917

49,804
33,742
57,853
69,428

$50,772

31,322
46,116
25,534
11,061

$80,689

2005

$202,677

95,215

107,462

$30,637

52,182
66,306
60,877
75,935
81,347

$76,344

56,428
43,015
26,714
15,329
6,712

$106,981

2004

$195,437

90,596

104,841

$37,220

56,126
69,801
78,028
76,174
85,150
88,755

$62,895

46,081
34,082
26,833
14,797
9,359
4,339

$100,115

2003

2002

$189,262 $193,909

91,079

98,183

$41,426

66,428
77,919
85,576
89,396
88,820
93,142
95,401

$57,873

35,431
25,491
19,231
16,245
8,674
6,108
3,300

$99,299

94,510

99,399

$46,083

75,709
91,773
97,764
101,725
103,935
104,484
106,560
107,625

$61,668

33,838
20,460
14,710
12,300
10,780
5,523
4,105
2,539

$107,751

102

2001

$175,1

38,779

136,32

$51,26

84,175
104,42
114,62
118,34
120,45
121,99
123,24
123,96
124,70

$65,33

39,466
21,682
12,591
9,269
9,515
8,446
3,624
3,275
2,102

$116,5
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Two years later 181,723 78,674 78,070 81,126 108,610 102,207 101,859 109,547 123,64

Three years later 79,171 81,986 79,858 109,821 103,883 103,410 112,233 126,10
Four years later 81,229 83,387 87,591 104,861 104,807 112,474 127,21
Five years later 80,489 91,264 90,971 105,641 114,025 127,61
Six years later 88,059 94,509 97,494 114,715 129,97
Seven years later 93,094 99,250 110,007 130,43
Eight years later 98,701 110,665 126,86
Nine years later 110,164 127,24
Ten years later 126,80
As of December 31,
2011:
Cumulative
(redundancy)
deficiency

$1,690 $7,865 $9,131 $5,417 $1,229 $(19,403) $(11,747) $518 $10,765  $(9,51¢
Cumulative (redundancy) deficiency as a % of reserves originally established- net

1.3 %4.5 %13.0 %7.1 % 1.6 %-18.1 %-11.2 %0.5 % 10.8 %-1.0

Re-estimated liability- gross

$134,223 $187,715 $194,560 $196,966 $200,740 $212,901 $209,876 $211,744 $227,169 $235,0
Less: Re-established reinsurance recoverable

6,431 5,992 115,389 115,737 120,251 124,842 116,782 113,043 117,005 108,21
Re-estimated provision- net

127,792 181,723 79,171 81,229 80,489 88,059 93,094 98,701 110,164 126,80
Cumulative deficiency— gross

1,645 8,661 20,908 13,317 9,569 10,224 14,439 22,482 33,260 59,917
(1) Negative payment as of one year later results from the commutation of reinsured reserves
by Kingsway Re.
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Our claims reserving practices are designed to set reserves that in the aggregate are adequate to pay all claims at their
ultimate settlement value. Thus, our reserves are not discounted for inflation or other factors. Also, our reserves are
the same on both a U.S. GAAP and statutory basis of accounting.

Due to Reinsurers

The decrease in the amount due to reinsurers is consistent with the payout patterns of the underlying claims liabilities.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of September 30, 2012, Atlas has the following cash obligations related to its operating leases. The remainder of
2012 is negative due to rent abatement received in the lease of our headquarters building.

Operating Lease Commitments (in ‘000s)

Year 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 and Total
beyond
Amount $(6) $776 $683 $693 $995 $3.141

Shareholders’ Equity

The table below identifies changes in shareholders’ equity for the nine month periods ended September 30, 2012 and
September 30, 2011.

Changes in Shareholders’ Equity (in ‘000s)

Ordinary Restricted Additional Accumulated
Preferred Voting Voting . Retained Other
Paid-in .. . Total
Shares Common Common Capital Deficit Comprehensive
Shares Shares p Income/(Loss)
I;f‘laznoclelDecember $18,000  $4 $14 $152,652  $(115,841) $1,425 $56,254
Net income 1,922 1,922
Other
comprehensive 840 840
income
Share—basqd 34 34
compensation
Stock options
) 3 3
exercised
Balance September ¢ yg 150 g4 $14 $152,739  $(113,919) $2,265 $59,103
30, 2012
Balance December
31.2010 $18,000 $4 $14 $152,466 $(113,371) $3,056 $60,169
Net loss 555 555
Other
comprehensive loss (2,046 ) (2046 )
Share—base.d 34 34
compensation
Stock. options 19 19
exercised
gglznoclelseptember $18,000  $4 $14 $152,569  $(112,816) $1,010 $58,781

As of February 11, 2013, there are 2,256,921 ordinary voting common shares, 3,887,471 restricted voting common
shares and 20,000,000 preferred shares issued and outstanding.

The holders of restricted voting shares are entitled to vote at all meetings of shareholders, except at meetings of
holders of a specific class that are entitled to vote separately as a class. The restricted voting common shares as a class
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shall not carry more than 30% of the aggregate votes eligible to be voted at a general meeting of common
shareholders.

All of the issued and outstanding restricted voting common shares are beneficially owned or controlled by KAI, or its
affiliated entities. The restricted voting common shares will convert to ordinary voting common shares in the event
that these KAI owned shares are sold to non-affiliates of KAI.

Preferred shares are not entitled to vote and 18,000,000 are beneficially owned or controlled by KAI and 2,000,000
are beneficially owned and controlled by Hendricks. They accrue dividends on a cumulative basis whether or not
declared by the Board of Directors at the rate of $0.045 per share per year (4.5%) and may be paid in cash or in
additional preferred shares at the option of Atlas. Upon liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of Atlas, holders of
preferred shares receive the greater of $1.00 per share plus all declared and unpaid dividends or the amount they
would receive in liquidation if the preferred shares had been converted to restricted voting common shares or ordinary
voting common shares immediately prior to liquidation.
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Preferred shares are convertible into ordinary voting common shares at the option of the holder at any date that is after
December 31, 2015, the fifth year after issuance at the rate of 0.1270 ordinary voting common shares for each
preferred share. The conversion rate is subject to change if the number of ordinary voting common shares or restricted
voting common shares changes. The preferred shares are redeemable at the option of Atlas at a price of $1.00 per
share plus accrued and unpaid dividends commencing at the earlier of December 31, 2012, two years from issuance
date, or the date at which KFSI’s or KAI’s beneficial interest is less than 10%. We issued 2 million preferred shares to
Hendricks in connection with the acquisition of Gateway.
The cumulative amount of dividends to which the preferred shareholders are entitled upon liquidation or sooner, if
Atlas declares dividends, is $1.4 million as of the period ended September 30, 2012. The accumulation of these
dividends has an unfavorable impact on book value per share of $0.23 as of the period ended September 30, 2012 and
an unfavorable impact to earnings per share of $0.03 for the three month period ended September 30, 2012.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
The purpose of liquidity management is to ensure there is sufficient cash to meet all financial commitments and
obligations as they become due. The liquidity requirements of Atlas’ business have been met primarily by funds
generated from operations, asset maturities and income and other returns received on securities. Cash provided from
these sources is used primarily for payment of claims and operating expenses. The timing and amount of catastrophe
claims are inherently unpredictable and may create increased liquidity requirements.
As a holding company, Atlas may derive cash from its subsidiaries generally in the form of dividends and in the future
may charge management fees to the extent allowed by statute or other regulatory approval requirements to meet its
obligations. The insurance subsidiaries fund their obligations primarily through premium and investment income and
maturities in their securities portfolio. Refer also to the discussion “Investments Overview and Strategy.” The insurance
subsidiaries require regulatory approval for the return of capital and, in certain circumstances, payment of dividends.
In the event that dividends and management fees available to the holding company are inadequate to service its
obligations, the holding company would need to raise capital, sell assets or incur debt obligations. As at September 30,
2012, Atlas did not have any outstanding debt, and therefore, no near term debt service obligations. Atlas currently
has no material commitments for capital expenditures.
The following table summarizes consolidated cash flow activities.
Summary of Cash Flows (in ‘000s)

Nine Month Periods Ended

September 30, 2012 September 30, 2011
Cash Used by Operating Activities $(19,344 ) $(31,532 )
Cash Provided by Investing Activities 8,243 42,603
Cash Provided by Financing Activities 3 19
Net decrease in cash $(11,098 ) $11,090

Cash used in operations during the nine month period ended September 30, 2012 was favorable relative to the nine
month period ended September 30, 2011 primarily as a result of fewer payments for claims ($35.3 million versus
$54.6 million). Cash generated by investing activities during the nine month period ended September 30, 2012 was
unfavorable relative to the nine month period ended September 30, 2011 primarily as a result of the timing and nature
of investment purchases and sales.
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BUSINESS

Overview

We are a financial services holding company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands. Our core business is
the underwriting of commercial automobile insurance policies, focusing on the “light” commercial automobile sector,
which is carried out through our insurance subsidiaries, American Country Insurance Company, or American Country,
and American Service Insurance Company, Inc., or American Service, together with American Country, which we

refer to as our “insurance subsidiaries”. This sector includes taxi cabs, non-emergency para-transit, limousine, livery and
business auto. Our goal is to be the preferred specialty commercial transportation insurer in any geographic areas

where our value proposition delivers benefit to all stakeholders.

We were formed as JJR VI, a Canadian capital pool company, on December 21, 2009 under the laws of Ontario,
Canada. On December 31, 2010, we completed a reverse merger wherein American Service and American Country
were transferred to us by Kingsway America Inc., or KAI, a wholly owned subsidiary of Kingsway Financial Services
Inc., or KFSI, a Canadian public company whose shares are traded on the Toronto and New York Stock Exchanges.
Prior to the transaction, each of American Service and American Country were wholly owned subsidiaries of KAL
American Country commenced operations in 1979. With roots dating back to 1925 selling insurance for taxi cabs,
American Country is one of the oldest insurers of U.S. taxi and livery business. In 1983, American Service began as a
non-standard personal and commercial auto insurer writing business in the Chicago, Illinois area.

In connection with the acquisition of American Service and American Country, we streamlined the operations of the
insurance subsidiaries to focus on the “light” commercial automobile lines of business we believe will produce favorable
underwriting results. Over the past two years, we have disposed of non-core assets and placed into run-off certain
non-core lines of business previously written by the insurance subsidiaries. Our sole focus going forward is the
underwriting of commercial automobile insurance in the U.S.

The address of our registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. Our operating headquarters are located at 150 Northwest Point Boulevard, Elk Grove Village,
[linois 60007, USA. We maintain a website at http://www.atlas-fin.com. Information on our website or any other
website does not constitute a part of this prospectus.

On December 31, 2010, following the reverse merger transaction described immediately hereafter, we filed a
Certificate of Registration by Way of Continuation in the Cayman Islands to re-domesticate as a Cayman Islands
company. In addition, on December 30, 2010 we filed a Certificate of Incorporation on Change of Name to change our
name to Atlas Financial Holdings, Inc. Our current organization is a result of a reverse merger transaction involving
the following companies:

(a)JJR VI, sponsored by JJR Capital, a Toronto based merchant bank;

American Insurance Acquisition Inc., or American Acquisition, a corporation formed under the laws of Delaware
as a wholly owned subsidiary of Kingsway America Inc., or KAI. KAl is a wholly owned subsidiary of Kingsway
Financial Services Inc., or KFSI, a Canadian public company formed under the laws of Ontario and whose shares
are traded on the Toronto and New York Stock Exchanges; and

(b)

Atlas Acquisition Corp., a Delaware corporation wholly-owned by JJR VI and formed for the purpose of merging
with and into American Acquisition.

(©)

Prior to the transaction, each of American Service and American Country were wholly owned subsidiaries of KAI In
connection with the reverse merger transaction, KAI transferred 100% of the capital stock of each of American
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Service and American Country to American Acquisition (another wholly owed subsidiary of KAI) in exchange for
C$35.1 million of common and C$18.0 million of preferred shares of American Acquisition and promissory notes
worth C$7.7 million, aggregating C$60.8 million. In addition, American Acquisition raised C$8.0 million through a
private placement offering of subscription receipts to qualified investors in both the United States and Canada at a
price of C$2.00 per subscription receipt.

All references to share counts and per share values in connection with the reverse merger transaction are presented
prior to the one-for-three reverse stock split. KAI received 13,804,861 restricted voting common shares of our
company, which we refer to as “restricted voting shares”, then valued at $27.8 million, along with 18,000,000
non-voting preferred shares of our company then valued at C$18.0 million and C$8.0 million cash for total
consideration of C$60.8 million in exchange for 100% of the outstanding shares of American Acquisition and full
payment of certain promissory notes. Investors in the American
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Acquisition private placement offering of subscription receipts received 3,983,502 of our ordinary shares, which we
refer to as “ordinary shares”, plus warrants to purchase one ordinary share of our company for each subscription receipt
at C$2.00 at any time until December 31, 2013. Every 10 common shares of JJR VI held by the shareholders of JJR

VI immediately prior to the reverse merger were, upon consummation of the merger, consolidated into one ordinary
share of JJR VI. Upon re-domestication in the Cayman Islands, these consolidated shares were then exchanged on a
one-for-one basis for our ordinary shares.

Substantially all of our new premiums written are in “light” commercial automobile lines of business. In the nine month
period ended September 30, 2012, gross premium written from commercial automobile was $41.0 million,

representing a 183.0% increase relative to the nine month period ended September 30, 2011. As a percentage of the
insurance subsidiaries’ overall book of business, commercial auto gross premium written represented 92.6% of gross
premium written in the nine month period ended September 30, 2012 compared to 44.0% during the nine month

period ended September 30, 2011.

The following table summarizes gross premium written by line of business.
Gross Premium Written by Line of Business (in ‘000s)

2012 2011

Q3 Q2 Q1 Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1
Commercial automobile $22,119 $8,209 $10,718 $4,286 $5,350 $2,545 $6,609
Non-standard automobile (31 )(143  H)(366 )3,401 4,342 3,709 5,960
Other 1,265 1,176 1,402 1,394 1236 1,602 1,597
Total $23,353 $9,242 $11,754 $9,081 $10,928 $7,856 $14,166

We are committed to the “light” commercial automobile lines of business. The insurance subsidiaries distribute their
products through a network of independent retail agents, and actively wrote insurance in 31 states as of September 30,
2012. Together, American Country and American Service are licensed to write property and casualty, or P&C,
insurance in 46 states plus the District of Columbia in the United States. American Country and American Service
actively wrote commercial automobile insurance in more states during 2012 than in any prior year. Our acquisition of
Gateway expanded our core commercial auto lines to 39 states and the District of Columbia.

Market

Our core business is the underwriting of commercial automobile insurance policies, focusing on the “light” commercial
automobile sector. The “light” commercial automobile policies we underwrite provide coverage for light weight
commercial vehicles typically with the minimum limits prescribed by statute, municipal or other regulatory
requirements. The majority of our policyholders are individual owners or small fleet operators.

The “light” commercial automobile sector is a subset of the historically profitable commercial automobile insurance
industry segment. Commercial automobile insurance has outperformed the overall P&C industry in each of the past
ten years based on data compiled by A.M. Best. A recent survey by A.M. Best estimates the total market for
commercial automobile liability insurance to be approximately $24 billion. The size of the commercial automobile
insurance market can be affected significantly by many factors, such as the underwriting capacity and underwriting
criteria of automobile insurance carriers and general economic conditions. Historically, the commercial automobile
insurance market has been characterized by periods of price competition and excess capacity followed by periods of
higher premium rates and shortages of underwriting capacity.

We believe that there is a positive correlation between the economy and commercial automobile insurance in general.
Operators of “light” commercial automobiles may be less likely than other business segments within the commercial
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automobile insurance market to take vehicles out of service as their businesses and business reputations rely heavily
on availability. With respect to certain business lines such as the taxi line, there are also other factors such as the cost
and limited supply of medallions which may discourage a policyholder from taking vehicles out of service in the face

of reduced demand for the use of the vehicle.
Competitive Strengths

Our value proposition is driven by our competitive strengths, which include the following:

Focus on niche commercial insurance business. We target niche markets that support adequate pricing and believe we

are able to adapt to changing market needs ahead of our competitors through our strategic commitment and increasing
scale. We
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develop and deliver superior specialty commercial automobile insurance products priced to meet our customers’ needs
and strive to generate consistent underwriting profit for our insurance subsidiaries. We have experienced a favorable
trend in loss ratios in 2012 attributable to the increased composition of commercial automobile written premium as a
percentage of the total written premium. We expect the loss ratio to continue decreasing as we complete the transition
away from non-standard automobile insurance and other non-core lines of business.

There are a limited number of competitors specializing in these lines of business. Management believes a strong value
proposition is very important to attract new business and can result in desirable retention levels as policies renew on
an annual basis. There are also a relatively limited number of agents who specialize in these lines of business. As a
result, strategic agent relationships are important to ensure efficient distribution.

Strong market presence with recognized brands and long-standing distribution relationships. American Country and
American Service have a long heritage as insurers of taxi, livery and para-transit businesses. Both of the insurance
subsidiaries have strong brand recognition and long-standing distribution relationships in our target markets. Through
regular interaction with our retail producers, we strive to thoroughly understand each of the markets we serve in order
to deliver strategically priced products to the right market at the right time.

Sophisticated underwriting and claims handling expertise. Atlas has extensive experience and expertise with respect to
underwriting and claims management in our specialty area of insurance. Our well-developed underwriting and claims
infrastructure includes an extensive data repository, proprietary technologies, deep market knowledge and established
market relationships. Analysis of the substantial data available through our operating companies drives our product
and pricing decisions. We believe our underwriting and claims handling expertise provides enhanced risk selection,
high quality service to our customers and greater control over claims expenses. We are committed to maintaining this
underwriting and claims handling expertise as a core competency as our volume of business increases.

Scalable operations positioned for growth. Significant progress has also been made in aligning our cost base to our
expected revenue going forward. The core functions of the insurance subsidiaries were integrated into a common
operating platform. We believe that both insurance subsidiaries are well-positioned to begin returning to the volume of
premium they wrote in the recent past with better than industry level profitability from the efficient operating
infrastructure honed in 2011.

Experienced management team. We have a talented and experienced management team led by our President and Chief
Executive Officer, Scott Wollney, who has more than 21 years of experience in the property and casualty insurance
industry. Our senior management team has worked in the property and casualty industry for an average of 21 years
and with the insurance subsidiaries, directly or indirectly, for an average of 12 years.

Strategic Focus

Vision

Our goal is to be the preferred specialty commercial transportation insurer in any geographic area where our value
proposition delivers benefit to all stakeholders.

Mission
We develop and deliver superior specialty insurance products priced to meet our customers’ needs and generate

consistent underwriting profit for our insurance subsidiaries. These products are distributed to the insured through
independent retail agents utilizing our company’s operating platform.
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We seek to achieve our vision and mission through the design, sophisticated pricing and efficient delivery of specialty
transportation insurance products. Through constant interaction with our retail producers, we strive to thoroughly
understand each of the markets we serve in order to deliver strategically priced products to the right market at the right
time. Analysis of the substantial data available through our operating companies drives our product and pricing
decisions. We focus on our key strengths and seek to expand our geographic footprint and products only to the extent
these activities support our vision and mission. We target niche markets that support adequate pricing and believe we
are able to adapt to changing market needs ahead of our competitors through our strategic commitment and increasing
scale.

Outlook

Over the past two years, through dispositions and by placing certain lines of business into run-off, the insurance
subsidiaries have streamlined operations to focus on the lines of business they believe will produce favorable
underwriting results.
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Significant progress has also been made in aligning the cost base to our expected revenue base going forward. The
core functions of the insurance subsidiaries were integrated into a common operating platform. Management believes
that both insurance subsidiaries are well-positioned to begin returning to the volume of premium they wrote in the
recent past with better than industry level profitability. The insurance subsidiaries have a long heritage with respect to
their continuing lines of business and will benefit from the efficient operating infrastructure honed in 2011. American
Country and American Service actively wrote business in 31 states during 2012, representing more states than in any
prior year, utilizing our well developed underwriting and claim methodology. Our acquisition of Gateway expanded
our core commercial auto lines to 39 states and the District of Columbia.
The following table summarizes historical commercial automobile gross premium written by our insurance
subsidiaries, American Country and American Service (full year 2012 gross premium written is shown).
Annual Gross Premium Written (in ‘000s)

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Commercial automobile $50,546 $18,790 $13,729 $52,774 $64,445 $86,558 $78,631 $90,190
We believe that the most significant opportunities going forward are: (i) continued re-energizing of distribution
channels with the objective of recapturing business generated prior to 2009, (ii) building business in previously
untapped geographic markets where our insurance subsidiaries are licensed, but not recently active, and (iii)
opportunistically acquiring books of business or similar insurance companies, provided market conditions support this
activity. Primary potential risks related to these activities include: (i) insurance market conditions remaining “soft” for a
sustained period of time, (ii) not being able to achieve the expected support from distribution partners, and (iii) the
insurance subsidiaries not successfully maintaining their recently improved ratings from A.M. Best.
We seek to deploy our capital to maximize the return for our shareholders, either by investing in growing our
operations or by pursuing other capital initiatives, depending upon insurance and capital market conditions. We focus
on our key strengths and seek to expand our geographic footprint and products only to the extent these activities
support our vision and mission. We will identify and prioritize market expansion opportunities based on the
comparative strength of our value proposition relative to competitors, the market opportunity and the legal and
regulatory environment.

We intend to continue to grow profitably by undertaking the following:

Re-establish legacy distribution relationships. We are focused on re-establishing relationships with independent agents
that have been our insurance subsidiaries’ distribution partners in the past. We seek to develop and maintain strategic
distribution relationships with a relatively small number of independent agents with substantial market presence in
each state in which we currently operate. We expect to continue to increase the distribution of our core products in the
states where we are actively writing insurance and re-capture insurance premium historically written by the insurance
subsidiaries.

Expand our market presence. We are committed to continuing to diversify geographically by leveraging our
experience, historical data and market research to expand our business in previously untapped geographic markets.
Utilizing our established brands and market relationships, we have made significant inroads in new states where we
had no active business in 2011. We will continue to expand into additional states where we are licensed, but not
currently active, and states where we are not currently licensed to the extent that our market expansion criteria is met
in a given state.

Acquire complementary books of business and insurance companies. We plan to opportunistically pursue acquisitions
of complementary books of business and insurance companies provided market conditions support this activity. We
will evaluate each acquisition opportunity based on its expected economic contribution to our results and support of
our market expansion initiatives. Our recent acquisition of Gateway Insurance Company, as discussed under ‘“Recent
Developments” is consistent with this aspect of our strategy.
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Geographic Markets

Currently, we distribute insurance only in the United States. Through our insurance subsidiaries, we are licensed to
write P&C insurance in 46 states plus the District of Columbia in the United States. The following table reflects, in
percentages, the principal geographic distribution of premiums written for the nine month period ended September 30,
2012. No other jurisdiction accounted for more than 5%.
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Distribution of Net Premium Written by Jurisdiction

New York 34.6%
Illinois 19.3%
Michigan 11.9%
Louisiana 6.2%

The diagram below outlines the states where we are focused on actively writing new insurance policies and where we
believe the comparative strength of our value proposition, the market opportunity, and the legal and regulatory
environment are favorable (states darkened in the below diagram). With the completion of the acquisition of Gateway,
we increased the footprint of our current market focus to 39 states and the District of Columbia through the addition of
California, Hawaii, Montana, Nebraska, North Dakota, South Dakota, Washington and West Virginia. The diagram
below also reflects the 2013 addition of Maine to the states where we are actively writing new insurance policies.

Gateway historically issued commercial automobile insurance policies in the state of Florida. We do not plan to
actively write insurance for new policyholders in Florida going forward and are in the process of satisfying the
regulatory requirements to withdraw from that state.

Agency Relationships

Independent agents are recruited by us directly and through marketing efforts targeting the specialty niche upon which
we focus. Interested agents are evaluated based on their experience, expertise and ethical dealing. Typically, our
company enters into distribution relationships with one out of every ten agents seeking an agency contract. We are
generally interested in acting as one of a relatively small number of insurance partners with whom their independent
agents place business and are also careful not to oversaturate the distribution channel in any given geographic market.
This helps to ensure that we are able to receive the maximum number of submissions for underwriting evaluation
without unnecessary downstream pressure from agents to write business that does not fit our underwriting model.
Agents receive commission as a percentage of premiums (generally 10% to 15%) as their primary compensation from
us. Larger agents are also eligible for profit sharing based on the growth and underwriting profitability related to their
book of business with us. The quality of business presented and written by each independent agent is evaluated
regularly by our underwriters and is also reviewed quarterly by senior management. Key metrics for evaluation
include overall accuracy and adequacy of underwriting information, performance relative to agreed commitments,
support with respect to claims presented by their customers (as applicable) and overall underwriting profitability
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of the agent’s book of business. While we rely on our independent agents for distribution and customer support,
underwriting and claim handling responsibilities are retained by us. Many of our agents have had direct relationships
with either or both of the subsidiaries for a number of years. Gateway also distributes its taxi and limousine products
through independent agents. We believe their distribution channel and independent agent relationships are
complementary to ours.

Seasonality

The P&C insurance business is seasonal in nature. While our net premiums earned generally follow a stable trend
from quarter to quarter, our gross premiums written follow certain common renewal dates for the light commercial
risks that represent our core lines of business. For example, January 15t and March 15t are common taxi cab renewal
dates in Illinois and New York, respectively. Additionally, we implemented our New York “excess taxi program” in the
third quarter of 2012, which has a renewal date in the third quarter 2013. Net underwriting income is driven mainly by
the timing and nature of claims, which can vary widely. Our ability to generate written premium is also impacted by
the timing of policy periods in the states in which we operate.

Competition

The insurance industry is price competitive in all markets in which the insurance subsidiaries operate. Our company
strives to employ disciplined underwriting practices with the objective of rejecting under priced risks. A recent survey
by A.M Best estimates the total market for commercial automobile liability insurance to be approximately $24 billion.
We believe our company requires only 1% market share to achieve our business plan. We believe our current market
share is approximately 0.2%.

Our company competes on a number of factors such as distribution strength, pricing, agency relationships, policy
support, claim service, and market reputation. In our core commercial automobile lines, the primary offerings are
policies at the minimum prescribed limits in each state, as established by statutory, municipal and other regulations.
We believe our company differentiates itself from many larger companies competing for this specialty business by
exclusively focusing on these lines of insurance. We believe our exclusive focus results in the deployment of
underwriting and claims professionals more in tune with issues common in commercial automobile lines, and provides
the customer better service.

In the specialty insurance market, American Country and American Service compete against, among others, American
Transit Insurance Company (New York only), Canal Insurance Company, CNA Financial Corporation, Carolina
Casualty Insurance Company, Empire Fire & Marine Insurance Company (subsidiary of Zurich Financial Services
Ltd.), Global Liberty Insurance Company of New York, Granada Insurance Company, Hereford Holding Company,
Inc., Hartford Financial Services Group, Lancer Financial Group, MAPFRE USA, Maya Assurance Company,
Mercury General Corporation, National Indemnity Company (subsidiary of Berkshire Hathaway, Inc.), National
Interstate Corporation, Northland Insurance Company (subsidiary of Travelers Companies, Inc.), Safeco Corporation
(subsidiary of Liberty Mutual), Scottsdale Insurance Company (National Casualty Company) and ULLICO, Inc.

To compete successfully in the specialty commercial insurance industry, we rely on our ability to: identify markets
that are most likely to produce an underwriting profit; operate with a disciplined underwriting approach; offer
diversified products and geographic platforms; practice prudent claims management; reserve appropriately for unpaid
claims; strive for cost containment through economies of scale where deemed appropriate; and provide services and
competitive commissions to our independent agents.

Regulation

We are subject to extensive regulation, particularly at the state level. The method, extent and substance of such
regulation varies by state, but generally has its source in statutes and regulations which establish standards and
requirements for conducting the business of insurance and that delegate regulatory authority to state insurance
regulatory agencies. Insurance companies can also be subject to so-called “desk drawer rules” of state insurance
regulators, which are regulatory rules or best practices that have not been codified or formally adopted through
regulatory proceedings. In general, such regulation is intended for the protection of those who purchase or use
insurance products issued by our insurance subsidiaries, not the holders of securities issued by us. These laws and
regulations have a significant impact on our business and relate to a wide variety of matters including accounting
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methods, agent and company licensure, claims procedures, corporate governance, examinations, investing practices,
policy forms, pricing, trade practices, reserve adequacy and underwriting standards.

In recent years, the state insurance regulatory framework has come under increased federal scrutiny. Most recently,
pursuant to the Dodd-Frank Regulatory Reform Act of 2010, the Federal Insurance Office was formed for the purpose
of, among other
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things, examining and evaluating the effectiveness of the current insurance and reinsurance regulatory framework. In
addition, state legislators and insurance regulators continue to examine the appropriate nature and scope of state
insurance regulation.

Many state laws require insurers to file insurance policy forms and/or insurance premium rates and underwriting rules
with state insurance regulators. In some states, such rates, forms and/or rules must be approved prior to use. While
these requirements vary from state to state, generally speaking, regulators review premium rates to ensure they are not
excessive, inadequate or unfairly discriminatory.

As a result, the speed with which an insurer can change prices in response to competition or increased costs depends,
in part, on whether the premium rate laws and regulations (i) require prior approval of the premium rates to be
charged, (ii) permit the insurer to file and use the forms, rates and rules immediately, subject to further review, or (iii)
permit the insurer to immediately use the forms, rates and/or rules and to subsequently file them with the regulator.
When state laws and regulations significantly restrict both underwriting and pricing, it can become more difficult for
an insurer to make adjustments quickly in response to changes which could affect profitability.

Insurance companies are required to report their financial condition and results of operations in accordance with
statutory accounting principles prescribed or permitted by state insurance laws and regulations and the National
Association of Insurance Commissioners (the “NAIC”). State insurance laws and regulations also prescribe the form and
content of statutory financial statements, require the performance of periodic financial examinations of insurers,
establish standards for the types and amounts of investments insurers may hold and require minimum capital and
surplus levels. Additional requirements include risk-based capital (“RBC”) rules, thresholds intended to enable state
insurance regulators to assess the level of risk inherent in an insurance company’s business and consider items such as
asset risk, credit risk, underwriting risk and other business risks relevant to its operations. In accordance with RBC
formulas, a company’s RBC requirements are calculated and compared to its total adjusted capital to determine
whether regulatory intervention is warranted. At December 31, 2011, the total adjusted capital of each of our
insurance subsidiaries exceeded the minimum levels required under RBC requirements.

It is difficult to predict what specific measures at the state or federal level will be adopted or what effect any such
measures would have on us or our insurance subsidiaries.

Facilities

Our corporate headquarters is located at 150 Northwest Point Boulevard, Elk Grove Village, Illinois 60007, USA. The
facility consists of one office building totaling 176,844 net rentable square feet of office space on 7.2 acres. On May
22,2012, we closed a transaction related to the sale of the headquarters building in Elk Grove Village to Northwest
Point, LLC. The total sales price of the property, which was paid in cash, amounted to $14.0 million, less closing
costs and related expenses of approximately $633,000. In connection with the sale, our company also wrote down an
accrual of approximately $792,000 held for real-estate taxes. Approximately $830,000 of the sales price was held in
escrow for real estate taxes.

There is no material relationship between the purchaser of the property and us or any of our affiliates, directors or
officers. Cash proceeds from the transaction, net of the funds held in escrow for real estate taxes, were approximately
$12.4 million and will be used to support plans for future growth. Including the benefit of the real estate tax escrow
write down, combined cash and non-cash proceeds from the transaction was $13.2 million.

We remain in the building as a tenant, occupying approximately 30,600 square feet for a term of 60 months beginning
May 22, 2012, unless terminated or extended pursuant to the lease agreement. We are paying an annual rent equal to
approximately $642,000 or approximately $53,000 per month, with a nominal annual escalation beginning on the first
anniversary date of the lease agreement. We believe the facility is suitable and adequate for our current business
needs.

We also own approximately 50 acres of vacant land in Alabama which was transferred to us from Southern United. It
is also currently held for sale.

Upon completion of the Gateway acquisition, we assumed a lease for 12,937 square feet of office space in St. Louis,
Missouri which is effective through February 2016. We currently pay a monthly rent equal to approximately $28,000.
Some of the expense related to the lease will be shared with the sublessor. Expense related to the lease is included in
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our pro forma post-acquisition financial exhibits.
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Employees

As of the date of this prospectus, we had 106 full-time employees. American Country and American Service together
have 77 full-time employees, 70 of whom work at the corporate offices in Elk Grove Village, Illinois, 4 of whom
work in New York and 3 of whom work remotely. Our acquisition of Gateway increased head count by 29, the
majority of whom work at Gateway offices in Missouri.

Legal Proceedings

In connection with our operations, we are, from time to time, named as defendants in actions for damages and costs
allegedly sustained by the plaintiffs. While it is not possible to estimate the outcome of the various proceedings at this
time, such actions have generally been resolved with minimal damages or expense in excess of amounts provided and
our company does not believe that it will incur any significant additional loss or expense in connection with such
actions.
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MANAGEMENT
Executive Officers and Directors
Our directors and executive officers as of the date of this prospectus are as follows:

Name Age Position

Scott D. Wollney 44 Pr.esident, Chief Executive Officer and
Director

Gordon G. Pratt 51 Chairman of the Board

Jordan M. Kupinsky 39 Director

Larry G. Swets, Jr. 37 Director

Paul A. Romano 51 Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Bruce W. Giles 53 Vice President, Underwriting

Joseph A. Shugrue 49 Vice President, Claims

Leslie A. DiMaggio 44 Vice President, Operations

Scott Wollney

Mr. Wollney has been our President and Chief Executive Officer, and a Director, since December 31, 2010. From July
2009 until that time, Mr. Wollney was President and Chief Executive Officer of KAI, prior to which he was the
President and Chief Executive Officer of Lincoln General Insurance Company (a subsidiary of KAI) from May 2008
to March 2009. From January 1998 to May 2008, he was President of Avalon Risk Management, Inc. Mr. Wollney’s
education coupled with his significant and varied experience as an executive manager and director qualifies him for
his role with Atlas. He has experience building successful businesses as well as re-organizing challenged companies
around a focused strategy to address legacy issues and set them on a path for future success. Mr. Wollney has direct
experience and expertise with respect to the numerous disciplines which are critical to insurance business.

Gordon Pratt

Mr. Pratt has been our Chairman of the Board since December 31, 2010. Since March 2004, Mr. Pratt has been a
Managing Member of Fund Management Group LLC in Connecticut. From June 2004 to April 2006, he was also the
Senior Vice-President, Finance of the Willis Group in New York, prior to which he was the Managing Director of
Hales Capital Advisors LLC and the Managing Partner of Distribution Partners Investment Capital L.P. Mr. Pratt has
also served as Chairman and Vice Chairman of the boards of directors of NASDAQ listed companies, including
United Insurance Holdings Corp. He holds a Master of Management degree from Northwestern University as well as a
Bachelor of Arts degree from Cornell University. Mr. Pratt’s education, background and experience qualify him for his
role with Atlas. Mr. Pratt has evaluated financial statements for more than 50 insurance companies and/or their
holding company parents. Such evaluations include companies’ uses of accounting estimates, accruals and provisions.
Mr. Pratt has made investment decisions and offered his opinion to company management teams based upon his
evaluations concerning financial statements, which cover a wide range of complexity and accounting issues.
Additionally, from his service as a member of certain boards of directors, he has an understanding of internal controls
and procedures for financial reporting for insurance companies and/or insurance holding company parents.

Jordan Kupinsky

Mr. Kupinsky has been a Director of Atlas since December 31, 2010. Since 2008, Mr. Kupinsky has been a Managing
Director with Windsor Private Capital Inc. and its predecessor JJR Capital Corp. Prior to joining Windsor, he was a
Vice President at Greenhill & Co., an independent global investment banking firm, listed on the NYSE, focused on
mergers & acquisitions, financial restructuring and merchant banking, from March 2006 to May 2008. Prior to joining
Greenhill, Mr. Kupinsky held the positions of Vice President of Corporate Development and General Counsel at
Minacs Worldwide Inc., a publicly traded company on the Toronto Stock Exchange from July 2002 to February 2005.
Mr. Kupinsky began his career practicing corporate and securities law at Torys LLP in Toronto (from 1997 to 1999)
and was also an investment banking associate at Houlihan Lokey Howard & Zukin from 1999 to 2002. He holds a
joint MBA and LL.B. degree from the Schulich School of Business and Osgoode Hall Law School at York University.
Mr. Kupinsky’s education, background and experience qualify him for his role with Atlas. Mr. Kupinsky has
experience in financial statement review with both public and private companies. His direct experience includes
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securities law, financial analysis and corporate governance.

69

123



Edgar Filing: Atlas Financial Holdings, Inc. - Form 424B4

Larry Swets, Jr.

Mr. Swets has been a Director of Atlas since December 31, 2010. Since June 30, 2010, Mr. Swets has been the CEO
of Kingsway Financial Services Inc. one of our shareholders, prior to which he was the Executive VP, Corporate
Development of Kingsway Financial Services Inc. since January 2010. From June 2007 through March 2010, Mr.
Swets was a director of United Insurance Holdings Corp. From June 2007 through September 2008, Mr. Swets was
the CFO, Secretary, Treasurer and Executive Vice-President of FMG Acquisition Corp. He was the Managing
Director of Itasca Financial LLC from May 2005 until January 2010. Mr. Swets holds a Chartered Financial Analyst
designation from the CFA Institute. He received a Masters of Science degree from De Paul University in 1999 and a
Bachelors of Business and Finance degree from Valparaiso University in 1997. Mr. Swets’ education, background and
experience qualify him for his role with Atlas. He has extensive experience with both private and public insurance
businesses at both the executive management and board levels.

Paul Romano

Mr. Romano has been our Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since December 31, 2010. From March 2010
until that time, he served as Vice President and Treasurer of KAI, prior to which he was the Vice President, Data
Management of Lincoln General Insurance Company from October 2008 to March 2009. From 2002 through 2008, he
held various Vice President and Director positions with American Country Insurance Company and its affiliates. Mr.
Romano holds a Certified Public Accountant designation in the State of Illinois. He received a Master of Business
Administration degree from the Northwestern University Kellogg Graduate School of Management in 1996 and a
Bachelor of Science, Accounting, from the University of Illinois in 1984.

Bruce Giles

Mr. Giles has been our Vice President, Underwriting since our December 31, 2010. Mr. Giles was previously
Assistant Vice President of Commercial Underwriting for Kingsway America Inc., prior to which he held various
positions with Kingsway America Inc. from December 2003 to June 2010. From 1981 to 2003, he held various
positions with Allstate Insurance Group, CIGNA and other insurance companies..

Joseph Shugrue

Mr. Shugrue has been our Vice President, Claims since December 31, 2010. Mr. Shugrue previously held various
senior management positions with American Service and Kingsway America Inc. beginning in March 2004. Prior to
that time, he held positions with other specialized insurance businesses beginning in October 1986.

Leslie DiMaggio

Ms. DiMaggio has been our Vice President, operations since December 31, 2010. Ms. DiMaggio was previously the
Vice President, Information Technology for Kingsway Financial Services Inc. from November 2008 to June 2010,
prior to which she was the President, CEO and COO of Southern United Fire Insurance Company from April 2007 to
November 2008. From 2000 until 2008, she held various other executive positions at Kingsway America Inc. Prior to
that, she worked at other specialty insurance companies.

Corporate Governance Practices and Code of Ethics

Board Leadership Structure and Risk Oversight

Currently, Gordon Pratt serves as the Chairman of the Board and Scott Wollney serves as our President & Chief
Executive Officer. The Board recognizes that no single leadership structure is right for all companies and, depending
on the circumstances, other leadership structures might be appropriate. The Board believes, however, that the current
leadership structure is effective and appropriate, allows for a separation of oversight between management and
non-management, provides an experienced Chairman with whom the Chief Executive Officer can discuss issues
facing us, and gives a significant voice to non-management directors.

Board Meetings

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, there were 10 meetings of the Board and each director attended at
least 75% of all meetings of the Board and the Audit Committee (if he was a member). All of the directors attended
the 2012 annual meeting of Shareholders.
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Determination of Independence of Nominees for Election

The Board assumes overall responsibility for our direction through its delegation to senior management and through
the ongoing function of the Board and its committees, as applicable.

Directors are considered independent if they have no direct or indirect material relationship with us. A “material
relationship” is a relationship which could, in the view of the Board, be reasonably expected to interfere with the
exercise of a director’s independent judgment. In determining whether a material relationship exists, the Board consults
with our legal counsel to ensure that its determinations are consistent with relevant securities and other laws, rules and
regulations and court decisions.

Further, the Board has adopted corporate governance guidelines that are contained in the National Instrument 58-101
Disclosure of Corporate Governance Practices, (“NI 58-101""), which prescribes certain disclosure of our corporate
governance practices, and National Policy 58-201 Corporate Governance Guidelines (“NP 58-201""), which provides
non-prescriptive guidelines on corporate governance practices for reporting issuers. The Board believes that good
corporate governance improves corporate performance and benefits the shareholders. This discussion addresses our
compliance with NI 58-101.

There are four directors on the Board, of which two are independent directors for purposes of NI 58-101 and NP
58-201. Scott Wollney is not independent as he is a member of our management. Larry Swets is not independent as he
is a member of management of Kingsway Financial Services, Inc., a company that may have a material relationship
with us.

Orientation and Continuing Education

The Board is committed to having appropriate levels of knowledge among members of the Board relative both to us
and our industry. New members to the Board are oriented through direct interaction with the balance of the Board and
management and will have visibility to past and current corporate records as well as operating results. Committee
chairpersons and other members of the Board maintain subject matter expertise through activities relating both to us
and other educational resources.

Compensation

The Compensation Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board in respect of director and
executive officer remuneration matters, with the overall objective of ensuring maximum shareholder benefit from the
retention of high quality board and executive team members. For details on the compensation of the Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Directors, please see the section below entitled “Executive Compensation”.
Assessments

The Board, through its Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee, regularly assesses the overall performance
of the Board, the committees, and the individual directors through a combination of formal and informal means.
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) requires our officers and directors, and persons who own more than ten percent of a registered class of
our equity securities, to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Officers, directors and greater-than-ten-percent shareholders are required by SEC regulation to furnish
us with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file. To date, none of our directors, officers and greater-than-ten-percent
shareholders have filed reports in connection with Section 16(a).
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Committees of the Board

The Board has three standing committees to assist it in carrying out its duties. The standing committees are: (i) Audit
Committee; (ii) Compensation Committee; and (iii) Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee.

(1) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is elected annually at the first meeting of the Board held after our annual meeting of
shareholders. During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, the Audit Committee met 8 times. In addition, the
Audit Committee meets quarterly with our external auditors.

The Audit Committee is comprised of Jordan Kupinsky (Chairman) and Gordon Pratt. Each member of the Audit
Committee is independent. We follow the independence standards set forth in Multilateral Instrument 52-110 Audit
Committees (“MI52-1107). We are currently in compliance with the “independent director” requirements under NASDAQ
Rule 5605(c)(2) and Rule 10A-3 of the Exchange Act pursuant to the exception in NASDAQ Rule 5615(b)(1) and
Rule 10A-3(b)(1) of the Exchange Act which allows companies that have an Audit Committee comprised of two
independent directors to have until the end of the one year phase-in period (which expires for us on May 25, 2013) to
comply with the requirement of having an audit committee with at least three independent directors.

The Board has determined that Mr. Kupinsky and Mr. Pratt, because of their accounting and financial management
expertise discussed above, are both considered an “audit committee financial expert” as that term is defined under the
Exchange Act and, accordingly, that at least one audit committee financial expert is serving on the Corporation’s audit
committee. MI 52-110 provides that an individual is “financially literate” if he or she has the ability to read and
understand a set of financial statements that present a breadth and level of complexity of accounting issues that are
generally comparable to the breadth and complexity of the issues that can reasonably be expected to be raised by the
Corporation’s financial statements. All of the members of the audit committee are financially literate as that term is
defined.

The Audit Committee assists the board of directors in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities. The principal
responsibilities of the Audit Committee include: (i) performing our external audit function including the
qualifications, independence, appointment and oversight of the work of the external auditors; (ii) ensuring that we
meet our accounting and financial reporting requirements and that we report our financial information to the public;
(iii) making certain that we are in compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements relating to our oversight
responsibilities; (iv) drafting our risk management policies; and (v) overseeing our system of internal controls and
management’s information systems.

NASDAQ Compliance

We also intend to comply with NASDAQ independence and other compliance requirements. Specifically, we intend to
have a majority independent board of directors. We have an independent audit committee, compensation committee
and nominating committee consisting solely of independent directors and an independent audit committee chaired by
an audit committee financial expert. Further, we intend to establish a formal director nomination process and we
certify that the independent directors will have regularly scheduled executive sessions in which only they are present.

Relevant Education and Experience

Mr. Kupinsky has been actively involved in our Board as an independent director and member of the Audit
Committee since the date of formation of the capital pool company. Prior to the reverse merger, Mr. Kupinsky has
considerable experience in corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions, financial restructuring and merchant banking.
Mr. Kupinsky has experience in financial statement review with both public and private companies. Mr. Kupinsky
holds a Masters of Business Administration degree and a JD from the Schulich School of Business and Osgoode Hall
Law School.

Mr. Pratt has more than 25 years experience in insurance company financial statement analysis and assessment. He
holds a Master of Management degree in Finance from Northwestern’s Kellogg School of Management. His
experience includes service as a director of eight insurance companies and/or such insurance companies’ holding
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company parents, including service as chairman or vice chairman of the board of directors of two publicly-traded
insurance companies and/or such insurance companies’ holding company parents, and service as a member of the
Audit Committee for one insurance company’s holding company parent. Mr. Pratt had specialized training in insurance
company statutory and GAAP accounting while serving as an officer of The Chase Manhattan Bank, N.A. As a

partner in four private equity funds focused on investment in insurance companies and insurance-related businesses,
Mr. Pratt has evaluated financial statements for more than 50 insurance companies and/or their holding company
parents, including such companies’ use of accounting estimates, accruals, and
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provisions. He has made investment decisions and offered his opinion to company managements as a result of his
evaluation concerning such financial statements, which covered a wide range of complexity and accounting issues.
From his service as a member of certain boards of directors, he has an understanding of internal controls and
procedures for financial reporting for insurance companies and/or insurance holding company parents.

Audit Committee Oversight

At no time since the commencement of our most recently completed financial year was a recommendation of the
Audit Committee to nominate or compensate an external auditor not adopted by the Board.

(i1) Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee is comprised of Jordan Kupinsky (Chairman) and Gordon Pratt. Each member of the
Compensation Committee is independent. We are currently in compliance with the requirements under the NASDAQ
rules pursuant to NASDAQ Rule 5605(d)(2)(A) which require a compensation committee be comprised of at least two
members, each of whom must be independent directors. The Compensation Committee met one time during the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2012.

The Compensation Committee oversees our remuneration policies and practices. The principal responsibilities of the
Compensation Committee include: (i) considering our overall remuneration strategy and, where information is
available, verifying the appropriateness of existing remuneration levels using external sources for comparison; (ii)
comparing the nature and amount of our directors’ and executive officers’ compensation to performance against goals
set for the year while considering relevant comparative information, independent expert advice and our financial
position; and (iii) making recommendations to the Board in respect of director and executive officer remuneration
matters, with the overall objective of ensuring maximum shareholder benefit from the retention of high quality board
and executive team members.

The Compensation Committee reviewed executive compensation with management in the course of the 2012
budgeting process. Authority was extended to management within the approved budget for compensation. Neither we
nor the Board engaged a compensation consultant in the years ended December 31, 2011 or 2012.

(iii) Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee

The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee is comprised of Jordan Kupinsky (Chairman) and Gordon
Pratt. We are currently in compliance with the “independent director” requirements under the NASDAQ rules pursuant
to NASDAQ Rule 5605(e) which requires a corporate governance and nominating committee to be comprised of
independent directors. The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee met one time during the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2011.

The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee oversees our approach to corporate governance matters. The
principal responsibilities of the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee include: (i) monitoring and
overseeing the quality and effectiveness of our corporate governance practices and policies; (ii) considering nominees
for our independent directors; (iii) adopting and implementing corporate communications policies and ensuring the
effectiveness and integrity of communication and reporting to our shareholders and the public generally; (iv) planning
for the succession of our directors and executive officers, including appointing, training and monitoring senior
management to ensure that the board and management have appropriate skill and experience; and (v) administering
the Board’s relationship with our management.

Our company receives suggestions for potential director nominees from many sources, including members of the
Board, advisors, and Shareholders. Any such nominations, together with appropriate biographical information, should
be submitted to us in accordance with our policies governing submissions of nominees discussed below. Any
candidates submitted by a Shareholder or Shareholder group are reviewed and considered in the same manner as all
other candidates. Qualifications for consideration as a board nominee may vary according to the particular areas of
expertise being sought as a complement to the existing board composition. However, qualifications include high level
leadership experience in business activities, breadth of knowledge about issues affecting us, experience on other
boards of directors, preferably public company boards, and time available for meetings and consultation on
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corporation matters. The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee seeks a diverse group of candidates who
possess the background, skills and expertise to make a significant contribution to the Board, to us and our
Shareholders, though our company does not have a formal policy with regard to the consideration of diversity in
identifying director nominees. The independent directors, in addition to any other board members as may be desirable,
evaluate potential nominees, whether proposed by Shareholders or otherwise, by reviewing their qualifications,
reviewing results of personal and reference interviews and reviewing such other information as may be deemed
relevant.
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Candidates whose evaluations are favorable are then recommended by the Corporate Governance and Nominating
Committee for selection by the full Board. The Board then selects and recommends candidates for nomination as
directors for shareholders to consider and vote upon at the annual meeting. In general, our company does not employ
executive search firms, or pay a fee to any third party, to locate qualified candidates for director positions.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

Our company has a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to all of our employees, officers and directors.
The Code of Ethics is designed to promote honest and ethical conduct, full, fair, accurate, timely and understandable
disclosure of financial information in the public filings and our communications and compliance with applicable laws,
rules and regulations. The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is posted on our website at www.atlas-fin.com, under
“Investor Relations” and a written copy is available to Shareholders upon written request to us, to the attention of Scott
Wollney. Information contained on our website, www.atlas-fin.com, is not deemed part of, nor is it incorporated by
reference into, this prospectus.

Limitation on Liability and Indemnification of Officers and Directors

Cayman Islands law does not limit the extent to which a company’s articles of association may provide for
indemnification of officers and directors, except to the extent any such provision may be held by the Cayman Islands
courts to be contrary to public policy, such as a provision purporting to provide indemnification against civil fraud or
the consequences of committing a crime.

Our memorandum and articles of association permit indemnification of officers and directors against all actions,
proceedings, costs, charges, expenses, losses, damages or liabilities incurred or sustained in their capacities as such
unless such losses or damages arise from breach of trust, breach of duty, dishonesty, fraud or willful default of such
directors or officers.

Atlas provides additional indemnification for our directors and senior executive officers separate from that provided in
our memorandum and articles of association. These agreements, among other things, require us to indemnify such
persons for certain expenses, including attorneys’ fees, judgments, penalties fines and settlement amounts actually and
reasonably incurred by such person in any action or proceeding arising out of their services as one of our directors or
executive officers, or any of our subsidiaries or any other company or enterprise to which the person provides services
at our request, including liability arising out of negligence or active or passive wrongdoing by the officer or director.

Our company also maintains a directors and officers liability insurance policy for our directors and officers.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted with respect to our directors
or officers or persons controlling us under the foregoing provisions, our company has been informed that in the
opinion of the SEC such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is therefore
unenforceable as a matter of United States law.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Compensation for executives is reviewed annually by the Compensation Committee of the Board. Current
compensation was set based on the following criteria: (i) our size and scale; (ii) nature of our strategic objectives; and
(iii) each executive’s role and responsibility. Industry data (such as surveys compiled by Towers Watson for the
property & casualty insurance industry) as well as the potential for incentive compensation is also taken into
consideration in the regular evaluation of base salary.

Employment agreements were executed with our executives in 2011 with an initial effective term of January 1, 2011
through December 31, 2013. These agreements provide for compensation based on a combination of base salary and
incentive compensation. Incentive compensation for 2011 and 2012 was based primarily on our achieving certain
financial and operational objectives, such as the successful expansion into new states and the establishment of
significant new agent relationships (”’cornerstone agents”). Amounts paid in 2011 and 2012 are shown in the Summary
Compensation Table under the heading “Bonus.” Incentive compensation in subsequent years will be based on a
combination of financial results and the achievement of strategic objectives, as determined by the Compensation
Committee of the Board. Under the current plan, incentive compensation can be paid in an amount up to 75% of the
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executive’s base salary. Final determination of incentive compensation is subject to approval by the Board. See also
“Employment Agreements with Named Executive Officers” below.

Subject to the terms and conditions of our stock option plan, the Compensation Committee of the Board is responsible
for granting option-based awards to executive officers as an incentive. In determining appropriate grants, the
Compensation
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Committee considers contributions to our operating results as well as expectations relative to near and longer term
strategic goals and objectives in support of profitable growth.

The maximum number of ordinary shares reserved for issuance under the stock option plan together with all other
security based plans is equal to 10% of issued and outstanding ordinary shares at the date of grant. The exercise price
of options granted under the plan cannot be less than the volume weighted average trading price of Atlas’ ordinary
shares for the five preceding trading days. Options generally vest over a three year period and expire ten years from
grant date.

On January 18, 2011, Atlas granted options to purchase 123,250 ordinary shares of Atlas stock to officers and
directors at an exercise price of C$6.00 per share. The options vest 25% at date of grant and 25% on each of the next
three anniversary dates and expire on January 18, 2021.

On January 11, 2013, Atlas granted options to purchase 91,667 ordinary shares under the Company’s stock option plan,
all of which were granted to the Company’s officers. The granted options have an exercise price of C$6.45 and vest
equally on the first, second and third anniversary of the grant date. The options expire on January 11, 2023.

In connection with completion of the offering of our ordinary shares, the Compensation Committee of the Board
expects to undertake a review of our executive and director compensation, including our stock option plan. This
review will include, among other considerations, comparisons to industry data, including the executive and director
compensation programs of other publicly traded property and casualty insurance companies. We expect that following
the closing of the offering, our executive compensation and director compensation will be increased to bring us in line
with other public companies in our industry. These changes may also include changes to our stock option plan for
directors and officers.

Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth information concerning the total compensation for the years ended December 31, 2012,
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 earned by the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, and
our two highest paid executive officers whose total compensation exceeded $100,000, if any (collectively, the “Named
Executive Officers”) and our directors.

Non-Equity e
. Option Incentive Nongualified All Other Total
Name and Principal Salary Bonus Deferred . .
Position Year (USS$) (USS$) Awards Plan CompensationCOmpensatlonCompensatlon
($HD CompensationE : (US$)® $)
$) arnings
Scott Wollney® 2012 $275,000 $110,000 — — — $9,000 $ 394,000
Chief Executive 2011 275,000 — 30,900 — — 8,654 314,554

Officer and Director 2010 — — — — — — N/A

Paul A. Romano® 2012 $175,000 $70,000 — — — $7,200 $252,200

Vice-Presidentand 2011 175,000 — 30,900 — — 6,646 212,546

Chief Financial

Officer 2010 — — — — — — N/A

N ) 2012 $175,000 $70,000 — — — — $245,000

bfgepzxgﬁfmm 2011 175,000 — 30,900 — — — 205,900
2010 — — — — — — N/A

Joseph Shugrue® 2012 $175,000 $70,000 — — — — 245,000

VP Claims 2011 175,000 — 30,900 — — — 205,900
2010 — — — — — — N/A

Notes:

(D
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The amounts shown in this column are valued based on the aggregate grant date fair value computed in
accordance Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification Topic 718,
Compensation-Stock Compensation.

Black-Scholes option pricing model was used to estimate the fair value of the 2011 option awards using
the following assumptions - risk-free interest rate of 2.27% to 3.13%; dividend yield of 0.0%; expected
volatility of 100%; and expected life of 6 to 9 years. Each of the individuals noted in the above
Summary Compensation Table received an option to purchase 25,000 ordinary shares during the year
ended December 31, 2011, at an exercise price of C$6.00 per ordinary share and expiring January 18,
2021.
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Scott Wollney and Paul Romano became our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer,
respectively, effective at 11:59 p.m. on December 31, 2010, upon the closing of the reverse merger
under TSXV Policy 2.4. Pursuant to the reverse merger, American Country and American Service,
together with their holding company American Acquisition, merged with and into our wholly-owned
subsidiary. For the year ended December 31, 2010, Messrs Wollney and Romano did not receive any
(2) compensation from us; however, they did receive compensation from Kingsway Financial Services, Inc.,
the former parent of American Acquisition, American Country and American Service, for services
provided to Kingsway Financial Services Inc. and its subsidiaries in various capacities including but not
limited to their capacities as officers of American Acquisition, American Country and American
Service. No compensation was paid directly by American Acquisition, American Country or American
Service to Messrs. Wollney and Romano.
Leslie DiMaggio and Joseph Shugrue were appointed as VP Operations and VP Claims of our insurance
) subsidiaries, respectivel D ber 31, 2010
, respectively on December 31, .
(4) Includes annual car allowance.
Employment Agreements with Named Executive Officers
Concurrently with the completion of the reverse merger, we entered into employment agreements with each of Scott
Wollney, Paul Romano, Joseph Shugrue, and Leslie DiMaggio. The key terms of such employment agreements
include:
@ employment being “at-will” and, subject to the severance and post-termination obligations described below, the
employment agreement being terminable by either party at any time;
(b) an annual base salary as set out in the table under the heading “Summary Compensation Table”;
the executive being entitled to participate in such employee benefit plans as we shall approve including,
(c) retirement plans, paid vacation and sick days/paid time off, disability plans, our stock option plan, or such other
plans as may be offered from time to time; and
) severance payments and post-termination obligations as further described below under “Termination and Change
of Control Benefits”.
Stock Option Plans
On January 3, 2011, we adopted a 10% rolling stock option plan in order to advance our interests by providing certain
“Eligible Persons” (any Employee, Officer, Director, or Consultant who is approved for participation in the Plan by the
Compensation Committee) with incentives. In accordance with TSXV Policy 4.4 - Incentive Stock Options, rolling
option plans must receive shareholder approval annually at our annual meeting.
The stock option plan provides for the granting of options to purchase ordinary shares to Eligible Persons. Options
may be granted at the discretion of the Compensation Committee in such number that may be determined at the time
of grant, subject to the limits set out in the stock option plan. The number of ordinary shares issuable under the stock
option plan is not more than 10% of the number of ordinary shares that are issued and outstanding as of the date of the
grant of an option. Any increase in the issued and outstanding ordinary shares will result in an increase in the available
number of ordinary shares issuable under the stock option plan, and any exercises of options or expirations or
terminations of options will make new grants available under the stock option plan.
The exercise price of all options is established by the Compensation Committee at the time of grant, provided that the
exercise price shall not be less than the market price of the ordinary shares on the date of grant. Under the stock option
plan, market price is equal to the volume weighted average trading price of the ordinary shares on the TSXV (the
principal stock exchange on which the ordinary shares are then listed for trading) for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date on which the option is granted. The expiry of options is also established by the
Compensation Committee at the time of the grant, provided that the options have a maximum term of ten years. The
Compensation Committee may determine when any option will become exercisable and may determine that the
Option will be exercisable in installments or pursuant to a vesting schedule.
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As of the date of this prospectus, we had 225,617 outstanding options, at an average exercise price of C$6.04 per
ordinary share.

On January 11, 2013, Atlas granted options to purchase 91,667 ordinary shares under the Company’s stock option plan,
all of which were granted to the Company’s officers. The granted options have an exercise price of C$6.45 and vest
equally on the first, second and third anniversary of the grant date. The options expire on January 11, 2023.

Outstanding Equity Awards at 2012 Fiscal Year End
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The following table sets forth all equity awards held by the Named Executive Officers that were outstanding at the end
of the most recently completed fiscal year.
Outstanding Equity Awards as at December 31, 2012

Number of Securities Number of Securities Underlying Option

Name Underlymg Unexercised Unexercised Options Exercise Option Expiration
Options (#) Unexercisable Price ($) Date
(#) Exercisable (1
Scott Wollney
Chief Executive 4,167 4,167 C$6.00 January 18, 2021
Officer and Director
Paul A. Romano
Vice-President and
Chief Financial 4,167 4,167 C$6.00 January 18, 2021
Officer
Leslie DiMaggio
VP Operations 4,167 4,167 C$6.00 January 18, 2021
Joseph Shugrue
VP Claims 4,167 4,167 C$6.00 January 18, 2021

These options were granted on January 18, 2011 and 25% of the ordinary shares subject to the option vested on the
(1)date of grant and the remaining 75% of the ordinary shares subject to the option vest in 25% increments on each of
the first through third anniversaries of the date of grant.
Pension Plan Benefits
Our company does not currently maintain any pension or retirement plans that provide for payments or benefits at,
following, or in connection with retirement.
Termination and Change of Control Benefits
We are party to employment agreements with the Named Executive Officers pursuant to which, if we terminate the
executive without Cause (as defined in the employment agreement), or the executive’s employment is terminated in
connection with a Change of Control (as defined in the employment agreement), the executive will be entitled to
certain payments and benefits as set out below.

If terminated without Continuation of base Lump-sum Payment Continuation of employee health benefits
Cause: salary for: () equal to: covered under COBRA for: (D2

During Year 1 24 months 100% of base salary 24 months

During Year 2 24 months 50% of base salary 12 months

During Year 3 12 months Most recently 12 months

awarded bonus

Notes:

1) The continuation of base salary and COBRA benefits will cease on the first of the month immediately following
the date on which the executive becomes employed by a subsequent employer.

@) Continuation coverage will continue for the period set forth in this column, or the maximum period of time
allowed by law, if shorter.

If, after a Change of Control (as defined in the employment agreement), the executive maintains employment with us

(or our successor) for at least 180 days, the executive may terminate his employment at will and will be entitled to

certain severance payments and post-termination benefits. Such payments and benefits shall be determined based upon

the length of such executives employment and shall mirror the payments and benefits that would have been in effect

had we terminated the executive’s employment without cause on such date.

2012 Director Compensation
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During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, we paid cash compensation for services rendered to the

non-employee members of our Board, and we reimburse the out-of-pocket expenses of our directors incurred in
connection with attendance at or participation in meetings of the Board. The compensation of our Board was set based
on the following criteria: (i) our size and scale; (ii) our perceived risk factors; and (iii) each member’s role and
responsibility.

The following table shows the compensation paid to directors for the most recently completed fiscal year. Named
Executive Officers, who also act as our directors, do not receive any additional compensation for services rendered in
such capacity, other than as paid by us to such officers in their capacity as officers. See “Summary Compensation Table”
for information regarding the compensation paid to our Named Executive Officers.

Fees
Earned Share-Base dNon—Equity All Other Total
Name or Paid Awards($) Incentive Plan Compensation ~ Compensation
in Compensation ($) ($) &))
Cash($)
Jordan Kupinsky() $50,000 Nil Nil Nil $50,000
Gordon Pratt® $60,000 Nil Nil Nil $60,000
Larry Swets, Jr. @ $40,000 Nil Nil Nil $40,000

Notes:

1) As of December 31, 2012, Mr. Kupinsky had an aggregate of 37,895 option awards outstanding and O share
awards outstanding.

As of December 31, 2012, each of Mr. Pratt and Mr. Swets had an aggregate of 27,195 option awards outstanding

and O share awards outstanding.

2

78

139



Edgar Filing: Atlas Financial Holdings, Inc. - Form 424B4

BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP OF ORDINARY SHARES AND SELLING SHAREHOLDER
The following table sets forth information concerning the beneficial ownership of the ordinary common shares and
restricted voting common shares held as of the date of this prospectus by (i) each person known to us to own
beneficially more than 5% of the total issued and outstanding ordinary shares (including restricted voting common
shares), (i1) each of our directors, (ii1) each of the executive officers, (iv) all directors and executive officers as a
group, and (v) the selling shareholder.
Each of the warrants and options included in this beneficial ownership table are exercisable within 60 days of the date
of this prospectus. Each of the warrants and options included in this table are also reflective of the one-for-three
reverse stock split.

Amount of

Amount of  Restricted

Ordinary Voting _
Shares Owned Shares ~ Of €1ss of Outstanding

(1)(2)(8) Owned Shares gﬁmmon
(1)(8) ares

Percentage
Percentage of Total
Name and Address of Beneficial Owner

5% Beneficial Owners

Atlas Investors LLC ®

Four Forest Park 783,496 — 29.47% 11.97%
Farmington, CT 06032

Kingsway America Inc.

150 Pierce Road, 6t Floor — 3,887,471 100.00% 63.27%
Ttasca, Illinois 60143

Magnolia Capital Partners, LLC

15 East 5th Street, Suite 3200 540,574 — 23.95% 8.8%
Tulsa, OK 74103 ©

Officers and Directors

Scott Wollney 326,140 — 13.48% 5.17%
Jordan Kupinsky 68,096 — 2.98% 1.10%
Gordon Pratt ¥ 783,496 — 29.47% 11.97%
Larry Swets, Jr. 20,396 — * *

Paul Romano 77,379 — 3.37% 1.25%
Joseph Shugrue 90,667 — 3.93% 1.46%
Bruce Giles 75,774 — 3.30% 1.23%
Leslie DiMaggio 86,172 — 3.74% 1.39%
All Directors and Executive Officers as a Group (8 individuals) (/) 1,528,120 — 61.16%  2391%

* -- Less than 1% of the outstanding ordinary shares

Notes:

(1) As of the date of this prospectus, there were 2,256,921 Ordinary Shares and 3,887,471 Restricted Voting
Shares outstanding. Included in the shares above are the following convertible securities, exercisable
within 60 days of the date hereof, that are deemed to be beneficially owned by the persons holding them
for the purpose of computing that person’s percentage ownership: Scott Wollney holds 157,015 warrants
and 6,250 options; Jordan Kupinsky holds 31,096 options; Gordon Pratt (managed through Atlas
Investors LLC, see (3) below) holds 381,550 warrants and 20,396 options; Larry Swets, Jr. holds 20,396
options; Paul Romano holds 33,767 warrants and 6,250 options; Joseph Shugrue holds 42,209 warrants
and 6,250 options; Bruce Giles holds 33,767 warrants and 6,250 options; and Leslie DiMaggio holds
38,832 warrants and 6,250 options. These shares are not treated as outstanding for the purpose of
computing the percentage beneficial ownership of any other person.
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Under Rule 13d-3, a beneficial owner of a security includes any person who, directly or indirectly,
through any contract, arrangement, understanding, relationship, or otherwise has or shares: (i) voting
power, which includes the power to vote, or to direct the voting of shares; and (ii) investment power,
which includes the power to dispose or direct the disposition of shares. Certain shares may be deemed to
be beneficially owned by more than one person (if, for example, persons share the power to vote or the
power to dispose of the shares). In addition, shares are deemed to be beneficially owned by a person if the
person has the right to acquire the shares (for example, upon exercise of a vested option) within 60 days
of the date as of which the information is provided. In computing the percentage ownership of any
person, the amount of shares outstanding is deemed to include the amount of shares beneficially owned
by such person (and only such person) by reason of these acquisition rights. As a result, the percentage of
outstanding shares of any person as shown in this table does not necessarily reflect the person’s actual
ownership or voting power with respect to the number of Ordinary Shares outstanding on the Record
Date.

Managed by Gordon Pratt, Managing Member, who is our director.

Held through Atlas Investors LLC, of which he is a Managing Member.

Includes 525,981 shares held by Mendota Insurance Company, a 100% owned subsidiary of Kingsway
America, Inc.

Messrs. James Adelson and Stephen Heyman exercise control and direction over 540,574 ordinary shares
(which includes 34 shares of Atlas held prior to the October 2, 2012 share purchase agreement).

The aggregate number of shares held by the officers and directors as a group and the corresponding
percentage ownership of the officers and directors as a group include convertible securities that are
exercisable within 60 days of the date hereof, that are deemed to be beneficially owned by the persons
holding them.

Reflects a one-for-three share consolidation, with all fractional shares rounded up to the nearest whole
share.
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CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

We were formed as JJR VI, a Canadian capital pool company, on December 21, 2009 under the laws of Ontario,
Canada. On December 31, 2010, following the reverse merger transaction described immediately hereafter, we filed a
Certificate of Registration by Way of Continuation in the Cayman Islands to re-domesticate as a Cayman Islands
company. In addition, on December 30, 2010 we filed a Certificate of Incorporation on Change of Name to change our
name to Atlas Financial Holdings, Inc. Our current organization is a result of a reverse merger transaction involving
the following companies:

(a)JJR VI, sponsored by JJR Capital, a Toronto based merchant bank;

American Insurance Acquisition Inc., or American Acquisition, a corporation formed under the laws of Delaware
as a wholly owned subsidiary of Kingsway America Inc., or KAI. KAl is a wholly owned subsidiary of Kingsway
Financial Services Inc., or KFSI, a Canadian public company formed under the laws of Ontario and whose shares
are traded on the Toronto and New York Stock Exchanges; and

(b)

© Atlas Acquisition Corp., a Delaware corporation wholly-owned by JJR VI and formed for the purpose of merging
with and into American Acquisition.
Prior to the transaction, each of American Service and American Country were wholly owned subsidiaries of KAI In
connection with the reverse merger transaction, KAI transferred 100% of the capital stock of each of American
Service and American Country, to American Acquisition (another wholly owned subsidiary of KAI) in exchange for
C$35.1 million of common and C$18.0 million of preferred shares of American Acquisition and promissory notes
worth C$7.7 million, aggregating C$60.8 million. In addition, American Acquisition raised C$8.0 million through a
private placement offering of subscription receipts to qualified investors at a price of C$2.00 per subscription receipt.

All references to share counts and per share values in connection with the reverse merger transaction are presented
prior to the one-for-three reverse stock split. KAI received 13,804,861 restricted voting common shares of our
company, which we refer to as “restricted voting shares”, then valued at $27.8 million, along with 18,000,000
non-voting preferred shares of our company then valued at C$18.0 million and C$8.0 million cash in exchange for
total consideration of C$60.8 million in the form of 100% of the outstanding shares of American Acquisition and full
payment of certain promissory notes. Investors in the American Acquisition private placement offering of subscription
receipts received 3,983,502 of our ordinary shares, which we refer to as “ordinary shares”, plus warrants to purchase one
ordinary share of our company for each subscription receipt at C$2.00 at any time until December 31, 2013. Every 10
common shares of JJR VI held by the shareholders of JJR VI immediately prior to the reverse merger were, upon
consummation of the merger, consolidated into one ordinary share of JJR VI. Upon re-domestication in the Cayman
Islands, these consolidated shares were then exchanged on a one-for-one basis for our ordinary shares.

In 2010, Atlas’ insurance subsidiaries remitted management fees monthly to KAI for managerial services. During the
first six months of 2010, those management fees included rent for Atlas’ Elk Grove Village headquarters building. That
building was contributed to Atlas on June 30, 2010 and rental payments ceased at that time. Management fees paid to
KALI totaled approximately $0 and $2.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Atlas’ insurance subsidiaries received $158,000 in regularly scheduled monthly mortgage payments for the six months
ended June 30, 2010 under mortgage loan agreements with KAI which were secured by the Elk Grove Village
headquarters building. In June 2010, American Service forgave the $1.7 million remaining balance of its mortgage
loan from KAI and American Country was paid the $1.8 million total remaining balance of its mortgage loan from
KALI
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The amounts due to Universal Casualty Company, a wholly owned subsidiary of KAI, relate primarily to claim
handling services provided to Atlas.

For the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, Atlas incurred $2.3 million and $4.5 million, respectively, in
commissions to Avalon Risk Management, Inc. (“Avalon”). In the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, Atlas also
incurred expenses of $137,000 and $125,000 respectively, for marketing services performed by Avalon. Avalon was a
KFSI subsidiary through October 2009, and has certain investors and directors in common with Atlas. Avalon acts as

a program manager for a surety program primarily consisting of U.S. Customs bonds. In this capacity they are
responsible for coordinating marketing, customer service and claim handling for the surety bonds written under this
agreement. This program is 100% reinsured by an unrelated third party.

During 2010, dividends of $16.7 million were paid to KAI by the insurance subsidiaries of Atlas.
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At the time of the reverse merger, Jordan Kupinsky was a director of JJR VI Acquisition Corp., Scott Wollney was an
executive officer of Kingsway America Inc. and American Acquisition, and Larry Swets, Jr. was a director of
Kingsway America Inc. The reverse merger was negotiated on an arm’s length basis. Copies of the Annual Report and
Filing Statement dated December 16, 2010 are available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com but are not deemed part of or
incorporated by reference to this prospectus.

No director or senior officer, and no associate or affiliate of the foregoing persons, no insider and no family member
of such persons has or has had any material interest, direct or indirect, in any transactions during the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2011, or any transaction, or any proposed transaction, which has materially affected or will materially
affect us.

A transition agreement between KAI and American Acquisition is currently in place whereby the two companies
provide certain services to each other. The agreement was designed to enable the uninterrupted operation of the
insurance subsidiaries following the reverse merger transaction. Such services include accounting support services,
auto claims handling services related to private passenger auto policies and tax return preparation services. In
addition, Atlas is provided certain claims handling services by Universal Casualty Company under a similar
agreement (a wholly owned subsidiary of KAI).

In connection with Atlas' acquisition of American Country and American Service in the reverse merger, a price
protection agreement was executed with KAI. Pursuant to this agreement, financial protection is provided in the event
that actual losses paid at any time in the future for exposures existing on or before September 30, 2010 exceed the
claims reserves which were carried on the books of our insurance subsidiaries for these exposures as at September 30,
2010. If such paid development exceeds $1 million, the agreement provides protection in the form of a
reimbursement obligation for 90% of up to $10 million of additional claims development.

For a description of the Registration Rights Agreement entered into in connection with the issuance of 13,804,861 of
our restricted voting shares to KAI see “Shares Eligible for Future Sale” section of this prospectus for more information.

There is now a limited amount of support, primarily in the area of information technology, provided by the Company’s
insurance subsidiaries to its former owner under such agreements. Costs related to these activities are passed on the
former owner and are immaterial relative to the Company’s revenue and expense structure.

As at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, Atlas reported net amounts receivable from (payable to) affiliates
as follows which are included within other assets and accounts payable and accrued expenses on the balance sheets
(all amounts in ‘000s).

September 30, December 31,

As at 2012 2011
Kingsway America Inc. $58 $291
Universal Casualty Company (50 ) (500 )
Kingsway Amigo Insurance Company 2 ¢! )
Total $10 $(210 )

Avalon was a KFSI subsidiary through October 2009, and had certain investors and directors in common with Atlas.
As of September 30, 2012, Atlas and Avalon no longer have any common directors nor investors. Avalon acts as a
program manager for our surety program primarily consisting of U.S. Customs bonds. In this capacity they are
responsible for coordinating marketing, customer service and claim handling for the surety bonds written under this
agreement. This program is 100% reinsured by an unrelated third party.
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DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES
Ordinary Shares

As of the date of this prospectus, there were 78 shareholders of record of our ordinary shares, of which 2,256,921 were
issued and outstanding. Additionally, there were 3,887,471 restricted voting shares outstanding, all of which convert
to ordinary shares upon the sale of such shares by KAI or their subsidiaries.

Voting Rights

The holders of our ordinary shares are entitled to receive notice of, and to attend, speak and vote at all meetings of
shareholders, except those at which holders of a specific class are entitled to vote separately as a class. Ordinary
shares will carry one vote per share held.

Dividends

Subject to the rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attached to any other classes of our shares ranking prior to
the ordinary shares, the holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive any dividends that are declared by our board
of directors at the times and for the amounts that the board of directors may, from time to time, determine. The
ordinary shares rank equally with the restricted voting shares as to dividends on a share-for-share basis and all
dividends declared shall be declared in equal or equivalent amounts per share on all ordinary shares and restricted
voting shares, without preference or distinction.

Rights in the Case of Liquidation, Winding-Up or Dissolution

Subject to the rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attached to the other classes of our shares ranking prior to
the ordinary shares, in the case of our liquidation, dissolution or winding-up or other distribution of our assets among
our shareholders for the purpose of winding up our affairs, the holders of ordinary shares shall be entitled to receive
our remaining property and shall be entitled to share equally with the holders of our restricted voting shares,
share-for-share, in all distributions of such assets.

Subdivision or Consolidation

No subdivision or consolidation of the ordinary shares shall occur unless, simultaneously, the restricted voting shares
are subdivided or consolidated in the same manner, so as to maintain and preserve the relative rights of the holders of
the shares of each of the said classes.

Conversion

In the event that an offer is made to purchase our restricted voting shares and the offer is one which is required,
pursuant to applicable securities legislation or the rules of a stock exchange on which the restricted voting shares are
then listed, to be made to all or substantially all of the holders of the restricted voting shares, each ordinary voting
share shall become convertible at the option of the holder into one restricted voting share at any time while the offer is
in effect until one day after the time prescribed by applicable securities legislation for the offeror to take up and pay
for such shares as are to be acquired pursuant to the offer. The conversion right may only be exercised in respect of
ordinary shares for the purpose of depositing the resulting restricted voting shares pursuant to the offer and for no
other reason, including with respect to voting rights attached thereto, which are deemed to remain subject to the
provisions concerning the voting rights for ordinary shares notwithstanding their conversion. Our registrar and transfer
agent shall deposit the resulting restricted voting shares on behalf of the holder.
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Should the restricted voting shares issued upon conversion and tendered in response to the offer be withdrawn by the
holders or not taken up by the offeror, or should the offer be abandoned or withdrawn, the restricted voting shares
resulting from the conversion shall be automatically reconverted, without further act on the part of us or the holder, to
ordinary shares.

The ordinary shares may not be converted into restricted voting shares, or vice versa, other than in accordance with
the conversion procedure set out in our articles.

As of the date of this prospectus, there are outstanding warrants to purchase up to 1,327,834 ordinary shares and
outstanding options to purchase up to 225,617 ordinary shares at exercise prices ranging between $3.00 and $6.45 per
share.
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Restricted Voting Shares

Upon the closing of this offering, our authorized capital stock will consist of 33,333,334 restricted voting shares. As
of the date of this prospectus, we have 3,887,471 restricted voting shares outstanding held by three stockholders of
record.

Voting Rights

Each restricted voting share entitles the holder to receive notice of, to attend, speak and vote at all meetings of
shareholders, except those at which holders of a specific class are entitled to vote separately as a class. Restricted
voting shares will carry one vote per share held, except where the number of outstanding restricted voting shares
exceeds 30% of the total number of all issued and outstanding voting shares. If the foregoing threshold is surpassed at
any time, the votes attached to each restricted voting share will decrease automatically without further act or formality
to equal the maximum permitted vote per restricted voting share such that the restricted voting shares as a class shall
not carry more than 30% of the total voting rights attached to the aggregate outstanding voting shares.

Dividends

Subject to the rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attached to any other class of our shares ranking prior to
the restricted voting shares, the holders of restricted voting shares are entitled to receive any dividends that are
declared by our board of directors at the times and for the amounts that our board of directors may, from time to time,
determine. The restricted voting shares shall rank equally with our ordinary shares as to dividends on a share-for-share
basis and all dividends shall be declared in equal or equivalent amounts per share on all ordinary shares and restricted
voting shares without preference or distinction.

Rights in the Case of Liquidation, Winding-Up or Dissolution

Subject to the rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attached to the other classes of our shares ranking prior to
the restricted voting shares, in the case of our liquidation, dissolution or winding-up or other distribution of our assets
among our shareholders for the purpose of winding up our affairs, the holders of restricted voting shares shall be
entitled to receive our remaining property and shall be entitled to share equally with the holders of ordinary shares,
share-for-share, in all distributions of such assets.

Subdivision or Consolidation

No subdivision or consolidation of the restricted voting shares shall occur unless, simultaneously, the ordinary shares
are subdivided or consolidated in the same manner, so as to maintain and preserve the relative rights of the holders of
the shares of each of the said classes.

Conversion

Upon the disposition of any restricted voting share such that the restricted voting share ceases to be beneficially
owned or controlled, directly or indirectly, by KFSI or KAI (and, for this purpose, such restricted voting share is also
not held, directly or indirectly, by a partnership, corporation or other entity in which KFSI or KAI holds, directly or
indirectly, ten percent (10%) or more of the capital, profits, value or voting interests), such restricted voting shares
shall be mandatorily converted into fully paid and non-assessable ordinary shares with each restricted voting share
converting into one of our ordinary shares.

In the event that an offer is made to purchase ordinary shares and the offer is one which is required, pursuant to
applicable securities legislation or the rules of a stock exchange on which the ordinary shares are then listed, to be
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made to all or substantially all of the holders of ordinary shares, each restricted voting share shall become convertible
at the option of the holder into one ordinary voting share at any time while the offer is in effect until one day after the
time prescribed by applicable securities legislation for the offeror to take up and pay for such shares as are to be
acquired pursuant to the offer. The conversion right may only be exercised in respect of restricted voting shares for the
purpose of depositing the ordinary shares pursuant to the offer and for no other reason, including notably with respect
to voting rights attached thereto, which are deemed to remain subject to the provisions concerning the voting rights for
restricted voting shares notwithstanding their conversion. Our registrar and transfer agent shall deposit the ordinary
shares on behalf of the holder.

Should the ordinary shares issued upon conversion and tendered in response to the offer be withdrawn by the holders
or not taken up by the offeror, or should the offer be abandoned or withdrawn, the ordinary shares resulting from the
conversion shall be automatically reconverted, without further act on the part of us or the holder, into restricted voting
shares.
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The restricted voting shares may not be converted into ordinary shares, or vice versa, other than in accordance with
the conversion procedure set out in our articles.

Preferred Shares

Upon the closing of this offering, our authorized capital stock will consist of 20,000,000 preferred shares. As of the
date of this prospectus, we have 20,000,000 preferred shares outstanding, of which 18,000,000 are beneficially owned
by Kingsway and 2,000,000 are beneficially owned by Hendricks.

Voting Rights

Except as otherwise required under applicable law, the holders of preferred shares will not be entitled to vote at any
general meeting of the company, but (for the avoidance of doubt) may vote at a separate class meeting convened in
accordance with the company’s articles of association.

Dividends

Dividends on the preferred shares shall accrue on a daily basis at the prorated annual rate of $0.045 per preferred share
and shall be cumulative. The holders of preferred shares shall be entitled to receive dividends or distributions, when
and as declared by our board of directors. We may elect to pay dividends on the preferred shares to each of preferred
shares pro rata in additional preferred shares with a value equal to the amount of the dividends, provided to the extent
we do not pay a dividend on the preferred shares in cash or in additional shares, the dividend shall accrue and
accumulate compounded yearly whether or not such dividend was declared. No dividends shall be paid on any
ordinary shares or restricted voting shares until dividends on the preferred shares shall have been paid or declared and
set apart. The holders of the preferred shares will be entitled to the greater of the dividend on the ordinary shares (on
an as converted basis) and the preferred shares in that fiscal year.

Liquidation Preference

Upon any liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of our company, whether voluntary or involuntary, before any
distribution or payment shall be made to any of the holders of our ordinary shares or restricted voting shares, the
holders of preferred shares are entitled to receive out of our assets, an amount in cash or kind for each preferred share
equal to the greater of (i) US$1.00 per preferred share (as such amount shall be appropriately adjusted to take into
account stock splits, stock dividends and similar events) plus all declared and unpaid dividends thereon and (ii) the
amount such holder would receive in liquidation if the preferred share had been converted to restricted voting shares
or ordinary shares, as applicable, immediately prior to the liquidation.

If, upon any liquidation, the assets of Atlas are insufficient to pay the liquidation amount, then our net assets will be
distributed among the holders of the preferred shares ratably in proportion to the full amounts to which they would
otherwise be entitled and such distributions may be made in cash or in property taken at our fair value, or both, at the
election of our board of directors.

After payment in full of the liquidation amount, including without limitation all declared and unpaid dividends on the
preferred shares, our assets legally available for distribution, if any, will be distributed ratably to the holders of
ordinary shares and restricted voting shares.

Conversion

Each preferred share shall be convertible, at the option of the holder thereof, at any time or from time-to-time after the
date that is the fifth (5th) anniversary of the issuance date of such share, at our office or any transfer agent for the
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preferred shares, into such number of fully paid and non-assessable shares of ordinary shares as is determined by
multiplying the number of the preferred shares by the “Conversion Factor” at the time in effect for such share. The
initial Conversion Factor per share per preferred share shall be equal to 0.1270; provided, however, that such
Conversion Factor shall be subject to adjustment as provided in our articles. Notwithstanding the foregoing, upon the
disposition of a preferred share such that the preferred share ceases to be beneficially owned and controlled by KFSI
or KAI (and, for this purpose, such preferred share is also not held, directly or indirectly, by a partnership, corporation
or other entity in which KFSI or KAI holds, directly or indirectly, ten percent (10%) or more of the capital, profits,
value or voting interests) such preferred share shall be convertible into ordinary shares rather than restricted voting
shares.
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Adjustments
The Conversion Factor of the preferred shares is subject to adjustment as provided in our articles.
Optional Redemption

We may redeem all or any of the outstanding preferred shares at any time or times at a redemption price equal to
US$1.00 per share, payable in cash plus all accrued and unpaid dividends calculated to the redemption date, whether
or not such dividends have been declared, commencing on the earlier of (i) two years after their date of issuance and
(ii) the date the preferred share is transferred to a party such that the preferred share ceases to be beneficially owned or
controlled directly or indirectly by KFSI or KAI (and, for this purpose, such preferred share is also not held directly or
indirectly by a partnership, corporation or other entity in which KFSI or KAI holds, directly or indirectly, ten percent
(10%) or more of the capital, profits, value or voting interests). We must give at least sixty (60) days prior written
notice to each holder whose preferred shares are to be so redeemed. In the event that less than all of the outstanding
preferred shares are to be redeemed, unless otherwise agreed to by the holders of 100% of the then outstanding
preferred shares in writing, we will select those shares to be redeemed from each holder of preferred shares pro rata, in
proportion to the number of preferred shares held by such holders.

Reverse Stock Split

On December 7, 2012, we held a shareholder meeting where a one-for-three reverse stock split was unanimously
approved. The reverse stock split was implemented on January 29, 2013 and resulted in a decrease of our authorized
and outstanding ordinary shares and restricted voting shares at a ratio of one-for-three. The primary objective of the
reverse stock split was to increase the per share price of our ordinary shares to meet certain listing requirements of the
NASDAQ Capital Market. As a result, the conversion factor for our preferred shares will decrease to 0.1270 ordinary
shares for each preferred share.

Registration Rights

The three holders of an aggregate of 3,887,471 ordinary shares and restricted voting shares of the company initially
held by KALI, are entitled to certain rights with respect to registration of such shares under the Securities Act pursuant
to the terms of the company’s registration rights agreement dated as of December 31, 2010 between the company and
KALI These shares are referred to as registrable securities and the related registration rights are described in additional
detail below.

Piggyback Registration Rights

If the company registers any of its securities for public sale, the company will have to register all registrable securities
that the holders of such securities request in writing be registered within 15 days of mailing of notice by the company
to such holders. However, this right does not apply to a registration relating to any of the company’s stock plans, the
offer and sale of debt securities, a corporate reorganization or other transaction under Rule 145 of the Securities Act.
The managing underwriters of any underwritten offering will have the right to limit, due to marketing reasons, the
number of shares so registered. If the number of securities requested to be included in such offering exceeds the
number of shares that can be sold in an orderly manner within a price range acceptable to the company, then the
company will include in such registration statement: first, the securities the company proposes to sell; second, the
registrable securities requested to be included in such registration; and third, any other securities of the company
requested to be included in such registration, in such manner as the company may determine.
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Demand Registration Rights

Upon written request of a holder or holders of such registrable securities, the company is required to file a registration
statement on Form S-3 or any successor form thereto for a public offering of all or any portion of the registrable
securities held by the requesting holder or holders, and as long as the reasonably anticipated aggregate price to the
public is at least $5,000,000, and the company is entitled to use Form S-3 to register such registrable securities, then
the company will be obligated to use our reasonable efforts to register the sale of all registrable securities that holders
may request in writing. The company will be obligated to prepare and file a registration statement relating to the
registrable securities within 45 days after receiving an initial demand notice from the holders. Thereafter, the company
will use commercially reasonable efforts to cause the registration statement to become effective not later than 90 days
from the date of filing. Additionally, the company will be required to provide prompt written notice of such
registration of the registrable securities to all holders of outstanding registrable securities at least 30 days prior to
filing. Such holders then have 15 days following receipt of such notice to demand their registrable securities be
included in such registration statement. The company may postpone the filing of a registration statement for up to 120
days once in a 12 month period if in the good faith judgment of the company’s board of directors such
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registration would be detrimental to the company. KAI’s shares are being registered pursuant to such demand
registration rights.

Registration Expenses

The company will pay all expenses incurred in connection with the piggyback registration rights described above,
except for underwriting discounts and selling commissions. The holder or holders or the registrable securities will pay
all expenses incurred in connection with the demand registration rights on Form S-3 as described above, except for
underwriting discounts and selling commissions. All underwriting discounts and selling commissions in connection
with any piggyback registration and demand registration described above will be borne by the participating sellers in
proportion to the number of registrable securities sold by each or as they may otherwise agree. Expenses related to this
offering, excluding underwriting discounts and selling commissions, shall be shared between the Company and KAI
such that each of the Company and the KAI will pay that amount of the aggregate expenses proportionate to the
number of shares that such party sells in this offering.

Expiration of Registration Rights
The registration rights described above will terminate as to a given holder of registrable securities, when such holder

of registrable securities can sell all of such holder’s registrable securities without restriction pursuant to Rule 144(b)(1)
promulgated under the Securities Act.
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U.S. TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The following is a discussion of the material U.S. federal income and estate tax considerations relating to the
purchase, ownership and disposition of our ordinary shares by holders that purchase our ordinary shares pursuant to
this offering and hold such ordinary shares as a capital asset within the meaning of Section 1221 of the U.S. Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). This discussion is based on the Code, the U.S. Treasury regulations
promulgated thereunder, and administrative and judicial interpretations thereof, all as in effect on the date hereof and
all of which are subject to change, possibly with retroactive effect, or to different interpretation. This discussion does
not address all of the U.S. federal tax considerations that may be relevant to specific holders in light of their particular
circumstances or to Non-U.S. Holders subject to special treatment under U.S. federal income tax law (such as banks,
insurance companies, brokers, dealers or traders in securities, commodities or currencies or other holders that mark
their securities to market for U.S. federal income tax purposes, foreign governments, international organizations,
controlled foreign corporations, passive foreign investment companies, tax-exempt entities, certain former citizens or
residents of the United States, persons deemed to sell our ordinary shares under the constructive sale provisions of the
Code, or holders that hold our ordinary shares as part of a straddle, hedge, conversion or other integrated transaction).
This discussion does not address any U.S. state or local or non-U.S. tax considerations or any U.S. federal gift or
alternative minimum tax considerations. The following discussion also assumes we are treated as a U.S. corporation
for U.S. federal income tax purposes. See ‘“Risk Factors - U.S.”

As used in this discussion, the term “U.S. Holder” means a beneficial owner of our ordinary shares that is for U.S.
federal income tax purposes:

an individual who is a citizen or a resident of the United States;

a corporation created or organized in or under the laws of the United States, any state thereof, or the District of
Columbia;

an estate that is subject to U.S. federal income tax on income regardless of its source; or

a trust if (i) it is subject to the primary supervision of a court within the United States and one or more United States
persons have the authority to control all of its substantial decisions or (ii) it has in effect a valid election under
applicable U.S. Treasury regulations to be treated as a United States person.

A “Non-U.S. Holder” means a beneficial owner of our ordinary shares (other than a partnership) that is not a U.S.
Holder.

If an entity treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes invests in our ordinary shares, the U.S.
federal income tax considerations relating to such investment will depend in part upon the status and activities of such
entity and the particular partner and upon certain determinations made at the partner level. Any such entity should
consult its own tax advisor regarding the U.S. federal tax considerations applicable to it and its partners relating to the
purchase, ownership and disposition of our ordinary shares.

PERSONS CONSIDERING AN INVESTMENT IN OUR ORDINARY SHARES SHOULD CONSULT THEIR
OWN TAX ADVISORS REGARDING THE U.S. FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL AND NON-U.S. INCOME,
ESTATE, GIFT AND OTHER TAX CONSIDERATIONS RELATING TO THE PURCHASE, OWNERSHIP AND
DISPOSITION OF OUR ORDINARY SHARES IN LIGHT OF THEIR PARTICULAR CIRCUMSTANCES.

Treatment as a U.S. Corporation

As described above under “Risk Factors-U.S. Tax Risks,” pursuant to certain “expatriation” provisions of the Code, the
reverse merger agreement relating to the reverse merger transaction provides that the parties intend to treat our
company as a U.S. corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes. The expatriation provisions are complex, are
largely unsettled and subject to differing interpretations, and are subject to change, perhaps retroactively. If our

155



Edgar Filing: Atlas Financial Holdings, Inc. - Form 424B4

company were not to be treated as a U.S. corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, holders could be subject to
materially different consequences than those described below. The remainder of this discussion assumes that we are
properly treated as a U.S. corporation.

U.S. Holders

Distributions on Ordinary Shares

As described in the section entitled “Dividend Policy,” we do not currently expect to declare or pay dividends on our
ordinary shares for the foreseeable future. A U.S. Holder that receives a distribution with respect to our ordinary
shares, including a constructive distribution, of cash or property, generally will be required to include the amount of
such distribution in gross income as a dividend to the extent of our current and accumulated “earnings and profits,” as
computed for U.S. federal income tax purposes. To the extent that a distribution exceeds our current and accumulated
“earnings and profits,” such distribution will
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be treated first as a tax-free return of capital to the extent of a U.S. Holder’s tax basis in our ordinary shares and
thereafter as gain from the sale or exchange of ordinary shares. (See “Sale or exchange of ordinary shares” below.)
Dividends received on ordinary shares generally will be eligible for the “dividends received deduction” available to
corporate U.S. Holders. Under current law, for taxable years beginning before January 1, 2013, a dividend paid by us
generally will be eligible to be taxed at the preferential tax rates applicable to long-term capital gains if the U.S.
Holder receiving such dividend is an individual, estate, or trust. A U.S. Holder generally will be eligible for the
reduced rate only if the U.S. Holder has held our ordinary shares for more than 60 days during the 121-day period
beginning 60 days before the ex-dividend date. The reduced rate does not apply to individual taxpayers who have
made an election to treat the dividends as “investment income” that may be offset against investment expense.

Sale or Exchange of Ordinary Shares

A U.S. Holder will recognize gain or loss on the sale or other taxable disposition of our ordinary shares in an amount
equal to the difference, if any, between the amount realized on such sale or exchange and the U.S. Holder’s adjusted
tax basis in such ordinary shares. A holder’s adjusted tax basis in our ordinary shares generally will equal the holder’s
purchase price for that share. Any such gain or loss generally will be capital gain or loss, which will be long-term
capital gain or loss if the ordinary shares is held for more than one year. Preferential tax rates presently apply to
long-term capital gains of a U.S. Holder that is an individual, estate, or trust. There are presently no preferential tax
rates for long-term capital gains of a U.S. Holder that is a corporation. Deductions for capital losses are subject to
significant limitations under the Code.

Backup Withholding Tax and Information Reporting Requirements

Unless a holder of ordinary shares is a corporation or other exempt recipient, payments to holders of ordinary shares
of dividends or the proceeds of sales or other dispositions of our ordinary shares that are made within the United
States or through certain United States-related financial intermediaries may be subject to information reporting. Such
payments may also be subject to U.S. federal backup withholding tax if the holder of our ordinary shares fails to
supply a correct taxpayer identification number or otherwise fails to comply with applicable U.S. information
reporting or certification requirements. Any amount withheld from a payment to a holder of ordinary shares under the
backup withholding rules is allowable as a credit against such holder’s U.S. federal income tax and may entitle such
holder to a refund, provided that the required information is furnished to the IRS.

Non-U.S. Holders

Distributions on Ordinary Shares

As described in the section entitled “Dividend Policy,” we do not currently expect to declare or pay dividends on our
ordinary shares for the foreseeable future. Subject to the discussion below under “-Payments to Foreign Financial
Institutions and Non-financial Foreign Entities” and “-Information Reporting and Backup Withholding”, if we make a
distribution of cash or other property (other than certain pro rata distributions of our ordinary shares) in respect of our
ordinary shares, the distribution will be treated as a dividend to the extent it is paid from our current or accumulated
earnings and profits (as determined under U.S. federal income tax principles). If the amount of a distribution exceeds
our current and accumulated earnings and profits, such excess generally will be treated first as a tax-free return of
capital to the extent of the Non-U.S. Holder’s tax basis in such ordinary shares, and then as gain realized on the sale or
other disposition of the ordinary shares and will be treated as described under the section entitled “-Sale, Exchange or
Other Disposition of Ordinary Shares” below.

Distributions treated as dividends on our ordinary shares that are paid to or for the account of a Non-U.S. Holder and

are not effectively connected with a U.S. trade or business conducted by such Non-U.S. Holder generally will be

subject to U.S. federal withholding tax at a rate of 30%, or at a lower rate if provided by an applicable tax treaty and

the Non-U.S. Holder provides the documentation (generally, Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) Form W-8BEN) required
to claim benefits under such tax treaty to the applicable withholding agent prior to the payment of the dividends.
Non-U.S. Holders that do not timely provide the applicable withholding agent with the required certification, but that
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qualify for a reduced treaty rate, may obtain a refund of any excess amounts withheld by timely filing an appropriate
claim for refund with the IRS.

If, however, a dividend is effectively connected with the conduct of a trade or business in the United States by a
Non-U.S. Holder (and, if required by an applicable tax treaty that a Non-U.S. Holder relies upon, is attributable to a
permanent establishment maintained by the Non-U.S. Holder in the United States), such dividend generally will not be
subject to the 30% U.S. federal withholding tax if such Non-U.S. Holder provides the appropriate documentation
(generally, IRS Form W-8ECI) to the applicable withholding agent. Instead, such Non-U.S. Holder generally will be
subject to U.S. federal income tax on such dividend in substantially the same manner as a U.S. holder (except as
provided by an applicable tax treaty). In addition, a Non-

89

158



Edgar Filing: Atlas Financial Holdings, Inc. - Form 424B4

U.S. Holder that is a corporation may be subject to a branch profits tax at the rate of 30% (or a lower rate if provided
by an applicable tax treaty) on its effectively connected earnings and profits for the taxable year, subject to certain
adjustments.

Sale, Exchange or Other Disposition of Ordinary Shares

Subject to the discussion below under “-Payments to Foreign Financial Institutions and Non-financial Foreign Entities”
and “-Information Reporting and Backup Withholding”, a Non-U.S. Holder generally will not be subject to U.S. federal
income tax on gain recognized on the sale, exchange or other disposition of our ordinary shares unless:

we are or have been a “United States real property holding corporation” for U.S. federal income tax purposes at any
time during the shorter of (i) the five year period ending on the date of such sale, exchange or disposition and (ii) such
Non-U.S. Holder’s holding period with respect to our ordinary shares, and certain other conditions are met;

such gain is effectively connected with the conduct of a trade or business in the United States by such Non-U.S.
Holder, in which event such Non-U.S. Holder generally will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on such gain
in substantially the same manner as a U.S. holder (except as provided by an applicable tax treaty) and, if itis a
corporation, may also be subject to a branch profits tax at the rate of 30% (or a lower rate if provided by an
applicable tax treaty) on all or a portion of its effectively connected earnings and profits for the taxable year,
subject to certain adjustments; or

such Non-U.S. Holder is an individual who is present in the United States for 183 days or more in the taxable year of
such sale, exchange or disposition and certain other conditions are met.

Generally, a corporation is a “United States real property holding corporation” if the fair market value of its United
States real property interests equals or exceeds 50% of the sum of the fair market value of its worldwide real property
interests and its other assets used or held for use in a trade or business (all as determined for U.S. federal income tax
purposes). We do not believe that we are, and we do not presently anticipate that we will become, a United States real
property holding corporation.

Payments to Foreign Financial Institutions and Non-financial Foreign Entities

Payments of any dividend on, or any gross proceeds from the sale, exchange or other disposition of, our ordinary

shares to a Non-U.S. Holder that is a “foreign financial institution” or a “non-financial foreign entity” (to the extent such
dividend or any gain from such sale, exchange or disposition is not effectively connected with the conduct of a trade

or business in the United States by such Non-U.S. Holder) generally will be subject to the U.S. federal withholding tax
at the rate of 30% unless such Non-U.S. Holder complies with certain additional U.S. reporting requirements or an
exception otherwise applies.

For this purpose, a foreign financial institution includes, among others, a non-U.S. entity that (i) is a bank, (ii) holds,
as a substantial portion of its business, financial assets for the account of others or (iii) is engaged (or holds itself out
as being engaged) primarily in the business of investing, reinvesting or trading in securities, partnership interests,
commodities or any interest in securities, partnership interests or commodities (as such terms are defined in the Code).
A foreign financial institution generally will be subject to this 30% U.S. federal withholding tax unless it (i) enters
into an agreement with the IRS pursuant to which such foreign financial institution agrees (x) to comply with certain
information, verification, due diligence, reporting, and other procedures established by the IRS with respect to “United
States accounts” (generally depository or custodial accounts maintained by a foreign financial institution (as well as
non-traded debt or equity interests in such foreign financial institution) held by one or more “specified United States
persons” or foreign entities with one or more “substantial United States owners” (as such terms are defined in the Code)
and (y) to withhold on (1) its account holders that either fail to comply with reasonable requests for certain
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information as specified in the Code or fail to provide certain permissible waivers and (2) its account holders that are
foreign financial institutions that do not enter into such an agreement with the IRS or (ii) is otherwise exempted by the
IRS in future guidance.

A non-financial foreign entity generally will be subject to this 30% U.S. federal withholding tax unless such entity

(1) provides the applicable withholding agent with either (x) a certification that such entity does not have any
“substantial United States owners” (as defined in the Code) or (y) information regarding the name, address and taxpayer
identification number of each “substantial United States owner” of such entity or (ii) is otherwise exempted by the IRS
in future guidance. These reporting requirements generally will not apply to certain specified types of entities,
including, but not limited to, a corporation the stock of which is regularly traded on an established securities market

and certain affiliated corporations, foreign governments and international organizations.

Although this legislation currently applies to applicable payments made after December 31, 2012, the IRS has recently
issued proposed Treasury regulations providing that the withholding provisions described above will generally apply
to payments of dividends on our ordinary shares made on or after January 1, 2014, and to payments of gross proceeds
from a sale or other disposition of such stock on or after January 1, 2015.
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Non-U.S. Holders should consult their own tax advisor regarding the application of these withholding and reporting
rules.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

Generally, the amount of dividends on our ordinary shares paid to a Non-U.S. Holder, the name and address of the
recipient and the amount of any tax withheld from such dividends must be reported annually to the IRS and to the
Non-U.S. Holder. In addition, separate information reporting and backup withholding rules that apply to payments to
certain U.S. persons generally will not apply to payments with respect to our ordinary shares to a Non-U.S. Holder if
such Non-U.S. Holder certifies under penalties of perjury that it is not a United States person (generally by providing
an IRS Form W-8BEN) or otherwise establishes an exemption.

Proceeds from the sale, exchange or other disposition of our ordinary shares by a Non-U.S. Holder effected through a
non-U.S. office of a U.S. broker or of a non-U.S. broker with certain specified U.S. connections generally will be
subject to information reporting (but not backup withholding) unless such Non-U.S. Holder certifies under penalties of
perjury that it is not a United States person (generally by providing an IRS Form W-8BEN) or otherwise establishes

an exemption. Proceeds from the sale, exchange or other disposition of our ordinary shares by a Non-U.S. Holder
effected through a U.S. office of a broker generally will be subject to information reporting and backup withholding
unless such Non-U.S. Holder certifies under penalties of perjury that it is not a United States person (generally by
providing an IRS Form W-8BEN) or otherwise establishes an exemption.

Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Any amounts withheld under the backup withholding rules generally will
be allowed as a refund or a credit against a Non-U.S. Holder’s U.S. federal income tax liability if the required
information is furnished by such Non-U.S. Holder on a timely basis to the IRS.

U.S. Federal Estate Tax

In the case of an individual Non-U.S. Holder, ordinary shares owned or treated as owned at such time by such

individual will be included in his or her gross estate for U.S. federal estate tax purposes and may be subject to U.S.
federal estate tax unless an applicable estate tax treaty provides otherwise.
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UNDERWRITING

We and the selling shareholder are offering the ordinary shares described in this prospectus in an underwritten
offering in which we, Sandler O’Neill & Partners, L.P., as representative of the U.S. underwriters for the offering,
Canaccord Genuity Corp., as representative of the Canadian underwriters in respect of the concurrent public offering
being undertaken in Canada pursuant a short form prospectus being filed in accordance with applicable Canadian
securities laws, and the selling shareholder will enter into an underwriting agreement with respect to the ordinary
shares being offered. Subject to the terms and conditions contained in the underwriting agreement, each underwriter
named below has severally agreed to purchase the respective number of ordinary shares set forth opposite its name
below.

Underwriters Number of Ordinary Shares
Sandler O’Neill & Partners, L.P. 2,887,500

Sterne, Agee & Leach, Inc. 618,750

Canaccord Genuity Corp. 412,500

EarlyBirdCapital, Inc. 103,125

Sidoti & Company, LLC 103,125

Total 4,125,000

The underwriting agreement provides that the underwriters’ obligations to purchase ordinary shares depends on the
satisfaction of the conditions contained in the underwriting agreement, including:

the representations and warranties made by us are true and agreements have been performed;

the absence of a material adverse change, in their determination, in the financial markets or in our business; and
othe delivery of customary closing documents.

Subject to these conditions, the underwriters are committed to purchase and pay for all of the ordinary shares offered
by this prospectus, if any such shares are purchased. However, the underwriters are not obligated to take or pay for the
ordinary shares covered by the underwriters’ over-allotment option described below, unless and until that option is
exercised.

Over-Allotment Option

We have granted Sandler O’Neill & Partners, L.P., as representative of the underwriters for the offering, an option,
exercisable no later than 30 days after the date of the underwriting agreement, to purchase up to an aggregate of
618,750 additional ordinary shares at the public offering price, less the underwriting discounts and commissions set
forth on the cover page of this prospectus. We will be obligated to sell these ordinary shares to the underwriters to the
extent the over-allotment option is exercised. The underwriters may exercise this option only to cover over-allotments,
if any, made in connection with the sale of our ordinary shares offered by this prospectus.

Commissions and Expenses

The underwriters propose to offer our ordinary shares directly to the public at the offering price set forth on the cover
page of this prospectus and to dealers at the public offering price less a concession not in excess of $0.2457 per share.
After the public offering of our ordinary shares, the underwriters may change the offering price, concessions and other
selling terms.

The following table shows the per share and total underwriting discounts and commissions that we will pay to the
underwriters and the proceeds we will receive before expenses. These amounts are shown assuming both no exercise
and full exercise of the underwriters’ over-allotment option.

Total without Total with
Per Share . .
over-allotment exercise over-allotment exercise
Initial public offering price $5.8500 $24,131,250.00 $27,750,938.00
Underwriting discount 0.4095 1,689,187.50 1,942,565.62
Proceeds to us (before expenses) 5.4405 8,160,750.00 11,527,059.38
Proceeds to the selling shareholder (before 5 4405 14.281.312.50 14.281.312.50

expenses)
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In addition to the underwriting discount, we will reimburse the underwriters for their reasonable out-of-pocket
non-legal expenses incurred in connection with their engagement as underwriters, regardless of whether this offering
is consummated, including, without limitation, marketing, syndication and travel expenses. Further, we will reimburse
the underwriters for their legal fees incurred in connection with their engagement as underwriters, regardless of
whether this offering is consummated. We will also pay for filing fees incident to, and the fees and disbursements of
counsel for the underwriters in connection with, securing any required review of the terms of this offering. We
estimate that the total expenses of this offering, exclusive of the underwriting discounts and commissions, will be
approximately $849,000 (including approximately $361,000 of reimbursable underwriter expenses) of which
approximately $309,000 are payable by us.

Indemnification

We have agreed to indemnify the underwriters, and persons who control the underwriters, against certain liabilities,
including liabilities under the Securities Act, and to contribute to payments that the underwriters may be required to
make in respect of these liabilities.

Lock-Up Agreement

We, our directors and executive officers and certain of our shareholders, including the selling shareholder, have
entered into lock-up agreements with the underwriters. Under these agreements, for a period of 180 days after the date
of this prospectus, we and each of our directors, executive officers and such shareholders may not, in each case or
without the prior written approval of the underwriters, subject to certain exceptions, offer, sell, agree to sell, contract
to sell, hypothecate, pledge, grant any option to purchase, make any short sale, or otherwise dispose of or hedge,
directly or indirectly, any of our ordinary shares, including but not limited to any securities that are convertible into or
exchangeable for, or that represent the right to receive, ordinary shares or any such substantially similar securities, or
publicly announce an intention to effect any such transaction. The foregoing directors, officers and shareholders have
also agreed not to enter into any swap or any other agreement or any transaction that transfers, in whole or in part,
directly or indirectly, the economic consequence of ownership of such securities.

If, during the last 17 days of such 180-day period we issue an earnings release or material news or a material event
relating to us occurs, or prior to the expiration of such 180-day period, we announce that we will release earnings
results during the 16-day-period beginning on the last day of such 180-day period, the foregoing restrictions will
continue to apply until the expiration of the 18-day period beginning on the issuance of the earnings release or the
occurrence of the material news or material event.

Listing

Our ordinary shares will be listed on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol “AFH” on or promptly after the
date of this prospectus. Atlas ordinary shares have been listed on the TSX Venture Exchange (“TSXV”) under the
symbol “AFH” since January 6, 2011.

Stabilization

In connection with this offering, the underwriters may, but are not obligated to, engage in stabilizing transactions,
over-allotment transactions, syndicate covering transactions and penalty bids.

Stabilizing transactions permit bids to purchase ordinary shares so long as the stabilizing bids do not exceed a
specified maximum, and are engaged in for the purpose of preventing or mitigating a decline in the market price of
ordinary shares while the offering is in progress.

Over-allotment transactions involve sales by the underwriters of ordinary shares in excess of the number of shares the
underwriters are obligated to purchase. This creates a syndicate short position that may be either a covered short
position or a naked short position. In a covered short position, the number of ordinary shares over-allotted by the
underwriters is not greater than the number of shares that they may purchase in the over-allotment option. In a naked
short position, the number of shares involved is greater than the number of shares in the over-allotment option. The
underwriters may close out any short position by exercising their over-allotment option and/or purchasing shares in
the open market.

Syndicate covering transactions involve purchases of ordinary shares in the open market after the distribution has
been completed in order to cover syndicate short positions. In determining the source of shares to close out the short
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position, the underwriters will consider, among other things, the price of shares available for purchase in the open
market as compared with the price at which they may purchase shares through exercise of the over-allotment option.
If
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the underwriters sell more shares than could be covered by exercise of the over-allotment option and, therefore, have a
naked short position, the position can be closed out only by buying shares in the open market. A naked short position
is more likely to be created if the underwriters are concerned that after pricing there could be downward pressure on
the price of the shares in the open market that could adversely affect investors who purchase in the offering.

Penalty bids permit the underwriters to reclaim a selling concession from a syndicate member when the ordinary
shares originally sold by that syndicate member are purchased in stabilizing or syndicate covering transactions to
cover syndicate short positions.

These stabilizing transactions, syndicate covering transactions and penalty bids may have the effect of raising or
maintaining the market price of our ordinary shares or preventing or mitigating a decline in the market price of our
ordinary shares. As a result, the price of our ordinary shares in the open market may be higher than it would otherwise
be in the absence of these transactions. Neither we nor the underwriters make any representation or prediction as to the
effect that the transactions described above may have on the price of our ordinary shares. These transactions may be
effected on the NASDAQ Capital Market, in the over-the-counter market or otherwise and, if commenced, may be
discontinued at any time.

Our Relationship with the Underwriters

Certain of the underwriters and/or their affiliates have engaged, and may in the future engage, in commercial and
investment banking transactions with us in the ordinary course of their business. They have received, and expect to
receive, customary compensation and expense reimbursement for these commercial and investment banking
transactions.
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SHARES ELIGIBLE FOR FUTURE SALE

Upon consummation of the offering, our ordinary shares will be listed on both the TSXV and the NASDAQ Capital
Market under the symbol AFH. Prior to this offering, there has not been a public market for our ordinary shares in the
United States, and there is no guarantee that a market will develop in the United States. Future sales of substantial
amounts of shares of our ordinary shares could cause the prevailing market price for our ordinary shares to fall or
impair our ability to raise equity capital in the future.

Following the completion of this offering, we will have outstanding 7,644,392 common shares, based on the number
of common shares outstanding as of February 11, 2013. This includes 2,625,000 ordinary shares that the selling
shareholder is selling in this offering, which shares may be resold in the public market immediately following the
offering, and 1,262,471 restricted voting common shares not offered and sold in this offering.

Of the 6,144,392 common shares outstanding prior to this offering, 1,262,471 restricted voting common shares not
offered and sold in this offering, as well as shares subject to employee stock options and certain options and warrants
will be upon issuance, “restricted securities,” as that term is defined in Rule 144 under the Securities Act. These
restricted securities are eligible for public sale only if they are registered under the Securities Act or if they qualify for
an exemption from registration under Rule 144 or Rule 701 under the Securities Act, which are summarized below.
As a result of the securities described below and subject to the provisions of Rules 144 and 701 under the Securities
Act, these restricted securities will be available for sale in the public market as follows:

403,138 shares subject to currently outstanding options, none of which have been exercised as of the date hereof; and
4,327,834 shares subject to currently outstanding warrants, none of which have been exercised as of the date hereof.

Rule 144

In general, under Rule 144 as currently in effect, once we have been subject to public company reporting requirements
for at least 90 days, a person who is not deemed to have been one of our affiliates for purposes of the Securities Act at
any time during the 90 days preceding a sale and who has beneficially owned the shares proposed to be sold for at
least six months, including the holding period of any prior owner other than our affiliates, is entitled to sell those
shares without complying with the manner of sale, volume limitation or notice provisions of Rule 144, subject to
compliance with the public information requirements of Rule 144. If such a person has beneficially owned the shares
proposed to be sold for at least one year, including the holding period of any prior owner other than our affiliates, then
that person is entitled to sell those shares without complying with any of the requirements of Rule 144.

In general, under Rule 144, as currently in effect, our affiliates or persons selling shares on behalf of our affiliates are
entitled to sell upon the expiration of the lock-up agreements described below, within any three-month period
beginning 90 days after the date of this prospectus, a number of shares that does not exceed the greater of:

1% of the number of ordinary shares then outstanding, which will equal approximately 76,444 shares immediately
after our offering; or

the average weekly trading volume of the ordinary shares during the four calendar weeks preceding the filing of a
notice on Form 144 with respect to such sale.

Sales under Rule 144 by our affiliates or persons selling shares on behalf of our affiliates are also subject to certain
manner of sale provisions and notice requirements and to the availability of current public information about us.

Rule 701

In general, under SEC Rule 701 as currently in effect, any of our employees, consultants or advisors who purchase
shares from us in connection with a compensatory stock or option plan or other written agreement in a transaction
before the effective date of our offering that was completed in reliance on Rule 701 and complied with the
requirements of Rule 701 will, subject to the lock-up restrictions described below, be eligible to resell such shares

90 days after the date of this prospectus in reliance on Rule 144, but without compliance with certain restrictions,
including the holding period, contained in Rule 144.
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Lock-Up Agreements and Market Standoff Provisions

Prior to the date of this prospectus, the directors and officers of the company have entered into a lock-up agreement
whereby (i) the directors and officers will not be able to sell their shares for 180 days, and (ii) the selling shareholder
will not be able to sell its remaining shares for 180 days following the date of this prospectus.

Registration Rights

We are party to a certain Registration Rights Agreement with Kingsway America Inc. Upon written request of a
holder or holders of registrable securities, the company is required to file a registration statement on Form S-3 or any
successor form thereto for a public offering of all or any portion of the registrable securities held by the requesting
holder or holders, and as long as the reasonably anticipated aggregate price to the public is at least $5,000,000, and the
company is entitled to use Form S-3 to register such registrable securities, then we will be obligated to use our
reasonable efforts to register the sale of all registrable securities that holders may request in writing. We will be
obligated to prepare and file a registration statement relating to the registrable securities within 45 days after receiving
an initial demand notice from the holders. Thereafter, we will use commercially reasonable efforts to cause the
registration statement to become effective not later than 90 days from the date of filing. Additionally, we will be
required to provide prompt written notice of such registration of the registrable securities to all holders of outstanding
registrable securities at least 30 days prior to filing. Such holders then have 15 days following receipt of such notice to
demand their registrable securities be included in such registration statement. We may postpone the filing of a
registration statement for up to 120 days once in a 12 month period if in the good faith judgment of our board of
directors such registration would be detrimental to us. These shares currently held by KAI that are being sold pursuant
to this prospectus were registered following the demand of KAI that such shares be registered. Further, if we register
any of our securities for public sale, we will have to use all commercially reasonable efforts to register all registrable
securities that the holders of such securities request in writing be registered within 15 days of mailing of notice by us
to all holders of the proposed registration. However, this right does not apply to a registration relating to any of our
stock plans, the offer and sale of debt securities, a corporate reorganization or other transaction under Rule 145 of the
Securities Act, or a registration on any registration form that does not include substantially the same information as
would be required to be included in a registration statement covering the sale of the registrable securities. The
managing underwriter of any underwritten offering will have the right to limit, due to marketing reasons, the number
of shares registered by these holders. If the number of securities requested to be included in such offering exceeds the
number of shares that can be sold in an orderly manner within a price range acceptable to the company, then the
company will include in such registration statement: first, the securities the company proposes to sell; second, the
registrable securities requested to be included in such registration; and third, any other securities of the company
requested to be included in such registration, in such manner as the company may determine. See ‘“Description of
Capital Stock-Registration Rights” for additional information.

LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the ordinary shares offered hereby will be passed upon for us by Conyers Dill & Pearman Ltd. Ellenoff
Grossman & Schole LLP, New York, New York is acting as United States securities counsel to Atlas. Sidley Austin
LLP, Chicago, IL is acting as counsel to the underwriters.

EXPERTS

Johnson Lambert LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, has audited our consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2011, as set forth in their report. For the year ended December 31, 2010,
KPMG LLP audited our consolidated financial statements, as set forth in their report.

KPMG LLP was discharged on June 20, 2011. KPMG LLP had not issued a report in the last two fiscal years
containing a disclaimer or adverse opinion, or that was qualified or modified. Our decision to discharge KPMG LLP
was approved by our audit committee and board or directors. We had no disagreements with KPMG LLP at any time
during their tenure as our independent accountant as to a matter of accounting principles or practices, financial
statement disclosures, or auditing scope or procedures, which disagreements if not resolved to their satisfaction would
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have caused them to make reference to the subject matter of the disagreement in their report, nor have there been any

reportable events.
We have included our financial statements in the prospectus and elsewhere in the registration statement in reliance on

both Johnson Lambert LLP’s and KPMG LLP’s report, given their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.
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Brown Smith Wallace LLC, an independent public accounting firm, has audited, under U.S. Generally Accepted
Auditing Standards, the consolidated financial statements of Camelot Services, Inc. and its sole subsidiary Gateway
Insurance Company, a non-issuer entity, for the years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, as set forth
in their report. We have included the financial statements of Camelot Services in the prospectus in reliance on Brown
Smith Wallace LLC’s report, given their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

We have filed with the SEC a registration statement on Form S-1 under the Securities Act with respect to the ordinary
shares offered hereby. This prospectus, which constitutes a part of the registration statement, does not contain all of
the information set forth in the registration statement or the exhibits filed therewith. For further information about us
and the ordinary offered hereby, reference is made to the registration statement and the exhibits filed therewith.
Statements contained in this prospectus regarding the contents of any contract or any other document that is filed as an
exhibit to the registration statement are not necessarily complete, and in each instance we refer you to the copy of such
contract or other document filed as an exhibit to the registration statement. We currently file periodic reports, proxy
statements and other information with the SEC pursuant to the Exchange Act. A copy of the registration statement and
the exhibits filed therewith may be inspected without charge at the public reference room maintained by the SEC,
located at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549, and copies of all or any part of the registration statement may be
obtained from that office. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information about the public reference
room. The SEC also maintains a website that contains reports, proxy and information statements and other
information regarding registrants that file electronically with the SEC. The address of the website is www.sec.gov.
Atlas Financial Holdings, Inc. is also listed on the TSX Venture Exchange (TSXV) under the trading symbol AFH.
Additional information relating to Atlas is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com, which can also be accessed from
our website at www.atlas-fin.com. This information is not deemed part of or incorporated by reference to this
prospectus.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors

Atlas Financial Holdings, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of financial position of Atlas Financial Holdings, Inc. and
subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31, 2010, and the related consolidated statements of comprehensive
income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor
were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration
of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Atlas Financial Holdings, Inc. as of December 31, 2010, and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Chicago, IL

April 15, 2011, except for Note 18, as to which the date is January 17, 2013
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Atlas Financial Holdings, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of financial position of Atlas Financial Holdings, Inc. (’the
Company”) as of December 31, 2011, and the related consolidated statements of comprehensive income, shareholders’
equity, and cash flows for the period ended December 31, 2011. These consolidated financial statements and financial
statement schedules listed on Item 15 of the Company’s Form 10-K are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to
perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Atlas Financial Holdings, Inc as of December 31, 2011, and the results of its

operations and its cash flows for the period ended December 31, 2011, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ Johnson Lambert & Co. LLP
Arlington Heights, Illinois
March 26, 2012

(except for Note 18, as to which the date is January 17, 2013)
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ATLAS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(in '000s, except for share and per share data)

Assets

Investments, available for sale

Fixed income securities, at fair value (Amortized cost $101,473 and $148,531)
Equity securities, at fair value (cost $994 and $0)

Total Investments

Cash and cash equivalents

Accrued investment income

Accounts receivable and other assets (Net of allowance of $4,254 and $4,212)
Reinsurance recoverables, net

Prepaid reinsurance premiums

Deferred policy acquisition costs

Deferred tax asset, net

Software and office equipment, net

Assets held for sale

Total Assets

Liabilities

Claims liabilities

Unearned premiums

Due to reinsurers and other insurers
Other liabilities and accrued expenses
Total Liabilities

Shareholders’ Equity

Preferred shares, par value per share $0.001, 100,000,000 shares authorized,
18,000,000 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2011 and December 31,
2010. Liquidation value $1.00 per share

Ordinary shares, par value per share $0.003, 266,666,667 shares authorized,
1,541,842 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2011 and 1,517,834 at
December 31, 2010

Restricted voting common shares, par value per share $0.003, 33,333,334 shares
authorized, 4,601,621 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2011 and
December 31, 2010

Additional paid-in capital

Retained deficit

Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax

Total Shareholders’ Equity

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

December 31,

2011

$103,491
1,141
104,632
23,249
586
9,579
8,044
2,214
3,020
6,775
440
13,634
$172,173

$91,643
15,691
5,701
2,884
$115919

$18,000

14

152,652
(115,841
1,425
$56,254
$172,173

2010

$154,011
154,011
19,037
1,293
13,340
4,277
6,999
3,804
6,399
1,274
15,004
$225,438

$132,579
17,061
9,614
6,015
$165,269

$18,000

14

152,466
(113,371
3,056
$60,169
$225,438
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ATLAS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(in ‘000s, except for shares and per share data)
Year ended December 31,

2011 2010
Net premiums earned $35,747 $53,603
Net claims incurred 28,994 48,074
Acquisition costs 7,294 11,115
Other underwriting expenses 10,697 18,398
Underwriting loss (11,238 ) (23,984
Net investment income 3,280 4,616
Net investment gains 4,201 888
Other income (expense), net 124 (757
Loss from operations before income tax (benefit)/expense (3,633 ) (19,237
Income tax (benefit)/expense (1,163 ) 2,575
Net loss attributable to Atlas $(2,470 ) $(21,812
Other comprehensive loss:
Changes in net unrealized gains (losses) $154 $3,514
Reclassification to income of net (gains) losses (3,469 ) (203
Effect of income tax — —
Pension Liability
Settlement of pension plan 2,473 —
Minimum pension liability adjustment — (153
Effect of income tax (789 ) —
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the period (1,631 ) 3,158
Total comprehensive loss (4,101 ) (18,654
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding 6,124,542 6,119,455
Loss per common share, basic $(0.54 ) $(3.56
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 6,124,542 6,119,455
Loss per common share, diluted $(0.54 ) $(3.56

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

)
)
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ATLAS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(in ‘000s)

Restricted
Preferred Ordinary Voting
Shares Shares Common

Shares

Balance December
31, 2009

Net loss

Capital
Contribution
Dividends Paid
Merger of Southern
United

Forgiveness of debt
Other
comprehensive
income

Balance December
31,2010

Net loss

Other
comprehensive loss
Share-based
compensation
Stock options
exercised
Settlement of
pension plan, net of
tax

Balance December
31,2011

$18,000 $4 $14

$18,000 $4 $14

$18,000 $4 $14

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

F-5

$(113,371 )

Accumulated

Other

Comprehensive
Income (loss)

$ (433

331

3,158

$3,056

(3,315

1,684

$(115,841 ) $1,425

Total

$52,546
(21,812 )
26,994
(16,700 )
16,430
447 )

3,158
$60,169

(2,470 )
(3,315 )

113

73

1,684

$56,254
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ATLAS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in ‘000s)

Operating Activities

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used by operating activities:
Forgiveness of mortgage loan

Amortization of fixed assets

Settlement of pension plan

Share-based compensation expense

(Gain)/loss on sale of fixed assets

Deferred income taxes

Net realized gains

Amortization of bond premiums and discounts
Net changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects of the merger of subsidiary:
Accounts receivable and other assets, net

Due from reinsurers and other insurers
Deferred policy acquisition costs

Income taxes receivable

Other assets and accrued investment income
Unpaid claims

Unearned premium

Due to reinsurers and other insurers

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Net change in other balances

Net cash used by operating activities

Financing activities:

Capital contributions

Options exercised

Dividends paid

Issuance of notes payable

Net cash provided/(used) by financing activities
Investing activities:

Purchase of securities

Proceeds from sales and maturities of securities
Sale of assets held for sale

Cash acquired from merger of subsidiary

Net (purchases)/additions of software and other equipment
Net cash provided by investing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year
Supplementary disclosure of cash information:
Represented by:

Cash on hand and balances with banks
Investments with original maturities less than 30 days
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010
$(2,470 ) $(21,812
— 1,695
218 3,370
2,544 —

113 —

(54 ) 3

(1,163 ) 2,875
(4,147 ) (891
953 1,431
3,762 13,074
1,018 (5,255
784 5,750
— 271

707 493
(40,936 ) (36,936
(1,370 ) (16,789
(3,913 ) 9,193
(3,207 ) (1,472
— (7,466
$47,161 ) $(52,466
$— $—

73

— (16,700
$73 $(16,700
$(64,563 ) $(25,826
113,823 106,684
2,436 —

— 3,871
(396 ) (3,221
$51,300 $81,508
4,212 12,342
19,037 6,695
$23,249 $19,037
$23,249 $2,329
— 16,708
$23,249 $19,037
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Cash paid for:
Interest — —
Income taxes — (227 )

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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1.NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(All amounts in thousands of US dollars, except for amounts preceded by “C” as thousands of Canadian dollars, share

and per share amounts)

Formation and Description of the Business (shares shown in this section reflect pre-split values)

Atlas Financial Holdings, Inc. (“Atlas”, or “The Company”) is a financial services holding company formed on December

31, 2010 in a transaction amongst:

@ JIR VI Acquisition Corporation (“JJR VI”), a Canadian Capital Pool Company sponsored by JJR Capital, a Toronto
based merchant bank,

American Insurance Acquisition Inc., (“American Acquisition™), a corporation formed under the laws of Delaware by

Kingsway America Inc. (“KAI”), a subsidiary of Kingsway Financial Services Inc. (“KFSI”), a Canadian public

company formed under the laws of Ontario and whose shares are traded on the Toronto and New York Stock

Exchanges, and

(c)Atlas Acquisition Corp, a Delaware corporation formed by JJIR VI.

Prior to the transaction, KAI transferred 100% of the capital stock of American Service Insurance Company

(“American Service”) and American Country Insurance Company (“American Country,” together with American Service

the “insurance subsidiaries”), to American Acquisition in exchange for common and preferred shares of American

Acquisition and promissory notes aggregating C$60,780. In addition, American Acquisition raised C$7,967 through a

private placement offering of subscription receipts to qualified investors at a price of C$2.00 per subscription receipt.

All references to share counts and per share values in connection with the reverse merger transaction are presented

prior to the one-for-three reverse stock split. KAI received 13,804,861 restricted voting common shares valued at

$27,760, along with 18,000,000 non-voting preferred shares valued at $18,000 and C$7,967 cash in exchange for

100% of the outstanding shares of American Acquisition and full payment of the promissory notes. Investors in the

American Acquisition subscription receipts received 3,983,502 ordinary shares plus warrants to purchase one ordinary

voting common share for each subscription receipt at C$2.00 at any time until December 31, 2013. JJR VI common

shares held by former shareholders of JJR VI were consolidated on the basis of one post-consolidation JJR VI

common share for every 10 pre-consolidation JJR VI common shares. The post-consolidation JJR VI common shares

were then exchanged on a one-for-one basis for ordinary shares of Atlas.

Atlas commenced operations on December 31, 2010. Atlas ordinary shares have been listed on the TSX Venture

Exchange (“TSXV”) under the symbol “AFH” since January 6, 2011.

The primary business of Atlas is commercial automobile insurance in the United States, with a niche market

orientation and focus on insurance for the “light” commercial automobile sector including taxi cabs, non-emergency

paratransit, limousine, livery and business auto.

(b)

The business of the Company is carried on through its insurance subsidiaries. The insurance subsidiaries distribute
their insurance products through a network of retail independent agents. Together, American Country and American
Service are licensed to write property and casualty insurance in 46 states plus the District of Columbia in the United
States. The management and operating infrastructure of American Country is integrated with that of American
Service.

On February 25, 2010, while under KAI ownership, Southern United Fire Insurance Company (Southern United)
merged into American Service. The transaction was accounted for as a merger of companies under common control
with the Southern United assets and liabilities included at their carrying values and its results of operations included in
the financial statements from the date of the merger.

F-7
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of presentation - These statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP”). All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have
been eliminated. To conform to the current year presentation, certain amounts in the prior years’ consolidated financial
statements and notes have been reclassified.

Classification of assets and liabilities - It is not customary in the insurance and financial services industries to classify
assets and liabilities as current (settled in 1 year or less) and non-current (settled beyond 1 year). Assets and liabilities
that could otherwise be classified as current include cash and cash equivalents, accrued investment income, accounts
receivable and other assets, due from reinsurers and other insurers, income tax receivable, deferred policy acquisition
costs, assets held for sale, accounts payable and accrued expenses, due to reinsurers and other insurers. Balances that
would otherwise be classified as non-current include deferred tax assets and office equipment. All other assets and
liabilities include balances that are both current and non-current.

Reverse acquisition continuation accounting - Atlas was formed through a reverse triangular merger and these
consolidated financial statements are those of Atlas and subsidiaries and have been prepared in accordance with
Accounting Standard Codification ("ASC”) 805 Business Combinations. Financial statements prepared following the
reverse merger are presented in the name of the legal parent acquirer, Atlas, but are a continuation of the financial
statements of the accounting acquirer, American Acquisition, with an adjustment for the capital structure (that is the
number and type of equity interests, including equity instruments issued to effect the merger) of Atlas, as the legal
parent acquirer and accounting acquiree. Accordingly, and as a result of the December 31, 2010 merger date,
shareholders’ equity at December 31, 2010 reflects the common shares outstanding at the date of the merger together
with the ordinary shares, restricted voting common shares and preferred shares that were issued to effect the merger,
and also reflect the historical retained earnings (retained deficit) balances of American Acquisition, as the accounting
acquirer.

Estimates and assumptions - The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from these estimates and changes in estimates are recorded in the accounting period
in which they are determined. The liability for unpaid loss and loss adjustment expenses and related amounts
recoverable from reinsurers represents the most significant estimate in the accompanying financial statements.
Significant estimates in the accompanying financial statements also include the fair values of investments in bonds,
deferred tax asset valuation, premium receivable bad debt allowance and deferred policy acquisition cost
recoverability.

Business combinations - The reverse merger was consummated and Atlas commenced operations on December 31,
2010. In accordance with ASC 805 Business Combinations, American Acquisition is considered the accounting
acquirer and Atlas (formerly JJIR VI), the legal acquirer, is considered to be the accounting acquiree. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements for all periods presented herein are a continuation of the financial statements of
American Acquisition adjusted for the legal capital of Atlas.

Principles of consolidation - The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Atlas and the entities it
controls, its subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are entities over which Atlas, directly or indirectly, has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies in order to obtain the benefits from their activities, generally accompanying an equity
shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to Atlas and would be de-consolidated from the date that control ceases. The operating results of
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year will be included in the consolidated statement of operations from
the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. All significant intercompany
transactions and balances are eliminated in consolidation. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by Atlas.
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The following are Atlas’ subsidiaries, all of which are 100% owned, either directly or indirectly, together with the
jurisdiction of incorporation that are included in consolidated financial statements:

American Insurance Acquisition Inc. (Delaware)

American Country Insurance Company (Illinois)

American Service Insurance Company, Inc. (Illinois)

Financial Instruments - Financial instruments are recognized and derecognized using trade date accounting, since that
is the date Atlas contractually commits to the purchase or sale with the counterparty.

Effective interest method - Atlas utilizes the effective interest method for calculating the amortized cost of a financial
asset and to allocate interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the financial instrument. Interest
income is reported net of amortization of premium and accretion of discount. Realized gains and losses on disposition
of available-for-sale securities are based on the net proceeds and the adjusted cost of the securities sold, using the
specific identification method.

Financial assets - Atlas classifies financial assets as described below. Management determines the classification at
initial recognition based on the purpose of the financial asset.

Cash and cash equivalents - Cash and cash equivalents include cash and highly liquid securities with original
maturities of 90 days or less.

Available-for-sale (“AFS”) - Investments in fixed income securities are classified as available-for-sale. Securities are
classified as available-for-sale when Atlas may decide to sell those securities due to changes in market interest rates,
liquidity needs, changes in yields or alternative investments, and for other reasons. Available-for-sale securities are
carried at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, net of income tax, included as a separate component of
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in shareholder’s equity.

Accounts receivable and other assets - Receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. These assets are recognized initially at fair value, together with directly attributable
transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortized cost. Accounts receivable include premium balances due
and uncollected and installment premiums not yet due from agents and insureds.

Atlas evaluates the collectibility of accounts receivable based on a combination of factors. When aware of a specific
customer’s inability to meet its financial obligations, such as in the case of bankruptcy or deterioration in the customer’s
operating results or financial position, Atlas records a specific reserve for bad debt to reduce the related receivable to
the amount Atlas reasonably believes is collectible. Atlas also records reserves for bad debt for all other customers
based on a variety of factors, including the length of time the receivables are past due and historical collection
experience. Accounts are reviewed for potential write-off on a case-by-case basis. Accounts deemed uncollectible are
written off, net of expected recoveries. If circumstances related to specific customers change, the Company’s estimates
of the recoverability of receivables could be further adjusted.

Premiums receivable are shown net of bad debt allowance of $4,254 and $4,212 at December 31, 2011 and December
31, 2010, respectively. Bad debt expense of $248 and $2,766 was incurred in the years ended December 31, 2011 and
December 31, 2010, respectively. Atlas’ allowance for bad debt primarily relates to a single agent. Settlement
proceedings with this agent were ongoing as of December 31, 2011. The entire receivable balance from this agency
was fully reserved as of December 31, 2011. A settlement executed in April 2012, which resulted in a minor recovery
of previously reserved amounts, will be reflected in Atlas’ financial statements for the six month period ended June 30,
2012.

Impairment of financial assets - Atlas assesses, on a quarterly basis, whether there is evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. An investment is considered impaired when the fair value of the investment is
less than its cost or amortized cost. When an investment is impaired, the Company must make a determination as to
whether the impairment is other-than-temporary.
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Under ASC guidance, with respect to an investment in an impaired debt security, other-than temporary impairment
(OTTI) occurs if (a) there is intent to sell the debt security, (b) it is more likely than not it will be required to sell the
debt security before its anticipated recovery, or (c) it is probable that all amounts due will be unable to be collected
such that the entire cost basis of the security will not be recovered. If Atlas intends to sell the debt security, or will
more likely than not be required to sell the debt security before the anticipated recovery, a loss in the entire amount of
the impairment is reflected in net realized gains (losses) on investments in the consolidated statements of income. If
Atlas determines that it is probable it will be unable to collect all amounts and Atlas has no intent to sell the debt
security, a credit loss is recognized in net realized gains (losses) on investments in the consolidated statements of
income to the extent that the present value of expected cash flows is less than the amortized cost basis; any difference
between fair value and the new amortized cost basis (net of the credit loss) is reflected in other comprehensive income
(losses), net of applicable income taxes.

There were no other-than-temporary impairments recognized in 2011.

Fair values of financial instruments - Atlas has used the following methods and assumptions in estimating its fair
value disclosures:

Fair values for bonds are based on quoted market prices, when available. If quoted market prices are not available, fair
values are based on quoted market prices of comparable instruments or values obtained from independent pricing
services.

Atlas’ fixed income portfolio is managed by Asset Allocation Management (“AAM”), an SEC registered investment
advisor specializing in the management of insurance company portfolios. Management works directly with AAM to
ensure that Atlas benefits from their expertise and also evaluates investments as well as specific positions
independently using internal resources. AAM has a team of credit analysts for all investment grade fixed income
sectors. The investment process begins with an independent analyst review of each security’s credit worthiness using
both quantitative tools and qualitative review. At the issuer level, this includes reviews of past financial data, trends in
financial stability, projections for the future, reliability of the management team in place, market data (credit spread,
equity prices, trends in this data for the issuer and the issuer’s industry). Reviews also consider industry trends and the
macro-economic environment. This analysis is continuous, integrating new information as it becomes available. In
short, Atlas does not rely on rating agency ratings to make investment decisions, but instead with the support of its
independent investment advisors, do independent fundamental credit analysis to find the best securities possible.
AAM has found that over time this process creates an ability to sell securities prior to rating agency downgrades or to
buy securities before upgrades. As of December 31, 2011, this process did not generate any significant difference in
the rating assessment between Atlas’ review and the rating agencies.

Atlas employs specific control processes to determine the reasonableness of the fair value of its financial assets. These
processes are designed to supplement those performed by AMM to ensure that the values received from them are
accurately recorded and that the data inputs and the valuation techniques utilized are appropriate, consistently applied,
and that the assumptions are reasonable and consistent with the objective of determining fair value. For example, on a
continuing basis, Atlas assesses the reasonableness of individual security values which have stale prices or whose
changes exceed certain thresholds as compared to previous values received from those AMM or to expected prices.
The portfolio is reviewed routinely for transaction volumes, new issuances, any changes in spreads, as well as the
overall movement of interest rates along the yield curve to determine if sufficient activity and liquidity exists to
provide a credible source for market valuations. When fair value determinations are expected to be more variable, they
are validated through reviews by members of management or the Board of Directors who have relevant expertise and
who are independent of those charged with executing investment transactions.

Deferred policy acquisition costs (DAC) - Atlas defers producers’ commissions, premium taxes and other underwriting
and marketing costs directly relating to the acquisition of premiums written to the extent they are considered
recoverable. These costs are then expensed as the related premiums are earned. The method followed in determining
the deferred policy acquisition costs limits the deferral to its realizable value by giving consideration to estimated
future claims and expenses to be incurred as premiums are earned. Changes in estimates, if any, are recorded in the
accounting period in which they are determined. Anticipated investment income is included in determining the
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realizable value of the deferred policy acquisition costs. Atlas’ deferred policy acquisition costs are reported net of
ceding commissions.
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Deferred policy acquisition costs for the years ended December 31 follows:

2011 2010
Balance, beginning of year $3,804 $9,399
Acquisition costs deferred 6,510 5,520
Amortization charged to income 7,294 11,115
Balance, end of year $3,020 $3,804

When anticipated losses, loss adjustment expenses, commissions and other acquisition costs exceed recorded unearned
premium, and any future installment premiums on existing policies, a premium deficiency reserve is recognized by
recording an additional liability for the deficiency, with a corresponding charge to operations. Atlas utilizes
anticipated investment income as a factor in its premium deficiency calculation. In 2011 and 2010, Atlas concluded
that no premium deficiency adjustments were necessary.

Income taxes - Income taxes expense (benefit) includes all taxes based on taxable income (loss) of Atlas and its
subsidiaries and are recognized in the statement of operations except to the extent that they relate to items recognized
directly in other comprehensive income, in which case the income tax effect is also recognized in other comprehensive
income.

Deferred taxes are recognized using the asset and liability method of accounting. Under this method the future tax
consequences attributable to temporary differences in the tax basis of assets, liabilities and items recognized directly
in equity and the financial reporting basis of such items are recognized in the financial statements by recording
deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax assets.

Deferred tax assets related to the carry-forward of unused tax losses and credits and those arising from temporary
differences are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against
which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to
taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on
future tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period of enactment.

When considering the extent of the valuation allowance on Atlas’ deferred tax asset, the weight given by management
to the positive and negative evidence is commensurate with the extent to which the evidence may be objectively
verified. GAAP states that a cumulative loss in recent years is a significant piece of negative evidence that is difficult
to overcome in determining that a valuation allowance is not needed against deferred tax assets. However, the strength
and trend of earnings, as well as other relevant factors are considered.

Office equipment and software — Office equipment is stated at historical cost less deprecation. Subsequent costs are
included in the asset’s carrying amount or capitalized as a separate asset only when it is probable that future economic
benefits will be realized. Repairs and maintenance are recognized as an expense during the period incurred.
Depreciation on equipment is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives which range from 5
years for vehicles, 7 years for furniture and the term of the lease for leased equipment.

Insurance contracts — Contracts under which Atlas’ insurance subsidiaries accept risk at the inception of the contract
from another party (the insured holder of the policy) by agreeing to compensate the policyholder or other insured
beneficiary if a specified future event (the insured event) adversely affects the holder of the policy are classified as
insurance contracts. All policies are short-duration contracts.

Revenue Recognition - Premium income is recognized on a pro rata basis over the terms of the respective insurance
contracts. Unearned premiums represent the portion of premiums written that are related to the unexpired terms of the
policies in force.

Claims liabilities - The provision for unpaid claims represent the estimated liabilities for reported claims, plus those
incurred but not yet reported and the related estimated loss adjustment expenses. Unpaid claims expenses are
determined using case-basis evaluations and statistical analyses, including insurance industry loss data, and represent
estimates of the ultimate cost of all claims
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incurred. Although considerable variability is inherent in such estimates, management believes that the liability for
unpaid claims is adequate. The estimates are continually reviewed and adjusted as necessary; such adjustments are
included in current operations and are accounted for as changes in estimates.

Reinsurance - As part of Atlas’ insurance risk management policies, portions of its insurance risk is ceded to
reinsurers. Reinsurance premiums and claims expenses are accounted for on a basis consistent with those used in
accounting for the original policies issued and the terms of the reinsurance contracts. Premiums and claims ceded to
other companies have been reported as a reduction of premium revenue and claims incurred expense. Commissions
paid to Atlas by reinsurers on business ceded have been accounted for as a reduction of the related policy acquisition
costs. Reinsurance receivables are recorded for that portion of paid and unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses
that are ceded to other companies. Prepaid reinsurance premiums are recorded for unearned premiums that have been
ceded to other companies.

Share-based payments - Atlas has a stock-based compensation plan which is described fully in Note 10. Under ASC
718 Compensation-Stock Compensation (“ASC 718”), the fair-value method of accounting is used to determine and
account for equity settled transactions and to determine stock-based compensation awards granted to employees and
non-employees using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Compensation expense is recognized over the period
that the stock options vest, with a corresponding increase to additional paid in capital.

For option awards with graded vesting, ASC 718 provides two options: on a straight-line basis over the service period
for each separately vesting portion of the award (as if the award were in effect multiple awards), or on a straight line
basis over the service period for the entire award. Atlas has chosen the latter policy. Atlas recognized $113 in stock
compensation expense in 2011 and none in 2010.

Post-employment benefits - Prior to December 31, 1997, substantially all salaried employees of American Country
were covered by a defined benefit pension plan known as the American Country Pension Plan (the “pension plan™). The
pension plan was dissolved in the fourth quarter 2011 and the plan assets were distributed. The dissolution resulted in
the immediate recognition of $2,544 in prior service costs previously recorded in Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income, which are shown within Other Underwriting Expenses.

Until its dissolution, periodic net pension expense was based on the cost of incremental benefits for employee service
during the period, interest on projected benefit obligation, actual return on plan assets and amortization of actuarial
gains and losses.

Operating segments - Atlas is in a single operating segment — property and casualty insurance.

Presentation of equity and cash flows: Ordinary and restricted voting common shares are reflected as par value
amounts with any remaining consideration upon issuance recorded in additional paid in capital. In 2010, the Company
reported the total consideration within the common share equity amounts in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The Company has adjusted the prior period common share and additional paid in capital amounts to conform
to the presentation in 2011.

In the consolidated statements of cash flows, adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to cash used in operating
activities includes a non cash expense for forgiveness of mortgage loan and net realized investment gains and losses.
In 2010, the amount of the expense for forgiveness of mortgage loan was reported as an increase to the net loss
amount rather than a reduction. The Company has adjusted the prior period cash flows for the immaterial error in
presentation.

Emerging Growth Company: The Company is an “emerging growth company” under the JOBS Act and, except as set
forth below, will take advantage of certain exemptions from various reporting requirements that are applicable to other
public companies that are not emerging growth companies. Section 107 of the JOBS Act provides that an emerging
growth company can take advantage of the extended transition period in Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, for complying with new or revised accounting standards. In other words, an emerging growth
company can delay the adoption of certain accounting standards until those standards would otherwise apply to
private companies. However, we are choosing to opt out of such extended transition period, and as a result, we will
comply with new or revised accounting standards on the relevant dates on which adoption
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of such standards is required for non-emerging growth companies. Section 107 of the JOBS Act provides that our
decision to opt out of the extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting standards is
irrevocable.

2. PENDING ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Accounting for Costs Associated with Acquiring or Renewing Insurance Contracts - In October 2010, the Financial
Accounting Standards Board ("FASB”) issued guidance modifying the definition of the types of costs incurred by
insurance entities that can be capitalized in the acquisition of new and renewal insurance contracts. The guidance
specifies that the costs must be directly related to the successful acquisition of insurance contracts. The guidance also
specifies that advertising costs should be included as deferred acquisition costs only when the direct—response
advertising accounting criteria are met. The new guidance is effective for reporting periods beginning after December
15, 2011. Atlas’ current policy for accounting for acquisition costs is already materially consistent with this guidance.
Therefore the adoption of this guidance will not have an impact of on our financial statements.

Amendments to Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements - In May 2011, the FASB issued guidance that
clarifies the application of existing fair value measurement and disclosure requirements and amends certain fair value
measurement principles, requirements and disclosures. Changes were made to improve consistency in global
application. The guidance is to be applied prospectively for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2011.
Early adoption is not permitted. The impact of adoption is not expected to be material to the Company’s results of
operations or financial position.

Presentation of Comprehensive Income - In June and December 2011, the FASB issued guidance amending the
presentation of comprehensive income and its components. Under the new guidance, a reporting entity has the option
to present comprehensive income in a single continuous statement or in two separate but consecutive statements. The
guidance is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2011 and is to be applied retrospectively. The
new guidance affects presentation only and will have no material impact on the Company’s results of operations or
financial position.

3. INVESTMENTS

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains and losses and fair value for Atlas’ investments are as follows:

Amortized Gross Gross
December 31, 2011 Unrealized Unrealized Fair Value
Cost .
Gains Losses
Term Deposits $— $— $— $—
Bonds:
U.S. - Government 44,835 911 — 45,746
- Corporate 35,572 825 24 36,373
- Commercial mortgage backed 17,493 208 — 17,701
- Other asset backed 3,573 99 1 3,671
Total Fixed Income $101,473 $2,043 $25 $103,491
Equities 994 147 — 1,141
Totals $102,467 $2,190 $25 $104,632
F-13
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Amortized Gross Gross
December 31, 2010 Unrealized Unrealized Fair Value
Cost .
Gains Losses
Term Deposits $7,898 $3 $— $7.,901
Fixed Income:
U.S. - Government 67,388 2,117 — 69,505
- Corporate 62,429 3,011 — 65,440
- Commercial mortgage backed 8,445 270 — 8,715
- Other asset backed 2,371 79 — 2,450
Total Fixed Income $148,531 $5,480 $— $154,011
Equities — — — —
Totals $148,531 $5,480 $— $154,011

The following tables summarize carrying amounts of fixed income securities by contractual maturity. As certain
securities and debentures have the right to call or prepay obligations, the actual settlement dates may differ from
contractual maturity.

One year orOne to five Five to ten More than

As at December 31, 2011 Total

less years years ten years
Fixed Income Securities $29.407 $27,317 $10,242 $36,525 $103,491
Percentage of total 28.4 %26.4 %9.9 %35.3 % 100.0 %
As at December 31, 2010 One year orOne to five Five to ten More than Total

less years years ten years
Fixed Income Securities $21,556 $88,564 $24,026 $19,865 $154,011
Percentage of total 14.0 %57.5 %15.6 %12.9 % 100.0 %

The following table summarizes the change in unrealized gains and losses for the years ended December 31:

2011 2010
Term Deposits $G )$3
Fixed Income:
U.S. -Government (1,206 )852
- Corporate (2,210 )386
- Commercial mortgage backed (62 )33
- Other asset backed 19 2,037
Equities 147
Totals $3,315 )$3,311
The following table summarizes the components of net investment income for the years ended December 31:
2011 2010
Total investment
income
Interest (from fixed income securities) $3,791 $4,915
Dividends 12 —
Other — —
Investment expenses (523 )(299 )
Net investment income $3,280 $4.616

The following table summarizes the components of net investment gains for the years ended December 31:
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2011 2010
Fixed income securities $4,149 $888
Equities — —
Other 52 —
Net investment gains $4,201 $888

Management performs a quarterly analysis of Atlas’ investment holdings to determine if declines in fair value are other
than temporary. The analysis includes some or all of the following procedures as deemed appropriate by management:
identifying all security holdings in unrealized loss positions that have existed for at least six months or other
circumstances that management believes may impact the recoverability of the security;

obtaining a valuation analysis from third party investment managers regarding these holdings based on their
knowledge, experience and other market based valuation techniques;

reviewing the trading range of certain securities over the preceding calendar period;

assessing if declines in market value are other than temporary for debt security holdings based on their investment
grade credit ratings from third party security rating agencies;

assessing if declines in market value are other than temporary for any debt security holding with a non-investment
grade credit rating based on the continuity of its debt service record; and

determining the necessary provision for declines in market value that are considered other than temporary based on
the analyses performed.

The risks and uncertainties inherent in the assessment methodology utilized to determine declines in market value that
are other than temporary include, but may not be limited to, the following:

the opinion of professional investment managers could be incorrect;

the past trading patterns of individual securities may not reflect future valuation trends;

the credit ratings assigned by independent credit rating agencies may be incorrect due to unforeseen or unknown facts
related to a company’s financial situation; and

the debt service pattern of non-investment grade securities may not reflect future debt service capabilities and may not
reflect a company’s unknown underlying financial problems.

There were no impairments recorded in the years ended December 31, 2011 or December 31, 2010 as a result of the
above analysis performed by management to determine declines in market value that may be other than temporary. All
securities as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 in an unrealized loss position have been in said position for less than 12
months.

4. FINANCIAL AND CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT

By virtue of the nature of Atlas’ business activities, financial instruments make up the majority of the balance sheet.
The risks which arise from transacting financial instruments include credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk and cash
flow risk. These risks may be caused by factors specific to an individual instrument or factors affecting all instruments
traded in the market. Atlas has a risk management framework in place to monitor, evaluate and manage the risks
assumed in conducting its business. Atlas’ risk management policies and practices are as follows:

Credit risk - Atlas is exposed to credit risk principally through its fixed income securities and balances receivable
from policyholders and reinsurers. Atlas controls and monitors concentration and credit quality risk through policies
to limit and monitor its exposure to individual issuers or related groups (with the exception of U.S. Government
bonds) as well as through ongoing review of the credit ratings of issuers held in the securities portfolio. Atlas’ credit
exposure to any one individual policyholder is not material. Atlas has policies requiring evaluation of the financial
condition of its reinsurers and monitors concentrations of credit risk arising from similar geographic regions,
activities, or economic characteristics of the reinsurers to minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer
insolvency.
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The following table summarizes the credit exposure of Atlas from its investments in fixed income securities and term
deposits by rating as assigned by Fitch, Standard & Poor’s or Moody’s Investor Services, using the higher of these
ratings for any security where there is a split rating:

2011 2010

Amount % of Total Amount % of Total
AAA/Aaa $54,717 529 %$88,684 57.6 %
AA/Aa 21,567 20.8 % 26,388 17.1 %
A/A 22,380 21.6 % 35,027 22.7 %
BBB/Baa 4,827 4.7 %3,851 2.5 %
CCC/Caa or lower or not rated — — 61 0.1 %
Total Securities $103,491 100.0 %$154,011 100.0 %

Equity price risk - This is the risk of loss due to adverse movements in equity prices. Atlas’ investment in equity
securities comprises a small percentage of its total portfolio, and as a result, the exposure to this type of risk is
minimal.

Foreign currency risk - Atlas is not currently exposed to material changes in the U.S. dollar currency exchange rates
with any other foreign currency.

Liquidity and cash flow risk - Liquidity risk is the risk of having insufficient cash resources to meet current financial
obligations without raising funds at unfavorable rates or selling assets on a forced basis. Liquidity risk arises from
general business activities and in the course of managing the assets and liabilities of Atlas. There is the risk of loss to
the extent that the sale of a security prior to its maturity is required to provide liquidity to satisfy policyholder and
other cash outflows. Cash flow risk arises from risk that future inflation of policyholder cash flow exceeds returns on
long-term investment securities. The purpose of liquidity and cash flow management is to ensure that there is
sufficient cash to meet all financial commitments and obligations as they fall due. The liquidity and cash flow
requirements of Atlas’ business have been met primarily by funds generated from operations, asset maturities and
income and other returns received on securities. Cash provided from these sources is used primarily for claims and
claim adjustment expense payments and operating expenses. The timing and amount of catastrophe claims are
inherently unpredictable and may create increased liquidity requirements.

Fair value - Fair value amounts represent estimates of the consideration that would currently be agreed upon between
knowledgeable, willing parties who are under no compulsion to act.

Fair value is best evidenced by quoted bid or ask price, as appropriate, in an active market. Where bid or ask prices are
not available, such as in an illiquid or inactive market, the closing price of the most recent transaction of that
instrument subject to appropriate adjustments as required is used. Where quoted market prices are not available, the
quoted prices of similar financial instruments or valuation models with observable market based inputs are used to
estimate the fair value. These valuation models may use multiple observable market inputs, including observable
interest rates, foreign exchange rates, index levels, credit spreads, equity prices, counterparty credit quality,
corresponding market volatility levels and option volatilities. Minimal management judgment is required for fair
values calculated using quoted market prices or observable market inputs for models. The calculation of estimated fair
value is based on market conditions at a specific point in time and may not be reflective of future fair values.

Atlas records the available for sale securities held in its securities portfolio at their fair value. Atlas primarily uses the
services of external securities pricing vendors to obtain these values. The securities are valued using quoted market
prices or prices established using observable market inputs. In volatile market conditions, these quoted market prices
or observable market inputs can change rapidly causing a significant impact on fair value and financial results
recorded.

Atlas employs a fair value hierarchy to categorize the inputs it uses in valuation techniques to measure the fair value.
The hierarchy is comprised of quoted market prices (Level 1), third party models using observable market information
(Level 2) and internal models without observable market information (Level 3). The following table summarizes Atlas
investments at fair value as at the years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010:

bl
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December 31, 2011 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Fixed Income Securities $13,363 $90,128 $— $103,491
Equities 1,141 — — 1,141
Totals $14,504  $90,128 $— $104,632
December 31, 2010 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Fixed Income Securities $27,561 $126,450 $— $154,011
Equities — — — —

Totals $27,561 $126,450 $— $154,011

There were no transfers in or out of Level 2 during either period.

Capital Management - The Company manages capital using both regulatory capital measures and internal metrics. The
company’s capital is primarily derived from common shareholders’ equity, retained deficit and accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss).

As a holding company, Atlas derives cash from its insurance subsidiaries generally in the form of dividends to meet
its obligations, which will primarily consist of operating expense payments. Atlas’ insurance subsidiaries fund their
obligations primarily through premium and investment income and maturities in the securities portfolio. The insurance
subsidiaries require regulatory approval for the return of capital and, in certain circumstances, prior to the payment of
dividends. In the event that dividends available to the holding company are inadequate to cover its operating expenses,
the holding company would need to raise capital, sell assets or incur future debt.

The insurance subsidiaries must each maintain a minimum statutory capital and surplus of $1,500 under the provisions
of the Illinois Insurance Code. Dividends may only be paid from statutory unassigned surplus, and payments may not
be made if such surplus is less than a stipulated amount. The dividend restriction is the greater of statutory net income
or 10% of total statutory capital and surplus.

Net loss computed under statutory-basis accounting for American Country and American Service were $(2,328) and
$(497) respectively for the year ended December 31, 2011 (unaudited), versus $(1,451) and $(5,351) for the year
ended December 31, 2010 (unaudited). Statutory capital and surplus of the insurance subsidiaries was $49,954
(unaudited) and $45,560 at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Atlas did not pay any dividends to its common shareholders during 2011 and has no current plans to pay dividends to
its common shareholders.

A risk based capital formula is used by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners ("NAIC”) to identify
property and casualty insurance companies that may not be adequately capitalized. The NAIC requires that capital and
surplus not fall below 200% of the authorized control level. As of December 31, 2011, based on the unaudited
statutory basis financial statements, both the insurance subsidiaries are above the required risk based capital levels,
with risk based capital ratio estimates for American Country and American Service of 592.5% and 803.4%. The
insurance subsidiaries had approximately $36,402 of capital in excess of the 200% minimum described above. As of
December 31, 2010, the comparable risk based capital ratio estimates for American Country and American Service
were 322% and 536%, and estimated capital in excess of the 200% level was approximately $26,100.

5. INCOME TAXES

The effective tax rate was (32.0)% and 13.4% for the years ended December 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively,
compared to the U.S. statutory income tax rate of 34% as shown below:
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Year ended December 31, 2011 2010
Amount % Amount %

Expected income tax benefit at statutory rate $(1,235 ) (34.0 Y% $(6,541 ) (34.0 )%
Valuation allowance — — % (9,476 ) (49.3 )%
Nondeductible expenses 5 0.1 % 183 1.0 %
Tax implications of qualifying transaction 75 2.1 % 18,412 95.7 %
Other 8 ) (0.2 )% (3 ) — %
Total $(1,163 ) (32.0 Y% $2,575 13.4 %

Atlas carried deferred tax assets on its balance sheet that were generated by its subsidiaries, primarily related to net
operating loss carry-forwards. The qualifying transaction caused a change in control for tax purposes which triggered
Internal Revenue Code Section 382. Section 382 created a yearly limit on its deferred tax assets such that a portion of
the operating loss deferred tax assets would never be able to be utilized. In addition, as a result of the structure of the
transaction, the seller, Kingsway, retains a portion of those deferred tax assets as dictated by the Internal Revenue
Code. Kingsway, in general, retained those portions of the net operating loss deferred tax assets that Atlas would have
otherwise not been able to use due to the Section 382 limit mentioned above. Since the removal of the deferred tax
asset from the balance sheet without an off-setting cash recoverable from the U.S. Government, this removal created a
reconciling item from Atlas’ statutory income tax rate.

Income tax expense consists of the following for the years ended December 31:

2011 2010

Current tax expense/(benefit) $— $(3300 )
Deferred tax (benefit)/expense (1,163 )2,875
Total $(1,163 )$2,575
The components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities as of December 31 are as follows:

2011 2010
Deferred tax assets:
Unpaid claims and unearned premiums $3,004 $4,218
Loss carry-forwards 15,558 13,252
Pension expense — 841
Bad debts 1,297 1,356
Other 1,338 1,394
Valuation Allowance (12,361 )(11,288 )
Total gross deferred tax assets $8.,836 $9,773
Deferred tax liabilities:
Investment securities 740 1,863
Deferred policy acquisition costs 1,027 1,293
Other 294 218
Total gross deferred tax liabilities $2,061 $3,374
Net deferred tax assets $6,775 $6,399
Amounts and expiration dates of the operating loss carry forwards as of December 31, 2011 are as follows:
Year of Occurrence Year of Expiration Amount
2001 2021 $14,750
2002 2022 4,317
2006 2026 7,825
2007 2027 5,131
2008 2028 1,949
2009 2029 1,949
2010 2030 1,949
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2011 2031 7,762
Total $45,632
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Atlas established a valuation allowance of approximately $12,361 and $11,288 for its gross deferred tax assets at
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 respectively.

In assessing the need for a valuation allowance, Atlas considers both positive and negative evidence related to the
likelihood of realization of the deferred tax assets. If, based on the weight of available evidence, it is more likely than
not the deferred tax assets will not be realized or if it is deemed premature to conclude that these assets will be
realized in the near future, a valuation allowance is recorded. The weight given to the positive and negative evidence
is commensurate with the extent to which the evidence may be objectively verified. As such, it is generally difficult
for positive evidence regarding projected future taxable income exclusive of reversing taxable temporary differences
to outweigh objective negative evidence of recent financial reporting losses. GAAP states that a cumulative loss in
recent years is a significant piece of negative evidence that is difficult to overcome in determining that a valuation
allowance is not needed against deferred tax assets.

Atlas’ assessment also accounted for the following evidence:

Recent spin-off from prior ownership - Atlas was formed on December 31, 2010 in a reverse merger transaction.
Consideration was made as to the impact of this transaction on future earnings.

Nature, frequency, and severity of current and cumulative financial reporting losses - A pattern of
objectively-measured recent financial reporting losses is heavily weighted as a source of negative evidence.
Cumulative pre-tax losses in the three-year period ending with the current quarter are generally considered to be
significant negative evidence regarding future profitability. However, the strength and trend of earnings are also
considered, as well as other relevant factors. Atlas did not consider historical information as relevant due to the
significant changes in business operations beginning on January 1, 2011;

Trends in quarterly earnings from operating activities during the period - When performing the assessment, Atlas
excluded certain non-operating items which impacted 2011 results: (1) a $2,544 charge upon settlement of the
American Country Pension Plan (see Note 10 below); (2) a $1,800 reserve strengthening adjustment related to claims
incurred under prior ownership (See Note 8 below); (3) $627 in non-recurring costs relating to the transactions that
created Atlas.

Sources of future taxable income - Future reversals of existing temporary differences are heavily-weighted sources of
objectively verifiable positive evidence. Projections of future taxable income exclusive of reversing temporary
differences are a source of positive evidence only when the projections are combined with a history of recent profits
and can be reasonably estimated. Otherwise, these projections are considered inherently subjective and generally will
not be sufficient to overcome negative evidence that includes relevant cumulative losses in recent years, particularly if
the projected future taxable income is dependent on an anticipated turnaround to profitability that has not yet been
achieved. In such cases, future taxable income is generally given no weight for the purposes of assessing the valuation
allowance pursuant to GAAP; and

Tax planning strategies - If necessary and available, tax planning strategies could be implemented to accelerate
taxable amounts to utilize expiring carry-forwards. These strategies would be a source of additional positive evidence
and, depending on their nature, could be heavily weighted.

At the end of 2011, Atlas’ operations (excluding the aforementioned non-operating items) had returned to a position of
cumulative profits for the most recent one-year period. Further, operations showed three consecutive quarters of
pre-tax operating profits (before non-operating items). Management concluded that the successful repositioning of
Atlas during 2011 combined with the business plan showing continued profitability into future periods, provide
assurance that future tax benefits more likely than not will be realized. Accordingly, at year-end 2011, a tax benefit
was realized and the valuation was reduced against net deferred tax assets.

Atlas accounts for uncertain tax positions in accordance with the income taxes accounting guidance. Atlas has
analyzed filing positions in the federal and state jurisdiction where it is required to file tax returns, as well as the open
tax years in these jurisdictions. Atlas believes that its federal and state income tax filing positions and deductions will
be sustained on audit and does not anticipate any adjustments that will result in a material change to its financial
position. Therefore, no reserves for uncertain federal and state income tax positions have been recorded. Atlas would
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recognize interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as a component of the provision for federal
income taxes. Atlas did not incur any federal income tax related interest income, interest
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expense or penalties for the years ended December 31, 2011 or 2010. Tax years 2006 through 2010 are subject to
examination by the Internal Revenue Service.

6. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

As at December 31, 2011, Atlas had three properties held for sale with an aggregate carrying value of $13,634,
including its headquarters building in Elk Grove Village, Illinois. All of the properties’ individual carrying values were
less than their respective appraised values net of reasonably estimated selling costs at the time those appraisals were
received and at the time properties were deemed to be held for sale. All properties were listed for sale through brokers
at the appraised values and above carrying values as of December 31, 2011. Atlas expects to re-invest the proceeds
from the sale of real estate in its investment portfolio which will support strategic growth initiatives.

The Elk Grove Village building and property were previously owned by KAI and were contributed to Atlas as a
capital contribution in June 2010. The other two properties, all located in Alabama, were assets of Southern United
Fire Insurance Company which was merged into American Service in February 2010.

7. UNDERWRITING POLICY AND REINSURANCE CEDED

Underwriting Risk - Underwriting risk is the risk that the total cost of claims and acquisition expenses will exceed
premiums received and can arise from numerous factors, including pricing risk, reserving risk, catastrophic loss risk,
reinsurance coverage risk and that loss and loss adjustment expense reserves are not sufficient.

Reinsurance Ceded - As is customary in the insurance industry, Atlas reinsures portions of certain insurance policies it
writes, thereby providing a greater diversification of risk and minimizing exposure on larger risks. Atlas remains
contingently at risk with respect to any reinsurance ceded and would incur an additional loss if an assuming company
were unable to meet its obligation under the reinsurance treaty.

Atlas monitors the financial condition of its reinsurers to minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer
insolvencies. Letters of credit are maintained for any unauthorized reinsurer to cover ceded unearned premium, ceded
loss reserve balances and ceded paid losses. These policies mitigate the risk of credit quality or dispute from becoming
a danger to financial strength. To date, the Company has not experienced any material difficulties in collecting
reinsurance recoverables.

Gross premiums written and ceded premiums, losses and commissions as of and for the year ended December 31 are
as follows:

2011 2010
Gross premiums written $42,031 $46,679
Ceded premiums written 6,173 14,201
Net premiums written 35,858 32,478
Ceded premiums earned $7,653 $7,434
Ceded losses and loss adjustment expenses 2,767 3,628
Ceded unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses 7,825 5,192
Ceded unearned premiums 2,214 3,694
Other amounts due from reinsurers 219 2,390
Ceded commissions 2,412 5,441

8. UNPAID CLAIMS
Claims liabilities - The changes in the provision for unpaid claims, net of amounts recoverable from reinsurers, for the
year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 were as follows:
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2011 2010
Unpaid claims, beginning of period $132,579  $169,520
Less: reinsurance recoverable 6,477 5,197
Net beginning unpaid claims reserves 126,102 164,323
Incurred related to:
Current year 27,303 42,739
Prior years 1,691 5,335

28,994 48,074
Paid related to:
Current year 12,715 18,994
Prior years 58,563 76,835

71,278 95,829
Net unpaid claims of subsidiary acquired — 9,534
Net unpaid claims, end of period $83,818 $126,102
Add: reinsurance recoverable 7,825 6,477
Unpaid claims, end of period $91,643 $132,579

At the end of 2010, a detailed review of claim payment and reserving practices was performed, which led to
significant changes in both practices, increasing ultimate loss estimates and accelerating claim payments. Reserves
were adjusted at that time to account for these changes, primarily during the second and third quarters of 2010. This
review continued into 2011 and Atlas recorded a $1,800 adjustment to further strengthen its reserves for claims related
to policies issued while the insurance subsidiaries were under previous ownership in years preceding 2010. The
establishment of the estimated provision for unpaid claims is based on known facts and interpretation of
circumstances and is therefore a complex and dynamic process influenced by a large variety of factors. These factors
include the Atlas’ experience with similar cases and historical trends involving claim payment patterns, loss payments,
pending levels of unpaid claims, product mix or concentration, claims severity and claim frequency patterns.

Other factors include the continually evolving and changing regulatory and legal environment, actuarial studies,
professional experience and expertise of the Atlas’ claims department personnel and independent adjusters retained to
handle individual claims, the quality of the data used for projection purposes, existing claims management practices
including claims handling and settlement practices, the effect of inflationary trends on future claims settlement costs,
court decisions, economic conditions and public attitudes. In addition, time can be a critical part of the provision
determination, since the longer the span between the incidence of a loss and the payment or settlement of the claims,
the more variable the ultimate settlement amount can be. Accordingly, short tail claims such as property claims, tend
to be more reasonably predictable than long tail claims, such as general liability and automobile accident benefit
claims that are less predictable.

Consequently, the process of establishing the estimated provision for unpaid claims is complex and imprecise as it
relies on the judgment and opinions of a large number of individuals, on historical precedent and trends, on prevailing
legal, economic, social and regulatory trends and on expectations as to future developments. The process of
determining the provision necessarily involves risks that the actual results will deviate, perhaps substantially, from the
best estimates made.

As the processes of management and the independent appointed actuary are undertaken independently, the provision
for unpaid claims recorded by management can differ from the independent appointed actuary’s central estimate.
Comparing management’s selected reserve estimate to the actuarial central estimate and range of reasonable reserves
independently determined by the independent appointed actuary continues to be an important step in the reserving
process of the Company, however; where differences exist and the Company believes the internally developed reserve
estimate to be more accurate, management’s estimate will not change. We believe this to be consistent with industry
practice for companies with a robust reserving process in place. As of December 31, 2011, the Company’s carried
reserves were within the range of reasonable reserves of its independent appointed actuary. As of December 31, 2011,
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the carrying value of unpaid claims was $91,643. There is no active market for policy liabilities; hence market value is
not determinable. The carrying value of unpaid claims does not take into consideration the time value of money or
make explicit provisions for adverse deviation. Fair value of unpaid claims would include such considerations.
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9. STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS
Stock options - Stock option activity for years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 is as follows. All
amounts in the below tables have been retroactively adjusted for the one-for-three reverse stock split.

2011 2010
Number A\.]g' Number AYg'
Price Price
Outstanding, beginning of period 36,867 C$3.00 -- -
Granted 123,250 C$6.00 44,000 C$3.00
Exercised (24,008 )C$3.00 -- -
Expired -- -- (7,134 )C$3.00
Outstanding, end of period 136,109 C$5.70 36,866 C$3.00
Information about options outstanding at December 31, 2011 is as follows:
Remaining
Grant Date Expiration Date  Exercise Price Contractual Life Number . Numbgr
Outstanding Exercisable
(Years)
January 18, 2011 January 18, 2021  C$6.00 9.1 123,250 30,813
March 18,2010 March 31,2012  C$3.00 0.3 2,159 2,159
March 18,2010 March 18,2020  C$3.00 8.2 10,700 10,700
Total 8.8 wtd. average 136,109 43,672

All references to share counts and per share values in connection with options granted prior to the reverse merger
transaction are presented prior to the one-for-three reverse stock split. On March 18, 2010, JJR VI issued options to
purchase 250,000 common shares to the agent that assisted JJR VI in raising capital (the “IPO agent”) and options to
purchase 1,070,000 shares to directors. All of the options were vested at the date of grant. Options to purchase
214,000 shares held by directors expired before the merger as a result of a director resignation. All outstanding JJR VI
options were exchanged for Atlas options without modification on the basis of 1 Atlas option for each 10 JJR VI
options and the exercise price was changed from C$0.10 to C$1.00, which was on the same basis as the JJR VI
exchange ratio for shares, and thus did not represent any additional value or related expense. This resulted in 25,000
and 85,600 Atlas options for the agent and former JJR VI directors, respectively, outstanding after the merger. In total,
72,024 of these options were exercised in 2011. The options granted on March 18, 2010 have an aggregate intrinsic
value of $39, as of December 31, 2011.

On January 6, 2011, Atlas adopted a stock option plan in order to advance the interests of Atlas by providing
incentives to eligible persons defined in the plan. The maximum number of ordinary shares reserved for issuance
under the plan together with all other security based plans is equal to 10% of issued and outstanding ordinary shares at
the date of grant. The exercise price of options granted under the plan cannot be less than the volume weighted
average trading price of Atlas’ ordinary shares for the five preceding trading days. Options generally vest over a three
year period and expire ten years from grant date.

On January 18, 2011, Atlas granted options to purchase 123,250 ordinary shares of Atlas stock to officers and
directors at an exercise price of C$6.00 per share. The options vest 25% at date of grant and 25% on each of the next
three anniversary dates and expire on January 18, 2021. The weighted average grant date fair value of the options is
$3.72 per share. As of December 31, 2011 the options had no aggregate intrinsic value.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model was used to estimate the fair value of compensation expense using the
following assumptions — risk-free interest rate 2.27% to 3.13%; dividend yield 0.0%; expected volatility 100%;
expected life of 6 to 9 years.

In accordance with ASC 718, Atlas has recognized stock compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the
requisite service period of the last separately vesting portion of the award. In 2011, Atlas recognized $113 in expense,
which is a component of other underwriting expenses on the income statement. Total unrecognized stock
compensation expense associated with the January 18, 2011 grant is $337 as of December 31, 2011 which will be
recognized ratably over the next three years.
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The weighted average exercise price of all the shares exercisable at December 31, 2011 is $5.13.
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Warrants - All references to share counts and per share values in connection with warrant activity prior to the reverse
merger transaction are presented prior to the one-for-three reverse stock split. On November 1, 2010, American
Acquisition closed a private placement and issued 3,983,502 subscription receipts for ordinary shares of Atlas and
warrants to purchase 3,983,502 ordinary shares of Atlas for C$2.00 per share in connection with the merger. The
subscription receipts were converted to Atlas ordinary shares in connection with the merger. All the warrants were
still outstanding at December 31, 2011 and expire on December 31, 2013.

Atlas ordinary shares were trading on the TSXV for C$4.80 on December 30, 2011 (the last trading day of the 2011
calendar year).

10. OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Defined Contribution Plan

In January 2011, Atlas formed a defined contribution 401(k) plan covering all qualified employees of Atlas and its
subsidiaries. Employees can choose to contribute up to 60% of their annual earnings but not more than $17 for 2011 to
the plan. Qualifying employees age 50 and older can contribute an additional $6 in 2011. Atlas matches 50% of the
employee contribution up to 5% of annual earnings for a total maximum expense of 2.5% of annual earnings per
participant. Atlas contributions are discretionary. Employees are 100% vested in their own contributions and vest in
Atlas contributions based on years of service with 100% vested after five years. Atlas’ contributions were $105 in
2011.

Prior to 2011, eligible employees participated in a defined contribution 401(k) plan maintained by KAI (“the Kingsway
Plan”) with features identical to Atlas’ current plan (the “Atlas Plan”). Employer contributions to the Kingsway Plan
attributable to the Atlas insurance subsidiaries were $144 in 2011 and $130 in 2010, and are included in Other
Underwriting Expenses. Assets of the Kingsway Plan attributable to Atlas’ employees, were transferred to the Atlas
Plan in March 2011.

Defined Benefit Plan — Prior to December 31, 1997, substantially all salaried employees of American Country were
covered by a defined benefit pension plan known as the American Country Pension Plan (the “pension plan”). Benefits
were based on the employee’s length of service and wages and benefits, as defined by the pension plan. The funding
policy of the pension plan was generally to contribute amounts required to maintain minimum funding standards in
accordance with the Employee Retirement Income Security Act. Effective December 31, 1997, upon resolution by the
board of directors, the pension plan was frozen. During 2010, American Country made an application to the U.S.
Internal Revenue Service to dissolve the pension plan and distribute the net plan assets to the beneficiaries. In the
fourth quarter of 2011, the plan assets were fully distributed. As a result of the plan liquidation, the Company
recognized a settlement charge of $2,544 within other underwriting expenses in the fourth quarter of 2011. The
settlement impact was previously reflected as an unrecognized adjustment to other comprehensive income and
therefore, has created a nil impact to shareholders’ equity.

F-23

209



Edgar Filing: Atlas Financial Holdings, Inc. - Form 424B4

2011 2010
Change in Benefit Obligation
Benefit Obligation, beginning of year $5,110 $4,913
Interest cost 228 263
Actuarial losses (28 )192
Benefits paid 229 (258 )
Settlement of obligation (5,081 )—
Benefit Obligation, end of year $— $5,110
Change in Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year $3,993 $3,869
Actual return on plan assets 17 244
Employer contributions 1,300 138
Benefits Paid 229 (258 )
Settlement of obligation (5,081 )—
Fair value of plan assets, end of year $— $3,993
Funded Status, end of year $— $1,117
Items unrecognized as component of net pension cost, end of year (pre-tax) — 2,473
Deferred income tax — (789 )
Items unrecognized as component of net pension cost, end of year — 1,684
Components of net pension cost
Interest cost $229 $263
Expected return on plan assets (177 (268 )
Amortization of:
Prior Service Cost — —
Actuarial Losses 61 64
Subtotal $113  $59
Expense resulting from settlement of plan 2,544 —
Net periodic pension cost $2,657 $59

Weighted average assumptions used to determine net pension cost for the years ended December 31:
2011 2010 2009

Weighted average discount rate 525% 55% 6.0%
Rate of increase in compensation n/a n/a n/a

Expected long-term rate of return 50% 7.0% 7.0%
Weighted average discount rate used to determine end of year benefit obligation n/a 525% 5.5%

Employee Stock Purchase Plan - In the second quarter of 2011, Atlas initiated the Atlas Employee Stock Purchase
Plan (the “ESPP”) to encourage continued employee interest in the operation, growth and development of Atlas and to
provide an additional investment opportunity to employees. Beginning in June 2011, full time and permanent part
time employees working more than 30 hours per week are allowed to invest up to 5% of adjusted salary in Atlas
ordinary shares. Atlas matches 50% of the employee contribution up to 5% of annual earnings for a total maximum
expense of 2.5% of annual earnings per participant.. Employees who signed up for the ESPP by May 30, 2011 each
received an additional 100 ordinary shares as an initial participation incentive. Atlas will also pay administrative costs
related to this plan. In 2011, Atlas’ incurred total expenses of $38 related to the plan.

11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Legal proceedings:
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In connection with its operations, the Company and its subsidiaries are, from time to time, named as defendants in
actions for damages and costs allegedly sustained by the plaintiffs. While it is not possible to estimate the outcome of
the various proceedings
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at this time, such actions have generally been resolved with minimal damages or expense in excess of amounts
provided and the Company does not believe that it will incur any significant additional loss or expense in connection
with such actions.

Collateral pledged:

As of December 31, 2011, bonds and term deposits with an estimated fair value of $11,843 were on deposit with state
and provincial regulatory authorities, versus $9,294 as of December 31, 2010. Also, from time to time, the Company
pledges securities to third parties to collateralize liabilities incurred under its policies of insurance. At December 31,
2011, the amount of such pledged securities was $10,396 versus $1,629 at December 31, 2010. Collateral pledging
transactions are conducted under terms that are common and customary to standard collateral pledging and are subject
to the Company’s standard risk management controls. These assets and investment income related thereto remain the
property of the Company while pledged. Neither the state and/or provincial regulatory authorities nor any other third
party has the right to re-pledge or sell said securities held on deposit.

Collateral held:

In the normal course of business, the Company receives collateral on certain business transactions to reduce its
exposure to credit risk. As of December 31, 2011, the amount of such pledged securities was $240. The Company is
normally permitted to sell or re-pledge the collateral it receives under terms that are common and customary to
standard collateral holding and are subject to the Company’s standard risk management controls.

12. SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital for the common shares:

As at December 31, 2011 2010

Shares Shares Shares

Authorized Issued and AmountIssued and Amount

Outstanding Outstanding ()

Ordinary 266,666,667 1,541,842 $4 1,517,834 $4
Restricted 33,333,334 4,601,621 14 4,601,621 14
Total common shares 300,000,001 6,143,463 $18 6,119,455 $18
(1) Summation of 1,327,834 ordinary shares (refer above) and 190,000 shares issued to former JJR VI shareholders
(no cash paid).

The restricted voting common shares are convertible to ordinary shares at the option of the holder in the event that an
offer is made to purchase all or substantially all of the restricted voting common shares.

All of the issued and outstanding restricted voting common shares are beneficially owned or controlled by Kingsway.
In the event that such shares are disposed of such that Kingsway’s beneficial interest is less than 10% of the issued and
outstanding restricted voting common shares, the restricted voting common shares shall be converted into fully paid
and non-assessable ordinary shares.

F-25

212



Edgar Filing: Atlas Financial Holdings, Inc. - Form 424B4

The restricted voting common shares are entitled to vote at all meetings of shareholders, except at meetings of holders
of a specific class that are entitled to vote separately as a class. The restricted voting common shares as a class shall
not carry more than 30% of the aggregate votes eligible to be voted at a general meeting of common shareholders.
Preferred shares are not entitled to vote. Preferred shareholders are entitled to dividends on a cumulative basis whether
or not declared by the Board of Directors at the rate of U.S. $0.045 per share per year (4.5%) and may be paid in cash
or in additional preferred shares at the option of Atlas. In liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of Atlas, preferred
shareholders receive the greater of US$1.00 per share plus all declared and unpaid dividends or the amount it would
receive in liquidation if the preferred shares had been converted to restricted voting common shares or ordinary shares
immediately prior to liquidation. Preferred shares are convertible into ordinary shares at the option of the holder at any
date after the fifth year of issuance at the rate of 0.1270 ordinary shares for each preferred share. The conversion rate
is subject to change if the number of ordinary shares or restricted voting common shares changes. The preferred shares
are redeemable at the option of Atlas at a price of US$1.00 per share plus accrued and unpaid dividends commencing
at the earlier of two years from issuance date of the preferred shares or the date the preferred shares are transferred to a
party other than Kingsway or its subsidiaries or entities in which KAI holds a 10% or greater interest.

The cumulative amount of dividends to which the preferred shareholders are entitled upon liquidation or sooner, if
Atlas declares dividends, is $810 as at December 31, 2011.

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per ordinary and restricted voting common for the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

2011 2010

Net loss attributable to Atlas $(2,470 H)$(21,812 )
Less: Preferred share dividends (810 )—
Net loss attributable to common shareholders (3,280 )(21,812 )
Basic:

Weighted average common shares outstanding 6,124,542 6,119,455
Basic loss per common share $(0.54 )$(3.56 )
Diluted:

Weighted average common shares outstanding 6,124,542 6,119,455

Dilutive potential ordinary shares — —
Dilutive average common shares outstanding 6,124,542 6,119,455
Dilutive loss per common share $(0.54 )$(3.56 )

For 2011 and 2010, basic loss per common share has been computed by dividing net loss for the period by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. As required by continuation accounting,
Atlas assumed the same number of common shares outstanding for all of 2010.

Diluted loss per share is computed by dividing net loss attributable to common shareholders by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding each period plus the incremental number of shares added as a result of
converting dilutive potential ordinary shares, calculated using the treasury stock method. Atlas’ dilutive potential
common shares consist of outstanding stock options and warrants to purchase ordinary shares. The effects of options
and warrants to issue ordinary shares are excluded from the computation of diluted loss per share in periods in which
the effect would be anti-dilutive. For the year ended December 31, 2011, potential ordinary shares were anti-dilutive
due to the net loss attributable to common shareholders.

14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The business of Atlas is carried on through its insurance subsidiaries. Atlas’ insurance subsidiaries have been a party to
various transactions with affiliates in the past, although activity in this regard has diminished over time. Related party
transactions, including services provided to or received by Atlas’ insurance subsidiaries, are carried out in the normal
course of operations and
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are measured at the amount of consideration paid or received as established and agreed upon by the parties.
Management believes that consideration paid for such services approximates fair value.

At December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, Atlas reported net amounts receivable from (payable to) affiliates as
follows which are included within other assets and accounts payable and accrued expenses on the balance sheets:

As at year ended December 31, 2011 2010
Kingsway America Inc. $291  $2,058
Universal Casualty Company (500 )—
Kingsway Amigo Insurance Company ¢! (13 )
Hamilton Risk Management Inc. — (1 )
Total $(210 )$2,044

In 2010, Atlas’ insurance subsidiaries remitted management fees monthly to KAI for managerial services. During the
first six months of 2010, those management fees included rent for Atlas’ Elk Grove Village headquarters building. That
building was contributed to Atlas on June 30, 2010 and rental payments ceased at that time. Management fees paid to
KALI totaled approximately $0 and $2,643 for the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Atlas’ insurance subsidiaries received $158 in regularly scheduled monthly mortgage payments for the six months
ended June 30, 2010 under mortgage loan agreements with KAI which were secured by the Elk Grove Village
headquarters building. In June 2010, American Service forgave the $1,695 remaining balance of its mortgage loan
from KATI and American Country was paid the $1,767 total remaining balance of its mortgage loan from KAI.

The amounts due to Universal Casualty Company relate primarily to claim handling services provided to Atlas.

For the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, Atlas incurred $2,279 and $4,463, respectively, in commissions to
Avalon Risk Management, Inc. (“Avalon”). In the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, Atlas also incurred
expenses of $137 and $125 respectively, for marketing services performed by Avalon. Avalon was a KFSI subsidiary
through October 2009, and has certain investors and directors in common with Atlas. Avalon acts as a program
manager for a surety program primarily consisting of U.S. Customs bonds. In this capacity they are responsible for
coordinating marketing, customer service and claim handling for the surety bonds written under this agreement. This
program is 100% reinsured by an unrelated third party.

During 2010, dividends of $16,700 were paid to KAI by the insurance subsidiaries of Atlas.

15. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Accumulated other comprehensive income is comprised of the following:

As at December 31, 2011 2010

Pre-tax Tax Post-tax Pre-tax Tax Post-tax
Available-for-sale securities $2,165 $(740 )$1,425 $5,478 $(737 )$4,741
Pension liability — — — (2,474 )789 (1,685 )
Total $2,165 $(740 )$1,425 $3,004 $52 $3,056
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16. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Gross Premium Written $14,166 $18,704 $7,856 $8,558 $10,928 $10,163 $9,081 $9,273
Net Premium Earned 8,809 19,301 9,062 12,515 8,797 10,192 9,079 11,595
Underwriting loss (1,906 )(4,061 )(1,278 )(12,805)(1,729 )(2,393 )(6,325 )(4,723 )

Net (loss)/income attributable to Atlas (705  )(1,583 )193 (8,135 ) 1,066 (664  )(3,024 )(11,430)
Net (loss)/income attributable to

common shareholders (905  )(1,583 )(9 )(8,135 )862 (664  )(3,228 )(11,430)
Basic earnings (loss) per share $(0.15 )$(0.27 Y$— $(1.32 )$0.14  $(0.12 )$(0.53 )$(1.86 )
Diluted earnings (loss) per share 0.15 )H)(©0.27 )— (1.32 )H0.14 (0.12 )(0.53 )(1.86 )
17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

As of March 26, 2012, there were no subsequent events which had a material impact on the 2011 consolidated
financial statements.

18. CHANGE IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On December 7, 2012, we held a shareholder meeting where a one-for-three reverse stock split was unanimously
approved. When the reverse stock split takes effect, it will decrease our authorized and outstanding ordinary shares
and restricted voting shares at a ratio of one-for-three. The primary objective of the reverse stock split is to increase
the per share price of our ordinary shares to meet certain listing requirements of the NASDAQ Capital Market. All
consolidated financial statements and per share amounts have been retroactively adjusted for the above reverse stock
split.
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ATLAS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(in '000s, except for share and per share data)

September 30, December 31,
2012 2011
(unaudited)
Assets
Investments, available for sale
Fixed income securities, at fair value (Amortized cost $106,122 and $101,473) $109,555 $103,491
Equity securities, at fair value (cost $0 and $994) — 1,141
Total Investments 109,555 104,632
Cash and cash equivalents 12,151 23,249
Accrued investment income 807 586
Accounts receivable and other assets (Net of allowance of $385 and $4,254) 24,811 9,579
Reinsurance recoverables, net 6,983 8,044
Prepaid reinsurance premiums 2,219 2,214
Deferred policy acquisition costs 4,501 3,020
Deferred tax asset, net 6,343 6,775
Software and office equipment, net 1,157 440
Assets held for sale 166 13,634
Investment in investees 1,250 —
Total Assets $169,943 $172,173
Liabilities
Claims liabilities $73,574 $91,643
Unearned premiums 28,325 15,691
Due to reinsurers and other insurers 4,658 5,701
Other liabilities and accrued expenses 4,283 2,884
Total Liabilities $110,840 $115,919

Shareholders’ Equity

Preferred shares, par value per share $0.001, 100,000,000 shares authorized,

18,000,000 shares issued and outstanding at September 30, 2012 and December 31, $ 18,000 $18,000
2011. Liquidation value $1.00 per share

Ordinary voting common shares, par value per share $0.003, 266,666,667 shares

authorized, 1,542,764 shares issued and outstanding at September 30, 2012 and 4 4
1,541,842 at December 31, 2011

Restricted voting common shares, par value per share $0.003, 33,333,334 shares

authorized, 4,601,621 shares issued and outstanding at September 30, 2012 and 14 14

December 31, 2011

Additional paid-in capital 152,739 152,652
Retained deficit (113,919 ) (115,841 )
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax 2,265 1,425

Total Shareholders’ Equity $59,103 $56,254

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $169,943 $172,173

See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ATLAS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Unaudited)
(in '000s, except for share and per share data)

Net premiums earned

Net investment income

Net investment gains

Other income

Total revenue

Net claims incurred

Acquisition costs

Other underwriting expenses

Total expenses

Income from operations before income tax
(benefit)/expense

Income tax expense

Net income attributable to Atlas

Less: Preferred share dividends

Net income/(loss) attributable to common
shareholders

Other comprehensive income/(loss):
Changes in net unrealized (losses)/gains
Reclassification to income of net gains
Effect of income tax

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the period

Total comprehensive income/(loss)

Basic weighted average common shares outstanding

Earnings/(loss) per common share, basic
Diluted weighted average common shares
outstanding

Earnings/(loss) per common share, diluted

Three Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011
$10,934 $8,797
613 719

779 1,962

1 113
12,327 11,591
7,165 6,984
1,813 1,720
1,692 1,822
$10,670 $10,526
$1,657 $1,066
$1,657 $1,066
202 202

1,455 864

$942 $(96

(353 ) (1,185
(200 ) —

389 (1,281
$2,046 $(215
6,144,384 6,124,990
$0.24 $0.14
6,149,301 6,138,496
$0.24 $0.14

See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011
$26,795 $26,668
1,878 2,652
1,098 2,813
169 3
29,940 32,136
18,477 20,596
4,582 5,343
4,959 5,642
$28,018 $31,581
$1,922 $555
$1,922 $555
606 606
1,316 (51
)$1,899 $43
) (632 ) (2,089
427 ) —
) 840 (2,046
)$2,762 $(1,491
6,146,179 6,124,175
$0.21 $(0.01
6,150,585 6,124,175
$0.21 $(0.01
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ATLAS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (Unaudited)

Ordinary Restricted Additional Accumulated
o Preferred Voting Voting L Retained Other
(in ‘000s) Paid-in .. . Total
Shares Common Common Capital Deficit Comprehensive
Shares Shares p Income (loss)
I;f‘laznocleoDecember $18,000  $4 $14 $152,466  $(113371 ) $3,056 $60,169
Net loss 555 555
Other
comprehensive loss (2,046 ) 2046 )
Share—base.d 24 34
compensation
Stock. options 19 19
exercised
?glznoclelseptember $18,000  $4 $14 $152,569  $(112,816 ) $1,010 $58,781
Balance December
31.2011 $18,000 $4 $14 $152,652 $(115,841 ) $1,425 $56,254
Net income 1,922 1,922
Other
comprehensive 840 840
income
Share—basgd 24 34
compensation
Stock options
) 3 3
exercised
?glzlz)clezseptember $18,000  $4 $14 $152,739  $(113,919 ) $2,265 $59,103

See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ATLAS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited)

(in ‘000s) Nine Month Periods Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 2011

Operating Activities

Net income $1,922 $555

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used by operating activities:

Adjustments for non-cash items (113 ) (1,804 )

Changes in other operating assets and liabilities (3,084 ) 839

Changes in net claims liabilities (18,069 ) (31,122 )

Net cash flows used in operating activities (19,344 ) (31,532 )

Investing activities

Proceeds from sale and maturity of investments 42,820 71,085

Purchases of investments (47,333 ) (30,282 )
Purchases of property and equipment and other (586 ) (183 )
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 13,342 1,983

Net cash flows provided by investing activities 8,243 42,603

Financing activities

Options exercised 3 19

Net cash flows provided by financing activities 3 19

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (11,098 ) 11,090

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 23,249 19,037

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $12,151 $30,127

See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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1.NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of Atlas Financial Holdings, Inc. ("Atlas”, or
“The Company”) and its insurance subsidiaries, American Country Insurance Company (““American Country”) and
American Service Insurance Company, Inc. (“American Service”), have been prepared pursuant to the rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) and do not include all the information and footnotes
required by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“U.S. GAAP”) for complete financial statements. In the
opinion of management, the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements include all adjustments (consisting
of normal recurring accruals) considered necessary for a fair presentation of the financial position and the results of
operations. It is recommended that these unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements be read in conjunction
with the audited financial statements and the footnotes thereto included in the Company’s latest Annual Report on
Form 10-K (as amended).

Beginning with the three month period ended September 30, 2012, Atlas has changed where certain items appear on
its Statement of Comprehensive Income according to rule 7-04 of Regulation S-X.

The primary business of Atlas, which is carried out through its insurance subsidiaries, is the underwriting of
commercial automobile insurance policies in the United States, with a niche market orientation and focus on insurance
in the “light” commercial automobile sector. This sector includes taxi cabs, non-emergency para-transit, limousine,
livery and business autos. Automobile insurance products provide insurance coverage in three major areas: liability,
accident benefits and physical damage. Liability insurance provides coverage subject to policy terms and conditions
where the insured is determined to be responsible and/or liable for an automobile accident, for the payment for injuries
and property damage to third parties. Accident benefit policies or personal injury protection policies provide coverage
for loss of income, medical and rehabilitation expenses for insured persons who are injured in an automobile accident,
regardless of fault. Physical damage coverage subject to policy terms and conditions provides for the payment of
damages to an insured automobile arising from a collision with another object or from other risks such as fire or theft.
In the short run, automobile physical damage and liability coverage generally provides more predictable results than
automobile accident benefit or personal injury insurance.

Atlas’ insurance subsidiaries distribute their insurance products through a network of independent retail agents.
Together, American Country and American Service are licensed to write property and casualty (“P&C”) insurance in 46
states plus the District of Columbia in the United States. The management and operating infrastructure of the
insurance subsidiaries are fully integrated.

Seasonality - The P&C insurance business is seasonal in nature. While Atlas’ net premiums earned are generally stable
from quarter to quarter, Atlas’ gross premiums written follow the common renewal dates for the “light” commercial risks
that represent its core lines of business. For example, January 1 and March 1 are common taxi cab renewal dates in
Ilinois and New York, respectively. Net underwriting income is driven mainly by the timing and nature of claims,
which can vary widely. Atlas’ ability to generate written premium is also impacted by the timing of policy periods in
the states in which Atlas operates.

The accounting policies followed in these unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements are comparable as
those applied in Atlas’ audited annual consolidated financial statements on Form 10-K for the period ended December
31, 2011. Atlas has consistently applied the same accounting policies throughout all periods presented, as if these
policies had always been in effect.

2. NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Accounting for Costs Associated with Acquiring or Renewing Insurance Contracts - In October 2010, the Financial
Accounting Standards Board ("FASB”) issued guidance modifying the definition of the types of costs incurred by
insurance entities that can be capitalized in the acquisition of new and renewal insurance contracts. The guidance
specifies that the costs must be directly related to the successful acquisition of insurance contracts. The guidance also
specifies that advertising costs should be included as deferred acquisition costs only when the direct—response
advertising accounting criteria are met. The new guidance became effective for reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2011. Atlas’ previous policy for accounting for acquisition costs was already consistent with this
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guidance. Therefore the adoption of this guidance in the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2012 did
not have an impact on our financial statements.

Amendments to Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements - In May 2011, the FASB issued guidance that
clarifies the application of existing fair value measurement and disclosure requirements and amends certain fair value
measurement principles, requirements and disclosures. Changes were made to improve consistency in global
application. The guidance is to be applied prospectively for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2011.
Early adoption was not permitted. The impact of adoption was not material to the Company’s results of operations or
financial position.

Presentation of Comprehensive Income - In June and December 2011, the FASB issued guidance amending the
presentation of comprehensive income and its components. Under the new guidance, a reporting entity has the option
to present comprehensive income in a single continuous statement or in two separate but consecutive statements. The
guidance is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2011 and is to be applied retrospectively. The
new guidance affected presentation only and had no material impact on the Company’s results of operations or
financial position.
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3. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Earnings per ordinary and restricted voting common share (collectively, the “common shares”) for the three and nine
month periods ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011 is as follows:

in ‘000s, except share and per share amounts Three Month Periods Ended  Nine Month Periods Ended
September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Net income attributable to Atlas $1,657 $1,066 $1,922 $555
Less: Preferred share dividends 202 202 606 606
Net income/(loss) attributable to common shareholders 1,455 864 1,316 (51 )
Basic:
Weighted average common shares outstanding 6,144,384 6,124,990 6,146,179 6,124,175
Basic earnings/(loss) per common share $0.24 $0.14 $0.21 $(0.01 )
Diluted:
Weighted average common shares outstanding 6,144,384 6,124,990 6,146,179 6,124,175
Dilutive potential ordinary shares 4917 13,507 4,406 —
Dilutive average common shares outstanding 6,149,301 6,138,497 6,150,585 6,124,175
Dilutive earnings/(loss) per common share $0.24 $0.14 $0.21 $(0.01 )

For 2012 and 2011, basic earnings/(loss) per common share has been computed by dividing net income(loss)
attributable to common shareholders for the period by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
during the period.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share is computed by dividing net income/(loss) attributable to common shareholders by
the weighted average number of common shares outstanding each period plus the incremental number of shares added
as a result of converting dilutive potential ordinary shares, calculated using the treasury stock method. Atlas’ dilutive
potential ordinary shares consist of outstanding stock options and warrants to purchase ordinary voting common
shares. The effects of options and warrants to issue ordinary voting common shares are excluded from the
computation of diluted loss per share in periods in which the effect would be anti-dilutive. For both the three and nine
month periods ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, potential ordinary voting common shares were
dilutive due to the achievement of net income attributable to common shareholders.

4. INVESTMENTS

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains and losses and fair value for Atlas’ investments are as follows (all amounts
in ‘000s):

Amortized Gross Gross
September 30, 2012 Unrealized Unrealized Fair Value
Cost .
Gains Losses
Fixed Income:
U.S. - Government $37,357  $1,099 $— $38,456
- Corporate 44,100 1,709 — 45,809
- Commercial mortgage backed 20,372 490 — 20,862
- Other asset backed 4,293 135 — 4,428
Total Fixed Income $106,122 $3,433 $— $109,555
Amortized Gross Gross
December 31, 2011 Unrealized Unrealized Fair Value
Cost .
Gains Losses
Fixed Income:
U.S. - Government $44,.835 $911 $— $45,746
- Corporate 35,572 825 24 36,373

224



Edgar Filing: Atlas Financial Holdings, Inc. - Form 424B4

- Commercial mortgage backed
- Other asset backed

Total Fixed Income

Equities

Totals

F-34

17,493 208
3,573 99
$101,473 $2,043
994 147

$102,467 $2,190

$25

$25

17,701
3,671
$103,491
1,141
$104,632
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The following tables summarize carrying amounts of fixed income securities by contractual maturity (all amounts in
‘000s). As certain securities and debentures have the right to call or prepay obligations, the actual settlement dates may
differ from contractual maturity.

One year or One to five Five to ten More than

As of the period ended September 30, 2012 Total

less years years ten years
Fixed Income Securities $18,085 $21,803 $21,806 $47.861 $109,555
Percentage of total 16.5 %19.9 %19.9 %43.6 % 100.0 %
As of the year ended December 31, 2011 One year orOne to five Five to ten More than Total

less years years ten years

Fixed Income Securities $29.407 $27,317 $10,242 $36,525 $103,491
Percentage of total 28.4 %26.4 %9.9 %35.3 % 100.0 %

Management performs a quarterly analysis of Atlas’ investment holdings to determine if declines in fair value are other
than temporary. The analysis includes some or all of the following procedures as deemed appropriate by management:
identifying all security holdings in unrealized loss positions that have existed for at least six months or other
circumstances that management believes may impact the recoverability of the security;

obtaining a valuation analysis from third party investment managers regarding these holdings based on their
knowledge, experience and other market based valuation techniques;

reviewing the trading range of certain securities over the preceding calendar period;

assessing if declines in market value are other than temporary for debt security holdings based on credit ratings from
third party security rating agencies; and

determining the necessary provision for declines in market value that are considered other than temporary based on
the analyses performed.

The risks and uncertainties inherent in the assessment methodology utilized to determine declines in market value that
are other than temporary include, but may not be limited to, the following:

the opinion of professional investment managers could be incorrect;

the past trading patterns of individual securities may not reflect future valuation trends;

the credit ratings assigned by independent credit rating agencies may be incorrect due to unforeseen or unknown facts
related to a company’s financial situation; and

the debt service pattern of non-investment grade securities may not reflect future debt service capabilities and may not
reflect a company’s unknown underlying financial problems.

There were no impairments recorded in the three month period ended September 30, 2012 or the year ended
December 31, 2011 as a result of the above analysis performed by management to determine declines in fair value that
may be other than temporary. All securities in an unrealized loss position as of the period ended September 30, 2012
and as of the year ended December 31, 2011 have been in said position for less than 12 months.

The following table summarizes the components of net investment income for the three month periods ended
September 30, 2012 and 2011(all amounts in ‘000s):

September 30, September 30,

2012 2011

Total
investment
income

Interest (from fixed income securities) $680 $905

Income from equity method investment 18 —
Investment expenses (85 ) (186 )
Net investment income $613 $719
Collateral pledged:

226



Edgar Filing: Atlas Financial Holdings, Inc. - Form 424B4

As of the period ended September 30, 2012, bonds and term deposits with a fair value of $9.8 million were on deposit
with state and provincial regulatory authorities, versus $11.8 million as of the year ended December 31, 2011. Also,
from time to time, the Company pledges securities to third parties to collateralize liabilities incurred under its policies
of insurance. As of the period

F-35

227



Edgar Filing: Atlas Financial Holdings, Inc. - Form 424B4

ended September 30, 2012, the amount of such pledged securities was $11.6 million versus $10.4 million at December
31, 2011. Collateral pledging transactions are conducted under terms that are common and customary to standard
collateral pledging and are subject to the Company’s standard risk management controls. These assets and investment
income related thereto remain the property of the Company while pledged. Neither the state and/or provincial

regulatory authorities nor any other third party has the right to re-pledge or sell said securities held on deposit.

5. INVESTMENT IN INVESTEES

Investment in investees represents Atlas’ investment in the member’s capital of Oak Street Real Estate Capital ATCO
SMA LLC (’Oak Street”). Atlas holds a non-controlling interest in Oak Street, a limited liability company that owns and
manages a commercial office building in Wisconsin. Therefore, Atlas has accounted for the investment under the

equity method. The carrying values, estimated fair values and economic interest at September 30, 2012 are below.

The estimated fair value of our investment in Oak Street approximates carrying value due to the investees not being
actively traded at September 30, 2012.

Investment in: Economic Interest Carrying Value (in ‘000s) Est Fair Value (in ‘000s)
Oak Street 6.39 %$1,250 $1,250

Atlas received distributions from Oak Street of $18,000 during the three month period ended September 30, 2012. As
well, Atlas’ equity in the net income of Oak Street was $18,000 during the three month period ended September 30,
2012, which is reflected as investment income for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2012.

6. FINANCIAL AND CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT

By virtue of the nature of Atlas’ business activities, financial instruments make up the majority of the balance sheet.
The risks which arise from transacting financial instruments include credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk and cash
flow risk. These risks may be caused by factors specific to an individual instrument or factors affecting all instruments
traded in the market. Atlas has a risk management framework in place to monitor, evaluate and manage the risks
assumed in conducting its business. Atlas’ risk management policies and practices are as follows:

Credit risk - Atlas is exposed to credit risk principally through its fixed income securities and balances receivable
from policyholders and reinsurers. Atlas controls and monitors concentration and credit quality risk through policies
to limit and monitor its exposure to individual issuers or related groups (with the exception of U.S. Government
bonds) as well as through ongoing review of the credit ratings of issuers held in the securities portfolio. Atlas’ credit
exposure to any one individual policyholder is not material. Atlas has policies requiring evaluation of the financial
condition of its reinsurers and monitors concentrations of credit risk arising from similar geographic regions,
activities, or economic characteristics of the reinsurers to minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer
insolvency.

Atlas’ allowance for bad debt as of the year ended December 31, 2011 primarily related to a single agent. Settlement
proceedings with this agent were executed in April 2012, and resulted in a minor recovery of previously fully reserved
amounts. In the three month period ended September 30, 2012 there was additional favorable activity related to the
allowance for bad debt, which resulted in income of $159,000 for the quarter and $105,000 for the nine month period
ended September 30, 2012. In the three month period ended September 30, 2011, Atlas recognized $33,000 in bad
debt expense and $147,000 for the nine month period ended September 30, 2011.

Equity price risk - This is the risk of loss due to adverse movements in equity prices. Atlas’ investment in equity
securities comprises a small percentage of its total portfolio, and as a result, the exposure to this type of risk is
minimal.

Foreign currency risk - Atlas is not currently exposed to material changes in the U.S. dollar currency exchange rates
with any other foreign currency.

Liquidity and cash flow risk - Liquidity risk is the risk of having insufficient cash resources to meet current financial
obligations without raising funds at unfavorable rates or selling assets on a forced basis. Liquidity risk arises from
general business activities and in the course of managing the assets and liabilities of Atlas. There is the risk of loss to
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the extent that the sale of a security prior to its maturity is required to provide liquidity to satisfy policyholder and
other cash outflows. Cash flow risk arises from risk that future inflation of policyholder cash flow exceeds returns on
long-term investment securities. The purpose of liquidity and cash flow management is to ensure that there is
sufficient cash to meet all financial commitments and obligations as they fall due. The liquidity and cash flow
requirements of Atlas’ business have been met primarily by funds generated from operations, asset maturities and
income and other returns received on securities. Cash provided from these sources is used primarily for claims and
claim adjustment expense payments and operating expenses. The timing and amount of catastrophe claims are
inherently unpredictable and may create increased liquidity requirements.
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Fair value - Fair value amounts represent estimates of the consideration that would currently be agreed upon between
knowledgeable, willing parties who are under no compulsion to act.

Fair value is best evidenced by quoted bid or ask price, as appropriate, in an active market. Where bid or ask prices are
not available, such as in an illiquid or inactive market, the closing price of the most recent transaction of that
instrument subject to appropriate adjustments as required is used. Where quoted market prices are not available, the
quoted prices of similar financial instruments or valuation models with observable market based inputs are used to
estimate the fair value. These valuation models may use multiple observable market inputs, including observable
interest rates, foreign exchange rates, index levels, credit spreads, equity prices, counterparty credit quality,
corresponding market volatility levels and option volatilities. Minimal management judgment is required for fair
values calculated using quoted market prices or observable market inputs for models. The calculation of estimated fair
value is based on market conditions at a specific point in time and may not be reflective of future fair values.

Atlas records the available for sale securities held in its securities portfolio at their fair value. Atlas primarily uses the
services of external securities pricing vendors to obtain these values. The securities are valued using quoted market
prices or prices established using observable market inputs. In volatile market conditions, these quoted market prices
or observable market inputs can change rapidly causing a significant impact on fair value and financial results
recorded.

Atlas employs a fair value hierarchy to categorize the inputs it uses in valuation techniques to measure the fair value.
The hierarchy is comprised of quoted market prices (Level 1), third party models using observable market information
(Level 2) and internal models without observable market information (Level 3). The following table summarizes Atlas’
investments at fair value as at the three month period ended September 30, 2012 and as of the year ended December
31, 2011(all amounts in ‘000s):

September 30, 2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Fixed Income Securities $19,013 $90,542 $— $109,555
Equities — — — —

Totals $19,013 $90,542 $— $109,555
December 31, 2011 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Fixed Income Securities $13,363  $90,128 $— $103,491
Equities 1,141 — — 1,141
Totals $14,504  $90,128 $— $104,632

Of the total portfolio of fixed income securities, only holdings of U.S. Treasury Securities are classified within Level
1. There were no transfers in or out of Level 2 during either period.

Capital Management - The Company manages capital using both regulatory capital measures and internal metrics. The
Company’s capital is primarily derived from common shareholders’ equity, retained deficit and accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss).

As a holding company, Atlas could derive cash from its insurance subsidiaries generally in the form of dividends to
meet its obligations, which will primarily consist of operating expense payments. Atlas’ insurance subsidiaries fund
their obligations primarily through premium and investment income and maturities in the securities portfolio. The
insurance subsidiaries require regulatory approval for the return of capital and, in certain circumstances, prior to the
payment of dividends. In the event that dividends available to the holding company are inadequate to cover its
operating expenses, the holding company would need to raise capital, sell assets or incur future debt.

The insurance subsidiaries must each maintain a minimum statutory capital and surplus of $1.5 million under the
provisions of the Illinois Insurance Code. Dividends may only be paid from statutory unassigned surplus, and
payments may not be made if such surplus is less than a stipulated amount. The dividend restriction is the greater of
statutory net income or 10% of total statutory capital and surplus.

Net losses computed under statutory-basis accounting for American Country and American Service were $2.3 million
and $497,000 respectively for the year ended December 31, 2011, versus $1.5 million and $5.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2010. Statutory capital and surplus of the insurance subsidiaries was $50.0 million and $45.6
million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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Atlas did not declare or pay any dividends to its common shareholders during the three month period ended
September 30, 2012 or in the year ended December 31, 2011, and has no current plans to pay dividends to its common
shareholders.

7. INCOME TAXES

The effective tax rate was 0.0% for both of the three month periods ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 compared to
the U.S. statutory income tax rate of 34% as shown below (all amounts in ‘000s):
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Three Month Periods Ended Nine Month Periods Ended

September 30, 2012 September 30, 2011 September 30, 2012 September 30, 2011

Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount %
Expectedincome tax —¢s03 340 g, §360 340 % $653 340 % $(174 ) 340 %
benefit at statutory rate
Valuation allowance 566 ) 342 )% (384 ) (56.0 )% (658 ) 342 )% 131 256 Y%
Nondeductible expenses 5 0.3 % 22 220 % 10 0.5 % 43 (8.4 )%
Other 2 ) (0.1 )% — % (5 ) (0.3 )% — %
Total $— — % $— — % $— — % $— — %

Income tax expense consists of the following for the nine month periods ended September 30, 2012 and
September 30, 2011:

2012 2011
Current tax expense/(benefit) $— $—
Deferred tax (benefit)/expense — —
Total $— $—

Upon the transaction forming Atlas on December 31, 2010, a yearly limitation as required by U.S. tax law Section 382
that applies to changes in ownership on the future utilization of Atlas’ net operating loss carry-forwards was calculated.
The insurance subsidiaries’ prior parent retained those tax assets previously attributed to the insurance subsidiaries
which could not be utilized by Atlas as a result of this limitation. As a result, Atlas’ ability to recognize future tax
benefits associated with a portion of its deferred tax assets generated during prior years and the current year have been
permanently limited to the amount determined under U.S. tax law Section 382. The result is a maximum expected net
deferred tax asset which Atlas has available after the merger which is believed more-likely-than-not to be utilized in
the future, after consideration of valuation allowance.
The components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities as of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 are as
follows (all amounts in ‘000s):

September 30, December 31,

2012 2011
Deferred tax assets:
Unpaid claims and unearned premiums $3,471 $3,004
Loss carry-forwards 15,880 15,558
Bad debts 131 1,297
Other 1,456 1,338
Valuation allowance (11,703 )(12,361 )
Total deferred tax assets, net of allowance $9,235 $8,836
Deferred tax liabilities:
Investment securities 1,167 740
Deferred policy acquisition costs 1,530 1,027
Other 195 294
Total gross deferred tax liabilities $2,892 $2.,061
Net deferred tax assets $6,343 $6,775
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Amounts and expiration dates of the operating loss carry forwards as of September 30, 2012 are as follows (all
amounts in ‘000s):

Year of Occurrence Year of Expiration Amount
2001 2021 $14,750
2002 2022 4,317
2006 2026 7,825
2007 2027 5,131
2008 2028 1,949
2009 2029 1,949
2010 2030 1,949
2011 2031 7,762
2012 2032 1,074
Total $46,706

Atlas established a valuation allowance of $11.7 million and $12.4 million for its gross deferred tax assets as of the
period ended September 30, 2012 and as of the year ended December 31, 2011, respectively.

Atlas accounts for uncertain tax positions in accordance with the income taxes accounting guidance. Atlas has
analyzed filing positions in the federal and state jurisdiction where it is required to file tax returns, as well as the open
tax years in these jurisdictions. Atlas believes that its federal and state income tax filing positions and deductions will
be sustained on audit and does not anticipate any adjustments that will result in a material change to its financial
position. Therefore, no reserves for uncertain federal and state income tax positions have been recorded. Atlas would
recognize interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as a component of the provision for federal
income taxes. Atlas did not incur any federal income tax related interest income, interest expense or penalties for the
three month periods ended September 30, 2012 and 2011. Tax years 2006 through 2011 are subject to examination by
the Internal Revenue Service.

8. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

On May 22, 2012, Atlas closed the sale of the headquarters building to 150 Northwest Point, LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company. Atlas also leased back one floor of the building after the sale for a 5 year term. As of the year ended
December 31, 2011, the property was recorded as a component of assets held for sale on Atlas’ statement of financial
position.

The total sales price of the property, which was paid in cash, amounted to $14.0 million, less closing costs and related
expenses of approximately $633,000. In connection with the sale, the Company also wrote down an accrual of
approximately $792,000 held for real-estate taxes. Approximately $830,000 of the sales price was held in escrow for
real estate taxes.

Atlas recognized a gain on the sale of the property of $213,000, which will be deferred and recognized over the 5 year
lease term. In the three month period ended September 30, 2012, Atlas recognized $5,000 as income.

There are two properties located in Alabama which remain for sale. These properties are listed for amounts greater
than carried values. Both were assets of Southern United Fire Insurance Company, which was merged into American
Service in February 2010.

9. UNDERWRITING POLICY AND REINSURANCE CEDED

Underwriting Risk - Underwriting risk is the risk that the total cost of claims and acquisition expenses will exceed
premiums received and can arise from numerous factors, including pricing risk, reserving risk, catastrophic loss risk,
reinsurance coverage risk and that loss and loss adjustment expense reserves are not sufficient.

Reinsurance Ceded - As is customary in the insurance industry, Atlas reinsures portions of certain insurance policies it
writes, thereby providing a greater diversification of risk and minimizing exposure on larger risks. Atlas remains
contingently at risk with respect to any reinsurance ceded and would incur an additional loss if an assuming company
were unable to meet its obligation under the reinsurance treaty.

Atlas monitors the financial condition of its reinsurers to minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer
insolvencies. Letters of credit are maintained for any unauthorized reinsurer to cover ceded unearned premium, ceded
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loss reserve balances and ceded paid losses. These policies mitigate the risk of credit quality or dispute from becoming
a danger to financial strength. To date, the Company has not experienced any material difficulties in collecting
reinsurance recoverables.

Gross premiums written and ceded premiums, losses and commissions as of and for the three and nine month periods
ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011 are as follows (all amounts in ‘000s):
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Three Month Periods Ended Nine Month Periods Ended
September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,

2012 2011 2012 2011
Gross premiums written $23,353 $10,928 $44,349 $32,950
Ceded premiums written 1,965 1,418 4,925 4,624
Net premiums written 21,388 9,510 39,424 28,326
Ceded premiums earned $1,707 $1,733 $4,920 $5,899
Ceded losses and loss adjustment expenses (749 )1,760 662 3,862
Ceded commissions 526 496 1,578 1,856
Ceded unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses6,595 9,374
Ceded unearned premiums 2,219 2,419
Other amounts due from reinsurers 388 475

10. UNPAID CLAIMS
Claims liabilities - The changes in the provision for unpaid claims, net of amounts recoverable from reinsurers, for the
three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011 were as follows (all amounts in
‘000s):
Three Month Periods Ended Nine Month Periods Ended
September 30,  September 30, September 30,  September 30,

2012 2011 2012 2011
Unpaid claims, beginning of period $77,350 $112,011 $91,643 $132,579
Less: reinsurance recoverable 8,153 1,968 7,825 6,477
Net beginning unpaid claims reserves 69,197 104,043 83,818 126,102
Incurred related to:
Current year 6,976 6,962 18,141 20,600
Prior years 190 17 337 4 )

7,166 6,979 18,478 20,596
Paid related to:
Current year 2,302 4,279 6,224 8,455
Prior years 7,082 14,660 29,093 46,160

9,384 18,939 35,317 54,615
Net unpaid claims, end of period $66,979 $92,083 $66,979 $92,083
Add: reinsurance recoverable 6,595 9,374 6,595 9,374
Unpaid claims, end of period $73,574 $101,457 $73,574 $101,457

The process of establishing the estimated provision for unpaid claims is complex and imprecise as it relies on the
judgment and opinions of a large number of individuals, on historical precedent and trends, on prevailing legal,
economic, social and regulatory trends and on expectations as to future developments. The process of determining the
provision necessarily involves risks that the actual results will deviate, perhaps substantially, from the best estimates
made.
11. STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS
Stock options - Stock option activity for the nine month periods ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011
are as follows (all prices in Canadian dollars). All amounts in the below tables have been retroactively adjusted for the
one-for-three reverse stock split.
September 30, 2012 September 30, 2011
Number Avg. PriceNumber Avg. Price
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Outstanding, beginning of period

Granted

Exercised

Expired

Outstanding, end of period

Information about options outstanding at September 30, 2012 is as follows:
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136,109 $5.70

(922 )3.00
(1,237 )3.00
133,950 $5.76

36,867  $3.00
123,250 6.00
(6,175 )3.00

153,942 $5.40
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Grant Date Expiration Date Number Outstanding ~ Number Exercisable
January 18, 2011 January 18, 2021 123,250 61,625
March 18, 2010 March 18, 2020 10,700 10,700
Total 133,950 72,325

On January 18, 2011, Atlas granted options to purchase 123,250 ordinary shares of Atlas stock to officers and
directors at an exercise price of C$6.00 per share. The options vest 25% at date of grant and 25% on each of the next
three anniversary dates and expire on January 18, 2021. The weighted average grant date fair value of the options
granted on January 18, 2011 is C$3.72 per share.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model was used to estimate the fair value of compensation expense using the
following assumptions — risk-free interest rate 2.27% to 3.13%; dividend yield 0.0%; expected volatility 100%;
expected life of 6 to 9 years.

In accordance with Accounting Standard Codification 718 (Stock-Based Compensation), Atlas has recognized stock
compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of the last separately vesting portion of
the award. In the nine month periods ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011 respectively, Atlas
recognized $84,000 and $84,000 in expense, which is a component of other underwriting expenses on the income
statement. Total unrecognized stock compensation expense associated with the January 18, 2011 grant is $253,000 as
of the period ended September 30, 2012 which will be recognized ratably through the next 2.2 years.

The weighted average exercise price of all the shares exercisable at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 was
C$5.55 and the grants have a weighted average remaining life of 8.2 years. The stock options granted on January 18,
2011 have an intrinsic value of $0 as of the period ended September 30, 2012.

Warrants - All references to share counts and per share values in connection with warrants granted prior to the reverse
merger transaction are presented prior to the one-for-three reverse stock split. On November 1, 2010, American
Acquisition closed a private placement where it issued 3,983,502 subscription receipts for ordinary voting common
shares of Atlas and warrants to purchase 3,983,502 ordinary voting common shares of Atlas for C$2.00 per share in
connection with the merger. The subscription receipts were converted to Atlas ordinary voting shares in connection
with the merger. All the warrants were still outstanding at September 30, 2012 and expire on December 31, 2013.
Atlas’ closing stock price on September 28, 2012 (the last trading day of the quarter) was C$5.25.

12. OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Defined Benefit Plan — Prior to December 31, 1997, substantially all salaried employees of American Country were
covered by a defined benefit pension plan known as the American Country Pension Plan (the “pension plan”). Benefits
were based on the employee’s length of service and wages and benefits, as defined by the pension plan. The funding
policy of the pension plan was generally to contribute amounts required to maintain minimum funding standards in
accordance with the Employee Retirement Income Security Act. Effective December 31, 1997, upon resolution by the
board of directors, the pension plan was frozen. During 2010, American Country made an application to the U.S.
Internal Revenue Service to dissolve the pension plan and distribute the net plan assets to the beneficiaries. In the
fourth quarter of 2011, the plan assets were fully distributed. As a result of the plan liquidation, the Company
recognized a settlement charge of $2.5 million within other underwriting expenses in the fourth quarter of 2011. The
settlement impact was previously reflected as an unrecognized adjustment to other comprehensive income and
therefore, had created a nil impact to shareholders’ equity.

Defined Contribution Plan - In January 2011, Atlas formed a defined contribution 401(k) plan covering all qualified
employees of Atlas and its subsidiaries. Employees can choose to contribute up to 60% of their annual earnings but
not more than $17,000 for 2011 to the plan. Qualifying employees age 50 and older can contribute an additional
$5,500 in 2012. Atlas matches 50% of the employee contribution up to 5% of annual earnings for a total maximum
expense of 2.5% of annual earnings per participant. Atlas contributions are discretionary. Employees are 100% vested
in their own contributions and vest in Atlas contributions based on years of service with 100% vested after five years.
Company contributions were $82,000 and $78,000 for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2012
and September 30, 2011, respectively.
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Employee Stock Purchase Plan - In the second quarter of 2011, Atlas initiated the Atlas Employee Stock Purchase
Plan (the “ESPP”) to encourage continued employee interest in the operation, growth and development of Atlas and to
provide an additional investment opportunity to employees. Beginning in June 2011, full time and permanent part
time employees working more than 30 hours per week are allowed to invest up to 5% of adjusted salary in Atlas
ordinary voting common shares. Atlas matches 50% of the employee contribution up to 5% of annual earnings for a
total maximum expense of 2.5% of annual earnings per participant. Employees who signed up for the ESPP by May
30, 2011 each received an additional 100 ordinary voting common shares as an initial participation incentive. Atlas
will also pay administrative costs related to this plan. In the nine month periods ended September 30, 2012 and
September 30, 2011, Atlas incurred costs related to the plan of $37,000 and $24,000 respectively.
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Upon completion of the Gateway acquisition, all Gateway employees were transferred to both the Atlas 401(k) plan
and the Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

13. SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital for the common shares:

As of: September 30, 2012 December 31, 2011
Shares Amount Shares
Shares . Amount
Authorized Issued and (in Issued and (in “000s)
Outstanding ‘000s) Outstanding
Ordinary 266,666,667 1,542,764 $4 1,541,842 $4
Restricted 33,333,334 4,601,621 14 4,601,621 14
Total common shares 300,000,001 6,144,385 $18 6,143,463 $18

(1) Summation of 1,327,834 ordinary shares (refer above) and 190,000 shares issued to former JJR VI shareholders
(no cash paid).

All of the issued and outstanding restricted voting common shares are beneficially owned or controlled by Kingsway
America Inc., ("Kingsway”) a wholly owned subsidiary of Kingsway Financial Services Inc. or other Kingsway
subsidiaries. In the event that such shares are disposed of such that Kingsway’s beneficial interest is less than 10% of
the issued and outstanding restricted voting common shares, the restricted voting common shares shall be converted
into fully paid and non-assessable ordinary voting common shares.
The restricted voting common shares are entitled to vote at all meetings of shareholders, except at meetings of holders
of a specific class that are entitled to vote separately as a class. The restricted voting common shares as a class shall
not carry more than 30% of the aggregate votes eligible to be voted at a general meeting of common shareholders.
The restricted voting common shares will convert to ordinary voting common shares in the event that these Kingsway
owned shares are sold to non-affiliates of the Company.
Preferred shares are not entitled to vote and are beneficially owned or controlled by Kingsway. Preferred shareholders
are entitled to dividends on a cumulative basis whether or not declared by the Board of Directors at the rate of U.S.
$0.045 per share per year (4.5%) and may be paid in cash or in additional preferred shares at the option of Atlas. In
liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of Atlas, preferred shareholders receive the greater of US$1.00 per share plus
all declared and unpaid dividends or the amount it would receive in liquidation if the preferred shares had been
converted to restricted voting common shares or ordinary voting common shares immediately prior to liquidation.
Preferred shares are convertible into ordinary voting shares at the option of the holder at any date after the fifth year of
issuance at the rate of 0.1270 ordinary voting common shares for each preferred share. The conversion rate is subject
to change if the number of ordinary voting common shares or restricted voting common shares changes. The preferred
shares are redeemable at the option of Atlas at a price of US$1.00 per share plus accrued and unpaid dividends
commencing at the earlier of two years from issuance date (December 31, 2012) of the preferred shares or the date the
preferred shares are transferred to a party other than Kingsway or its subsidiaries or entities in which Kingsway holds
a 10% or greater interest.
The cumulative amount of dividends to which the preferred shareholders are entitled upon liquidation or sooner, if
Atlas declares dividends, is $1.4 million as of the period ended September 30, 2012.
14. DEFERRED POLICY ACQUISITION COSTS
Deferred policy acquisition costs for the nine month periods ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011 (in
‘000s):

September 30,  September 30,

2012 2011
Balance, beginning of period $3,020 $3,804
Acquisition costs deferred 6,063 5,111
Amortization charged to income 4,582 5,343
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Balance, end of period $4,501 $3,572

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The business of Atlas is carried on through its insurance subsidiaries. Atlas’ insurance subsidiaries have been a party to
various transactions with affiliates in the past, although activity in this regard has diminished over time. Related party
transactions, including services provided to or received by Atlas’ insurance subsidiaries, are carried out in the normal
course of operations and are measured at the amount of consideration paid or received as established and agreed upon
by the parties. Such transactions
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typically include claims handling services, marketing services and commission payments. Management believes that
consideration paid for such services approximates fair value.

For the nine month periods ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, Atlas incurred $1.5 million and $1.7
million, respectively, in commissions to Avalon Risk Management, Inc. (“Avalon”). In the nine month periods ended
September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, Atlas also incurred expenses of $0 and $105,000 respectively, for
marketing services performed by Avalon. Avalon was a KFSI subsidiary through October 2009, and had certain
investors and directors in common with Atlas. As of September 30, 2012, Atlas and Avalon no longer have any
common directors nor investors. Avalon acts as a program manager for a surety program primarily consisting of U.S.
Customs bonds. In this capacity they are responsible for coordinating marketing, customer service and claim handling
for the surety bonds written under this agreement. This program is 100% reinsured by an unrelated third party.

As at September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, Atlas reported net amounts receivable from (payable to) affiliates
as follows which are included within other assets and accounts payable and accrued expenses on the balance sheets
(all amounts in ‘000s):

As at: September 30, December 31,

2012 2011
Kingsway America Inc. $58 $291
Universal Casualty Company (50 ) (500 )
Kingsway Amigo Insurance Company 2 ¢! )
Total $10 $(210 )

16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Kingsway Sale of Atlas Shares

On September 28th, 2012, Kingsway entered into a stock purchase agreement to sell 540,541 shares of Atlas to a third
party, which received regulatory approval in the fourth quarter. On October 4th, 2012, Kingsway entered into a
separate agreement to sell 173,611 shares to a third party. This transaction settled in the fourth quarter. None of these
shares are included in the shares registered hereunder on behalf of the selling shareholders.

Acquisition of Gateway Insurance Company

On January 2, 2013 we acquired Camelot Services, Inc., or Camelot Services, a privately owned insurance holding
company, and its sole subsidiary, Gateway Insurance Company, or Gateway, from Hendricks Holding Company, Inc.,
or Hendricks, an unaffiliated third party. Gateway provides specialized commercial insurance products, including
commercial automobile insurance to niche markets such as taxi, black car and sedan service owners and operators.

Gateway is a St. Louis, Missouri-based insurance company that currently underwrites approximately $10.0 million of
annual taxi and limousine net written premium. Gateway is an admitted carrier in 46 states plus the District of
Columbia. Our acquisition of Gateway expanded our core commercial automobile lines to 39 states and the District of
Columbia, including California, Hawaii, Montana, Nebraska, North Dakota, South Dakota, Washington and West
Virginia.

Under the terms of the stock purchase agreement, the purchase price equaled the tangible GAAP book value of
Camelot Services at December 31, 2012, subject to certain pre and post-closing adjustments, including, among others,
development between the signing of the stock purchase agreement and December 31, 2012. Additional consideration
may be paid to or received from the seller depending upon, among other things, the development of Gateway’s actual
loss reserves for certain lines of business and the utilization of certain deferred tax assets over time. Gateway also
writes workers’ compensation insurance, which will be terminated as part of the transaction. An indemnity reinsurance
agreement was entered into pursuant to which 100% of Gateway’s workers’ compensation business was ceded to a third
party captive reinsurer funded by the seller as part of the transaction.
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The total purchase price for all of Camelot’s outstanding shares was $14.9 million, consisting of a combination of cash
and Atlas preferred shares. Consideration consisted of a $6.0 million dividend paid by Gateway immediately prior to
the closing, $2.0 million of Atlas preferred shares (a total of 2 million shares issued to Hendricks) and $6.9 million in
cash. Under the terms of the stock purchase agreement, the closing price was reduced due to reserve strengthening of
approximately $6.4 million that Camelot Services recognized prior to closing. Approximately $4.3 million of this
reserve strengthening was related to commercial automobile reserves, a portion of which was related to the long-haul
truck program that is in run off. The amount of pre-closing reserve strengthening was consistent with the conclusions
of an independent actuarial analysis of the reserves of Gateway. In addition to this pre-closing reserve strengthening,
Atlas has contractual protections to offset up to $2.0 million of
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future adverse reserve development. Atlas also agreed to provide the sellers up to $2.0 million in contractual
protection in the event of favorable reserve development.

Reverse Stock Split

On December 7, 2012, we held a shareholder meeting where a one-for-three reverse stock split was unanimously
approved. When the reverse stock split takes effect, it will decrease our authorized and outstanding ordinary shares
and restricted voting shares at a ratio of one-for-three. The primary objective of the reverse stock split is to increase
the per share price of our ordinary shares to meet certain listing requirements of the NASDAQ Capital Market. Unless
otherwise noted, all historical share and per share values in this prospectus reflect the one-for-three reverse stock split.

Stock Option Grant
On January 11, 2013, Atlas granted options to purchase 91,667 ordinary shares under the Company’s stock option plan,

all of which were granted to the Company’s officers. The granted options have an exercise price of C$6.45 and vest
equally on the first, second and third anniversary of the grant date. The options expire on January 11, 2023.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Board of Directors and Shareholder
Camelot Services, Inc.
St. Louis, Missouri

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Camelot Services, Inc. and subsidiary (Missouri
corporations) as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive income (loss), changes in shareholder’s equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Camelot Services, Inc. and subsidiary as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Due to significant adverse claim development, the Company has recorded $5 million of additional claims loss expense
during the nine months ended September 30, 2012 relating to the 2011 accident years and prior. Additionally, the
Company has changed its estimate for a deferred tax valuation allowance during 2012. These items are further
discussed in Note Q to the financial statements.

/s/ Brown Smith Wallace LLC

St. Louis, Missouri
March 20, 2012
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**All amounts in whole dollars
CAMELOT SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2011 and 2010

ASSETS

Investments and Cash

Cash and cash equivalents

Fixed maturities available-for-sale at fair

value (amortized cost $37,414,408 at 2011

and $32,144,598 at 2010)

Equity securities available-for-sale at fair value
(cost of $3,295,664 at 2011 and $3,244,002

at 2010)

Total Investments and Cash

Receivables

Premium and agent balances receivable, net of
allowance of $187,225 at 2011 and $341,652 at 2010
Reinsurance recoverable on loss and loss

adjustment expense

Federal income taxes recoverable

State income taxes recoverable

Receivable for securities

Interest and dividends accrued

Total Receivables

Other Assets

Deferred income taxes

Deferred policy acquisition costs
Property and equipment, net
Other assets

Total Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

2011

$1,402,296

39,765,830

2,734,738

43,902,864

9,594,321

3,734,381

128,756
306,938
298,568

14,062,964
2,940,659
1,883,881
1,130,360
288,466
6,243,366

$64,209,194

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

F-48

2010

$3,215,860

33,112,720

2,743,202

39,071,782

9,082,165

1,799,232
554,841

288,815
11,725,053
1,793,798
1,560,334
554,891
495,412
4,404,435

$55,201,270




LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY

LIABILITIES

Reserve for losses and loss

adjustment expenses

Unearned premiums

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Note payable

Total Liabilities

SHAREHOLDER'’S EQUITY

Common stock, $1 stated value;

40,000 shares authorized; 500 shares
issued and outstanding

Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings (deficit)

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Total Shareholder’s Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER’S

EQUITY
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2011

$23,815,196
13,733,578
3,334,276
1,249,395

42,132,445

500
24,927,805
(4,033,277
1,181,721

22,076,749

$64,209,194

2010

$19,223,591
12,009,017
2,489,556
1,505,409

35,227,573

500

20,567,805
) (903,039

308,431

19,973,697

$55,201,270
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CAMELOT SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive

Income (Loss)
Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

Revenues

Premiums earned, net

Investment income, net of expenses
Realized gains on sale of investments
Total revenues

Expenses

Losses and loss adjustment expenses
Other underwriting expenses

Total expenses

Other expense

Total other expense

Loss before provision for
income taxes

Income Taxes

Current expense (benefit)

Deferred income tax benefit

Total income tax benefit

NET LOSS

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Unrealized holding gains arising
during the period, net of tax

Less: reclassification adjustment for gains
included in net income

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

2011
$23,989,257
1,231,205
226,892
25,447,354
20,439,922
9,520,008
29,959,930

187,504

187,504

(4,700,080

26,897
(1,596,739
(1,569,842

(3,130,238

1,100,182

(226,892
873,290

$(2,256,948

2010
$19,961,702
1,184,716
389,202
21,535,620
17,402,623
8,125,991
25,528,614

32,509

32,509

) (4,025,503

(538,666
) (813,045
) (1,351,711

) (2,673,792

699,768

) (389,202
310,566

) $(2,363,226
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CAMELOT SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity
Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

Balance at December 31, 2009
Net loss

Additional paid-in capital

Net unrealized gains on securities
available-for-sale securities, net of
deferred income taxes of $159,988
Balance at December 31, 2010
Net loss

Additional paid-in capital

Net unrealized gains on securities
available-for-sale securities, net of

deferred income taxes of $449,877

Balance at December 31, 2011

Common
Stock

$500

$500

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

$17,567,805

3,000,000

20,567,805

4,360,000

$24,927,805

Retained
Earnings
(Deficit)
$1,770,753

(2,673,792

(903,039

(3,130,238

$(4,033,277

Accumulated

Other

Comprehensive

Income
$(2,135

)_

310,566

)308,431

)_

873,290

)$ 1,181,721

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Total
)$19,336,923
(2,673,792

3,000,000

310,566
19,973,697
(3,130,238

4,360,000

873,290

$22,076,749
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CAMELOT SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

Cash flows from operating activities

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Realized gains on sale of investments
Depreciation

Net amortization of investment premiums and discounts
Deferred income taxes

(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Premiums and agent balances receivable
Reinsurance recoverable on loss and loss adjustment expense
Interest and dividends accrued

Federal income taxes recoverable

State income taxes recoverable

Receivable for securities

Policy acquisition costs deferred

Other assets

Increase in operating liabilities:

Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses
Unearned premiums

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property and equipment
Proceeds from sales of investments
Purchases of investments

Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Additional paid-in capital

Proceeds from long-term debt

Payments on long-term debt

Net cash provided by financing activities

DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

2011

$(3,130,238

(226,892
125,034
157,209
(1,596,739

(512,156
(1,935,149
(9,753
554,841
(128,756
(306,938
(323,547
206,946

4,591,605
1,724,561
844,720
34,748
(700,503
10,188,787
(15,440,582

(5,952,298

4,360,000
(356,014
4,103,986
(1,813,564

3,215,860

2010

)$(2,673,792

) (389,202
38,814
46,310

) (812,704

) (725,255

) (974,418

) (46,968
(429,694

)—

)—

) (158,561
(128,562

6,928,562
1,163,126
345,802
2,183,458
) (504,259
10,887,074
) (19,796,593
)(9,413,778
3,000,000
1,500,000
)—
4,500,000
) (2,730,320

5,946,180
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Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $1,402,296 $3,215,860

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CAMELOT SERVICES, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011
**A]l amounts in whole dollars

Note A - Nature of Business

Camelot Services, Inc. (“Camelot”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hendricks Holding Company, Inc. (“Hendricks™) and
is the parent company of Gateway Insurance Company (“Gateway”). The Company specializes in Commercial Lines of
business by offering three niche programs. The Public Auto Program has many years of experience in writing the
Commercial Auto line of business for small to mid-size taxi and limousine drivers. In 2007, Gateway began writing
business in the Contractors Program that specializes in the General Liability, Commercial Auto and Workers
Compensation lines of business for roofing contractors. In 2008, Gateway began writing business in the Long-Haul

Truck Program that specializes in the Commercial Auto, Cargo, and General Liability lines of business for small to
mid-size truckers. Gateway maintains insurance licenses in 47 states, including the District of Columbia.

Note B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Described below are the significant accounting policies followed by the Company in the preparation of the
accompanying consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Camelot and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Gateway,
collectively referred to as the “Company.” All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting practices generally accepted in the United
States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Risks and Uncertainties

Investment securities are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market and credit. Due to the level of risk
associated with investment securities and the level of uncertainty related to changes in the value of investment
securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in risk in the near term could materially affect the amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statements.

Premium Revenues

Gateway writes premiums for commercial vehicle business, general liability, and workers compensation calling for
insureds' to pay premiums on a periodic basis. Gateway records written premiums and uncollected premiums and
agents' balances deferred on these monthly writings equal to the annual amount at inception of the policy.

Premiums are recognized as income over the terms of the related insurance policies. Unearned premium reserves

represent the portion of the premiums written that relate to the unexpired terms of policies in force. Such reserves are
computed on a pro rata method.
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Unpaid Losses and Loss Adjustment Expense

The reserves for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses include amounts determined on the basis of individual
claims and actuarially determined estimates of losses incurred but not reported. Such liabilities are necessarily based
on estimates and, while management believes the amount is adequate, the ultimate liability may be in excess of or less
than the amounts provided. The methods of making such estimates and for establishing the resulting liabilities are
continually reviewed and updated based upon current circumstances and any adjustments resulting there from are
reflected in operations.

The reserves for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses are reported net of receivables for salvage and
subrogation
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of approximately $686,000 and $494,000 at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Cash Maintained for Deductibles

The Company maintains cash balances on behalf of certain insureds' in order to pay claims up to their deductible.
These amounts are included in the Company's cash balance and the corresponding liability is included in accounts
payable and accrued expenses. Cash balances maintained on behalf of others amounted to $0 at December 31, 2011
and 2010, respectively.

Investments

The Company accounts for its investments in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) ASC
320, Investments - Debt and Equity Securities. Management determines the appropriate classification of its
investments at the time of purchase and re-evaluates such determination at each balance sheet date (Note D).

Fixed maturity securities are classified as available-for-sale and are stated at market value, with unrealized gains and
losses, net of tax, reported as a separate component of shareholder's equity.

Equity securities are classified as available-for-sale and are stated at market value, with unrealized gains and losses,
net of tax, reported as a separate component of shareholder's equity. Market value is based on third-party quoted
market prices or, when unavailable, on similar assets.

Realized gains and losses are reported as a separate component of income based upon the first-in, first-out method.

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs
Policy acquisition costs include commissions and premium taxes. These costs are deferred and amortized over the
terms of the related policies to which they relate to the extent recoverable from future revenues and gross profits.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are recorded at cost and depreciated using the straight-line method over useful lives of three
to five years. Expenditures for maintenance, repairs and minor additions are charged to operations as incurred.

When property and equipment are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost is removed from the asset account, and the
corresponding accumulated depreciation is removed from the related allowance account. Any resulting gain or loss is
included in results of operations.

Income Taxes

The Company employs the provisions of FASB ASC 740, Income Taxes. FASB ASC 740 requires recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been included in the
consolidated financial statements or tax returns. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined
based upon the differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax
rates in effect.

The Company has implemented the accounting guidance for uncertainty in income taxes using the provisions of
FASB ASC 740. Using that guidance, tax positions initially need to be recognized in the consolidated financial
statements when it is more-likely-than-not the position will be sustained upon examination by the tax authorities. Such
tax positions initially and subsequently need to be measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that has a greater than
50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the tax authority assuming full knowledge of the
position and relevant facts. The Company believes that it has appropriate support for the income tax positions taken
and to be taken on its tax returns and that its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open tax years (after 2008
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for federal and state) based on an assessment of many factors including experience and interpretations of tax laws
applied to the facts of each matter.

The Company has concluded that there are no significant uncertain tax positions requiring disclosure, and there are no
material amounts of unrecognized tax benefits.
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Cash, Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investments
Cash and cash equivalents includes short-term investments which consist of investments with original maturities
within one year of acquisition. Cash consists of all cash on hand and on deposit with financial institutions.

Premium Receivable

Premium receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances. Management
provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a charge to earnings and a credit to a valuation allowance based
on its assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after management has
used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to premium
receivable. The valuation allowance increased (decreased) by ($154,427) and $197,257 for the years ended December
31,2011 and 2010, respectively.

Impairment of Long Lived Assets

The Company evaluates whether events and circumstances have occurred that indicate the remaining estimated useful
life of long lived assets may warrant revision or that the remaining balance of an asset may not be recoverable. The
measurement of possible impairment is based on the ability to recover the balance of assets from expected future
operating cash flows on an undiscounted basis. In the opinion of management, no such impairment existed at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Subsequent Events
The Company has evaluated all subsequent events through March 20, 2012, the date the financial statements were
available to be issued.

Note C - Investments

The following information summarizes the difference between amortized cost and fair value of fixed maturity
investments as of December 31, 2011 and 2010:

December 31, 2011 Amortized Cost Gr?ss Unrealized Gross Unrealized Fair Value
Gains Losses

US Government $4.078,503 $441,473 $— $4,519.976
Securities
US States, territories, | 156 15 67.574 _ 1,197,789
possessmns
US Political 1,063,698 29.469 — 1,093,167
subdivisions of states
Special revenue and - 4 555 96,095 — 1,319,350
assessment
Industrial and

. 11,289,604 783,111 37,677 12,035,038
miscellaneous
Mortgage backed 18,629,133 984,742 13,365 19,600,510

$37.414.408 $2.402,464 $51,042 $39.765.830
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December 31, 2010

US Government
Securities

US States, territories,

possessions
US Political

subdivisions of states
Special revenue and

assessment
Industrial and
miscellaneous

Mortgage backed
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Amortized Cost
$4,752,737
483,599
694,327
2,031,135

12,025,586

12,157,214
$32,144,598

Gross Unrealized
Gains

$175,252

9,468

735,780

267,527
$1,188,027

Gross Unrealized
Losses

$9,462
26,274
17,330
37,088

1,962

127,789
$219,905

Fair Value
$4,918,527
457,325
676,997
2,003,515

12,759,404

12,296,952
$33,112,720

The amortized cost and fair market value of debt securities by contractual maturity are shown below. Expected

maturities will differ from contractual maturity because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations
with or without call or prepayment penalties:

Within one year

After one year through five years
After five years through ten years

After ten years

Mortgage Backed

The cost and estimated fair value of investments in equity securities at December 31, 2011 and 2010 as follows:

December 31, 2011

Preferred Stock
Common stock

Cost

$6,800
3,288,864

Total equity securities $ 3,295,664

December 31, 2010

Preferred Stock
Common stock

Cost

$6,800
3,237,202

Total equity securities 3,244,002

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company held 40 and 56 fixed maturity and equity securities, respectively,

Gross Unrealized
Gains

$19,800

3,935

$23,735

Gross Unrealized
Gains

$5,781

58,819

64,600

Amortized Cost
$1,065,287
6,582,819
10,955,448
181,721
18,629,133
$37,414,408

Gross Unrealized
Losses

$—

584,661
$584,661

Gross Unrealized
Losses

$—

565,400

565,400

Fair Value
$1,084,075
6,910,570
11,982,569
188,106
19,600,510
$39,765,830

Fair Value

$26,600
2,708,138
$2,734,738

Fair Value

$12,581
2,730,621
$2,743,202

where the estimated fair value had declined and remained below amortized cost by the amount indicated in the tables

below.
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2011 2010
Fair Value Unrealized Losses Fair Value Unrealized Losses
Bonds, not backed by other loans
Less than 12 months $822,488 $37,677 $3,377,921 $92,116
Loan-backed and structured securities
Less than 12 months 226,625 391 6,169,385 120,831
12 months or more 429,557 12,974 417,897 6,958
1,478,670 51,042 9,965,203 219,905
Common Stock
Less than 12 months 1,773,071 162,371 — —
12 months or more 631,532 422.290 1,121,192 565,400
$2,404,603 $584,661 $1,121,192 $565,400

The Company regularly reviews its investment portfolio for factors that may indicate that a decline in fair value of an
investment is other-than-temporary. Based on the evaluation of the issues, including, but not limited to, intentions to
sell or ability to hold the fixed maturity and equity investments with unrealized losses for a period of time sufficient
for them to recover; the length of time and amount of the unrealized loss; and the credit ratings of the issuers of the
investments, the Company does not consider these investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31,
2011 and 2010.

The Company monitors its investment securities to identify impairments in value. The Company evaluates factors
such as financial condition of the issuer, payment performance, the length of time and the extent to which the
estimated fair value has been below amortized cost, general market conditions, intent and ability to hold securities,

and various other subjective factors. Based on management’s judgment, securities with other-than-temporary
impairment in value are written down to management’s estimate of fair value. Included in investment related losses are
other-than-temporary write-downs of equity securities of $0 and $1,000 in 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Accrued investment income at December 31, is as follows:

2011 2010
US Government Securities $41,461 $46,990
US States, territories, possessions 10,843 4,373
US Political subdivisions of states 9,402 7,905
Special revenue and assessment 20,649 32,931
Industrial and miscellaneous 148,704 152,980
Mortgage backed 66,346 43,110
Common Stock 1,163 490
Short Term Investments — 36
$298,568 $288,815

Bonds, notes and other short-term investments with fair value of approximately $5,123,000 and $4,483,000 at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, were on deposit with various state departments of insurance to comply
with requirements of the various states to maintain deposits for the protection of those states’ policyholders.

Net investment income by source was as follows for the year ended December 31:
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2011 2010

Investment Income

Fixed maturity investments $1,290,120 $1,214,495

Short-term investments 3,707 3,302

Dividends 58,495 63,525

Total investment income 1,352,322 1,281,322

Less investment expenses 121,117 96,606

Net investment income $1,231,205 $1,184,716

Net realized gains (losses) on investments included in results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2011
and 2010 are as follows:

December 31,

2011 2010
Fixed maturity investments $229,380 $345,591
Marketable equity securities (2,488 )43,611

$226,892 $389,202

During 2010, the Company acquired a bond which was subsequently converted for two new bonds. The conversion
was an exchange of similar bonds of the same issuer. The book value and consideration at the time of the conversion
was $113,701. The conversion was accounted for as a non-cash transaction and excluded from the Company’s
statement of cash flows.

Note D - Fair Value Measurements

Certain financial assets and liabilities are valued using market prices from active markets (level 1). Level 1 instrument
valuations are obtained from real-time quotes for transactions in active exchange markets involving identical assets.
Level 2 instrument valuations are obtained from readily-observable inputs of the instrument. Level 3 instrument
valuations are unobservable inputs which are significant to fair value measurement. As of December 31, 2011, the
Company did not have any assets with valuations without observable market values or other inputs that would require
a high level of judgment to determine fair value (level 3 instruments).

The asset or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any
input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. Following is a description of the valuation
methodologies used for assets measured at fair value. There have been no changes in the methodologies used at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Bonds: Valued at quoted market prices in less active markets; quoted market prices for similar instruments, and
pricing models, such as a discounted cash flow model, with all significant inputs derived from or corroborated with
observable market data.

Preferred and Common stocks: Valued at quoted market prices at year end.

Mutual funds: Valued at the net asset value (“NAV”) of shares held by the Company at year end.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable value
or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the Company believes its valuation methods are appropriate and
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consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair
value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.
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December 31, 2011

US Government Securities

US States, territories, possessions
US Political subdivisions of states
Special revenue and assessment
Industrial and miscellaneous
Mortgage backed

Total bonds

Preferred Stock

Industrial and miscellaneous
Common Stocks

Industrial and miscellaneous

Mutual funds

Industrial and miscellaneous
December 31, 2010
US Government Securities
US States, territories, possessions
US Political subdivisions of states
Special revenue and assessment
Industrial and miscellaneous
Mortgage backed
Total bonds

Preferred Stock
Industrial and miscellaneous
Common Stocks
Industrial and miscellaneous
Mutual funds
Total preferred and common stocks

Note E - Property and Equipment

Level 1
$26,600

631,532
2,076,606
$2,734,738
Level 1
$—

Level 1
$12,581
1,121,191

1,609,430
$2,743,202

Level 2
$4,519,976
1,197,789
1,093,167
1,319,350
12,035,038
19,600,510
$39,765,830
Level 2

Level 2
$4,918,527
457,325
676,997
2,003,515
12,759,404
12,296,952
$33,112,720
Level 2

$—

$—

.- Form 424B4

Level 3

Level 3

Property and equipment at December 31, 2011 and 2010 consisted of the following:

Electronic data processing equipment

Furniture and equipment
Autos

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
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December 31,

Total
$4,519,976
1,197,789
1,093,167
1,319,350
12,035,038
19,600,510
$39,765,830
Total

$26,600
631,532
2,076,606
$2,734,738
Total
$4,918,527
457,325
676,997
2,003,515
12,759,404
12,296,952
$33,112,720
Total

$12,581
1,121,191
1,609,430
$2,743,202

2011
$1,438,924
93,365
25,600
1,557,889
427,529
$1,130,360

2010
$740,632
91,154
25,600
857,386
302,495
$554,891
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Depreciation expense for years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 was $125,034 and $38,814, respectively.
Note F - Liability for Unpaid Losses and Loss Expenses

Activity in the liabilities for unpaid losses and loss expenses is summarized as follows for:

December 31,
2011 2010
Balance at January 1 $19,224,000 $12,295,000
Less reinsurance recoverable - net 2,148,000 1,209,000
Net balance at January 1 17,076,000 11,086,000
Incurred related to
Current year 18,697,000 15,002,000
Prior years 1,703,000 2,401,000
Total incurred 20,400,000 17,403,000
Paid related to
Current year 8,152,000 5,430,000
Prior year 9,700,000 5,983,000
Total paid 17,852,000 11,413,000
Net balance at December 31 19,624,000 17,076,000
Plus reinsurance recoverable - net 4,191,000 2,148,000
Balance at December 31 $23,815,000 $ 19,224,000

As a result of changes in estimated losses incurred with respect to insured events in prior years, during 2011 and 2010,
the provision for losses and loss adjustment expenses net of reinsurance recoveries increased by approximately
$1,703,000 and $2,401,000, respectively. Changes in estimates of prior year losses incurred were the result of
re-estimation of unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses principally on the commercial auto and trucking lines of
business.

Note G - Reinsurance

The Company follows a procedure of reinsuring a portion of its insurance risks by obtaining reinsurance for areas of
exposure beyond specific amounts. As a result, the accompanying statements of operations reflect premiums, losses
and loss expense net of related reinsurance.

Contingent liabilities exist with respect to reinsurance ceded which would become an actual liability in the event that
the reinsurer is unable to meet their obligations to Gateway under existing reinsurance agreements.

The Company reinsures its commercial auto liability, general liability, and worker’s compensation coverage under
excess of loss reinsurance treaties. Additional facultative reinsurance is maintained for certain commercial automobile
risks exceeding the maximum policy limits under the excess of loss treaties. For both 2011 and 2010, ceded premiums
are based on a percentage of premiums for the excess of loss reinsurance treaties and a fixed amount per unit for the
facultative reinsurance.

265



Edgar Filing: Atlas Financial Holdings, Inc. - Form 424B4

Effective July 1, 2011 and 2010 the Company’s net aggregate amount insured in any one risk, including worker’s
compensation, was $500,000.

The following identifies the ceded components of written and earned premiums for the years ended December 31,
2011 and 2010:
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Direct
Assumed
Ceded
Net

$30,369,357

$25,672,936

December 31, 2011

December 31, 2010

Earned Weritten Earned
$28,656,702 $24,396,697 $23,238,888
125,199 125,302 119,984
)(4,792,644 )(3,367,207 )(3,397,170
$23,989,257 $21,154,792 $19,961,702

During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 total liabilities for direct unpaid losses and unpaid loss
adjustment expenses were reduced by approximately $4,191,000 and $2,148,000, respectively for insurance reserves

ceded to other companies. Reinsurance recoveries on paid and unpaid losses were approximately $3,026,000 and

$938,000 during 2011 and 2010, respectively, which are reflected as a decrease in losses and loss adjustment expenses
incurred in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

Net balances recoverable from reinsurers (comprised of unearned premiums and losses and loss adjustment expenses

paid and unpaid, including incurred but not reported amounts) having unsecured portions exceeding 3% of the

Company’s total capital and surplus was $3,453,000 and $821,000 for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010,

respectively.

Note H - Income Taxes

Components of Deferred Tax Assets (DTAs) and Deferred Tax Liabilities (DTLs)

Description

Gross deferred tax assets
Gross deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax asset

DTAs Resulting From Book/Tax Differences In:

Unpaid losses and LAE
Unearned premiums

AMT credit carry-forwards
NOL carry-forward

Impaired investments

Bad debt accrual

State income taxes

Contribution carry-forward
Foreign tax credit carry-forward
Gross DTAs

DTLs Resulting From Book/Tax Differences In:

Bond market discount
Accrued dividends
Depreciable assets
Unrealized capital gains
Other

Deferred acquisition costs
Gross DTLs

December 31,

2011
$4,591,863
(1,651,204
$2,940,659
2011
$475,285
929,376
60,195
2,870,522
169,000
63,658
20,367
2,999

460
$4,591,862

$25,100
395
245,577
608,765
130,846
640,520
$1,651,203

2010
$2,681,864
) (888,066
$1,793,798
2010
$447,746
814,887
30,855
1,079,574
169,000
116,164
20,367
2,982
289
$2,681,864

$23,670
868
38,759
158,888
135,367
530,514
$ 888,066
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Reconciliation of Federal Income Tax Rate to Actual Effective Rate

The provision for federal income taxes incurred is different from that which would be obtained by applying the
statutory federal income rate to income before income taxes. The significant items causing this difference are as
follows:

Tax Effect at Effective
Description Amount 34% Tax Rate
Loss before taxes $(4,700,080 )$ (1,598,027 )34.00 %
Non-deductible expenses 38,522 13,097 (0.28 )%
Tax exempt interest and DRD, net of proration (46,130 )(15,684 )0.33 %
Other 90,506 30,772 (0.65 )%
Total $(4,617,182 )$(1,569,842 )33.40 %

Operating Loss and Tax Credit Carry-forwards

At December 31, 2011, the Company had approximately $8,400,000 in net operating loss carry-forwards available to
offset against future taxable income. These losses expire through the year 2031.

Consolidated Federal Income Tax Return
Camelot Services, Inc. is the parent company of an affiliated group of companies and files a consolidated federal
income tax return with the following entity:

Gateway Insurance Company

The method of allocation among companies is subject to a written agreement, approved by the Board of Directors,
whereby allocation is made primarily on a separate return basis with current credit for any net operating losses or
other items utilized in the consolidated tax return.

Note I - Transactions with Related Party and Affiliates

On June 29, 2011, Hendricks contributed $4,360,000 of paid-in capital to Camelot. On June 30, 2011, Camelot
contributed the $4,360,000 to Gateway as additional paid-in capital.

On January 29, 2010, Hendricks contributed $3,000,000 of additional paid-in capital to Camelot. On February 1,
2010, Camelot contributed the $3,000,000 to Gateway as additional paid-in capital.

On December 15, 2010, Camelot entered into a long-term note agreement with Hendricks. The principal amount
borrowed under the note agreement is $1,500,000 and bears interest at an annual rate of 8.66%. Principal and interest
payments commenced on January 15, 2011 and are due in sixty monthly installments of $30,887. During 2011 the
Company paid $120,039 in interest expense to Hendricks.

Gateway has marketing and sales agreements with two companies affiliated by common ownerships; Insential Inc.
(Insential) and American Westbrook Insurance Services (AWIS). AWIS acquired all of the assets of American Patriot
Insurance Agency (APIA), effective January 1, 2010. Agreements with Insential and AWIS (formerly APIA) were
entered into for the purpose of producing premium in the workers compensation and general liability lines of business
associated with the contractor industry.
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During 2011, commissions earned on written premium produced by Insential and AWIS was $237,811 and $177,508,
respectively. During 2010, commissions earned on written premium by Insential and AWIS was $200,920 and
$108,630, respectively.

At December 31, 2011, there were no amounts due from Insential and AWIS. At December 31, 2010, amounts due
from Insential and AWIS were $24,483 and $29,530, respectively.

Note J - Gateway Statutory Dividend Restriction
The maximum amount of dividends which can be paid by Gateway to its shareholder without prior approval of the
Department of Insurance of the State of Missouri is limited to the greater of 10% of surplus (as of the preceding

December 31) or the Company’s
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net income from the previous year. All dividends must be paid from earned surplus.

There were no dividends paid during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Note K - Benefit Plan

Gateway sponsors a 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan (RSP) for employees. All active full-time employees who are age
twenty-one or over and have completed six months of service are eligible for the RSP. In addition to employee

contributions to the RSP, Gateway also makes contributions to individuals’ accounts.

Gateway matched 50% up to the first 6% of the employee’s contribution, a maximum of 3% per employee during 2011
and 2010. Gateway contributed $83,540 and $71,697 to the RSP during 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Note L - Statutory Disclosures

Gateway is subject to regulation by the Missouri Department of Insurance, Financial Institutions and Professional
Registration (the “Department”). Those regulations, in part, prescribe certain accounting methods for statutory purposes.
As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, Gateway’s statutory assets, statutory surplus, and statutory net income (loss), as
filed with the Department, were as follows:

2011 2010
Statutory assets $53,519,238 $48,739,608
Statutory surplus 16,326,527 16,843,106
Statutory net income (loss) (4,886,671 )(3,436,973 )

Note M- Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is subject to guaranty funds and other assessments by the states in which it writes business. Guaranty
fund assessments are accrued at the time of insolvencies. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company has accrued a
liability for guaranty funds and other assessments of $8,246 and $8,656, respectively, and a liability for worker’s
compensation assessments of $99,603 and $48,013, respectively. This represents management’s best estimate based on
information received from states in which the Company writes business and may change due to factors including the
company’s share of the ultimate cost of current insolvencies. During 2011 and 2010, there were no material
insolvencies to report.

Various lawsuits against the Company have arisen in the course of business. Contingent liabilities arising from
litigation, income taxes and other matters are not considered material in relation to the financial position of the
Company.

The Company leases office equipment, furniture and property under various non-cancelable operating lease
agreements that expire through February 2016. Rental expense for 2011 and 2010 was approximately $567,365 and
$417,842, respectively.

At December 31, 2011, the minimum aggregate rental commitments are as follows:

Year ending December 31 Rental Space Equipment Total
2012 $334,201 $536,253 $870,454
2013 341,808 536,253 878,061
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2014 337,412 490,912 828,324
2015 341,752 418,274 760,026
2016 57,138 253,218 310,356

Note N - Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains cash balances with several lending institutions in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance
limits.

At December 31, 2011, the Company did not have any bonds with a carrying value exceeding 10% of statutory
surplus.
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Note O - Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

Cash paid (recovered) during the years ended December 31:

2011 2010
Interest $120,039 $—
Income taxes recovered, net (527,944 )(108,972 )

Note P - Discontinued Operations

Effective November 6, 2006, Gateway discontinued its Private Passenger Automobile line of business. Previously, in
July 2003, Gateway discontinued the Truck Liability and Hospitality/General Liability Programs. Results of the
discontinued operations of these programs are included in the Company’s consolidated statement of operations until all
open claims have been closed. The income (loss) related to discontinued operations included in the Company’s
consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive income (loss) for the years ended December 31, 2011 and
2010 are $4,256 and $(27,826), respectively.

Note Q- Change in Estimates and Sale of Company (Unaudited)

The Company experienced significant claim loss development in 2012 primarily related to the 2011 accident year.
Accordingly, the Company recorded additional claim reserves of $5 million during the third calendar quarter related to
2011 and prior accident years.

In October 2012, the Company signed a stock purchase agreement to sell 100% of its outstanding shares to a strategic
buyer. The transaction is estimated to close January 1, 2013 subject to regulatory approval and other closing
conditions. The Company’s income tax net operating loss carry-forwards will be limited in the transaction.
Accordingly, the Company has recorded a full valuation allowance of approximately $3 million on its net deferred tax
assets as of September 30, 2012.

The table below summarizes these changes in estimates as if they were reflected in 2011 (in millions).

2011 Balances Adjustments for Pro Forma 2011
Description (audited) Changes in Estimates Balances
Total Assets $64 $3 )61
Total Liabilities 42 5 47
Shareholder’s Equity 22 (8 )14
Net Loss (3 )(8 )(11 )
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**All amounts in whole dollars
CAMELOT SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets (Unaudited)
September 30, 2012

ASSETS

Investments and Cash

Cash and cash equivalents

Fixed maturities available-for-sale at fair

value (amortized cost $32,712,947)

Equity securities available-for-sale at fair value
(cost of $3,096,353 at 2012)

Total Investments and Cash

Receivables

Premium and agent balances receivable, net of
allowance of $451,395 at 2012 and $309,672 at 2011
Reinsurance recoverable on loss and loss

adjustment expense

Premium taxes recoverable

Interest and dividends accrued

Total Receivables

Other Assets

Deferred policy acquisition costs
Property and equipment, net
Other assets

Total Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these
condensed consolidated financial statements.
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2012

$8,931,207
35,608,298
3,075,945

47,615,450

10,226,302
5,741,291
121,047
228,185
16,316,825
1,676,298
978,876
241,679
2,896,853

$66,829,128
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LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY
LIABILITIES

Reserve for losses and loss

adjustment expenses

Unearned premiums

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Note payable, related party

Total Liabilities

SHAREHOLDER'’S EQUITY

Common stock, $1 stated value;

40,000 shares authorized; 500 shares
issued and outstanding

Additional paid-in capital

Retained deficit

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Total Shareholder’s Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S
EQUITY
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2012

$30,870,605
11,946,177
3,558,155
1,050,511

47,425,448

500
30,927,805
(13,491,442
1,966,817

19,403,680

$66,829,128
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CAMELOT SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss (Unaudited)
Nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011

2012 2011
Revenues
Premiums earned, net $19,148,097 $17,798,619
Investment income, net of expenses 929,991 907,398
Realized gains (losses) on investments (89,919 )225,706
Total revenues 19,988,169 18,931,723
Expenses
Losses and loss adjustment expenses 19,108,813 12,925,232
Other underwriting expenses 7,495,676 6,806,081
Total expenses 26,604,489 19,731,313
Other expense 200,541 31,380
Total other expense 200,541 31,380
Loss before provision for
income taxes (6,816,861 ) (830,970 )
Income Taxes
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) 2,641,304 (93,414 )
Total income tax expense (benefit) 2,641,304 (93,414 )
NET LOSS (9,458,165 ) (737,556 )
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising
during the period, net of tax 725,749 803,111
Less: reclassification adjustment for (gains)/losses
included in net income, net of tax 59,347 (148,966 )
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 785,096 654,145
COMPREHENSIVE LOSS $(8,673,069 )$(83,411 )

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these
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condensed consolidated financial statements.
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CAMELOT SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity
Nine Months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011

Accumulated
Additional Retained Other

Common  Paid-In Earnings Comprehensive

Stock Capital (Deficit) Income Total
Balance at December 31, 2010 $500 $20,567,805 $(903,039 )$308,431 $19,973,697
Net loss — — (737,556 )— (737,556 )
Additional paid-in capital — 4,360,000 — — 4,360,000
Net unrealized gains on securities
available-for-sale securities, net of
deferred income taxes of $336,984 — — — 654,145 654,145
Balance at September 30, 2011 500 24,927,805 (1,640,595 )962,576 24,250,286
Balance at December 31, 2011 500 24,927,805 (4,033,277 )1,181,721 22,076,749
Net loss — — (9,458,165 )— (9,458,165 )
Additional paid-in capital — 6,000,000 — — 6,000,000
Net unrealized gains on securities
available-for-sale securities, net of
deferred income taxes of $299,355 — — — 785,096 785,096
Balance at September 30, 2012 $500 $30,927,805 $(13,491,442 )$1,966,817 $19,403,680

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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CAMELOT SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)
Nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011

Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Realized (gains) losses on sale of investments
Depreciation

Net amortization of investment premiums and discounts
Deferred income taxes

(Increase) decrease in operating assets:

Premiums and agent balances receivable

Reinsurance recoverable on loss and loss adjustment expense
Interest and dividends accrued

Taxes recoverable

Receivable for securities

Policy acquisition costs deferred

Other assets

Increase in operating liabilities:

Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses
Unearned premiums

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of property and equipment

Proceeds from sales of investments

Purchases of investments

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Additional paid-in capital

Payments on long-term debt

Net cash provided by financing activities
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental Cash Flow Information

2012
$(9,458,165

89,919
163,987
118,517
2,641,304

(631,981
(2,006,910
70,383
7,709
306,938
207,583
46,787

7,055,409
(1,787,401
223,879
(2,952,042
(12,497
6,330,153
(1,637,819
4,679,837
6,000,000
(198,884
5,801,116
7,528,911

1,402,296

$8,931,207

2011
)$(737,556 )

(225,707 )
29,518

106,882

(93,414 )

) (1,557,030 )
) (570,602 )

53,530
525,501

(515,467 )
85,307

877,053

) 3,072,563
135,007

) 1,185,585

) (658,801 )
8,401,536

)(13,376,818 )
(5,634,083 )
4,360,000

) (180,504 )
4,179,496
(269,002 )

3,215,860

$2,946,858
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Cash paid for interest $73,689 $92,069

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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CAMELOT SERVICES, INC.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2012 (Unaudited)
**A]l amounts in whole dollars

Note A - Nature of Business

Camelot Services, Inc. (“Camelot” or the “Company”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hendricks Holding Company, Inc.
(“Hendricks”) and is the parent company of Gateway Insurance Company (“Gateway”’). The Company specializes in
Commercial Lines of business by offering three niche programs. The Public Auto Program has many years of

experience in writing the Commercial Auto line of business for small to mid-size taxi and limousine drivers. In 2007,
Gateway began writing business in the Contractors Program that specializes in the General Liability, Commercial

Auto and Workers Compensation lines of business for roofing contractors. In 2008, Gateway began writing business

in the Long-Haul Truck Program that specializes in the Commercial Auto, Cargo, and General Liability lines of

business for small to mid-size truckers. Gateway maintains insurance licenses in 47 states, including the District of
Columbia.

Note B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Company's significant accounting policies have remained unchanged from December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. Refer to the audited consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 for a complete
summary of the Company's significant accounting policies.

Subsequent Events

On October 25, 2012, Hendricks announced that it had entered into a stock purchase agreement to sell Camelot and its
sole insurance subsidiary, Gateway to Atlas Financial Holdings, Inc. Completion of the transaction is subject to
customary closing conditions, including regulatory approval of the change of control of Gateway, and is expected to
be completed during the first quarter of 2013.

Note C - Investments

The following information summarizes the difference between amortized cost and fair value of invested assets as of
September 30, 2012:

September 30, 2012  Amortized Cost Gr9ss Unrealized Gross Unrealized Fair Value
Gains Losses

US Government $4.073,053 $467.721 $— $4.540.774

Securities

US States, territories, 556 17 122,462 _ 1,680,541

possessmns

US Political 1.055.616 49.614 — 1,105,230

subdivisions of states

Special revenue and ) ggc 4 146,219 — 2,032,329

assessment

Industrial and 8.481.568 971,874 _ 9.453.442

miscellaneous

Mortgage backed 15,658,521 1,146,437 8,976 16,795,982
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Total fixed income

: $32,712,947 $2,904,327 $8,976 $35,608,298
investments
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Preferred stock 6,800 10,200 —

Common stock 3,089,553 148,638 179,246
Total equity securities 3,096,353 158,838 179,246
Total invested assets 35,809,300 3,063,165 188,222

The Company monitors its investment securities to identify impairments in value. The Company evaluates factors

17,000

3,058,945
3,075,945
38,684,243

such as financial condition of the issuer, payment performance, the length of time and the extent to which the

estimated fair value has been below amortized cost, general market conditions, intent and ability to hold securities,

and various other subjective factors. Based on management’s judgment, securities with other-than-temporary
impairment in value are written down to management’s estimate of fair value. Included in investment related losses are
other-than-temporary write-downs of equity securities of $204,000 at September 30, 2012.

Note D - Fair Value Measurements

There have been no significant changes to fair value measurements since December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Note E - Liability for Unpaid Losses and Loss Expenses

As a result of changes in estimated losses incurred with respect to insured events in prior years, during the nine
months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, the provision for losses and loss adjustment expenses, net of reinsurance
recoveries, increased by approximately $4,959,000 and $1,173,000, respectively. Changes in estimates of prior year

losses incurred were the result of re-estimation of unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses principally on the

commercial auto and trucking lines of business.

Activity in the liabilities for unpaid losses and loss expenses for September 30 is summarized as follows:

Balance at January 1
Less reinsurance recoverable - net

Incurred related to:
Current Year
Prior Year

Paid related to:
Current Year
Prior Year

Net balance at September 30
Plus reinsurance recoverable - net

Balance at September 30

Note F - Reinsurance

The Company has no significant changes to its reinsurance arrangements since December 31, 2011.
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2012
$23,815,000
4,191,000
$19,624,000

14,150,000
4,959,000
19,109,000

3,628,000
9,975,000
13,603,000
$25,130,000
5,741,000
$30,871,000

2011
$19,224,000
2,148,000
$17,076,000

11,752,000
1,173,000
12,925,000

4,582,000
8,117,000
12,699,000
$17,302,000
2,799,000
$20,101,000
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September 30, 2012

Expected income tax benefit at statutory rate (2,317,732 )34.00 %
Valuation allowance 4,961,107 (72.78 )%
Nondeductible expenses 9,822 0.14 )%
Other (11,893 )0.17 %
Total 2,641,304 (38.75 )%
September 30, 2011
Expected income tax benefit at statutory rate (282,530 )34.00 %
Valuation allowance — — %
Nondeductible expenses — — %
Other 186,116 (22.76 )%
Total (96,414 )11.24 %
Income tax expense consists of the following for the period ending September 30:

2012 2011
Deferred tax expense (benefit) 2,641,304 (93,414 )
The components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities as of September 30 are as follows:

2012 2011

Deferred tax assets:
Unpaid claims and unearned premiums 1,476,929 1,449,693
Loss carry-forwards 4,856,636 1,175,045
Bad debts 153,476 105,288
Other 322,511 220,511
Valuation allowance 4,961,107 )—
Total deferred tax assets, net of allowance 1,848,445 2,950,537
Deferred tax liabilities:
Investment securities 934,320 519,544
Deferred policy acquisition costs 569,942 705,772
Other 344,183 174,994
Total gross deferred tax liabilities 1,848,445 1,400,310
Net deferred tax assets — 1,550,227

Note H - Transactions with Related Party and Affiliates

On July 16, 2012, Hendricks contributed $6,000,000 of paid-in capital to Camelot. On July 17, 2012, Camelot
contributed the $6,000,000 to Gateway as additional paid-in capital.

On June 29, 2011, Hendricks contributed $4,360,000 of paid-in capital to Camelot. On June 30, 2011, Camelot
contributed the $4,360,000 to Gateway as additional paid-in capital.

On December 15, 2010, Camelot entered into a long-term note agreement with Hendricks. The principal amount
borrowed under the note agreement is $1,500,000 and bears interest at an annual rate of 8.66%. Principal and interest
payments commenced on January 15, 2011 and are due in sixty monthly installments of $30,887. The Company paid
$73,689 and $92,069 in interest expense to Hendricks during the nine month periods September 30, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.
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Gateway has marketing and sales agreements with two companies affiliated by common ownerships; Insential Inc.
(Insential) and
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American Westbrook Insurance Services (AWIS). AWIS acquired all of the assets of American Patriot Insurance
Agency (APIA), effective January 1, 2010. Agreements with Insential and AWIS (formerly APIA) were entered into
for the purpose of producing premium in the workers compensation and general liability lines of business associated
with the contractor industry.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2012, commissions earned on written premium produced by Insential
and AWIS was $234,198 and $149,839, respectively.

There were no amounts due from Insential and AWIS at September 30, 2012.
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4,125,000 Ordinary Shares

Atlas Financial Holdings, Inc.

PROSPECTUS

February 11, 2013

Until March 7, 2013, all dealers that effect transactions in these securities, whether or not participating in this offering,
may be required to deliver a prospectus. This is in addition to the dealer’s obligation to deliver a prospectus when
acting as an underwriter and with respect to unsold allotments or subscriptions.
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